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" INDEPENDENT PATENT AND TRADEMARK
SRR OFFICE ACT

-~ THURSDAY, JANUARY 24, 1980
coor e e LS, SENATE, -
" JOINT HEARING oF THE COMMITTEES ON- -
GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS AND THE JUDICIARY,

. s - Washington, D.C. -

- The -committees met, pursuant to notice, at 10:08 a.m., in room
8302, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Birch Bayh, presiding.
. P)resent: Senators Bayh and Danforth (cochairmen of the hear-
~‘Also present: Steven Breyer, chief counsel, John Minor, counsel,
Judiciary Committee; XKevin O. Faley, chief counsel to Senator
Bayh; Joseph P. Allen, professional staff member for Senator Bayh;
- Christopher Brewster, counsel to Senator Danforth; Eric Hultman,
counsel to Senator Thurmond; Ellen Miller, professional staff

member for Senator Ribicoff.. _ : IR
. " OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR BAYH - -

_ Benator BayH. Today the Committees on Governmental Affairs
and the Judiciary begin their first day of hearings on 8. 2079, the
Independent Patent and Trademark Office Act. I introduced this
legislation on December 5, 1979, along with my colleagues Senators
Danforth and Nelson to remove the Patent and Trademark Office
from' within the Commerce Department and establish it as an
independent agency. The bill also creates a 6-year term of office for
the Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks. The Independent
Patent and Trademark Office Act will not be creating any new
bureaucratic entity, but will help the Patent and Trademark Office
to function more efficiently than is now possible. .= . . o
There has been a great deal of discussion and concern. recently
about what has gone wrong with our patent and trademark system.
I have been told by independent inventors, small business owners,
and the largest corporations in America that the present confusion
in the patent and trademark system is a heavy millstone around
their necks as they attempt to deliver new products to the Ameri-
can public. The patent system was originated to protect the inter-
ests of inventors in exchange for the disclosure to the public of new
discoveries. Our Governient is becoming unable to uphold its end
of this bargain. When there is increasing doubt about the worth of
a U.S. patent, when it takes longer and longer to get a patent or
- trademark issued, when it is learned that from 2 percent to 28
percent of the patents are missing from every subclass in the
Patent Office files—and that one of these missing patents can be
-used in court to challenge the validity of .an issued patent—and

: ) E



when the Patent and Trademark Office cannct even hire to fill
present vacancies but must try to process more and more applica-
tions with less and less staff, a clear message is sent to our inven-
tors that the Government does not take them very seriously despite
all of the rhetoric about lagging innovation and productivity.

We are all familiar with the statistics indicating the present
sorry state of American ingenuity. Statistics like the 47-percent
decline in our patent balance between 19656 and 1975—while
Japan’s patents have increased nearly 100 percent in every major
industrial category—and the fact that 35 percent of all patents
issued in this country are going to foreign inventors, are pretty
good indications that something has gone wrong. There are many
explanations for this disturbing trend, yet virtually every expert
that I have talked with has mentioned tﬁg crisis in the Patent and
Trademark Office as a significant contributing factor to our decline
in innovation and productivity.

In a recent speech to the American Bar Association, Mr. Donald
W. Banner, a former Patent and Trademark Commlssmner,
summed up the gituation like this:

In my view we are faced with a Blowly but steadil declmmg Pabent and ’I‘rade-
mark Office. Not only are we failing to make the a model office, we are failing
to provide the necessary maintenance, If we do not promptly. reverse this. dlrectlon

of movement, it shall soon. be mfect.ed w1th an admlmstratlve dry rot cond.mon,
rendermg it monbund

This ‘is not an 1d1e warnmg from someone who is speculatmg
about something that he does not really understand, but the
- thoughtful statement of 2 man who has actually tried to update:
and reform the patent and trademark system from within and has
been frustrated in his attem ts

The problem quite Smely is that the Patent and Trademark
Office 1s never able to directly make its needs known, but must
communicate with the Congress and the Office of Management and
Budget through the Commerce Department which has not shown
much sensitivity to its needs. The Patent and Trademark Office
budget as it is presented to the Congress does not reflect the
opinions of the aé)eople who are actually running the system. The
Patent and Trademark Office has been seriously underfunded for

ears, yet this simple fact has never been clearly stated in the

udget requests that we consider. The real needs of the Office
became evident to me when I received replies to the writtén ques-
tions that I had submitted during the presentation of the fiscal
year 1980 Commerce Department authorization about the situation
in the Patent and Trademark Office. The answers that I received
were shockmg I discovered that not only are a large number of
patents missing from the files, but that only a small percentage of
the files are covered by a security system to prevent theft and
misfilings. The Patent and Trademark Office is not able to hire the
needed personnel to fill existing- vaca.nmes_the number of trade-
mark examiners in 1980 will be the same as in the mid-seventies
yet they are expected to process 65 percent more applications.
Patent examiners have 20 percent to 30 percent less time to spend
on patent applications than 30 years ago which means that all too
often a patent holder is shocked to find his patent struck. down by
the courts because of data that was not consadered by the patent.
examiner -in. hls ‘hurried” search of previous patents and related
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materlals Inventors and busmesses must a]so wait longer -and
longer for their patent and trademark applications to be processed.
These are extremely serious matters to the inventor or business
which is competing with increasingly strong foreign competltors
who have-dependable patent systems to insure the protection of
their inventions.

The answer is not to bhndly throw more money into the Patent

and Trademark Office and hope for the best, but to undertake a
fundamental reform which will ingure that the Office will be able
to carry out its mission as effectively as possible. The Congress
must be able to find out directly what the real needs are and to
consult directly with the people who are actually carrying out the
day-to-day duties of the Office without any intermediaries. As long
as any communication from the Patent and Trademark Office has
to filter through the Commerce Department bureaucracy this will
be impossible. As former Commissioner Banner said recently:

The PTO:has nothing, to hide and would welcome close scrutiny. by the Congress
and OMB. It would thrive in the bright sunshine of such scrutiny, out of the shadow
of the Department of Commerce. The mission of the Patent and Trademark Qffice is
clearly set by the statutes under which it performs. The Department of Commerce
cannot and does not assist the PTO in carrying out its. functions under those
statutes in any way which cannot be better done by the PTO itself. The added cost -
of the PTO as an independent .agency. would be  minimal, estimated at about

$150,000 a year, but this would be well spent m ach.levmg a much more efficient
operation than we have today. .

This view has been seconded by most of our former Commmsmn-
ers, all of whom are with us today except for. Mr Watson who was
unable to be here today. :

- During its ‘history the Patent a.nd Trademark Office has ‘been
under the auspices of the Departments of State, Interior, and Com-
merce. Its.technical function quite. clearly: does not fall within the
mission of any of these agencies. My bill>will-not create any new
bureaucracy, but will insure that the Patent-and Trademark Office
will be able to improve its efficiency and give Amerlcan mventors
and businessesthe services that they deserve.. ..

We should remémber the -words of Abraham Lincoln—a patent
holder—who said that “the patent system adds the fuel of interest
to the fires of genius.” If we stand idly by and permit that fuel to
- run out we will suffer serious economic consequences that are even
now becoming apparent. Even more seriously we will be cheating
our children and grandchildren of the rich heritage that: we our-.
'selves ‘have been enJoymg To a great extent we are all still living

“on grandfather s money,” because the high standard of living that
we have is the direct result of the unprecedented wave of inven-
tiveness of the last 80 years. If we-are not to squander: this inheri-
tance we must act forcefully to shore up our patent and trademark
system which has served us 8o well in the past as‘an mcentwe to
American ifiventiveness..

As I mentioned before, the comm1ttees are certamly honored
today to have as withesses in addition to a spckesman from the
Department of Commerce, every living former Patent and Trade-
mark Commissioner with the exception of Mr. Watson whose
health prevented him from' attending. ‘I think that the views of -
these former Commissioners certainly deserve very careful consid-
-eration of the committees. I appreciate having the opportunity of




receiving your thoughts.gained from years of experience on the

El)ef%lrablhty of  having an_ independent Patent and Trademark
ce .

_ I Yyield to my fnend and colleague from M1ssour1 L

OPENING: STATEMENT OF- SENATOR- DANFORTH

Senator DanFORTH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

.. 1.am pleased to be one of the cosponsors of 8. 2079, whlch you
have introduced.

The bill is simple. Flrst 1t would remove the Patent and Trade-
mark Office from the Commeroe Department and establish it as an
independent agency. Second, it would create a 6-year statutory
office for the Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks.

I am very concerned about the sorry state of American technol-
ogy. I am convinced that American industry is not committing
sufficient regources to research and development, and I am con-
vinced that the Government is not doing enough to encourage such
efforts. Therefore, oni March 23 of last year, I introduced S. 700, a
bill to provide a 10—percent tax credit for research and development
expendll)tures—-and on May 3, consistent with that effort, I intro-

_ duced S, 1065, a_bill to prowde a tax credit to corporatlons which
give colleges and universities grants earmarked for basic research.

But the incentives which Congress extends to industry to invest
in research and development can be seriously impeded if industry

. is unable to count on the assistance of the U.S. Patent and Trade-

mark Office. Increasingly, it appears that industry cannot depend
on the Patent and Trademark Office. Increasingly, it appears that
the Patent and Trademark Office is incapable of doing this job
well. Reports reach Congress that patent filings cannot be located,
that security is dismal, that research by overworked patent officers
ig rughed ‘and unrellable, and the- blame 1s placed squarely at the
feet of the Departiment of Commerce. -+ ="

Interestingly -enough; these: charges come not: only - from the
Patent bar and industry, but-also. from:former Commissioners of
the Patent and Trademark Office, some of whom have been. very
outspoken in their criticism: of the Department of Commerce. - -

As indicated earlier, the bill ‘we consider today proposes that-the
Department ‘of Commerce be stripped -of its administrative control
over the Patent and Trademark Office and be made an- mdepend—
ent agency capable of dealing directly with the Congress.

Further, it provides for stability in the administration-of the new
s?ency by creating a 6-year statutory office for the Comuussmner

Patents and Trademarks. -

I do not join as a cOSponsor hghtly, but mcreasmgly it appears
that this is the only .course.we can take 1f ‘We . are to have an
effectlve and efficient Patent Office SIS s

Thank you, Mr. Chairman..: .- :

Senator BAvyH. Thank you very much Senator Danforth It 1s a
pnvﬂ l:ﬁmto be with you here this morni -

: point I will submit a statement f Senator Sasser

[Statement of Senator Sasser follows:] - s .

; STATEMENT or SENATOR JiM SASSER

Thank you Senator Danforth and Senator Bayh for demonstratmg your concern
for - this important legislation by holding this hearing 8o early in-the session.
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‘This ‘countiy has always been regarded ‘as an innovative giant: The world has
looked tous as a leader in science and technology. But our once unchallenged
dominance in scientific and technological trailblazing has been seriously eroded.

While there are many réasons for this erosmn, the rapxd deter1orat10n of our
patent system is surely a pnmary cause. . Do

I have heard complaints; - -

That the Patent and Trademark Office in Commerce is not funded adequately
to support a staff needed to handle a growing case load;

" That the security of ouit patent files are at-an-all time low; and,

- 'That the Patent and Trademark Office is buried deep within a bureaucracy

". that appears to be strangling it. . -

" ‘These reports are troubling.

I'don’t t]gl.hk we can sit by 1d1y when there is mcreasmg concern: about the worth
of our United States patent.

1 am hopeful, Senator Danforth and Senabor Bayh that this joint hearmg and the
ones to follow, "will enable our committees to _report out the most effective leglsla-
tion possible to restore the conﬁdence that is 8o bad!y needed in thxs countrys
patent process.” "

‘Senator BAYH. Our ﬁrst w1tness thls mornmg is Mr Francls W
Wolek, Deputy -Assistant Secretary for Sc1ence and Technology at
the De artment of Commerce. -

retary, we are glad to have you Wlth us th15 mornmg If
you would Just step up -to the witness table, we will get started.

TESTIMONY OF FRANCIS W WOLEK DEPUTY ASSISTANT SEC-
. RETARY FOR SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF
COMMERCE, WASHINGTON D.C.

Dr. Worek. Thank you, Mr. Cochalrmen, for this opportumt to
present-the administration’s p051t10n on S 2079, the Independent
Patent and Trademark Office Act.

-Before I begin, let me introduce the staff who are here to help
me respond to your questions. ..

On my right is Andrew Moxam, from the Department s Office of
Budget and Program Evaluatlon, the Budget Analyst for the
Patent and Trademark Office.

On my far left is Michael Kirk, who is the ‘Director of the Office
of Legislative and International "Affairs in’ the Patent and Trade-
mark Ofﬁce; and on my immediate left is Mark Haflich from the
Department’s Office of General Counsel, who is Legislative Counsel
to the Department’s Office of Science and Technology

Senator Bayh, when you introduced the bill on- December 5, your

remarks clearly showeg that you appreciate the important role of
the Patent and Trademark s%stem to the economic ‘well-being - of
American industry and the lic. This appreciation is also evident
in your consmtent support 0 leglslatlon to improve the operatlon of
this systern. -
- We share your view that patents and tradema.rks are funda.men—
tal to the health of innovation and industrial productivity and,
therefore, welcome your . interest and contributions. Indeed, we
share a common goal—a strong patent and :trademark system
- Congress has the legislative responsibility of assessing various
paths to reach that important goal and ¢hoosing the best means. S.
2079 would make the Patent and Trademark Office an 1ndependent
agency as a:means of furthering that goal.

Simply stated, the administration assessment is that makmg the
Patent and Trademark Office independent would® inhibit the
-strengthening of the patent and trademark systém. Accordmgly,
the administration is opposed to the enactment of S. 207%.

-



Recent supporters -of an independent office. believe that the
Patent and Trademark Office is in a time of crisis—that the office
is increasingly unable to fulfill its function of i 1ssu1ng reliable pat-
ents and trademarks in a timely manner. . -

The cause of this situation is procia:lmed to be slmple—the
Patent and Trademark Office has inadequate rescurces. The reason
is the Department of Commerce has been insensitive to the needs
of the office; Without the obstruction of Commerce’s bureaucracy,
it is argued, the Patent and Trademark Office would have done
and will:do. 2 more competent job of communlcatmg its needs and
managing its resources. We beheve thls a.rgument 1s fa.llacmus and
misleading:

-It.ig not at all unusual for Federal agencies to. beheve that they
are in a time of crisis and that the solution is more Tresources.
Given this tendency,_it has -been the policy of every modern day
administration to require an independent. performance evaluation
to assure sohd Justlficatlon of past performance -and- future re-
quests. -

'The task of the budget oﬁicers in the Department of Commerce
is twofold: To work with the Office of Management and Budget to
formulate. proposals for the President that will enable administra-
tion goals and objectives to be met; and, to assure that resources
are utilized as dlrected by Congress wzth maxnnum efﬁclency and
effectiveness. -

The role of our budget ofﬁcers is. not a snnple one, nhor. has it
been performed in an arbitrary manner in the case of the Patent
and Trademark Office. Throughout Government, program manag-
ers and their direct clients often feel that their budget requests are
reviewed by people unfamiliar with all of the nuances of their
programs and inappropriately reduced by pergons who know and
care little for the operation.

If you were to respond to this very common situation by creating
an independent agency for each frustrated program, the Govern-
ment would become an unwieldy. amalgam of agencies mth weak-
ened or little accountability.

- Indeed, it has been the. Presnient’s policy to limit the number of
mdependent agencies only to .cases where there is a demonstrated
and compelling need. :

The correct approach to prowdmg for resource . needs hes in:
stralghtforward justification, based upon results and. efficlent man-
agment in accordance with congressional direction. That is:the
responsibility of the management of the: Department of Commerce
and of the Patent and Trademark Office.- .~ ©.

“ Despite the hard work of many competent. people at the Patent
and Trademark Office, and despite every good ‘intention to do
otherwise, the office’s" ‘requests ‘have not- presented a convincing
case for added resources. The issue is not who is at fault for past
problems. The fact of the matter is that ‘we, both the Patent and
Trademark Office and the Department, recognize our joint respon-
sibility . for providing the necessary solutions to these problems

_There are a number of characteristics of previous years’ propos-

‘als which detracted from thelr poss1b111ty of success, :-
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- For example, in the ‘area of support for requests problems ‘were
deﬁned in- qualitative terms or w1th lnnated data across tlme or
across technology groups, -

Problems were -also stated w1th little reference or supporting
data ‘as to their importance in terms of agency missions. Solutions
were proposed without supporting data to‘show how the solution
was related to the cause of the' difficulty, and why it was the best
of different alternatives that could be'considered. = -

. I refer, for example; to the problem of mlssmg patents from
search files, or the search file integrity isste. -

.-Justification for program expansion: Requests for addrtmnal re-
sources ‘should be. accompanied’ with data ‘oh the -success of past
efforts as well as' the potential benefits for the future. Such data
were generally lacking; for example, in requests for expansmn of
the quality review program. :

In budget procedure, departmental, Office" of Management and
Budget and congressional budget examiners have repeatedly com-
plained that the Patent and Trademark Office’s -estimates were
confusmg For example, it is difficult, if not unpossuble, to relate-T
year’s request to previous or- subsequent years. Questionable as-
sumptions and changing submittals were common; for example, the
model used to estimate patent examiner productmn and cost.” '

In the area of financisl inanagement, the Patent and Trademark
Office’s financial management has been of concern to the House
and Senate Appropriations Committees for 3 years. Frequent repro-
graming of appropriated funds raised doubts about the accuracy of
budget estimates. In particular, the fiscal yéar 1979 reprograming
‘caused confusion within the Office, its ¢lients, and the Appropri-
ations Committees. As'it turned out, the actual use of funds at the
Patent ‘and Trademark® Office m 19'79 ralses doubt about the need
for that reprograming. - _

What has been our response to these problems‘? The' Department_
of ‘Commerce, the 'Office of Management and Budget, and the
Patent and: Trademark Office “personnel have committed their
spirit ‘and energies in a large-scale éffort to build a solid base for
future Patent and Trademark Office operations. A stronger man-
agement team: is being created. New: procedures for objective and
reliable management of resources are bemg and Wﬂl contmue to be'-
instituted. - .

- Our efforts included four- major actions:" ' B

A major task force devoted excluswely to patent pol1cy in the
recently completed “Presidential Review of. Industrial Innovation”;

Two major studies, conducted jointly by the Patent and’ Trade-
mark Office and the Department of Commerce—‘Zero Based Anal-
ysis of Every Patent and Trademark Office Operatlon" and a “F1-
nancial Management Review”;

A magjor ‘reorganization- pla.n desugned to strengthen fmanc:lal
management and improve managérial ‘and program planning;

‘Personnel” changes devoting ‘new and more departmental re-
sources for  Patent and Trademark Office’ liaison; ‘and- f'mally,
fiscal 'year 1981 budget request which would s1gn1ficant1y increase .
the Patent and Trademark Office’s resources and strength; =~ =

-1’ pergonally part1c1pated in these efforts and am very proud of
our accomphshments in'each. I have gained ‘4 deeper respect for
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people in the Patent and Trademark Office. and on the department—
al staff, The objective of all of these efforts.is to create a Patent
and Trademark Office which has the strength .the. cred1b1].1ty, and
the performance record to be independent in its operatlons

This brings me. to the second. part of my. testimony, for the
Patent and Trademark Office is. more. than an operation. The
Office is. a major contributor to public policy. In this role, we
believe it is crucial for the Patent.and Trademark. Office to be fully
integrated with other parties respons1b1e for -policy on 1ndustr1a1
development and technological innovation. - -

The . major. function of the patent and trademark system is: to
promote innovation and industrial development. Accordingly, we
believe. that the Department responsible for these areas—the De-
partment ‘of Commerce—is the. -proper -home for the Patent a.nd
Trademark Office.

This location assures that the Patent and Trademark Ofﬁce will
be. sub,}ect to- influence by a broad spectrum of groups.concerned
with, the. VIgor and d1rect10n of mdustnal development and innova-
tion.. SR

S. 2079 wouid lessen that mtegratlon ‘

‘It is possible to think of the patent and trademark system purely
in terms of the processmg of patent and trademark applications.
This myopic view is apparent to some who note that patents and
trademarks are. only two of several. mterdependent ‘means:of ob-
taining. legal protection for investments in intellectual property.
However, an even broader and more; approprlate view is that all
forms of intellectual property protection:are only one- of severa.l
legal incentives for industrial development.. -

One of the Patent and Trademark Oﬂ'ice 8 responslbﬂltles is- to.
prov1de the Government and the public. with the expertise on such
legal incentives. Others include mstruments related to product lia-

bility and industrial standards.

'~ The expertise must. be- mtegrated w1th that from economu: and:
industrial strategists in formulatlng and-implementing:policy and.
programs to-provide. mcentlves for a strong system of mdustnal:
development. - :

The. policy issues. requlrmg thls mtegrat1on are before us and
they are many and of major importance. Are life forms patentable?.
How should computer software be protected? What new forms of
protection for rapidly obsolescing technologies are needed? What
role should different public and private groups play in the promo-
tlon and utilization of patent. mformatmn'? These are some of the
issues on the domestic side: - -

.In addition, patent and. trademark ‘issues appear. repeatedly in:
consultations with other nations on trade and foreign ;)ohcy mat-
ters, for exam dple, in recent discussions with the People’s Repubhc:
of China, the developing: nations, and Soviet bloc countries...

‘One of the basic tenets of our.system of government is. that-
fundamental policy decisions should be made by officers: who are
d1rectly -responsible to elected officials. In this way, we assure. that:
policy is responsive to the wishes of the public, the basic principle:
in our system. At present, this is the case with the Patent and:
Trademark Office. Fundamental policy decisions are made by the
Assigtant. Secretary of Commerce for Science. and Technology, who:
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serves at the pleasure:of the President and is:subject to confirma-
tion by -the Senate. His considerations of these issues include
inputs from other Cabinet-level agencies as well as top officials
within the. Department responsible for trade and economic policy.

. Under 8. 2079, the head operating officer of the Patent and
Trademark: Office—the Commissioner—would become the chief po-
licymaker;.and he would be isolated from other relevant ofﬁc1als--
‘a8 well ag from elected officials—for 6 years. .

In closing, I wish to emphasize that while we oppose enactment
of 'S. 12079, the administration actively seeks the strengthemng of
the patent and trademark system. By being part of the mission of a
Cabinet-level department and also part of one of the administra-
tion’s top policymakers on industrial innovation, patent and trade-
mark issues have had greater attention from the President and
Executive: Offices, for example, the Office of Science and Technol-
ogy Policy.

This is not an idle claim. I refer specifically to the uutlatlves
announced by President Carter in his: October 31 1979 ‘message to
Congress on industrial innovation. :

These initiatives-have been:supported by many 1ndustr1al and
patent -and trademark’ groups as promlsmg substantlal contnbu—
tions to-a stronger System. -

Giving the Patent and Trademark Ofﬁce a central role in ‘the
provision of industrial incentives is a fundamental part of the’
President’s initiatives. We have already begun to take the steps
necesgary to obtain the managerial strength, the’ credibility, -and
gle planmng capablhty needed to accomphsh the Pre51dent’s objec- )

ves..
Mr. Chalrman, thlS concludel my- testlmony T am grateful for
the opportunity to appear before the committees, and Twill be glad-
to answer any questions you may have: Thank you::= . - ‘

-Senator Bays: We appreciate your taking time to be here

In summarizing your-testimony; are you in essence saying that
the interests of the Patent and Trademark Office and the patent
system for which it functiong-are better served:-under the present .
arrangements than if the Office was independent? -

Dr.-WoLEK. Yeés, sir; that is. what. we.are saying. - = e

Senator Bayn. I am not sure how familiar you are: w1th the way "
some of ug in the legislative branch get involved in issues like this,
just as T am not totally familiar with how things are done down at
- the Department of Commerce. I would like to suggest to you that
while the Commerce Department has the primary responsibility for
the executive branch in this area, the legislative role is seeing that -
the Patent Office functions as smoothly as possible and-that-itis-
not put in a gecondary role or neglected by the Commerce Depart-
ment.. That is why we are very interested:in seeing that some of
the problems brought to our atfention are resolved. -

-There are many consumers of the product:of.the Patent: and
Trademark Office.-These people have urged me to get involved in
their situation. T assume if everything were going:well, this would
not: have been necessary. If everything were all right, we would not
have had the kind of :response:to the Commerce Departmerit's
‘record in this area that we have recewed Have you been down to "
the Patent and Trademark Office'? = P
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. Dr. Worexk. I am there very,. very frequently. Do :
Senator Bavn.  Have you. read some of the maﬂ over there‘? :
‘Dr. WoLEK. Yes. - :
Senator Bayh, Every letter 1 have gotten—and I m recewmg over :
40 a week--has supported making the Patent Office independent. I
have not seen one. letter  that supports your contention that the.
Office. should. be left under your Department I assume- you are'
familiar with Mr. Donald Banner" ‘ :
Dr. WorEk. Yes, gir: -
.Senator; Bays. Would you suggest he is a responmble md1v1dua1‘>-= '
-Dr. Worek. Yes, sir. ’
Senator ‘Bayu. He tried hJS best ag Patent Commmmoner You'
have heard of Mr. C. Marshall Dann from Phﬂadelphla‘?
-Dr. WoLEE. Yes; gir. -
-Senator Bavw. Would you make the same. assessment abo
service? ,
.. Dr. WoLEk. Yes, sir.:
Senator Bavs. Mr. Robert Gottschalk Dav1d Ladd Wllham-
Schuyier Edward Brenner?
"Dr. WoLEE. These are all honorable and respectable men. '
Senator BAyn, We have all of these gentlemen here today. and-
each one disagrees with you after having served as PTQ Commis-
- gioners, Would you -suggest they, mlght be rather famxhar w1th the
way the Office:actually operates‘? BIb -
«Dr. WoLEK: Absolutely.” - - - :
“Senator BAYH: Perhaps. more 80 than elther one of us, :
- Dr: WoLek.:I would agree to that, yes. But I would also suggest
that they have a limited perspective. While they are aware:in
detail of many of the operations, they have.a view from the inside.
It is-not always clear that that inside view is-the only view possible :
necessarily the best view.-That:is: why: we require an independent .
outside evaluation for all of our:agenciés so that the insiders can
present thelr case. and convmce other people who are: wﬂhng to be
convinced. :
Senator BAYH 1 understand your pos1t10n on thls I -also: look at :
the criticisms that you directed at the Patent Office in which you
talk about the reprograming of funds being unjustified. It is inter-
esting -to know that the President’s domestic policy: review came
out and recommended. the kind of additional funding for the Patent
Office that I have been proposing for:a year, and.which your folks .
down at the Commerce Department opposed. Now, why is it if-
these former Commissioners have such limited view and don’t:see-
the. overall perspective,.that the President’s own review:looks at -
this - problem -and: reaches exactly - the same . conclusmn as the:ﬂ
Patent Commissioners and of myself? . - -
mPr ‘WoLEE. Whlch spemﬁc recommendatlons are you referrmg_-:.
‘Senator Bavm. Those of the Subcommlttee on Patents and Infor-

mation, Pohcy of the DPR which cited the need for more resources,:

better .organization, and greater independence for the Patent Office-.
while: pointing out the: inability-.of that office to-function:freely.::

Ltell you, as a Senator, it is rather frustrating to have a Commis:
sioner sit there like you are now. before a Senate commlttee andi;i-
not be allowed to answer questions forthrightly. (R s 5
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I asked the Commissioner,  what are the problems at the PTO,
could you get Congress a list of the problems? That list has now
been: compiled by the..Patent. Office, but it hasn’t- reached the.
committee yet so we can study it because it is roadblocked down.
there at the Commerce Department N low, that is a rather frustrat-
mg thing, it -seems to me.. :

..Dr. WoLEE. Yes; I am sure. that 1t is, and I w111 be glad to answer
any specific questions that you have about that. C ,

-Senator BAYH. Why isn't it here? <
f' ~Dr, WoLEK, Would - you like to talk about that partlcular request
lrst'? P :

Senator BAYH Yes, I would : :

- Dr. Woiek..I will- be glad to. - The request is currently bemg
- processed. Two things had to be done with that request. First of all;’
the list that was generated by the Patent Office contains budget
estimates. Those figures.have to be evaluated according to our best
understanding of what the actual costs of steps would be. . :

.Senator Bayn. Dr. Wolek, please, if 2 Senator asks the head man
down at the Patent and Trademark Office to give us his recommen-
datlon, and the Commissioner has to meet.the budget figures and-
he is familiar with the needs of his office, why can't he simply be
allowed to answer? I am familiar with the fact because the Com-
merce -Department - routinely does not support-the recommenda-
tions of the Patent and Trademark Office and of this Senator to get.
addltlonal appropriations for the PTO. Now why does the Commis-
gioner ‘need. some - expert- down -there " at Commerce who. is: not
charged with the day-to-day functxonmg of that Ofﬁce to. screen ‘his’
recommendations-to:the Senate? - . -

- Dr. WoLek: He does not:need an expert to tell th what are the-
operatzons that are mvolved but he does need to present a convmc-.
ing case.-

It is the. respons1‘b111ty of budget officers to make sure that pubhc_
moneys are spent properly. What we do is check for the consistency
between what was: submitted in the past and what is claimed now..
What we .do: is check for. whether or- not there is-a basm and actual-
data for what was submitted. . :

~We do not try:to. second guess the operatlons What 1 we. do try to-
make sure of is that they are solidly Justlfied in fact. . .

Senator:BayH. -Well, may I suggest, sir, that your track record.
has not been very- good :1-do not say this to you personally because:
you may not have had anything to do with it, but the reason:we
- would like to get to somebody down there who actually is running.

the Office and:look at -what he ‘says, instead . .of these so-called-
Commerce Department experts, is that the Department s record at-
making the real needs known is frankly very poor. I have had a
"couple of personal experiences in this also and your experts have
' not impressed me. I could go through the chronology of events here-
and tell you why I get so excited about this. - : sk
The Commerce Department budget analysts in- the ﬁscal year :
1979 budget, calculated an office production rate for patent exam-
ining, that the Patent Office told ou was totally - unrealistic. At
least two Commlssmners brought _to the attention of the De-



The Department, nevertheless, included that analyst’s projec-
tions in the 1979 budget despite the fact that the Patent Office told.
the Department that unless there were corrections, some patent
-examiners would have to be laid off. The Department refused to
make any corrections, they denied the necessary application for
supplemental budgetary funding, they opposed my efforts to correct:
this problem and the efforts of the members of the Patent Bar to
- correct it by saying that it wasn’t necessary. The Department.then
. told the House Appropriations Committee when'this error could no
longer be denied that it originated in the Patent Office and was an
example of the need for having the Department oversee its budget
requests. The result of all this business was that enough resources
were not given to the PTO to do its job. In fact, to meet its budget
PTO prmters were la.ld off and prmtmg penaltles were. thereby
incurred. ;

Now, how can I be less than concerned about thls process given.
this history and these results. Here you are telling me that we
ghould continue to rely on the Commerce Department’s experts.

That is the concern I have. When you look at what the President.
has said; what the President’s own committee came out and said—:
which was that we were right all along about the PT(’s problem—-
and yet the Commerce Department comes back up here and is-still
suggesting the same old thmg Well I must say, I am very con-
cerned about it. '

Dr. WoLEK. Senator, in my test1mony, I carefully stated that the-
budget submittals of the Patent and Trademark Office had prob--
lems. I-was not referring to any particular individuals when'I did-
that. Those were the submittals made'to the Office of Management.
and Budget the submlttals made to the House Appropnatlons
Committee. : \

Those were the problems where, in 1ndlcat1ng that level of aggre-=
gation; I'was trying to avoid—which I believe must bé the case—
crediting ‘any ‘blame to anyone within the patent and trademark:
system, or any particular person within the:Department of Com--
merce, or any group of people within- the Department of Commerce

As I stated in my testimony, despite every good intention, despite
the hard work of competent people ‘on both' sides, there have been
difficulties. Now, it is possible, Senator, for me to hear comments
about the difficulties that are stemming from those people over in.
the Patent Office, the mlstakes that they have made, the lack of '
data; et cetera, - - !

-1t is also possible, if you git -in the Patent Ofﬁce and .you are
talkmg on-a daily basis and you have internal loyalty to that staff,’
to: hear: repeatedly--as I have—about those no goodnicks at’ the
Department who are foulmg ug up, whochanged this estimate;’
gave us insufficient’communication. on that directive, et cetera, et
cetera. It is logical for us to get one perspectwe or another, depend-
mg upon which location we'are in. -

-I''would be glad to go over any individual pomt that you have_
now or later on, but I really beheve that 1t is 1rre1evant to the issue
that is before us.- : .

~The questlon is not who was to blame in the Department, or who
was to blame in the Patent Office for this specific case or that
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spein{';;:l 1case We can spend a lot of t1me on that and 1f you want

The issue before us-is one: of (a) publlc admmlltratmn whether
or not agencies require-and find- useful for management purposes
to- have -an- independent - performance- evaluation;: and (b}-policy;
whether or not patent and trademark policy needs to be integrated
with other fundamental aspects of innovation and industrial devel-
opment But 1 wﬂl be glad 1f you w1sh to talk about that repro-

aming:
Senator BAYH I w111 be glad for our staff to look at these.
spec1ﬁcs
Frankly, I am more concerned about general problems that ex1st :
Dr.Worgk.~1 will be happy to:work with your staff, Senator.
~Senator: Bays. You made; I would say you concurred in perhaps,
a. leading* .question:that I -directed: at you that the men who are
goingto follow you-teday as witnesses: and who support thxs leglsla-
tlon were qualified administrators. .7 e
~:You-said they had:a narrow v1ew
«:Dr. WoLEK.- Yés: 7 ' SUEEERE
:Senator BayH.:Yet. the crlt1c1sm that you 1ev1ed at them aref
*criticists; of irresponsible: administration. You shake your head I
will read here what you said:
“'Theé Department of 'OMB "arid Congressaonal hudget examiners have repeatedly

complained that the’ Patent ,and Trademark Office budgets were confusing. It was
impossible to relate one year 's request to another year's request. - :

“If that isn’t a matter of bad admmlstratlon, I don’ t know what is.

" Questionable assumptlons a.nd changmg subrittals were common, the model used
to estimate patent examiners’ production and cost; reprogramming activities caused
confusion within the Patent and Trademark Office and w1th 1ts cllents and the
Appropnatlons Committee. .

< Iwill tell:you what caused confus1on, at least on’ the Senate s1de
in the Appropriation Committee is ‘that we had your ‘immediate
superior, Secretary Baruch, and asked ‘him ‘what, if any, ‘additional
funds was needed by the Patent and Trademark Office. The answer
came back on Department of Commerce statlonery that an add1-
tional $14,267,000 was needed: to’do the job.

Assistant Secretary Baruch testified that th1s ‘was necessary for
the office to operate properly in1980.So some of us’ crawled out
there on the limb ‘and:tried to get that money recommiended, and
we found that the very people at Commerce who said it was neces-
sary for the proper functmmng of th1s Office, were now opposmg 1t .

Can-you explain why? - .

Dr. WoLEK: Budget . requests: ‘have to be 1nteg‘rated wzth the total
operations of the executive branch. When we look ‘at each agency;
-we rank the needs in.priorities. It is always possible ‘to:spend:
additiorial funds on-various ‘worthy projects wherever they have to”
be ranked: in order: of the value they obtain.- When we come ‘to-
preparing the final. listing of which" funds will: be: glven ‘to-one
agency-versus another-agency, ofi¢ department versus another de-
partment; -one independent agency: versus  another 1ndependent
agency,.some of those projects fall off the bottom of the list and are
not-approved. And that then becomes the administration’s overall
viewpoint of-what is. the best way to spend the money for the total
priorities of the Government.. , '




.. Senator BAyx. And that ] understand. And that it seems to me is
the strongest testimony to have an independent Patent and Trade-
mayik Office.. What you have said-is the same thing that the record
shows happened last year. When the Patent.and Trademark Office
was. asked, through the Department, to tell us what resources you
need to do the job the way.it ought: to:be done and then -the
Commerce Department sends it up to the Appropriations Commit-
tee with Secretary Baruch’s good housekeeping seal of approval on
it, saying this is what needs to be done, and yet within the inte-
grated structure which you say is so important, the-Patent and
Trademark Office’s needs then felI off the radar screen. That s
exactly what happened. :

Dr. WoLEk. In my reply, Senator, I sald that the rankmg of
priorities was not.only among agencies but ‘among departments
and among independent agencies: If Secretary:Baruch had not been
in' that position, the. Commissioner: of Patents: and- ‘Trademarks:
would have been in that position. The person:in ‘the position must:
defend the total administration budget which may, in factyexclude
some of the items which that person himself believes: would-be
useful. Whether or not you are an independent agency head; you
still have the responsibility to relate your prlOl'ltleS to the Govern---
ment’s overall priorities. i

Senator Bayn. See, now you are telling us—I understand the way
the budget process works, first the privates have to carry out-the-
lieutenant’s orders and so on, but you had ‘given us to believe
earlier on this whole process down there that the PTO was respon-
sible for much of the confusion, that they didn’t have a broader
view.. The question I am concerned about is how you get the Patent -
and - Trademark Office to work? You get. it to' work by getting-
resources in there and giving the qualified commissioners that we
have had the leeway to do the job.and not have to straln it through
other people who might have other axes to grind. : ,

Dr. WoLEE. Senator, you.asked me if all the prevmus Commls--;
sioners were honorable men and respectful men and I agreed with-
you. You then stated that my testimony indicated they were incom-.
petent administrators. That is not the case at all.. :

Senator Bavn, No; 1 said-the problem you brought to our atten-
tion as critical of the office were problems of administration which
would suggest that you had mefﬁment adm1n1strators which you,
just said was not the case. . :

Dr. Worek. The best admlmstrators in any system can at times
find problems that are so difficult, so pervasive, so complex that
despite their.good efforts by themselves, they -are not able to re-
solve them. What that requires—and this is what is necessary to
strengthen the. patent and trademark system-—is outside help, as
well as strengthening of inside resources .to resolve those dlfﬁcul-
ties and to.build the capability for a sound system in the future.

- We. recognized: the complexities.and the weaknesses, wherever:
they had originated in the' past. What we have done over the past-
year-is to provide those resources.and dedicated action with which
the Commissioner can lay the groundwork: for a sounder system.-

. Strengthening management with new. procedures, new . people,
resolutlons of past difficulties—this-is the way to resolve the lunds‘
of issues that have kept coming up in the past SRS :
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Senator Bavn. That gounds like snake oil, if you will: forglve me
for being rude, because the record shows when you had a chance to
provide -additional resources you did everything you could to stop
it—here again I.am not accusing yout personally, you may not have
been involved in this process. We had to fight the very people who
said this is what we needed and then they fought us all the Way
down the line to keep from getting that’ help B

*Dr. Worek. If I understand snake oil, it 'is a’product for whlch a
lot of people make promises and then get out of town fast before
the gtuff has to deliver in terms of results.

- Senator Bavyu. Also a cure all, spread 1t on a wart and it disap-
pea.rs, take it for-a cold and it dJsappears It just seems to me, the
general statement you are making is trust us, we can take care of
it, we have the matter under control—which sounds to 'me a lot
like snake oil. Tt is' véry frustratmg to me when people tell us they
need help and their superiors say, OK, this is right, that is what
you need and we try to get them the help, and then they try to pull
the rug out from under us. Now they come back and tell us what
they needed in the beginning wasn’t really what they needed, they
need something different. When I look at what has been said 1
have to say perhaps I don’t have as broad a view of thig as you do,
}Jut I must say from my narrow perspectlve that iz sure the way it

ooks.

Dr. WoLex. One of the thlngs to look at in determining whether'
or not what I just said was snake oil is the tract record that
results. I am still here and, in fact, the fiscal 1981 budget request
will include substantial additions to the Office’s resources. This
time, however, those additions are based upon the data, thé models,
the analysis that has been absent in the past. The prescription, I

-suggest, is working. It is going to take some time and some further
effort on the part of all of us to get the patient in the health that
we would all like it to be, but the prescription is already working.’

Senator DANFORTH. Doctor sometimes departments like to pro-
tect their turf and that is human pature and it is very under-
standable. It has been very much a characteristic of the Commerce
Department, I think. Some of us.supported a new Department .of
Trade and the Commerce Department was vigorously opposed to it,
of course. Now that effort w111 be shifted to the Commerce Depart-
ment.

- Let me just ask you, do’ you appear here as a spokesman for the
Department of Commerce, protecting its turf, or do you appear
here ag a spokegman for the administration?.

Dr. WoLEk. I appear as a spokesman for the admlmstratmn s1r

‘Senator DanroRTH. So the Premdent 1s opposed to thls blll is
that right? o ‘

Dr. WoLek. Yes. R

_Senator DANFORTH.. Would the Pres1dent veto the blll‘? e

Dr. WoLek. It wﬂl be: the advice.of all of his adwsers that he do
80,

Senator BAYH If the. gentleman would y1e1d apparently he does
not consider the Commlssroner of Patents and Trademarks as an
adviser then. ST

Dr WOLEK: I am sorry, s1r you corrected me, that is true
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Senator DanrorTH. I guess, Doctor, the whole question of revital-
izing the economy, sharpening the cutting edge of American tech-
nology, these are matters that can he pretty well covered in a
sentence in the state of the Union speech, that is about it. It makes
a good sentence. .. i T e : .'

I have to say I share Senator Bayh's sense of frustration. I look
at all of the economic indicators regarding the very- sluggish
growth rate of our economy, the high rate of inflation, trade defi-
cit—we never had a trade-deficit in this century until the 1970’s—
the low growth in productivity, the relatively small amount invest-
ed in R. & D. compared to ocur historic average and compared to
other countries, the percentage of patents awarded to people from
other countries, and I have to say I am concerned about the econo-
my. I think it is important to have a strong foreign policy and
national defense—but it.has to be built on an economic base.

Now, there are a number of approaches to doing that. It can be
done by the Internal Revenue Code. It can be done by various types
of reorganization. This is really a very modest proposal Senator
Bayh has offered. I have tried modest proposals, bold proposals,
gsimple proposals, complicated proposals. I have tried them in the
trade law. I have tried them in the Internal Revenue Code in my
Finance Committee work. I have tried them in committee amend-
ments, floor amendments. I have fought the battle in every trench.
And what we got from the administration is a statement in the
state of the Union message. ' o o

Now I am going to tell you what I think is a waste of time. I am
going to be very frank with you. It is a total waste of the taxpay-
ers’ money for four people to come up here to tell us “No.” Why
doesn’t the administration just have a form response, “Just count
us no on everything, the President will veto everything”? Then get
somebody, some office hoy to come up and read it on everything
that can be done to reinvigorate the economy of this country.

I will tell you, it is frustrating. There are any number of ways to
approach the same thing—small ways, big ways, complicated, some.
controversial—this one totally noncontroversial, in my opinion.
There is no sense of teamnwork or cooperation on the part of the
administration, no gense of trying to-develop 4 common approach
with the Congress, just a simplée statement: “We are against it, we

The Congressional Quarterly put out a report on how Congress
supports the President. I happen to be in the minority. I was rated.
76 percent. I have got to go back to Lincoln Day gatherings in the
State of Missouri and try to tell Republicans in the State of Mis-
souri why it could be that I support the President 76 percent of the
time. “What kind of person am I,” would they say? -~ -~ =~ = .

Senator BayH. I will be glad to help you on that. o

Dr. Worgk. I would, too, Senator. [Laughter.] - -

Senator DanrorTH: I would like to see a Congressional Quarterly
report on Presidential support for the kinds of things that I am
interested in. There is no sense of teamwork, there is no sense of
trying to work anything out, there is no sense of being: progressive,
forward-looking, no idea of how to reinvigorate the economy, no
economic policy, no trade policy, no research and development
policy, no advanced technology policy, just one word that sums up
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-everything and that word: is “No;” and our ‘Government ‘i so
inflated and bloated right now that you have to send four. people to
sit here like wooden Indians and tell us “No.” .. - i
. ‘Dr. WOLEK. Senator the reason why there are four people here is
twofold Lo . St

~ Senator DANFORTH Fourfold [Laughter] - '

" Dr. WOLEK. One, the .issue before ‘us is not sunple It is not

ummportant It is of very great importance, as.you have noted and
Senator Bayh has noted. The patent and trademark system -is a
fundamental contributor to the economic strength of th::s country
and our technical progress. -
. Second, the reason why we are here——why I am here and not a
.clerk—is becauge both you and Senator Bayh have shown the
commitment and the interest in these systems and in these prob-
lems that you have exhibited. We are here to try to help you in
every -way that we possibly can with whatever information you
need—whether it embarrasses us, whatever its outcome might. be—
to help-you reach the best possible decision for the public. .

When you say the President has said nothing but a snnple no
and doesn’t work with Congress, I think there is very clear refuta-
tion. of that.. The fact that we are here, the fact that we will
continue to be available to your staff, that we were available to
your staff before the bill was mtroduced to go over any one of the -
points that you are concerned about or that previous commission-
ers have raised in their speeches, documents that we are here to
Work with you. We will continue to do so.in every possible way.

-Senator DANForTH. Doctor, I want to tell you something. I-am on
the Senate Finance Committee. Almost every meeting of the Fi-
nance Committee, certainly every tax bill, the Treasury Depart-
ment is there, in the room, gits right at the table with us, partici-
pates in the- convergation. They are avaJlable, thelr answer - 1s
a}ways -no, too. '

It :is easy to work mth Commerce, havmg worked w1th Treasury
for 80 long. There used to be, I am told, a teacher at the University
of Virginia Law School who liked to ask questions that had to be
answered in the affirmative or negative. And if the student an-
swered .yes and that was the wrong answer, - he would- say, “A
shorter and more accurate answer would be no.”’.

"I think-that is the basic approach of the administration on every-
thmg It is very short, it is just two letters—no. I don't know;
maybe that is. your 1dea of cooperation .and. being forthcoming and
bfmg avaﬂable, but it is not my idea: of. any kind of a two-way
street. .. -

I constantly get phone calls from the admmlstratlon, v131ted by
admmlstratlon lobbyists. I am not sure it is proper, even legal for
the administration to lobby the Congress, but they sure do. They
have people standing off the floor, grabbing. people, rushing them
into the Vice President’s office trylng to convmce us to do thls
that, and the other thing.. -

Now where is the sense of a.ny kmd of two-way street‘? What are
we going to do to get this economy rolling? Are we going to put up
with a 13-percent inflation rate? Are we going to put up with the
fact—a year or so ago I was making a speech saying that we save
6.5 percent of our disposable income, and that is lower than any



other country in the world. Now that has gone dewn to 3 pomt
soznethmg ‘percent. We are not saving; we are not-investing, we are
not putting money in research and development And I am telling
you, maybe you think the Patent Office is just fine and all we have
to do is tinker around with it, but that is not the impression-out
~ there in the country of the people who work with it. They think it
is ridiculous. They think it is a joke. They think instead of being a
partner it is the enemy. That is the way they feel about the Patent
Office. And Senator Bayh. introduces a very simple bill—what is it,
about’ onepage in length? It just says give us an mdependent
office, get it out of Commerce. How many departments has the
Patent: Office been in—in the Federal Government? Three, r1ght‘?

. Dr.- WoLER; Yes; as well ag independent at one time;

Senator DANFORTH K1cked around moved around passed
-around

‘Dr. WOLEK In the past 50 years it has been in one department
Senator, you stated that we always say no and we don’t care. I
believe our track record and the Pre51dent’s mnovatlon message of
October belies that statement; * -

Senator Danrorrh. T will tell you, I don’t know of anybody out
there in the country who feels that way. 1 thmk they just thought
: 1t was a bunch of verbiage.

-Dr.. WoLExk. There are many groups out there who have sup-
porl;ed the President.

:. Senator DANFORTH. Verbiag ' e
- Dr. WoLEK. Including the lmtlatlves, the speclfic 1n1t1at1ves relat-
ed to 1mprov1ng the strength of the patent and trademark
system—-—— T

Senator Bayn. If I m1ght Just 1nterrupt here, I don’t want to get
into this very interesting dialog. President Carter down there on
hig desk has that sign that I think all Presidents ought to have,
“the buck stops here.” In the final analysis, the product that comes
out .of the end of the tube is his responsibility. I honestly believe
the man is sincere about wanting to move into the areas of produc-
tivity, and some of the things he made in that statement I think
hold a'great -deal of hope. I-have got to tell you the chance to get
anything very creative out of that tube depends upon some of you
guys who advise the President. He is worried about whether we are
. going to go to war and the Patent and Trademark Office is relative-
ly insignificant compared to:issues like that. That is where I get -so
exasperated, you have a budget analyst that recommends a totally
unrealistic production: standard that you rely on, you pass it on;
finally he is proven to be wrong and yet now you tell us when we
want to-have a little 1ndependence that what is needed is one of
your budget. analysts. w1th thelr broader perspectlve to determine
what is goingon.

I happen to wear another hat as chalrman of the Intelhgence
Committee and 1 called the President, and 1 don't call him very
often, a year or so ago and suggested in the strongest terms that [
thought the recommendations in one area—a vital intelligence col-
lection -system—was - woefully inadequate and I wished that: he
~ would consider this and help us try to push harder in a conference
committee.: Naturally, as any President would ‘do, he turns to-his
adviser in'-this field and-says work this’ out, go up and talk to
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Senator- Bayh ‘Here they-comé, the- budget peoplé, none of whom;
had ever run an-intelligence: system to tell: me why we were going
to be spending ‘too much money.if we did what we suggested we
- should do:to move this system ahead. Again, it was no. We fought.
and we won, and then .2 months later the folks _were coming back
and said, “Boy, you sure were right on that one.” It is funny to me
that every living Patent Commissioner -says there ought to be an
independent PTO. People that are now there have got to speak the
party line, so to speak. That is the way the ship.runs.

You get people who are out of office, had a chance to reﬂect and_‘
speak frankly, and every one of them says we are wrong in going
ahead: like we are now. - - -

It seems to me if we are lookmg at the way a system runs and_
whether it can be. counted on to change itself, if we look at past
history, you can have a pretty good idea ‘of what those same parties
are going to do if they get another chance at it. The fact of the
matter is these recommendations were made, they were sanctioned
by the. Commerce Department, they were then opposed at the
Appropriations Committee level, then this separate commission
was appointed by the President and those outside thinkers came up
with the novel and creative thought that what the inside thinkers
had wanted at the Patent Office is what was needed all along. And
0 your response to the need for new innovative ideas, brought to
your attention by. this Presidential Commission, were the same
ideas that the peopIe who had been runtiing the Patent and’ Trade-
mark Office said in the first place but were proh1b1ted from imple-
menting becatise of the structure at the Department. It seems to
me we have a structural bottleneck hére and we are not going to
get the Patents and Trademark Office turned loose to let them do
t{n;ags that should be done unless we glve them an 1ndependent
© status N :

“‘Senator; T’ apologlze T ’ s

Senator DANFORTH. One’ thlng that has been called to my atten—
t10n ‘and that is‘that Senator Ribicoff may want to submit some
questmns to‘some or all of the witnesses and asks that, his’ ques-
tions and responses be included in ‘the record.

“Senator BayH.'I appreciate: the chance to work  with Senator
Ribicoff and my distinguished, dedicated co]league from Missouri.
I there is. no objection, we will permit any Senators to submit
questions and;"if ‘you* dont mmd respondmg to them in W'r1t1ng

-Dr. WOLEK. Not at all:*

“Sentator BAYH. 'You: wanted to have further comment, Dr Wolek

~Dr.'WoLEK. Senator; I think you ‘said ‘the ‘system was ‘obstructed:
in the Department-of Commierce in terms of what those requests’
were. Those requests, I believe the gpecific ones you are referring
to, have to.do with act1ons to strengthen the patent quality system,
spec1ﬁcally actions in reclassification, search file integrity and ad-
ditional-examiner-time. Those were hot obstructed. In fact, those
programs all ex1st All:of those actions have been.taken and have
been' approved’ in- the past: The requests that:have been made by
people on-the inside’of :the.system ‘is-for more of that action. All
that we have asked is::Show us the performance of the past efforts;
show-us the payoff that: you have gotten; show us why you say- that
the reclassification levels should be 188,000 rather than: 130,000
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patents a year; show us why we need a. 10-percent rather than a 5.
percent search file integrity review, and why search file integrity
review is the best response of the system. Show us the data; that is-
all we are asking. Document the record in order for us to go forth
with 'a solidly defensible budget that we can present to the public
and to the Congress. Those are the questions that have needed
further study and that is exactly what we have been doing over
this past year; to prepare the documentation and reach a sound

understanding of what ‘levels and what spemfic actions will

strengthen the Office. ©

Senator Bavs. Do you believe that when Secretary Baruch added
his approval last year for the request of $14 million in additional
funding for the PTO that this was done without sufficient examina-
tion of whether this money was going to be spent wisely or not.

Dr. WoLEk. Senator, we have worked repeatedly on this question
for a long period of time. Over that long period of time, for most of
it, we have had to rely upon an internal system which we have
come to understand has difficulties and needs renovation. At var-
ious times, our recommendations have been based upon results and
data whose validity we afterwards came to question.

Senator BAyH. Is that answer yes or no, was a request insuffi- -
c1ently prepared mappropnately presented ‘based on faulty data
or not?

‘Dr. WOLEK The. request was based on incomplete data yes.

Senator BayH. Incomplete data, but when the Pre51dent’s Domes-
tic Policy Review goes back and studies it, they come to the same
conclision. Did they use incomplete data?

Dr. WoLeg. The Domestic Policy Review came to the conclusion
that work in those fields was ugeful. It did not state what the levels
are. What we are doing now in preparation for the 1982 budget
cycle is implementing those Domestic Council recommendatlons
with specific targets as to levels of activity.

Senator BavH. Well, we are playing. ping-pong back and forth, L.
don’t know how anyone can read that Domestic. Pohcy Review’s
report and not understand its meaning. Page 1, proposal 1, “Up-
grade the Patent and Trademark Office.” You can’t-say you need
outside review and then when the outside review agrees with what
you have been told all along by the Patent Office, that the PTO has
too narrow a view—your own experts reached. precisely the same
conclusion. The fact of the matter is, that somewhere in that
structure, somebody is. prohibiting those. people who know . how to
run the office from running it as efficiently as. poss'1b1e The Presi-
dent may veto this bill, but-if he does, he is going to veto it over
the personal advice of people like the Senator from Missouri and
the Senator from Indiana. I think that this is important enough
that the President should also hear from other than those people
who are wed to continuing the process which everybody, even those
people themselves, know 18 inefficient. Obviously the President has
a lot:of things on his mind, but before he vetoes: this bill, he is
going to know there are other thoughts than those that are reach-
ing him through the channels; That is, I guess, one of the responsi-
bilities we have. What he will do is hls responmblhty I appreclate;
‘the position you are in.: ,_
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- D Wo:.nx The grading has already taken: place in the 1981
budget submittal - WﬁlCh is a direct response to the’President’s
message -that came out on October 31. To ‘be specifi¢, the kind of
upgrading that has not beén talked about internally, __wlnch is a
strengthening of the management team, a ‘modernization in"the
application of computer technology to office. operations, . various
other types of activities. We are not waiting, not “holding, -not
treading water. We are going. forward, as you- W111 See: when the
1981 budgetsubmittal comes to Congress next - week. o
‘ Senator BayH: What was the ﬁgure you got last year, the Patent
and Tradémark Office? . .
- Dr. WoLgk. About $100: m11110n--‘ S S ©
Senator BAYH. And what are you gomg to request thls year‘?
Dr: WoLEk. 'I am: sorry;, I- am. not able to glve you the spec1fic
numbers yet.
- Senator BayH. Can you tell us what has been recommended‘?
Dr. WorLeEk. No, sir, I have been embargoed from referring to
specific numbers, but that will be available to you on Monday.
Senator Bavn. I agsume that is also true of the people at the
Patent and Trademark Office. I must say I get the rather distinct
impression that the people at the Patent and Trademark Office
have been embargoed from giving us any ideas, that all of their
ideas, their suggestions as to how you run the office efficiently
have to be run through somebody above them who takes into
consideration the broader perspective that you have mentioned so
often. I understand the need for a broad perspective, but if the
Congress and a significant constituency in this country think that
the Patent and Trademark Office needs to be upgraded, then it
" seems to me that this influence must be felt.
Thank you, very much, gentlemen. I appreciate you coming up,
keeping your cool and presentmg your thoughts on the subject.
Dr. WorLgk. Thank you, Senator.
Senator BayH. We now have a panel of six former Patent and
Trademark Office Commissioners-——Donald Banner, C. Marshall
- Dann, Robert Gottschalk, David Ladd, William Schuyler, Jr., and
Edward Brenner. Here we have a group of public officials who have
served under the terms of six Presidents. Despite the fact you
gentlemen all have a very narrow point of view, we appreciate you
sharing that narrow point of view with us.
. 'Who is the ringleader here?
Mr. GorrscHALK. There is no ringleader, as far ag I know.
Senator Bava. If we are not going to have a ringleader, my
normal prejudice of starting with Purdue graduates would have to
surface, and I would have to ask Mr. Banner to proceed, but I don’t
want to intervene.
"~ Mr. Lapp. I think we can nominate Mr. Banner. We yield to Mr.
Banner.




TESFIMONY OF  DONALD ‘'W. BANNER, McLEAN, VA, C. MAR-

~.SHALL:-DANN, PHILADELPHIA, PA.; ROBERT. GOTTSCHALK,
- CHICAGO, ILL.. DAVID L.. LADD, CORAL: GABLES, FLA,; WIL-
- LIAM: . E. SCHUYLER JR.,  WASHINGTON, DC EDWARD J
..BRENNER, ARLINGTON VA .o

- Mr. . BANNER. Thank you very much Mr Chauman, I am pleased
to be here today: i

- I was a little surpnsed to find that T was an outs1der as you wﬂl
see in a moment. I'gave a speech as an outsider last August which
clearly reflected my:concern, some: of the things Senator Danforth
talked about—recession, foreign deficit payments, inflation. With
your permission, Senator I would.-like: to: ask that that talk be
mcorporated by reference. here P

Senator BayH: Without objection. 1t w1ll be 1nserted at thls pomt

[The statement referred to follews} ;
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APPENDIX A -

LUNCHEON
August 1, 1979 .

AI)E) E‘S‘a R o o . o
Donald . W, Banner, lmmediate Past Commissioner of Patents
and Trademarks : ‘

Shorlly after | rc%ngmd fmm my Qlﬁcc as Commmmnu of Pafents and
Trademarks, Chairman Benson called,staling that he would like me to tell
the Section of the more important conclusions I reached as a result of hav-
ing heen Commissioner, [ acecepted thal challenge and am pleased to have
the opportunity o speak with you this alternoon,

To.do this 1 must discuss activitics-in two very different’ p[acc% namcly,'
lhal of the Patent and Trademark Office in Arlington, Virginia, and that of
the. Department of Commerce in Washington, I, C. This reminds me of
Dickens’ famous “A Tale of Two Cities.” While the Dickens' tale was fic-
tion, and my comments are factual, nonetheless [ ¢an succinetly summarize
my expcncnccs as Commissioner by using the Dickens' staterment: .

“It was the best of times. It was the worst of times. [t was the age of
wledom 1t was the-age of foolishness, It was the cpoch of belicf. It was
the cpoah of incredulity. It was the season of light. [t was the season of
+ darkness. It was the sprimg of hnp{_ Tt was the winter of despair.”

'~ Let me be more spLuﬁc There is 50 fmuch uscful work to be done, so
many things that should promptly be acmmpllshcd to improve the nature
and strength of our country. As we all know, we are in an inflationary pe-
riod in which the annual inflation tate is about 13%; the government ccono-
mists tell us we are’in a deepening recession: last year the balance of pay-
ments deficit was a record 28.5 billion doll.lrs On June, 28 of thls year the
New York Times said,

“Last year, tradc in manufactured produus was in deficit by 6 bllhon
dollars; A dclcrmmtmé performance in this sector has been the ma_]or
.. cause.of the decline in the overall trade balance since 1975.
. “In 1970 West Germany replaced the United States as the world’s larg-
est exporter of manufactured goods. Today Germany is close 1o re-
_ placmg the United States as the leading cxporter of all goods, and Ja-
pan is thrc‘ncnmb io drop the United States | mto thn—d place among
cexporters of manufactured pmduus N

Most EVeryone agrees that a vigorous, innovative, ‘climate in the United
Statc% would assist in all of these arcas; that is to'say, in rt.ducmg inflation,
in lightening or clmunatmg the recession and in improving the balance of
payments deficit. There is nothing more important for us to address for
these are.fundamental challenges to our way of life. Every reasonable step
to /solve: these problems must be taken, Furthermore,” almost everyone
agrecs that the role of the patent and trademark systems in creating such an
innovative ambience is vital. If, however, we look to determine jus whalt is
./ the policy of the United States with respect to the patent and trademark sys-
¢ tems, wg become aware of some rather disturbing facts. For example, in thc
. -June 13 Congressionul Record Senator Schmiltt said, '
“Dc‘:pltc the obvious signiticance of the Patent and Trademark Oﬂlce
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to the innovative process and national productivity, real dotlar furiding-
for the Office has been steadity declining over the past three years.”

We all know that unless the inventor-—and particularly small business-—
can have reasonable certainty that, once granted. his patent is (1) valid snd
{2 entorceable. then the righty conveved by a patent are ilusory and, wit-
mately, the patent system becomes a-cruel hoax, Despite (his Met we are
still today permitling pradual degradation of the intéprity and completeness
of the patent scarch lile, the principal source in determining patentability:
of inventions; there are serious limitations on efforts to improve easc of ac-
cess to the scarch file by restructuring the many obsolete classifications and
instituting modern mechanized scarch' and scarch-assist systems; and we are
not uhle to institute a system to ensure comprehenstve inclusion and controk
af foreign patents in the search file, Furthormore, and despite the fact-that
technical Bterature is both proliferating at an expanential rate while at the
same time becoming more-copiplex, the average time that an examiner de-
votes to an application today is substantially less than it was in the past. It-i§
estimated that 15 years ago 20 1o 30% more time was allotted to every appli-

cation, and 30 years ago an even greater amount of time was allotted to
such examination. This dire neglect of the Patent and Trademark Office is
also obvious in that many’ patent examiners must send out their Office ac-
tions in longhand, and there are not suflicient funds provided so that the
United States of America has a duplicate copy of its oflicial record-of the
progress of a patent application through the ‘Oflice, the file history. It is as-
terishing that threughout the years the Patent and Trademark Office has.
been so underfunded that it could not make a microfitm copy of the official
record of proceedings in the Patent and Trademark Office for its permanent
file, especially in view of the fact that the paper copy is placed in the Public
Scarch Room upon issuance of the patent. v»hcrcupnn sections of that offi-
cial record frequently disappear. Indeed, 1l 18 not unhcard of for thc whole
file wrapper 1o lotally disappear.

. Furthermare, despite the need for patents io issuc as promptly as possible
so that the technology becomes available, so that sm.\ll businesses can ob-
tain financing or licenscs, so that issuanie of patents in other countries to
foreigners on the sarme technology 1s prevented. so that reseasch and devel-
opment is sputred and for the many other reasons which we could catalog,
in this fiscal 'year the (olal number of patents which will issue is over 20%
bclnw that which issucd last year due to huclbcmry problcms At the same

time the average pendency ofa patent '1pphmuon 1s increasing,.

In the trademark arca, the situation is appm.xchlng disaster proportions,
and Sidney Dianiend may have something to say in mote detail on this sub-
ject during his lunéheon address on Tuesday. Sullice it to note that ‘the
number of trademark examiners to be on board in 1980 will be the same as
that in the mid-1970"s while there will be 65% more applications to handle:
The pcndcncy 1o first action will be 13 months in 1980, 16 months in 1981,
and rising from therc urnless somehow checked. We need nol, ‘therefore,
probe the statistics of the trademark problem any further at this time.

) What are we to conclude from the above? In my view we are faced with a
A;Iowly but steadily declining Patent and Trademark Oflice. Not only, are we
* failing to make the PTO a model office, we are failing to provide the neces-
sary. mamtcnanc.c If we do itol promplly reverse lhls dlrccuon of move-
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ment, it shall soon be infected with an administrative dry rot condition, ren-
ding it moribund. Why are wein this condition? What can be done about
it? How can:the Otlice more effectively and efliciently respond to the needs
of the public, to-the-business community, 1o the. Congress. and how can it
centribule more positively 1o the invigoration and growth of our country?

i think we must go to the rool source of the problem. and face up to cer-
tain basic:issues. One of (hesc issucs. relates to the forthcoming fee legisla-
tion. While for. t]lc momient, lhls scems Lo be bogged down in the domestic
policy review, 1 think that it is p__r,cd:u')blc that there will be legislation pro-
posed increasing the fecs payable o the Patent and Trademark Office. Spe-
cifically, the Iast time that fecs were increased was in, 1965, at, which time a
cost recovery rate of 74% of Oiﬁ(.c expense was considered. reasonible. In
comparison, the recovery level dropped to 30% in 1978, In. 1965 fees wer:
increased 247%. When the future increase in. fees is efiected, 1 would hope
that it would not be-as drastic. Indeed, }.would expect that Lhe increases
would be grddualcd and that the whole. fec approach would be diflerent.
Spcc1ﬁca[ly. I think that the futurc fee legislation. may provxde lhat services
offered by the Office and. activitics in connection with. rcglstranon of trade-
marks would rcqujrc full rcunburscmcnt by 1 the apphcanl while in the area
of patentl cxamination lhe fees would be set to recover.some percentage-—
possibly 30%—of the- cost of . that, aclivity. To a greater. dcgree than ever be-
fore, therefore, the publlc and the bar will be. directly paying for, and therc-
fore grcatly interested in, operations ofihc Patent and Tradcmarx Office. In
this regard, 1 have.recommended. that there: be mcrcascd emphasis i in the
Office on planning and budget control. under a new Assistant Commissioner
‘for-Policy and Planning, | .

The publicand the bar can. have an open no- nonscnsc Patent and Trade-
mark Office operating with a minimum time delay and producmg an efli-
cient and reliablc.product. if (1) they are w1llmg to pay for it, (2) the in-
creased fees go only to, provide better service, and (3) an entirely different
organizational arrangement within the gcwernmcm is established for the
Patent and Trademark Office.

At the present time in the Dcpartmcnt of. Commcrcc lherc is, as.yon
_know, an Assistant Sceretary for-Scicnce and Technology. That official has
on-his staff budget people representing the Department of Commerce budg-
et group and legal people representing the Department of Commerce legal
staff. As a result, many products of the Patent and. Trademark Office, such

as Jlelters relating to Ecg:slal:on being proposed, letters relating to. rule
changcs mafters perlaining to the budget, and certain letters to Congress.
~ must ﬁrst go from the Patent and Trademark Office for approval to the stafl
of the Assistant Sccretary for Scmncc and chhnology This.will frequently
involve many letter exchanges, the matter will thereafter go to. for example,
the budget group of the Department.or. the legal staff of the Depanmcnt for
further sludy. needless to say a great deal of. limc is. consumed in this, excr-
cise. .

~Indeed. 1t was durmg one of 1hcse exchangcs wluc.h cxtended over sev-
erdl months, that my theory of government described as “pushing the in-
finitc marshmallow”. -evolved. In addition to the unnecessary amount of
time consumed. in such- malters. this complex, burcaucratic arrangement
also results in there beidg subst.mlmlly no contact between the Patent and
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Trademark Office and ‘gither the Office of Management and Budgu or the
Congress. Indeed; the Patent and Trademark Ofice does not even contiet
thie Oflive of f\’ldﬂdiﬂ&luuﬂ and: Budg:Ll Wil respect to the PTO budget, Thm'
results in some !’dthl’ strange circumstances: Asa practical matler. it is not
only the total amount ot the badpet bul dlso- ihig- priority’ of’ dlxmbuuon
which is dutermined at OMB without P10 participation.

I recommend, therctore, ihat the Patent-and Trademark Office be madc a
sepanite agency,- mdtpcndcnt of the: DC[’ull’lIﬂLni of Commecree! Such™an
agency would be in 4 position’ to be ' muchmore eflicient than it is today. At
the present tinie the Patent and Tradémark ‘Ollice obtiins only about'd 5
% of the Department of Comimerce budget-and obtains no significant as-

“sistance from the Department of Commerce, Indecd, it 35 apparent that the”
needs of the Patént and Tradeniark Office are 2t Jeast in seme degree ad-',
versely aflccled by other components of the Bepartment of Commerce, 1t is
apparent thal the trademark: opcr.mnn particularly sufiefs and that its woe--
ful negleet in the past thay i ng'small degree hitve been the result of its ad:
ministrative positioning und(,r a'scienice and lu.hnologv proup. Trademarks
obvmusiy have no connection with sciénee and iechnology as such.

There ‘is rio question at-all in my ‘mind- but that the Patent and Trdde-

mark Offiee could respond more fully 1o the ‘aceds of the: public and more
clTucnlly and mcamng:fn!ly to the’ reqmrcmcnls of the Congress by bcsng a
sv..p'irau, dgency. The PTO has nothing e hide’ and would welcome close
scrutiny by the*Congréss and by OMB-Trwould thrive i the bright: sun-
shin¢ of such seritiny, out of the shadow of the Dcpdrlmem of Commerce:
The mission of thé Patent-and Trademiitk’ Office is cléarly set by thé stat-
utes under which it performs. The Department of ‘Commerce cannol and
docs not dssist the PTOJh cartyingout its functions under those stalutes in
any way which cannot be ‘better done by the PTO itself. The added cost of
the PTO as an ihdcpc,ndc'm:dgm(:y would be mintmal; estimated at about
$150.000 a-year, but this would be well spent in .u,luevmg a much more’ cm-
cent opcmtlon than we have today.

There is no need, from a political standpoint; (o have lhe Patent and
Trademark Oflice subordinate to the' Departmeni of Comnierce. Indeed,
thé PTO should be operdted with as’ little ‘political influence as possible,
Furthermore, by having'the status of an indepéndent ¢ agency, the Commis- -
sidgner could be appointed-for a fixed term of years, thereby climinaling this
untortunate practice which we now follow of- Having commissioners come
and go with frequency. As a niatter of fact. William' Schuyler resigried as
Commissioner almost ‘éxactly § yearsago loday durmg the intervéning 8
ycars the-accumulated time in which there was nio commissioner equals two
_ycars ‘These' gaps in continuity are totally unnecessary and highly undesu-
able] indsmuch as they mcwmbly lead to at leist some unccrldmty despite
{he Tact thatThose who have-betn'left in charge, ‘such as’ Lulrelle Parker,
have done the best possible job indér the circumstances:

It may be of interest to you to know that many former commissioners
have in'the past suppbrtcd'prcviom‘pr'obosais to establish the Patent and
Trademark Office as anindependent’ agency: included in this group are
former CommissionersOoms, ngsl‘md Marzall, Watson, Gottschalk and
D:mn Thc mu 1Iml lhcre wcn. smh prcwous proposals empha51zcs the: ob- -
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persons or pcrwnalmu are in no v\,‘ly |nvolvcd in support for this progrcs- )

: {"-lVC ﬂ[Cp

Strangely cnuu;_,h lhls ‘iu_imn hoth in [957 and in 19‘39 rcﬂtscd to sup-
portresolutions establishing the Patent- Office as an independent agency,
{As a matter of historic interest,?l could not:find any pasition of the Améri-

can Patent Law. Association -on- thisssubject) -In-any:event, T would most
- strengly. urge that the Scction now-—at this fime—articulate. in unmistak-

able férms its desire-that the Patent and: Tradenrark . Office be made. inde~

" pendent. The timesto. speak i now. Never has the Congress and the' pcoplc

béen morce interested in innovation..in lhc p'm,nl system, than they-are nz,ht

. mow. As just one exampie, Senator Bd\'h recently s‘ud

“The nafiopal coneern ‘that has ariscn over our lapging prcducllvaly L
Jand innovation rates has’ caused the’ Cnngrcss io have-a new.sensitivity

to the functioning, df the pdl(,ﬂl and Trademark Office.” . .
“"He has worked di]lECﬂl]}* in the past few months (o increase thc Funds
available 1o the Patent and ']mdcmark Office; he has just introduced a bill,

8. 1679, providing for ‘statutory reexaminalion. Senator Schmitt, as I in-

dicated carlier, has-also been*very intérested in supporting the Patent and

" Tradenyark’ OMce."us has Senator 3(cvenson And this despite the fact that

the Patent and Trademark ‘Office ‘has’ almost’ no direct Lontact whatsoever

“with Congress'or with the ©ffice 6f Management and Budgt.l o
There now are over 50 such independent agencics. in the Executive
 Branch.of the federal govcmmcnl Foriexamplé, theré is'the Federal Trade
~Commission which is@aboit 60% the size of the PTO'in both’ meioyces and
: budg,u “the :Federal Communications Conimission, about 70% 6f the PTO
'size; and the National Labor Relations ‘Board, w hiehi is stightly larger than” 7

the PTO.-The quasi-judicial nature of-many-of the PTO acuvmes sirongly S

_suggests’its opération as an ind¢pendent agency. - )
©.. Idon’t think'that we will find anywhere a bcllcr group’ of pcople than -
those we arc ‘fortunate enough to have.in the PTO. They need to super--
vision from the. Department.of: Commerce in-carrying out the duties set out .
. for them- by:Congress-in:thepatent, dl‘ld tradematk ‘stafutes. l-am "quite .~
‘aware that there, are lhosu. who will say that the opposition:to such.a pro-
spram is-(oo great. and th

nothing. can . ‘be done. 1 believe; however, as-.
Teddy Roosevelt did. that'if is.far better.to dare- mu,hty things, to win glori- -

jcarl:cr mllauon rcccsmon forc;g,n payment deficits. What' we are about
“here ds an'eflord 1o hclp move this great country of ours more v1gor0usly for-
ward into an amblcngc which its creative JUICCS technologxcally and eco-

T pdraphrasc Bd]‘bdrd W.lrd Jackson l bchcve lhm 1[ we Americans will
work mgclhcr dlhgcnlly and crcauvcly. aur grcatr d.sys arc’ ahead. This
_promise, was not de-

"SLEncd Ior the smlu,‘ the stagn'mt nor lhc Comp]acem Neo mdccd It was -

_rather ;du-lg,m,d for the men-and, ).men \xho w1l[ dream grcally and: dare-
< greatly and who will take !lmsc steps necessary. to make thetr work catch up'.
with their dreams. Let us do precisely that.
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Mr. BANNER. Thank you. I came to Washington, to give you some
of the benefit of experience as to why I felt so strongly about this
issue, why I mentioned it in my speech in August, I came to
Washington concerned about these very items impacting our coun-
try. After about 30 years of practice in the patent and trademark
field, I came sincerely believing there were good things I could:do
for our country if there were significant contributions as my train-
ing and -experience would permit me to make the Patent and
Trademark Office-into the Patent and Trademark System.,

I was very proud to have the support of a great many people in
my profession and the suppOrt_?of almost all the national organiza-
tions relating to patent and trademark matters. We were all wrong
in assuming something truly’ meaningful could be accomphshed
Let’s look -at the situation as it exists.

The Patent and Trademark Office is unlque 'It’s genesis lies in
the first Congress of 1790. It has been, as you know, at different
times, under the jurisdiction of the Departments of State Interior,
and Commerce. Since 1836 the basic patent function has been -
substantially the same as it is today; from 1836 to 1948 there was a
very close degree of communication between the Patent Office and
the Congress, both the Senate and the House each having & Com-
mittee on Patents throughout that period. Indeed, during. that
period, nine Members of Congress served. as Commlssmner of Pat-
ents. 1 point out to you it was an era of great innovation m the
United States. . . -

- In 1948 that excellence in commumcatlon was 1nterrupted Today
the Patent Office has substantlally no .direct. communication with
Congress. and is- a.very minor,. 4 to 5. percent, portion of a vast
agency. It has been neglected- and it is. struggling to stay alive. The
voice of the Commissioner:is faint, indeed, in the Department. of
Commerce. In the Congress—and at. OMB—1t isn’t heard at all.

The insensitivity of .the various layers at the Department of
Commerce to the problems and needs of the Patent-and Trademark
Office can be seen, for example, from the following instance. When
I came into office in 1978:the budget in effect contained an error—
which was not made at the PTO. Specificaily there was not enough
money to continue to pay the salaries through the next, 1979, fiscal
year of the patent examiners who were already’ workmg there,
Despite the fact that the PTO promptly and repeatedly asked that
steps be taken to correct this érror, nothing at all wag done by the
Department until well into 1979. By that time drasti¢c measures
had to be taken, the result being that a large sum of money was
removed from patent printing to pay the examiners. The slash in
patent printing funds had to be so drastic that printing cost penal-
ties were incurred; as a result only about 55 500 _patents couId be
printed in'fiscal year 1979. .

For comparison, 70,300 were prmted the year before. Thls failure
to print patents clearly was detrimental to those of your constitu-
ents who needed the patent grant to obtain capital, who needed the
patent to obtain license revenue, who needed the patent. to stop
copiers. In addition, the failure to print our patents permitted
others’ in: foreign countries to obtain” patents: there ‘on the ‘technol-
ogy not printed here because the failure to print here meant that
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the: subject matter did not enter the prior art. For the most part
these adverse consequences were unnecessary.

- If:anything, the submersion of the PTO into the depths of Com-
merce has created even- greater difficulty in the trademark area. In
the first place, forcing the trademark activity of the United States
into-a Science: and Technology subdivision of the Department: of
Commerce-is highly illogical. The result has been neglectof such
degree. that the trademark search file is badly outdated, the re-
sponge-time for first actions in trademarks has quadrupled in the
last"3 years, and the trademark processing areas have suffered so
severely that in.some cases it has taken almost- 6 months to get a
certified copy. The trademark registration function is marching
rearwardly; there -were 68,000 trademark applications pending at
the end of fiscal year. 1978 and it was estimated that this would
increase by 250 percent to 172,000 by the end of fiscal year 1985, if
the existing funding trend continued. Possibly it has been changed
by the increased funding to which we Just referenced. Of course, I
am not familiar with that. ..

- Criticism by the public has been strong, loud and growmg—and
nghtly 80, . .

Yet, the full 1mphcatlons of these patent and trademark condl-
tions are not discussed by the Commissioner with either OMB or
the Congress. This inability of the Commissioner t¢ communicate,
under the present system, directly with va_loEi;ress and with OMB is
the root cause of much of the difficulty. the great majority of
people recognize the pivotal role of the patent and trademark
systems in promoting innovation and creativity at this critical
time, "we seem to be marching backwards. The new European

- Patent Office has 2% times our funding per patent a ‘fplication and
twice our staff. By comparison, we soon will be second rate

Let us open the problem to the light of appropriate scrutiny. In
describing his recent efforts to increase funding for the PTO, Sena-
tor Bayh recently said, “Unfortunately, the Commerce Department
decided to oppose my efforts by saying that if any more money was
appropriated there was a good chance that it would be misused.” In
the first place, the Commissioner was never previously aware that
that had been said by the Commerce Department. Further, it is
very difficult to understand how any such money could be misused
by the PTO because the Department allocates the money to be
spent- on each individual function. It is even more difficult to
understand ‘how the use of such funds to alleviate the trademark
problems listed above could be misused; or how it would bé ‘mis-
used, for example, to use such funds te improve the patent examin-
ing process when: One, the search files are incomplete and out of
date; two, technical training for examiners is virtually nonexistent;
three, examiners have much less time to spend on each patent
application than they had before; four, many examiners must write
“out their official actions in longhand and are mailed out through-
out the world in that condition; and five, no copy of the official
Government record of a patent ‘application can be made: with the
funds available so that -when the official record disappears, as it
frequently does, the Government does not know what transpired.

It should not be assumed that only budgetary matters are sub-
jected to this bureaucratic overlayer. Legislative and organizational
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matters, too, must go through the review by various individuals in
the hierarchy, many of whom had a singularly casual acquaintance
with the issue.: Undaunted by this lack of expertise, they proceed to
ge(l:ome enmeshed in the- problem a.nd the result is unnecessary
‘For .example, the forma.l recommendatlon that there be an' As-
sistant Commissioner in the PTQ specifically in.charge of budget
and finance was made about 9 months ago. It was discussed:for a
considerable period before that. Such a reorganization would mate-
rially upgrade the financial -and planning operations of: the PTOQ.
Deapite the vital unportanoe of th1s step, to my knowledge, nothmg
has happened. -

Consider also the Trademark Reg15trat10n Treaty That Treaty,
at the behest of the United States of America, was negotiated in
1978. The proposed J.mplementmg legislation was prepared in due
course, but has never been submitted to Congress. While the De-
partment of Commerce, and I want to make this very' clear, is
responsible for only a relatively small part of this delay, I have no
doubt at “all’ that an independent PTO could have moved this
matter along far more quickly. Many other countries have publicly
stated that their view of TRT depends upon what the United States
will do with it; they wonder why the United States—after almost 7
years—can’t make up its mind, One reason is that the Congress,
after 7 years, still does not have the implementing legislation—and
may never get it. I do not argue for or against the Trademark
Registration Treaty; it is a controversial matter on which both
sides should be heard; I do indeed obJect however, to a pocket veto
by virtue of neglect and confusion.

The Paris Convention, the most important mternatlonal treaty

in the world concerning patents and trademarks, is the subject of a
d1plomat1c conference next month in Geneva, Switzerland. If there
is to be any implementing legislation resulting from this diplomatic
conference, I hope the Congress recelves it in something less than 7
years.
The 1mpact of the present orgamzatlon arrangement on all such
treaty matters, and on legislation in the patent and trademark
field, is substantial. At the present time, section 3 of title 35,
United States Code, makes the Commissioner subordinate in all
respects to the Secretary of Commerce. As you know, the Secretary
delegates most of : this authority to the Ass1stant Secretary for
Science and Technology.

The net result of this structural arrangement is that the Com-
missioner is a bystander, not a participant, in many policy deci-
sions directly connected with patents and trademarks. For exam-
ple, a recent administration proposal has been made relating to the
cwnership and use of patents arising out of Government contracts.
This issue obviously relates to the effective use of technology. on
which a tremendous amount of tax dollars hag been—and will be—
spent.: Nevertheless, the Commissioner has not had any contact
whatsoever with that proposal nor any voice in its formulation.
Therefore, neither the President nor any other person in the entire
administration or in the Congress has had the beneﬁt of the Com—
missioner’s views.. . - ,
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In like fashmn, the-Commissioner is-a bystander ‘with respect ‘to
discussions with Congress and at OMB concerning the budget of
the Patent and Trademark Office. Inasmuch-as the budget often
- shapes—and sometimes determines—policy, this means:that policy
is set without the Commissioner’s input and-sometimes without a
full discussion of all of the ramifications. This type of omission
would not occur if the Patent and Trademark Ofﬁce was, an 1nde-
pendent agency.

Senator BAYH. Excuse me, would you repeat that'? I ‘din sure you
wouldn’t say it if it wasn’t true, yet it -seems almost ‘unbelievable
that the Comm1s51oner has so little 1nput in demsnms dlrectly—'
affecting his Office. :

‘Mr. Banner. This is what I sald Senator In like fashwn, the
Commissioner is a bystander with respect to discussions with Con-
gress and OMB concerning the budget of the Patent and Trade-

mark Office. Inasmuch as the budget often shapes and sometimes
determmes policy; this means that policy is set:without the Com-
missioner’'s input ‘and sometimes w1thout a full dlscussmn -of all of
the ramifications,::

.The ‘proof of the puddmg is in the eatmg The Patent and Trade
mark Office, ‘totally subordinate to the Department of Commerce,
is in danger::of -becoming ‘second rate;.it- has ‘not been able to
perform ‘up 'to-the standard the Amerlcan people have- a-right to
expect. The main-reason for this failure; in my view, can be-obviat-
ed by makmg the Patent and Trademark Office an mdependent
agency. -

The PTO is a complex machlne, the functlons of Whlch are setout
by the patent-and trademark statutes. It is not—and should -not
be—political. It has responsibilities which are both domestic .and
international. It should be moved into the sunlight of direct scruti-
ny, both:by Congress and by OMB: It should have an experienced
and capable Commissioner at:its head appointed for a fixed term of
6 years so that he can adopt:programs, carry them out, and be
respon31ble for their results.

Obviously, -I' am  not: recommendirig: any arrangement under
whlch the PTO would obtain all the money it thinks it needs, nor
one:in which the: office by itself would determine U.S. pohcy at
home and intérnationally in the patent and trademark fields:Nei-
ther is this a matter ofcreating a new agency--it is not. Rather, it
is a matter of carrying out the statutory and treaty mandates of an
existing agency, which is as old ag our country, in a more efficient
and effective manner. It is a matter of putting the Commissioner inh
a- position in which he can freely and frankly present his views to
Congress :and-OMB.- It is a matter of formulating domestic and
international policy of the United States in patent and trademark
matters in a manner which is-informed, thorough and expeditious.

- Enactment :of S::2079, the Independent Patent and Trademark
Ofﬁce Act would: accomphsh these ends and therefore would be in
the ‘best interest:of: the people of the Un1ted States, I strongly
support its.enactment. .

- Thank youvery much. .- ' L : '

‘Senator BavH. Thank you: very much Mr Banner I don t know
how anyone:could .find any equlvocatmn in - that- statement. You
laid it right out there. ,
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. Mr: Dann. Thank you, Senator, Senator Danforth. My name is C.
Marshall Dann: I served as-Commissioner from February 1974,
through August ‘of 1977; so I was Commissioner Banner’s 1mmed1-
ate predecessor. I support S. 2079 and I urge that it be enacted into
law. I believe that the Patent and Trademark Office can carry out
its statutory responsibilities most effectively and most efficiently if
it is an.independent agency rather than a part of the Department
of Commerce or a part of any other department. As we all recog-
nize, the efficient: operation of the PTO is a very strong factor in
the whole operation.of the patent system. It will provide: the incen-
tives that the system is:supposed to provide.

Now, I should say that during my 3% years as Commlssmner, for
the most part,; I enjoyed very good relations with the Department
of Commerce and with my immediate superior, the Assistant Secre-
tary for Science and Technology. The Asgistant Secretary was, I
would say, ordinarily supportive of our efforts in the PTO to im-
prove the operations. Nevertheless, even under this relatively fa-
vorable climate, the Department of Commerce often impeded our
efforts and rarely was of any assistance to the Patent-and Trade-
mark. Office. Of course, because 'we were -a bureau of the.Depart-
ment, there were many actions:that .we could not:take without
approval of or active participation by the members-of:the Depart-
ment .and at best, this involved delay and often-it did amount to
obstructlon of what we thought were. very constructive undertak.

ingsg, o T
Many of the problems resulted sumply from havmg addltlonal
layers: of review. For example, on legislative matters, not: only was
it necessary to have clearance from OMB before presenting some-
thing to-the Congress; but'it was$ necessary for-us to:go to the
Department of Commerce before there could be any communication
with-OMB..Once in a while we had' difect contact with OMB on
matters, but quite often we did:not. Quite often when. we.did have
contact it. was. as Commissioner. Banner has descrlbed as.a: by-
stander. o
The same. thing was true on budget matters, very 1mportantly
true. On- personnel matters which: required the-approval of what
during my tenure was known as the Civil Service: Commission; it
was invariably necessary to.go through the personnel people:of the
Department of Commerce. Internal organizationsiat the PTO:could
be made only with approval from the Department. I would:like to
cite one example. -In this area. of documentation, of reclassifying
the search file which is so vital to the patent examining operation,
shortly after I had joined the Office; it seemed. to:me'that we would
do better in this area if we merged at that time two' of the-existing
groups.in the Office. One was working on new search procedures:
and the other was the ordinary classification group.:Se I proposed
what I'thought was a pretty simple reorganization. In my previous
experience, which was with a. large industrial- corporation;.once: I
had ' persuaded- my gupériors that. it made' sense-to: make that
change, it would have taken about 3 days toimplement it.:You
may not believe it, but it took 6 months to'get ap;ifloval from the
Department :of Commerce to-make that change which' seemed to
me: was going:to’advance.our work in those. extremely 1mportant
areas. G i o
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Cleara.nce w1th the’ Department did not ordinarily mean gettmg
the approval of a single person. Everyone has a staff and the
approval has'to come ‘from .one person who then delegates it to
some of his people and studies are made and ultimately - answers
_come back, but it takes a long time.

It is true that the Department of Commerce supplies some serv-
ices to the Patent and Trademark Office, some central services, but
in my perception the overall value of these was very minimal and
very much overbalanced by the ways in which there was duplica-
tion of effort and actual obstruction.

Obviously if the office were an independent agency, it could keep
Congress better advised and be more responsive to its wishes.

Finally, on the question of the term of 4 Patent ‘Commissioner,
20 years ago Robert Watson was the Patent Commissioner. In the
time since he left and before the present incumbent, Commissioner
- Diamond, was sworn in, six others came-and went—we are lined up
here. Our average time in office was less than 8 years. Considering
that it takes quite some time for any new person to become ac-
quainted with all the complicated and detailed activities of the
PTO and also to become effective in the international discussions,
- which - the Commissioner ‘'must” participate in, it would be very
much .in the public interest to arrange for longer tenures. The
fizxed.term of 6 years, which your. bill provides, seems to me quite a
satisfactory choice of time; long encugh to allow the Commissioner
-to become fully effective but not so long as to prevent the introduc-
. tion of new viewpoints when that might seem appropriate.

Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Dann, with responses to written
questions, follow:] ‘

PrEPARED STATEMENT oF C, MaARSHALL DaNN ~

My name is C. Marshall Dann, I am a member of the Philadelphia patent law
firm of Dann, Dorfman, Herrell and 8killman and am a former Commissioner of
Patents and Trademarks, My service as Commissioner began in February 1974 and-
continued through August 1977. I am also a former President of the American
Patent Law Association and the Philadelphia Patent Law Association and am
currently a member of Council of the Patent Trademark and Copyright Section of
the American Bar Association. I am testlfymg as an individual and not in behalf of
any other persons or organizations.

I support 5. 2079 and urge its enactment into law.

It is my belief that the Patent and Trademark Office can most effectively and
efficiently carry out the responsibilities given it by law—that is, the examination of
patent and -trademark appf)catmns—ﬂ it exists as an independent agency, rather

. than ag part of the Department of Commerce or of any other department in the
Executive Branch.

The efficient, operation of the Patent and Trademark Office has a profound effect

on the incentives to conduct research, to develop new inventions, to invest in
- production facilities and to make available new products and technology which the
patent system affords.

During the three and a half years when I was Commissioner, I enjoyed for the
most part very good relations with the Department of Commerce and with my
immediate superior in that department, the Assistant Secretary for Science and
Technology. The Assistant Secretary was ordinarily supportive of our efforts to
improve the operation of the Office.

Nevertheless, even under this relatively favorable climate, the Department of
Commerce often impeded our efforts and rarely was of agsistance to the Patent and
Trademark Office. Because the Office is a bureau of the Department of Commerce, a
great many actions could be taken only after approval by or with active participa-
tion by the Department. At best, this involved delay, while quite often it amounted

* to obstruction of what we viewed as very constructive undertakings.



34

Many of the problems resulted simply from having additional layers of review.
For example, on legislative matters, not only was it necessary to.have clearance
from the Office of Management and Budget beforé views were presented to the
Congress, but it was also necessary. for the Patent and Trademark Office to. go to the
Department of Commerce before there could be any communication to:QMB. Some-
times Patent Office personnel had direct contact with OMB, though often they did
not. The same thing was true on budget matters. On personnel matters requiring
the approval of what during my tenure was known as the Civil Service' Commission,
it was invariably necessary to go.first. through the Personnel Office of the Depart-
ment of Commerce. Internal Patent and Trademark Office organization. changes
could be made only with approval from the Department.

Clearance with the Department did not ordinarily mean ‘the approval of- one
person. Instead, in routine bureaucratic fashion, each approving person had a staff
of persons reporting to6 him who-first had to review:the matter at issue. In all the -
paper-shuffling; there was rarely a gense of urgency.

While it is true that certain services were made available from. the Department of
Commerce to. the Patent and Trademark Office, the overall value of these was
minimal. In'my, judgment, their value was oonslderably imore tha.n balanced by the
extensive duplications of effort which occured.-

If the Office were an independent agency, it. could keep Congress better advmed
and be more responsive to its wishes.

Twenty years ago Robert Watson was the Patent Comnussmner ‘In the time smce
he left; office and before the present incumbent, Commissioner. Diamond, was sworn
in, six other Commissioners came and went.. Thexr average time in office was less
than three years. Considering that it takes quite some.time. for any new person to
become acquainted with all the detailed activities of the Patent and Trademark
Office and to become effective in international treaty discussions, it would be very
much in the public interest to arrange for longer tenures. The fixed term of six
years provided in 8. 2079 seems to me quite ‘a -satisfactory tine, long: enough:to
allow the Commissioner to.become fully. effective, but not so long as to. prevent the
mtroductlon of new v1ewp01nts wben that seems appropnate - :
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Dear Senators Bayh and Danfoftﬁ;‘

This letter will attewpt to respond to the quest:ons
put tO me as a former Patent commissioner by Senater Bayh in his
letter of ‘January 30 and to the questlons put by’ ‘Senator Danforth

at the January, 24 hearing to former Commigsioner Banner and the
five other former commissioners who were-in - attendance, In the
latter connaction, this will. supplement.the wiews already
presented by Commissioner Banner in his letter of January 29 to
7 Senator Danforth

The spe01f1c quest;ons and my answers are as follows.

i., Do you belleve that the 1nterests of o
the’. Patent and. Trademark office or of
the patent and ‘trademark system are

. better served under the present’ arrange~
_ment than they wculd be' be making the’
Patent and Trademark Off]ce Jndependent?

© No, I feel rather strongly that the nnterests of the
Offlce and of the system would be''better served if .the Patent ‘and
‘Trademark of fice were Jndependent. If it were. independent, . .
could clearly be:more responsive’ to-Congress and .it would be at
MTeagt as“responsive to the public’and to .the Administration.as.it
now ‘is, . Indépendent status would permit control and managéméﬁt'
of the Office by persons whe are knowledqeable and interested Jn
the field of intellectual property.. rather than by pergons who -’
may have substantially greater concern with other matters.
Direct lines of communication with OMB and with the Congress
would increase the chance that the Patent and Trademark Office
could begln to give the public the serviee it should have and to
introduce. the changes needed to improve the incéntives to
invention and jnnovatlon which the system is deslgned to
provide.




As an example, it is my.view that the most fundamental
problem facing the PTO is the need to attain completeness and
integrity of the search file, fThe quality of examination which
the Office c¢an give is directly tied to the gquality of the search
file. 1If this is allowed to deterlorate further, the point will
be reached where there is nct very much sense in continuing to
examine patents at all. Yet to correct current deficiencies in
the search file, there is needed a very .substantial appropriation
for several years, larger by several nagn:tudes than is now being
proposed. Thereafter, Office costs should: be no greater, )
allowing for inflation, than they have been in past years. The
chance of getting such an appropriation. through the good offices
of the Department of Commerce ‘seems to me' extremely small., Yet I
believe this to be very much in the public interest. and that this
would be appreciated by the Congress 1f 1t were ever 90551b1e for
it to hear the whole story. -

_2. Dld you find that the Commerce ‘Dept. and
" OMB.listened to your advice when it came
‘time. to prepare your budget°, Were you
.ever not.consulted or brushed aside by
the Commerce Dept. when: trylng to, make :“

“your ‘needs known? - : ;

The PTO makes the first draft of its budget, although
even at that stage must work within. tight guidelines laid down by
Commerce or by OMB or both. During the budget process, there is
invariably contact with budget ‘0fficers from the Department of
Commerce and normally with the Assistant Secretary for Science
and Technolegy. Once during my three and a half years in office,
I was permitted to meet with OMB. representatlves on the budget.

I was also permitted. to testify several tines before the House
Appropriations Subcommittee on the PTO budget as finally approved
by Commerce and OMB, though T understand this has not been
allowed at any time since. - There was no time when I was entirely
precluded from presenting my views on our budget to Commerce,
althoudh thers were a number . cof times. when communications were
difficult or when’ recommendatlons were rather -arbitrarily (in ny
view) dismissed or ignored. - Discussions:on the PTO budget.in
which I had no pdrt took place between the Assistant SBecretary's
office and the Commerce budget officers;’ between Comﬂerce and OMB
and between Commerce and the Congress.

: J...Is there anythlng short of making the.

. QEfice independent that can accomplish
the- same objective, for exampie making
the Commissioner an Assistant Secretary
or providing the CGffice with direct
contact with OMB?

I do not think so, although some improvement could
result from the changes referred to.
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If ‘the Comm1531oner were -an A551stant Secretary, hls
freedom of action would be increased.as He would avoid.one level.:
of review with its.delays .and occagicnal frustrations-of i
constructive actions.- ‘Bis increased stature in the ‘Department
would probably produce faster action and peossibly more
sympathetic action by other -units jin-the Department, such as the
budget , personnel, ‘organization and .General :Counsel's gecticns.,
Such a change would not aveid the need for 'approvals from such
units, which are almost always dupl:catlve and time- Consumlng

Dlrect contact w:th OMB would be better than-the .
present situation; . but would. not have much.effect unless the PTO
budget were made independent of the Commerce budget. Ewven if it
were, ‘any Commissicner who wished to.stay:in cffice could not
depart very far from:positions or views taken by Commerce oK - by
the Assistant Secretary.~ . :

4. What .was. your reactlon to ‘the: comments-
présented this morning from the Commerce
Dept. for keeping the present arrangement
intact? Do you fhink that:the new-found
interest 'in thé Patent Qffice by Commerce
is adequate for preventing similar neglect

of the: 0Office-in- the future when the
present polltlcal heat dies: down°

’ Connents from the Comnerce Department presented at the
hearlng appeared to make two-main points: first, that the -Patent
and Trademark Office needs gquidance from Commerce in order to
formulate a budget that will enable ‘Administration goals and
objectives to be met and second, that it is necessary for the PTD
to be integrated with other parts of the Commerce Depaxtment -in .
order-that policy on industrial development and technolegical
innovation will be consistent. I do not consider either point
well taken, s

As to the ‘budget, the Commerce representative indicated
that durlng the past several: years the Office had nct made a
convincing case for its:budget and that-only now has:a firm-basis
for. future budgets been established, -The<implication was- that-
the PTC simply could not manage-its affairs without- Commerce
help. - Ag both you forceably pointed-out during  the hearing,
however, Commerce is now coming arcund to-asking- for that which
the PTO had asked for initially. While the PTQO may not have .
articulated its needs in the best-way,. it has not been shown that
it was wrong or that the intensive review which has consumed so
many man-hours has produced anything more than dislocatieon and
interruption of needed serv1ces to the publlc.- -

It was stated during the. hearzng that the PTD budget
has been a matter of concern to the Appropriations Committees.in
recent years. It is my understanding that the reason this may
have been s0 is because the Commerce Department itself
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communicated doubts to those committees which in the main, have
not-been -substantiated, It was-disheartening- to hear that
Commerce..intends to devote more rescurces to.liaison with the
Patent and Frademark Office,- resources which -in. my judgment could
be better appl]ed to the exam:natlon of patents.

: It was: suggested by the Commerce Department .
representative that only.by remaining a part of. the. Commerce
Department could the. PrOo-have: appropriate contact.and. guidance
from others concernéd with policy. in the field of sinngovation.

The PTO now has regular contacts and consuitation with other
departments, notably the Department of. State;. the Department of
Justice and others, It could just-as readily-have close contacts
with the Department. of Commerce. when this-served a useful
purpose, I do not recall anytime during my tenure when better
policy integration resulted from our. being:-part Of Commerce than:
if we had been independent. The point was. made at the.hearing
that policy decisions should be made by officers who are directly
responsible to elected.officials and it was:-noted that the
Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Science and- Technolegy serves
at the pleasure. of the President and is subject to confirmation
by the Senate. Exactly. the same thing-is true under present law
with respect to the Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks.

The amount:.of attenticn:paid.- the PTG by the Commerce
Department has varied considerably over the years, depending a
great deal on the person occupying the position of Assistant
Secretary of Science and Technology. On the whole, the office
has been able to do itg job better when attention Erom Commerce ..
was not too intense. It may be noted: that several previous
efforts to upgrade the Commissicner to the status of an Assistant
Seqretary have been blocked by Commerce. Former Commissioner.
Schuyler testified as to one such experience while.he was.in .
office, More. recently, Commerce opposed the provision in Senate-
passed 5.2255 of the 94th. Congress which would have. accompl:shed
this change.

Finally, to address. directly the question propounded by
Senator Danforth as te why there is any more reason to make: the
patent and Trademark Office.an independent agency than any other-
bureau now .part of a cabinet level department, I believe there
are several reasons why the PTO is unlike most other bureaus.
For one thing, the PTO operates under its own statute, 35 U.S. C.,
under which, as noted above, the Commissioner of Patents and.
Trademarks is appointed by -the' President with the advice and
consent of the Senate. The.Commissioner, though under the
direction of the Secretary of Commerce,.is given broad authority
to superintend the affairs of the COffice and to establish.
regulations not inconsistent with law:. For 162 years the
Commissioner carried out these functions successfully in an
essaentially autononous manner and for.aneother 14 years. under only
nomlnal control by the Secretary of Comnerce. .
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The prlncnpal thlng whlch dlst]ngulshee the PTO from
Mmost - bukeaus: throughout ‘the:Government is . its.‘gquasi- judlClal
-authorlty,_alluded to in-detail in. Commissioner Banner's.letter.
It is no more approprlate for. the. PTO to be part of a cabinet |
‘department than it would be’ for the Pederal Trade Commission, the
Internaticral Trade Commission; the National Labor Relatiohs
Board,.or amy.ofthe othér:independent boards.and commissions
-that adjudlcate .rights between members of the publ]c

I appreclate Very much the’ opportunlty to have
testified and to supply these further comments with respect” to:
© 78.2079..: Please let me know if ‘there  is anything Eurther I can, do
which would, be helpful 1n securlnq iLts anactment, SIS .

Sz;ff:é;;; 5 ;

C. Marohall Dann -

CMD jmc :
- Qe Former Commissibnerss
T Conway ~P.: Coe -
_Robert C. Watson
pavid L, Ladd
~ Edward Jg'Btennét e
William E.%Schuylex, Jr,-
-‘Robert Gottschalk
Donald ¥. Banner

Senator BAYH Thank you very much Mr Dann “Oné qulck
questlon before moving on. Both of you gentlemen were involved in
the problem with the Patent and Trademark Office’s budget that I
discussed with Mr. Wolek from the Commerce Department were
you not? . - '

Mr. DanN. T was there when the orlglnal Patent and Trademark
Office budget was being worked up for the fiscal 1979 budget, but I
was not there during most of the activities that you referred to.

Senator Bayn. Mr. Banner, you were. there at that time, were
you not? . o - .

. M¥. BANNER. Yes o

.Senator BayH. Is my descnptlon of this problem accurate’?

- Mr. BANNER. Yes; that is my understanding.

Senator Bavi. I don't want to interrupt the testlmony Tt is “sort
of like asking a blind man to describe.an elephant..It looks like the
folks from Commerce had a hold of one end and I was looking at
the other end because it didn’t.seem to me .to be the same.animal.

.Mr. GorrscHALK. Thank you, Senator. I appreciate the opportuni-
ty to be here today and to express my.support of S. 2079. T am
happy to.report.that I have been asked. by former Commissioners
Conway. P. Coe and. Robert C. Watson. to convey - to the commlttee
their approval of that legislation, ‘also. .

I-have been engaged in the practice of patent and trademark law
for over 45 years. It:was my privilege ‘to-serve in the U:S. Patent
Office: from . March 1970 through June 1973, first as leputy Com-
mlssmner, and later as Commissioner of Patents L

Commiissioner: Dann has. indicated that he took- office in- Febru-
ary of 1974. 1-think it worth noting, in passing, that this represents
an 8-month vacancy in the Office of the Commissioner at that point
in the history. of the Patent Office. If my recollection is-correct,
during the past 10-.years, the Office of the Commissioner. has been
vacant for a total period of 2 vears.
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In supporting S. 2079, I would first express my complete concur-
rence in the remarks, reports and observations expressed here.this
morning by Commissioner Banner and Commissioner Dann. Their
experiences and reports are completely in accord with the experi-
ences I had during my own tenure and are totally consistent with
my observations since then. I believe that this proposed change to
independent agency status for the Patent Office is not merely
necessary and t1mely, but. that it is urgently needed and long
overdue. . . .-

Ever since I was reglstered to pract1ce before the USs. Patent
Office in 1935, I have been intimately concerned with the oper-
ations of that office and with the role of the patent and trademark
system in our national life. I would not consider myself, in terms of
Dr. Wolek’s testimony, an insider. I think it accurate and perhaps
hot immodest to say that I have had wide and varied experience in
industry, in academia, and in Government with respect to patent
and trademark matters. I do not feel that my own efforts in this
field reflected a narrow or a myopic viewpoint. I do not believe that
my efforts as Commissioner represented anything less than an
attempt to establish the best possible working relationship between
the U.S. Patent Office and the national mterests to which it is
dedicated.

It may be worth noting, too, in our review of the history of the
Office,_ that the first patent 1ssued by the United States of America
was signed by our. first President, George Washington, and by
Secretary of State Thomas Jefferson, and Attorney . General
Edmund Randolph We have indeed come a long way since then—
but, sadly, not in all respects in the right direction. I think ‘it is
hlgh time that we begin to reverse that downward trend, and I
support S. 2079 as an 1mperat1vely necessary and s1gn1ficant contrl-
bution to that end.

I feel very deeply and strongly about the ment and 1mportance
of our patent and trademark system and about the Patent Office
on which it so largely depends. I feel deeply and strongly that we
must do everything in ‘our power to make that system, and-the
Patent Office which supports it, as effective as pos31ble In this
trying time, particularly, we have no.other choice:.

T am convinced that the deterioration of the Office in recent
years does, in fact, stem largely from domination and control of the
Office by the, Department of Commerce which has’ deprived it of
the opportunity to conduct it operations with dighity; dispatch and
efficiency. T believe that it'is - high time that the Officé'be restored
to“status which befits the-nature:-and: importance of: its mission,
and'that it'be permitted to functlon w1th the efﬁc1ency and effec-
tiveness of which it is capable:” 5 i3 7

It is-the’ prlnclpal tool of Government to perform the wtal const1-
tutional function: of promoting- the progress of the useful arts. We
can ng longer afford to permlt that system to stumble or falter We
dare not let it fail. =

‘Several things'are essentlal Chlef among these are; of course,
adequate funding and.stable and- capabie management For many
years, -both: of these have been lacking: -

The consequencesof inadequate. fundmg are well knowu and
they have: been fully: documented It 1s ent1re1y cIear from the
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history of the Office that this shortage of funding is directly related
to the budgetary practices and restrictions imposed on the Patent
Office by the Commerce Department. T ‘believe it is absolutely
essential to the solution of the fiscal and ‘operating problems of the
office that it be permitted to ‘deal directly with the Office of Man-
agement. and Budget and the Congress w1th respect to such mat-
ters. -

I was, in fact the . last Commissioner to appear before any com-
mittee of the’ Congress with respect to budget matters affecting the
operation of the .Office. Even then; appearances and presentations
on behalf of the Patent Office were stnctly reglmented ‘and con:
trolled by the Department of Commerce

During my last-suchexperience, there was no opportumty for
me, although'1 appeared to testify. Instead; budget testimony with
respect to the operations of the entire- Smence and Technology unit
of the Department of Commerce was presented by-the “Assistant
Secretary for. Science’ and - Technology. I was—-as Commissioner
Banner has indicated he was———essentlally a bystander, notw1th-
standmg my physical presence’ " -

‘Reference has been made to ‘the need for stablhty in manage—
ment. This, I believe, is essential. Stability, as badly as we need" it;
- has been woefully lacking. That has- ‘been made anmiply clear. The
provisions of 8. 2079 which provide for a fixed termof office for the
Commissioner, and for removal of the Commissionér only by-the
President with the consent of the Senate should go far to- prov1de
ilsheksgabﬂlty whlch the Office needs 80 badly and whlch 1t has
acked. - . -

~Such a: change ~would be most welcome In: fact the average
tenure of a Commissioner in-récent:years has been shorter than
the: average time 1t takes ' a patent apphcatmn to be processed
through the Office. L

- Now, when we hear criticisms: about the budgetary presentatmns
of the Office, siich as Secretary Wolek has made, this-is the back-
ground against which they have to be viewed.’ Obvmusly, frequent
changes of this kind are bound to breed inconsistericiés and bring
changes in viewpoints and ‘programs, which make effective and
consistent' budgetary planning: impossible ‘of reslization. Of course,
such- factors contribute ‘to oonfus1on of the budget processes we
have heard described. - s

-Unfortunately, the turnover in the Commxssmner s office is onlyj
part of the story. For under the present-arrangements, operations
in the Patent Office are ‘also adversely and substantially® affected
by turnover in various positions in the Department of Commerce "

In my own experience, for example, during the 3 years:Liwas in
the Office, there were—in addition, of course, to' two Comuiission-
ers—three different Secretaries of Commerce; and there were four
different Assistant Secretaries for Science and Technology, th1s
béing the official:to-which the Patent Office reports.

The results of such turnovers on: efficiency and effectlveness are
extremely bad. Not only is there recurrent dislocation and loss of
continuity and momentum:in Office programs, but there is‘also a
serious deterioration of morale affecting every aspect of the oper-
ations of- the Office. 1 have submitted to the committee a' prepared
statement in connection with this hearing and have appended to it,
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to illustrate this point,.two cartoons which appeared in an employ—
ee publication of the Patent Office. ...

.The first_reflects the understanding support of . Patent Office
employees of my efforts as Commissioner to deal with the myriad
problems of the Office. The second reflects employee reaction to my
abrupt dismissal by the then very newly appointed Assistant Secre-
tary of Commerce for Science and Technology, Dr Betsy Ancker—
Johnson. . ..= :

Under ex1stmg arrangements, the dommatlon of the Office by
personnel at even relatwely low: levels of the ‘Department of Com-
merce can extend—and in .my experience it has. extended——well
beyond such matters as the budget process: Bearing :in mind the
highly specialized nature of the professional ‘activities of the Office,
it may.seem strange and .yet it is: fact, that its. rules of practice
cannot.be changed.. without the approval of the Assistant Secretary
for Science -and: Technology; nor..can any patent-or: trademark
legislation. be proposed or commented .on by ‘the. Office-without
such.approval; nor can the Office initiate any, appeal from decisions
of the Court of Customs and Patent Appeals without such:approval:
Clearly, these are. not such matters as. sclentlsts .are: normally
familiar with.

To 111ustrate I was at one. pomt d1rected by an Actlng Ass1stant
Secretary for'Science and Technology, who was not a lawyer, to
seek Supreme Court reversal of a decision of the Court of Customs
and. Patent Appeals although such: a course was contrary to the
judgment. of both myself and the .General Counsel -of the Depart-
ment of Commerce. That appeal was not taken, I hasten to say; but
the incident points up the element of. meddlesome mterventlon
whlch is:implicit.in the current arrangement.

~And. I would:second the remarks. expressed by Commss1oner
Dann with respect to the difficulties and delays:encountered ‘in
effecting. even relatively minor changes in internal organization of
the Office because :of .the need .for. Department of Commerce 1n—-
volvement and approvals .

_This entire subject. has caused much concern over a- perlod of
many years to0 many people. I.truly-hope that;-at this juncture and
at-long last, we. can. .resolve the matter. as- proposed in: 8.: 2079:

I think it is ‘worth noting that, for such reasons as have been:
mentloned here this morning, Senators Hart and McClellan; among:
others. in the Congress,-have in the past proposed estabhshment of
the Patent. Office as an independent agency..

In June of 1973, Senator McCIellan in. thls connectron stated in a
report to the Senate that: -

A chronic unsatisfactory relatlonshJ has ex:ated between the Department of
Commerce and the Patent Office, and ghat this contributed to frequent changes-in’
the Office of the Commlssroner ot‘ Patents and the mstablhty in the. admmlstratlon .
and programs of the Office.” "~ b

In September of 1973 Senator Hart held hearmgs on S. 1321 :
which specifically explored the question whether .the Patent. Office
should be made an independent. agency. At Senator Hart's request,-
I testified at those hearings and discussed in some detail various:
experiences and consaderatlons indicating the desirability. of doing
80. Much of that testimony is, I believe, immediately-relevant to:
the commlttee ) present consideration: of S.:2079; and i have accord-:
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ingly submltted a copy of that testimony with my prepared state-
ment. For similar reasons, I also attached a copy of an address I
made to the Licensing Executive Society in ‘June 1974, discussing,
among other matters relating to the patent system, the relation.
ship between the Office and the Department of Commerce.

Both of those attachments represent substantially contemporane-
ous records of my own experiences and reactions with respect to
situations concerning that relationship, and I trust that as such
they may be of some assistance to:the committee.

I have had no doubt—and it has been amply confirmed thus far
this morning--that other former Commissioners have had experi-
ences similar to my own. It strikes me as most significant that, on
the basis of such experiences, all eight living former Commission-
ers have—without exception or qualification—reached the same
conclusion on this question. I think it should be mentioned also
that former Cornmissioners QOoms, Marzall, and Kingsland, now
deceased, also had expressed their views to the same eftect.

I appreciate the opportunity to have presented these remarks
and my statement to the committee.-

Thank you.

Senator Bays. Thank you very much, Mr. Gottschalk.

[Prepared statement of Mr. Gottschalk with - attachments, and
responses to written questions from Senato_r Bayh follow:]
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"' STATEMENT OF ROBERT GOTTSCHALK.

ON §. 8079

I an an attnrney spec1allzlng in patent and trademark law, and have o
been actlvely engaged in thlS fleld of practlce for over. forty f1ve years. L

_It was my prlvllege to sexve in the Unlted States ?atent Offlce from ) 2

_March 19?0 through June 1973 - flrst as Deputy Commlsszoner, and 1ater as‘

‘Comm1551cner of Patents.

This statement is submltted to express my unqualifled sunport aﬁd
enthu51ast1c approval of the proposed 1eg151at10n to- establlsh the Patent..?{
land Trademark Offlce as an 1ndependent agency, S. 20?9.

In my v1ew, this change is not merely necessary and tlmely, it is
urgEntly needed, and lnng overdue.

Ever since I was reglstered to ﬁrédfiée befbie:thé P;Eent bfficé'in'-
1935 I have been intimately concerned with its operations, and with the
tole of the patent and trademark system in our national life. The
attachéé regume (Tab A) indicates generally ﬁy experieﬁce'in industry,
acaéemia, and government, &s well as in the practice of law, with respect
to such matters.

I feel very deeply and strongly about the merit and importance of
our patent gnd trademark system, and the Office upon which that system so
largély depends. I share fully the concerns expressed in the Introductory
Remarks to 8. 2079, and in the many similar statements by leaders in
government, industry and the law, with respect to the curfent state and

growing problems of the‘foice.

.
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In fact, I have often myself addressed those issues and cqncern_snr_
in 2 similar manner.... for I deplore the deterioration which:has been
under way in_t:he Patent Office for so man.y years.

I au;l convinced that :il.n no small megsure this deterforation directly
results from the facts that the Patent Office has been relegated to.:
minor. status in.an u.bscu_re_ and neélecte_d cotner of .the:Department of .
Commerce; ag_d that, by reason of its domination and contrel by that
Department, 1t has been deprived of the dpportunity to conduct its oper—
ations with dignity, dispateh and efficdiency.

1t is, T believe, high time that the Office be ':;::a'étdred to the S
status befirting. the nature and importance of its mission, and permitted
to fupction with the effic-iency and effEc:.tiv_t_ene_s__s'of which it J.s capable,

It is the principal tool of governmeat to perform the wital Consti-
tutional function of ','promutigg the progress of the useful arts,” There
was never. a time when its effective use: was more, sorely needed. We can

no .longer_ afford to let it stumble or falter. We dare not let it fail.

Several things are essential. Chief among these are adequate funding,
and 'so'u'n'd. and stable 4m;a'n'ageme'n‘t.' ‘For man)'r‘ y'ea'rs, both of these have been
lacking.-

Funding

- The ‘consequences of ‘inadequate funding ard well-krown and ‘fully
documented, ‘45 the Introductory Remarks attest. It is, of dourse, entirely

¢lear from the history of the Office over 4 ‘period of many years
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that this shortage of funding is directly related to the subordinate -

position of the Office in the Departmeit of Commerce, and to the

budgetary practices and restrictions imposed upon the Office by reasén ™ -

of that relationship.--
Thus I believe it is absolutely essential to the solution 0f the .
fiscal problems of the Office that it be released- from the shackles of =

" its bondage, and permitted to deal directly with the Congress in such

matters.

Stability in Management L o ) ) -

Independeiice of the’ Office is also esaéntial,'I believe, to its
efficient dnd effective mandgemsnt.

Stabiiiﬁy is a prime reduisité Yerd, and it has been woefully
lacking.  The provisfons of 5. 2079 calling for a "Eixed té;m of six"i
years'"™ for the Commissioner, who "shall be ‘removable from office’ by '
the President with the consent ofitﬁé Senate, only for gbod cause,' I
would provide such stability.

Such a chaqgg_woulq be wel;ome, indeg@i Ip_re;gnt years, it p§s
beeﬁ Poigted out, the average tenure qf 2 Cqmmissioqgrlhas been sﬁorter.
than the average pendency tiﬁe of a patent applicatiunrbeing examiﬁedrby
the Office! o

Unfortunately, turnover in the office of the Commissioner has béé{ B
only part of the story — for in the present organizational arfangement,
operations of the Office -are also.adversely affected by turnover:in. .

various positions in the Department.of Gommerce.
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. In my:own_experiepge, for example, during my three years in the

Office, there were - in addition to two Commissioners - three different

Secretaries of Commerce, and four different persens in the position of

Assistant Secretary for Science agﬂ_iechnology; and the official in
that last-mentioned pesition is ;he”qfficial charged with supervision
of the Patent Office.-

The results of such turnovers on efficiency and effectiveness_a;e
extremely bad. Not only is thgrg xecur:gnt.dislocation with obviaus
losses in time and continuity, but zalso a deterio;ation qfrmorale

affecting every aspect of the operations gﬁ the Office. (See Tah B).

Domination and Interference

- Under existing ar:aﬁgements, the domination of_;he 0ffice by per-
sonnel .at even relatively low levels of the Deparfmen; of Commerce can
extend, and in my experience has extended, well beyond such matters as
the budget process.

Bearing in mind the highly specialized nature of the professional
activities of the Patent Office it may see strange’ indeed — &éﬁ:it'ié
fact - that its Rules of Practice cannot be changed without the approval
of the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology of the Qgpgrtment
of Commerce; mor car zny patent or trademark,legislation berproposea, or
commented on, by the 0ffice without such approval; nor can the Officé

initiate any appeal from decisions of the Court of Customs and Patent

-Appeals without. such approval..
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The iimiﬁafions'and préssures on the Office inberent in the”
présent ofgaﬁiéationhl arténgemént are exemplified by an'éxperience
during m§ tenure as Commissioner: I was directed by an Acting "
Assistant Secfétary for Science and Technology {(who was not a lawyer) " -
to appeal from a decision of the Court of Customs and Patent Appeals,’
contrary te the judgment of both the Gereral Counsel of ‘the Depéf&mént =
of Commerce and myself. That app;al was not’ taken; but’ the incident
polnts up the element of meddlesome iitervention which is fmplicit in’
the current afrangementt

One further point must be mentioned in this general conhectlon =
the need to obtain Department of Commerce approval for the authorization
of ﬁar;icular organizational arrangements within thé.bffice, or tﬂ;
filling of.pﬁrticular positions éiteédy authorized and funded.  In my
experience as Commiséioner, impdrtant'§031tions at some of the higheat
levels of Gﬁfice oﬁération rgmaingd vacant for many menths, daspite -

repeated requests for approval actiom,

Earlier Recognition of the Problem ... and its Solution

For Such_reaééns as I have ﬁEntinned; Senators Kart and McClellan,
among others iﬁ.thg'COngess, have proposed éstablishmént of the Qffice
as aﬁ independent.agency; "Senator McClellan, for example, ia’ June of
1973, stated in a report to the Sentate that "a chronic tnsatisfactory
relationship ... hag existed between the Department of Commerce and the
Patent Office;" and that this "contributed to fréquent changes in fhe

office of the Commissioner of Patents and instability in the administration

i

kS
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. T
and progréms of the Office." In September of 1973, Senatnr!ﬁart hel& ;.
ﬁea;ings on 5. 1321 which specifibéllyféxﬁloréd the question_whetﬁer :

the Patent Office_sﬁagld be made an independent agency..

At Seﬁétof_Ha;f's reqﬁest, I testified at thﬁéé'heé%ingé¥ ah&
discussed in some detail wvaricus experlences and observaticdd polnting

to the de51rab11ty uf establlshlng independent status for the 0ff1ce.

Much of that. testimnny 1s, I helleve, 1mmed1ate1y relevant to conside?—
ation of S. 2079, and I am accOrdlngly attachlug a copy of it. (Tab C).
For similar reasons, I am also attachlng (Tab D) a copy uf am..

address I made to the L1censing Executives SocJPty in June 1974 dis—
cussing among other matters relating to the patent system, the relatipn-
ship between the Office and the Department of Commexce.

Both of these attachments represent substantially contemporaneous

' records of my own experlences and reactions Wifh’réspect'té situations

concerning that relationship, and I trust.that,.as such, they may be of

some interest and assistance to the Committee.

I have no doubt that other former Commissioners have had similar
experiences, for -~ without exception --all living former Commissioners
have reached and expressed the same conclusion:

THE PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE SHOULD BE. = -
‘ESTABLISHED AS AN INDEPENDENT AGENCY. '

Regpeptfullyzéubmiﬁteaf

.. Robert Gottschalk

January 24, 1980
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ROBERT GOTTSCHALK .
GFFICE o HOME, .
500 Skokie Boulavard o 183 Dickens Road
Northbrook, Illinois 60062 T Northfield, Illinois 60093
312/564-2650 *- s ’ © T 312 /466~2305 : '
PROFESSIONAL HISTORY
Private Lepal Practice
1974 to date Domestic and -dnternaticoral pateat, trademark and
licensing law; conaultant and expert witness :E.n
litigation.
United States Patent and Tradewark Office .
1970 - 1973 Commissiomer of Patents 1571 to 1973;
. .. Beputy Commigsioner.1970 to 1971,
GAF Corporation . o .
1965 - 1970 Director of Patents
Canteen Corporation
1961 - 1964 .General Patent (ounsel .
Standard 0Ll Company {Indiana) .
1946 ~ 1951 Director of Coatract and Legal’ Maktérs 1958 to 1961' ’
- Assistant Manager of Bevelopment and Pateﬂt Depart:-—-—
ment 1946 o 1952.
CPC International : S
1941 - 1946 Patent and Trademazk Coungel
Private Legal Practice
1934 - 1941 General practice of patent and trademark Law,
SPECTAL CONSULTING ACTIVITIES
National Academy of Sciences . I L Tl
1962 -~ 1967 | Chalrman - Committea on Patent Pelicy
National Research Council : ‘
1948 - 1960 . o Member - Unl\rersity ‘Patent Policy
’ Committee
U. 5. Covernment PYatents Board. .
1950 - 1935 © _ Consultant to Chairman
Atomle Energy Commission. _ - .
1946 ~ 1947 . . o - U Comsultant to Industrial Advisory Board

Wiite House OFfice of Telécommunicatisiis Policy
1976 Consultant to Chairman

Iranlan Natlonal Petrochemlcal Co.
1976 Consultant to Director General
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OTHER PROFESSTONAT, ACFIVITIES

American Bar Associaticn

Chalrman of Committeas on Government Fatent Policy (1956}, Atomlce
Energy (1946), and National Science Foundation (1946).

National Association of Manufacturers

Vice Chairman of Patents and. Reé.earch Cnmmittee (1944 — 19493,

Chairman of Committees on Patent Law Revision (1946 — 1951) and
Government Interests (1963 S 1664y, - -

WAM witness at Gongresalonal hearings on Kefauver—Celler Antitrust
Drug Bill (1962) and NASA. patent regulaLions {19627 .

Patent Trademark and Copyrﬂ.g‘nt Journal

Advisory Board member’ (1974 to date).

Assoclation for the Advancement of Invenr_ion and Innovation

Advisory Board memher (19?5 to date)

Lecturex on patent, licensing, antitrust and related matters at University
of Chicago, Northwestern, and other law schools; Practicing Law
Institute, Southwestern Legal Foundation and Illinois Institute of
Continuing Legal Fducatfon; American Management Association and
Institute of International Trade of the University of Tlliinocia.:

Author of articles in Journal of the Patent Office Soclety, Businesa A‘broa:d,
Encyclopedia of Patent Practice and Invention Manapement, Chemical and
Engineering News, and other profesgional and business publications.

GENERATL,

EDUCATION B, Eng. (E.E.) McGill University - 1931
LL.B. (cum laude)} St. Lawrence University - 1934

BAR ADMISSIONS New York, IElinoils, Pistrict of Columbia;
' VU.S. Supreme Couxrt, Court of Customs and Fatent Appeals,

MEMBERSHIPS

American Bar Association -~ Sections of Patent, Antitrust, Inter—
national, Science and Technology and Corporate Law

Federal Bar Association

Patent Law Associations - 8mericen, Chicago and Wew York

lLicensing Executives Society, Chemista Club {New York), Wational
Lewyers Club (Washington, International Trade Club {Chicago},
and Chicage Assoclation of Commerce and Indusbry
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The two following cartoons. =
appeared in a Patent OFfice™

Employees” .-publié_a'tg.i:c{ri’;l-

The first reflects my efforts

as Commissioner to deal with ~

the myriad probIEms Vof the ‘
0ffice; the é.eé.tan:_l., reaé‘i::i‘b;l“‘
to wy abrupt di.srﬁ:‘;.ssa-.l ﬁy the )
then newly appointed Assistant
Secrétéry :f_or' Science 'an_.d.. .Te_c};'_v

nology, Dr. Betsy Anker-Johnson.

TAE B

T
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o

ON SEPTEMBER 11, 12, AND 14, 1973

‘\onator HarT. Let me m‘\]m an 'ld(htmn at tlm pomt n the hem
inr ‘'schedule, The subcommitiee has-heard :from -several former-
Patent Office Commissiohers and the -Acting - Commissioner . cur--
rently, I became aware of Commissioner Gottsc‘halk the former
Patent Commissioner, sitting in the audience and listening to testi-
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Patent Office should be made an independent agency. That is a pro
posal that is contained in S, 1321. T think Commissioner Gottschalk
1s in o position to bring us first hand knowledge and private experi.
ence to that otherwise theoretical: question. of should we have ap
independent agency? And at my request Le has agreed to appear
this morning. I welcome him.

Mr. Brexxyax. Mr. Chairman, just a brief statement for the
record. Both the counsel for the subcommittee and the counsel to the
Minority Leader were available in their offices until 5:30 last eve-
ning. The first we were informed of this development was at 9 am,
this morning. The well-established practice.of the subcommittee has
heen to request witnesses to submit statements 24 hours in advance,
"The subcommittee staff has tried to cooperate with your staff on
these hearings. I regret that we were not extended the same cour-
tesy. Thankyou Mr. Chairman, @ ya000 0 = e o

Senator Harr. I regret that that sequence of events occurred and
will assume full responsibility for it. I did not determine until
midday yesterday afternoon. to invite the (ommissioner. It never
occurred to me it was a clear “violation of the 24-hour rule, a rule
very difficult to enforce in other committees, but a very desirable
rule. Your comment I think is completely proper. My esplanation
does not change that. You should haxve been advised.-

However. I felt it was desirable to call the Commissioner for two
reasons: First, to get vour reaction. Mr. Commissioner, generally, to
the concept of the independent pgency proposal, and, secondly, to
ask of you a question that T asked ‘of an earlier witness to react ta
trade press reports as to the circumstances and reasons for your res-
ignation. As T understand the problem it relates directly to the inde-
pendent agency proposal. -: S )

So let me ask first the question that I dirvected to the Commerce
Committee witnesses and I hope I am almost reciting literally what
I asked them. o

It has been brought to my attention through trade press reports
that Commissioner Gottschalk was fired without prior warning by
the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology for three rea-
sons: Refusing to give special consideration to a particular patent
application, advocating the many other reforms in S. 1321 to the
displeasure of the organized patent bar, and arguing that since
patent reform was so vitally needed, the administration should not
risk the fate of 1971 dnd. should. sever the antitrust considerations
from the patent reform considerations.

Would you describe, Commissioner, the circumstances that

‘attended your resignation and specifically what your opinion is in
respect to the accuracy of those reports? = :

STATEMENT OF ROBERT GOTTSCHALK, FORMER COMMISSIONER,
' U.S. PATENRT OFFICE

Mr. Gorrscuaik. Senator, let me acknowledge your invitation and
my willingness to appear. I hasten to explain that as you might
anticipate. 1 have had mixed feelings about appearing ag 4. wityess
in these hearings but felt that I had no choice in the light of your
remarks yesterday followed by.your invitation to testify. - y
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. 1 certainly-must-agree that your inquiries are dlrected t,o pomts
whlch 1 would consider most relevant and undoubtedly important in
arriving af appropiriate solutions of the problems with which the
committee s now ‘concerned. If my . parhmpntlon in these hearings,

and if driwing upon my past experiences can be helpful, then I
would regard it as desirable to make myself and those experiences as
fully av ailable 1 as possible. T would like not to be misunderstood in
that. I was concerned—and I think understandably so-—lest any. vol-
untary approach on my part.be misunderstood in the light of the
developments to which some of your inquiries have been directed... ...

. It might be appropriate to point out by way of general back-

und that I spent approximately 3 years in'the Patent Office, :

"I joined the Patent Office as Deputy Commissioner in-the spring
of 1970. I became Acting Commissioner on-or about August 25th,
1971. I became Commissioner by recess appointment on January 4 of
7972.-I was later confirmed by the Senate and, pursuant to Senate
confirmation, reappointed. My resignation from the Patent Oﬁice ‘

and from Government service was effective June 29,

Part of what concerns us of course is your interest in detelmmlng-
the eircumstances with respect to, and indeed the.nature of. that res-
ignation. I can describe the mechanics of what happened. I dont
believe I am in_position to answer in detall questions raised \Tlth
respect _to the three points you mentioned. for the reason that in
truth, I do not know why I was fired. I think possibly that the ref- -
rences with respect to those points may have some basis in fact, but
would regard this—on grounds of reason.and probability—as.
ikely. I could be wrong. The fact remains that I do not under- .-
and and was.never given any adequate E“i])]dlldtl()ll of the circum-

ces attending the request for my resignation. - .. .
1 will, as. best I can. outline the situation broadly. T must. Sy that
‘the time I was appointed Commissioner I was greatly surprised,
ut I think possibly that the appointment was a direct response to-’
the efforts which I had been making while Deputy. Commissioner -
tand. Acting Commissioner: The point I svonld anake there is that the
ithen Secretarv My, Stans, had been verv-concerned about the inter- °
al state of the Patent Office and I knew that he was deeply Inter-
ted in dealing effectively and promptly with many of the impor- -
nt problems with which the Office wwas strug oling. 1 think it not
fair to charactérize his. approach as one. of near-desperation,
patience, and perhaps even anger, T do. know that. there were tense
oments befweéen us; but I kno“ too that. as time .went on, and as he
eme better.acquainted with what..was going on as I attempted to
chieve his objectives, he became more optnmstlc about the resolu-
tion of thosé problems. What I am saying in short .is that.what had

gun as a_relatively antagonistic experience resulted in one of very
L‘lo-e coopemtlon ind, on the Part of the Secretary, apprecmtlon

f)ressed many times for the “fine_work™ that, I was. domg in my-

ole 2s Commissiotier. : .

I ‘seemed -nlso to serve Well and. by nil stdndardq to Ea['lsf‘ tlm :
requirements’ that his- =uccessor, Mr. Pete:sou. 1mposed We had an -
excellent relationship. s L

It was against that . bac]\frround that lt came FYRE total =urprlse--.=-
that the things that I was doing seemed 50 totally unacceptable. The
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whole chain of events came as a “bolt from the blue” and indeed
" withno prior warning: - o SRR
- 0w April 19, well, let ‘'me go back a little bit further. The Secre.
tary came ahoard in Jahuary of 1973, Shorily thereafter, in the
officé of the then Acting Assistant Secretary for. Science and Tech--
nologv. I and other members of the Science and Technology units of
the Department of Commerce, together with the Acting Assistant
Secretary, provided briefings for the Secretary. Presentations of the
various units of the Patent Office. the' National Bureau of Standards
and others. averaged about 15 to 20 minutes each, at most. As it
happens, the presentation byv the Patent (Mfice. which I made, was
the last. It was no-longer than 20 minutes. It may well have been
more like 15. At best it sketched in broadest outline the functions of
the Patent Office, its staffirig and funding situation, it physieal facil-
ities; and little else. At no tinie thereafter did I have with the Secre-
tary any discussion relating to Patent Office affairs or problems.
Indeed at no time thereafter. with the one exception f¢ which I will:
refer later, did we ever have any discussion bevond the merest kind
of social and casual contact. at receptions or matters of that sort. I
assumed; perhaps incorrectly, that he was aware of and satisfied by -
what'I was doing. - ° : S R
On- April 19.°as T reeall the date, the present Assistant Secretary’
for: Seience and Technology was sworn in. On May 7, a Monday
moriing. I received: at 8:30. a' telephone call in which she requested
that I appear at her office at 9 o'¢lock. I did, As I entered, she:
maotionied ‘me to a chair'and proceeded to speak directly to the pointi’
She said very briefly; in what T recall as approximately as three sen-
“tences. that she was aware that I.had indeed been doing a very fine
job: she recognized that' I'had made great strides, particularly inf.
dealinig with some of the people and personnel and policy problems
of the office ; and that I had madc other strides forward as well—but °
that T-had a fatal fault or flaw, and that as a result of that she felt -
constrained to ask for my resignation: < " R
To say that I'was stunned of course would be an understatement.
I inquired as to the rreasons for‘the request and I received no answer =
that-T can repeat; none that I then thought I‘understood or could -
begin to accept, beéause at best there' were the vaguest references -
only to such thingsias inabilit¥ ‘to gét along with the top managers
of the Patent Office. There was a_vague reference té support for hes
position in that respect in’an audit report, theén presumably still imi
process of preparation by an audit team from the Department of
Commerce, access to which I did not have at that time. So that as } .
heard the few words spoken in that connection. I had absolutely ne
way of knowing what'she might have had in mind and indeed I was :
surprised by the reference for a still further reason—this répresents
a digression but I assure you a minor one. namely, the effort that
was covered by that reviort was one that I had initiated some months
before. T had requested that the Department of Commerce,. working.
with specialists from'the Civil Service Commission, provide assist-
ance which I' felt was needed. I had identified certain problems. I
realized they were deep rooted and difficult to deal with. They were
the kinds of problems which' I suppose permeate. many governmient.
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_cencies, and 1 could not break through-:the bureaucratic '_{'edtnge
and built-in, resistamces to the point where I could accomplish the
of improvement that I thought was necessary.. . . . ..
ﬁe request for expert assistance was intended to help solve tl:nese
soblems. 1 later found, when the report came to my attention,
shortly before I left the office, that the report was prepared on a
sagis that reflected nothing of its genesis. It purported to identify to
e the problems which I had identified in the first place in my
request—the inference being that I had in fact been deficient in, pre-
gumably, failing to recognize the existence of these problems.
- What I am suggesting is that that whole situation—with respect
ite- the report and the study on whieli it was based—may be sympto-
woatic of the fluff that surrounded whatever reality may have been
segponsible for the actual request for my resignation. The words 1
dieard and the report itself seem artificial, contrived, and for the
‘fjoost part irrelevant. _ LT . S '
i.. T was not asked for a resignation on the spot. The request was
that by the following Monday, May 14, I return with a draft letter
or resignation. It was of course to be addressed to the President. It
was stipulated that it was to be effective June 30. -
The suggestion was made that I réfer in it simply and generally
‘to a desire to return to private life. The suggestion further was
made that, in the meantime, I seek emplovment elsewhere, I
explained in response that it was very difficult for me to cope with a
@tuation I didn't understand, and 1t was very difficult for me to
#ake seriously the suggestion that I seek employment while in gov-
igmiment employ, and particularly so for the reason that I was

#seing the necessity to be in Vienna for the Vienna Diplomatic Con-.

ference from approximately the middle of May until the middle of
‘June. To no avail. The request was insisted on, that I return the fol-
lowing Monday, May 14,.with the draft letter of resignation.

& T withdrew on that basis, pondered, and coricluded that I could
not submit. a resignation under those circumstances. I did, in fact,
prepare a letter explaining how I felt on that point and stating my
position that I felt in any event my obligations to the patent com-
munity, and to the President who had appointed me, were such that
I could not so resign without a full understanding,. :

I planned to meet with the Assistant Secretary on Monday, May

14, but could not do so because she was then en route to Washington
from Seattle. And as it happened. the following day, May 15, was
the last day on which I could possibly leave for Vienna and still get
there in time to perform my function as head of our delegation, and
reet with our people for 1 day in preparation for the formal open-
mg of the conference the following day. So faced with the request
that T have spoken of, faced with the time frame I have just indi-
cated, and working against the background of the June 30 date
which she had stipulated, I thought probably the best thing I could
do would be to go over and get the things started at the conference,
and deal with this problem later, having no doubt that I could. But
bot so. Tuesday morning in telephone conversations, the message
¢ame to me. I would use the words of that message rather exactly at

point: This memorandum came to me addréssed to Commis-

o
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sioner from ‘:IICI\E} Jo, one of- the secretnrles in the oﬂice, ~ated Mny
15. The content: : ‘

Helen Snyder from Dr. Anker Johnson's office called. at 8:50 oclock to say
that they had heen:left 4 ‘nuote by Dr. Anker Johnson to be transmitted to yop
as follows: “Mr. Gottschalk is: not to leave the country. without seeing Dr,
Anker Johnsen, Plepse he sure that he understands this. * Dr. Anker Johnson
ia at NBS this morning at a symposium and Ms. Snyder says'if 'you get m
tnuch with her there, it’ would probably be best to ¢al! Dr. Roberts' office. T

Well. I tried, indeed T tried. to reach her. Sventually there was a
break in the sy mposmm and I spoke with the Assistant Secretary
for approximately 3 to 5 minutes on the telephone. She was very
insistent that I would not be permitted to leave the country without
having submitted the resignation .that she requested. I pointed out
that she was putting me to a choice, and that I felt constrained to
fulfill myv obligations with respect to the treaty—that on the ong
hand. and my ]ob on the other. She insisted that, treaty or no treaty,
she was determined that my resignation be handed in that day. I-
felt that, as a practical matter, T had no choice but to submit the
resignation that was requested and I did, under ewcaetly those c1r-
' cllmﬂtances

You have referred to trade press Iepmts There was one column
which recited briefly and essentially accurately the substance of
what I have just related with respect to the spemﬁc mech‘mlcs of
that request.

I twn back to the Fnd‘u afternoon of the week of May 7 to
report that late that Friday afternoon at approximately 5:30 pm. I
sicceeded for the Arst time in meeting with the Secretary. I told
him what happened. He listened Wlth no visible reaction, made no
comment, and when I concluded my statement, stated simply that.
since the Assistant Secretary had responsibility for the operation of
the Patent Office. he had no choice but to sustain her decision as a
. proper exercise of her authority. That is all that I can really tell
yout about how. It's practically all I can tell you about why.

Now I must say that I do favor some legislative clarification of
the patent antitvust questions concerned w ith licensing. I must say
also that T think it rather important that there be early enactment
of patent legislation. I had suggested-—but only in the course of what
I would consider appropriate conference discussion within the execu-
tive branch—the view I held. that the early enactment of patent leg-
islation was of such importance that, in my opinion at least, it
should not be delayed by insisting upon the enactment at the same
time of legislation dealing with these licensing questions. So far as I
know that was never taken to be an objectional utterance. As far as
II can recall, no criticism ‘of that approach was expressed, then or
ater.

Now I have spoken to one question you have raised. It olwmuslv
has a bearing on my feelings and views with respect to the other,
the status of the Patent Office as an independent agency.

Senator Harr. Well., let me interrupt you here if T may, Commis-
sioner. In part this is a reaction to Mr, Brennan’s appropriate state-
ment, The subcommittee has authorized these hearings.in order to
get reactions specifically to five points in the réform proposal, One
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of those points in'the desirability of ‘a restructuring of ‘the Patent
Office and should .t be an independent agency? My conscience is
clear to thE éxtent that we are authorized to take: testimony, includ-
ing the experience you related, as it bears on that one item and that
is the independent agency question. The hearings were not author—
ized to investigate the circumstances of vour dismissal.

‘So, I welcome your turning now to the weneral obsorvahons that
you- will make with respect to the provisions for an independént
office and ‘T think all of us would understand that your gelieral
observations necessarily arecolored by the cncumstances that you
‘have just described. -.

Mr. GorrscHALK. Thank YOu, Senatox I turn now to mntters t‘h‘lt
are & little easier for me to discuss.
% J think ¥ must say that the Patert System which is of great con-

wern to us .all, has been my life work for more than 40 years. I
'belleve in our patent system. I have said many times that T think it
is sound in principle, morally right and extremely important. I-am
totally dedicated to it because T beheve it does for:this country wiiat
we need to have done. I think it is not doing it as well ‘ag’it should.
I am very anxious and concerned to improve ‘it. Thls has been the
thrust of my activities in the Patent Office. -

‘T am very much in sympathy with the drive to accompllsh atlong
last, some of the things that we have begun, increasingly, to recog-
nize' as necessary -and important. In my own work in "the Putent
office I have tried to act accordingly to my own conviction that there
i3 a need to ventilate and to make more- “effective. the entire patent
examining procediire. ' We have made a start, within the limits of
time and in the absence of legislation, toward the interpartes pro-
teeding. We have initiated efforts that concern completeness of file
wrappeér, to break down the barriers of secrecy that properly and
understandably infuriate and puzzle so many. What T am saying is
that as we approach patent legislation, I find it a source of gmtlﬁ—
cation that we can’ anticipate the emlv lopmtmg of a patent blH
long overdiie and much needed.: '

‘T 'believe in the importance of improving the svstem I think thqt
legislation is required. I am enthusiastic about the ‘prospects of-
having a hetter patent system based on better legislation. '

But before I address myself directly to the matter of the mde-
pendent agency, Senator. I think that there is a preliminary ques-
tion that needs to be considered. I think we have to recognizé that
the difficuilties experienced with the patent system, with which we are:
all familiar. and which we are trying to cor ‘rect, are not to be attyib-
uted—certamlv not in their totality —to shor tmmmﬁs in our present
legislative structure. And by the same sign, T think it would be quite
a mistake to suppose that by the enactment of appropriate ‘patent
legislation these difficulties would necessarily be resolved. ’\ot §0.
Something more—something far more basic—s required. -

As I view it, that something is good admlmstratlon—stablhty, the‘
ability to do the job, to do’it well, and to do it consistently. One of
the things that Senator MecClellan commented on in his remarks
introducing 8. 1957 was the fact that during his tenure as chairman’
of this subcommittee there had been five Commissioners of ‘Patents;
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and he was concerned, quite properly about. the high turnover uﬁ
the short tenure with respect to the C{)mmissioners’position. In m¢y’
years in the Patent Office there were of course two Commissioners—.
but there were three Secretaries, and there were four people in the.
position of Assistant Secretary.for Science and Technology. - .

Senator Hart, Over what period? : - R
. Mr. Gorrscriank, Three years. With every change in- personnel,
with every change in policy, in the Department of Cominerce, shoek
waves, permeated and had their impact on the Patent Office. We haqd .
to react to the new personalities.. We had to react to the new pro..

{_rg'_ams. We had to participate in a diffierent way and about different
 things. ] . : o

So against that factual background, which: indicates- the general:
instability of the situation, I would turn to this matter of adminis-.
tration, which I consider to be absolutely. vital, and which I think is.
inakdeguately understood. and . appreciated and all:.too..often - over-

ooked. . T

I was very gratified, earlier in the course of these proceedings; to-
note the comniittee’s -sensitivity in these very areas.-The inquiries
appropriately directed to such things as the quota-system, for exam-
ple, are not within the five points listed, but bear most importantly.
on the very essence of what the patent examining function is all
about. There can be no mistake about it, the patent examining fune-

“tion is the raison d’etre of the Patent Office, and the Patent Office is.
the very heart of the patent system: . o o : S
. As a matter of administrative efficiency, I think we would all
agree that good ecommunications are very important.-In that connee’
tion, I was interested to note the sensitivity and the. insight of the
committee as reflected by its interest in probing the disparitiss
which seemed to appear between the views taken by the managemeng
of the Patent Office and the Department of Commerce on the ong&
hand, and the Patent Office examiners themselves on the other. ¥
felt, and perhaps others did, that that was rather significant. It:
pointed up something T have experienced, and that is the compart:
mentalization of thought and of action in the Patent Office in every
respect-—the preoccupation -with self and one’s own functions, the
inability to see the large picture, and to understand the goals and to
cooperate in the accomplishment of the Patent Office mission. It i8
these precise things to which I have been directing during my tenure
my primary attention. These are the things in which I have been
placing primary emphasis. It is most important to understand that:
when: you ask questions having to do with the existence or nonexigts
ence of a quota system and try, as apparently you did Senator, for 3
days and fail to get a satisfactory response, 1t is indicative of a situ-
ation. which applies to more questions than just the one then under
consideration. =~ . S .

The Patent Office is a wonderful institution, It is hard for me to
put in words the feeling as well as the regard I have for it and
what it has meant to this country. Perhaps that i3 the reason that I
am so very disturbed, as I have been from time to time, by the seem-
ing indifference or the seeming opaqueness of individuals who: play
important:-roles in what. it does, who are.all too-often. inclined to
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!hmk of themselves ‘as ‘pérformers:-of  daily tasks rather than as
people contributing importantly to: the  achievement “of ‘national
m Ohe of the lines that T -have used repeateédly in my efforts to
reach the employees of the Office has 'been that we are not to think
of airselves as' laying bricks but W= buildinig a cathédral, T

Now there have been remarkable changes in personnel attitudes
and fdnvniordleand this has béeir very ‘impoitant in achieving the
xind of administration oni which the:successful operation‘of a Patent
Ofice depends.:1 would be the last'to discount and the first to ' praise
the importance of the professional input at the Patent Office. But it
g fact of life that the professionals’ tasks cannot be well per-
zrmed unless the support functions are earried out adequately. Ft-is

ther ridicilous-to expect the public to have confidence in a: Patent
fige which can’t deliver' documents as promised, which have been
widered and paid for—which purports to issie patents on a certain
‘dxy; and’ which cannot make copies of ‘them available for weecks
gfter their official date 'of issue—an office in ‘which files are lost, lit-
arally, so that they cannot become available for the further process-
ing of the claims that are so important to the applicants who filed
them. It was 4 Patent Office of that kind which I encountered, and
it wag to overcome difficulties of those and many other kinds to
which I directed my efforts. It is against that kind of background
thet I speak with feeling to the matter of the importance of admin-
73t seems to me—I might say that 'these remarks:from which T will
read in an attempt to conserve the time of the committee at this
point were prepared in'a totally personal and totally different con-
text and they have no relationship to the: totally unanticipated
appearance 1 amy making before this committee this morning. But it
seemed to me that what I said then is what T would in any event say
to this corhmittée now.- : - - _ o
+'] was saying that we need to look beyond legislation to good
administration. At the verv least, I would say this requires close.
eritical, and continuing serutiny of, first, the tools, the skill, and the
procedures employed in the-operations of the Patent Office; second,
the criteria used to measure product quality and examiner perform-
ance: and third, the motivational and the attitudinal factors: affect-
ing performance of the professional and support personnel. Such
review must be supplemented by appropriate remedial action; and
the process of review and improvement must be pursued relentlessly.
Some -progress -along: these lines-has been made, but much more
remains to be done if the integrity and effectiveness of any form of
patent examination process is to be insured. o - .

Consider, as an example, the: admittedly unacceptable state of the
eritically important Patent Office’ search files. Now, it is extremely
important to recall that the search.files in the U.S. Patent Office are
unique. This is the only place in the country where classified: files
which permit an effective and efficient:search can be found. Files
-gxist elsewhere but they are hot:comparable in scope or in arrange-
ment er in effectiveness. A peculiar responsibility rests upon the
Patent Office therefore to insure the completeness, the integrity, and
the effectiveness of those files. St e T
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The. programs which were recently. instituted—and I mean: withis
the last 2 years—to check the integrity, that.is the: completeness of
the files and to correct their deficiencies,. represent.the. first such:

‘eﬁ'oxts in 25 years..Now there has been a. ]r)t of .discussion. of: Iegisla-
tion in the last.25 3ears, but precnoue little. conslderat;on of s0-vita],
an issuc-as that. . : i

Similarly the. revltahzatlon of the Iec]a~5nﬁcat10n eﬂ'ort in, respect:
to these files, which: I started early in 1972, was long overdue.: Its.
c;mpletmn “111 xequlre several years of. suetamed and ;;ubstantxal;
effort . .

Now earher reference has been made in the coulse of these hearé
ings to the matter of classification. Let me-add one thought that.I.
think has not been expressed. As technology. develops rapidly in. the.
areas that are currently of greatest mlport'lnce, there is an-increased”
output, at a greater rate, of new technical information. :ljnless the"
inflow of new technical information at the Patent Office is classifies:
promptly and effectively, it becomes increasingly difficult-to mak,
the kind -of efficient and effective search on: which ‘2 good. patent
examination depends. Now it was a little while before I realized,
after I had entered the Patent Office, that the work of maintaining
thi» ongoing and highly important reclassification effort had been,
abandoned virtually. completely. The result was. that the examiners
were, day by day and week by week, ina deteriorating position withe
respect to the performance of their mission. The funds approprlated
for that purpose in the normal course were. as-we say, reprogra
in order to sustain a research.and development effort aimed at devel-g
oping a computerized system. for. performing the essentml work:
classifying new technical information.

- L suppose: I might be permitted a dlgresswn at this point to
back and say. that one of the factors contributing to the request.
my resignation might well have been the fact that in trying ta
remedy problems of this kind I probably made few friends and most.
certainly must have made some enemies. There were people who
were deeply committed to these projects and who failed, I thmk ta
share my view that some of them had to be reconsidered.

This matter of computerized reclassification is certainly a case in
point. I found it was essential in order to preserve the effectiveness
of the Patent Office—to prevent the: patent examining function in my
judgment from going down the drain—to abandon that, and to revi:
talize this “manual;” as we call it, classification effort, In the process
had to relieve from his position (and to eliminate the position) e .
person in the office who at the time held the title of an Assistank
Commissioner. That caused him great pain and discomfort. In tim
1. also suffered considerable pain: and discomfort, and also Some
annoyance, and diversion of a-very substantial amount of time in
responding to letters from -many sources mcludmg members of the
Congress protesting on his behalf-
- Mr. BRenxan. Mr. Chairman, I feel compelled to. request you to
request the witness to direct- his comments to the issues which are
relevant to this proceeding. I thmk We are gomg far a.ﬁeld hera. N

‘Mr. GorrsCHALE. I’'m-sorry.-. » S

Senator Harr. Yes sir.
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. “Mr. GorrscirALk. Thank youn. I'appreciate that.” . <o o0 -0
i “In any event, unless-these basic tools, through continuing efforts to
insintain them up-to-date and in good working order, are brought to’
and maintained in & condition permitting ‘effective and efficient
examination, nobody, under any system-—not the examiner, nor the
ublic counsel rnor anyone else~-will be able to make reliable and
meaningful determinations of novelty. And such determinations are
the very bedrock on which all aspects of our system depend. =+
Similarly. if the rules of the:game hy which patent examiners:
work, and if the eriteria by which their performance is judged:and”
their promotions and sdlary-increases are awarded, are suchras to
favor quantity of production over quality of work product,concepts -
of professionalism and quality- will \be.subjected to a compromising
in ‘which poses a constant and: substantial threst to the proper
‘ormance of the Patent Office mission. That kind of a system
X vidie]s powerful incentives to do the wrong things rather than the
% Twould say. on the basis of my own éxperience -and in terms of
guch: basic administrative matters as those to which I have referred,
that strength 'of administration, stability of administration, and
soundness of administration ean best béinsured in a situation which
-would make the Patent Office independerit of the Commerce Depart-
ment. SR LI - ' '
. Now Mr. Browne traced very accurately-and interestingly yester-
dey ‘the-history of the Patent Office; and this committee has been
gformed that thefe is o evidence that the Patent Office at any time .
33 beent subjected - to any improper-influence in the performinee of
6 mission. T feel constrained te deny:this for; on the basis of my
wperience; I know this not to be so. I ‘accept-as valid the observa- -
tion' that there has been over the years an apparent inability of the -
Jepartment - of “Commerce -t¢-develop ‘and maintain an effective
w#orking relationiship ‘with: the Patent Office. and I don’t think that
we ¢an anticipate any sifnifieant “improvement -in this kind of rela-
Honship if the formak structure were‘to remain as it is—and that
SEEE’!S to have beeii the ‘position proposed by the administration yes-
fﬂr&. < L e L A
'No‘;{'_ that ‘position Tésts largely:‘on the basis of the Commerce
Departmenit ‘being “able’to provide administrative and  similar sup-
port, which-the’ Patent' Office ‘would have to provide for itself if it
were independ"ént’.-?f'Fine. ‘That argument has merit as far as it goes, -
bat“there is another sideof the story; too. And that is,that because. .
of the family rélationship there are corresponding burdens. I have
already indicated that with every shift in the administration oriin: -
administration policy, the burdens of the Patent Office are enhanced. -
‘There ‘i another aspect to this thing that bothers me very consid- -
erably. 1 don’ think ‘many people, inside or outside of the Patent -
Office, are aware that regularly substantial sums of money appropri-
ated for the Patent Office are siphconed off for other uses within the..
Department of Commerce. That is bad enough, but I think-that:the”
sericusness of that ‘threat is underscored by a very recent develop-
ment. This year for the first time—1I think this is not inappropriate
for disclosure for the purposes of this committee and I hope I am-:
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right, Senator—this vear the Patent Office funding request. was riop
presented 1nd1v1dually as it traditionally has been; it was consoli
dated with the requests of the other units of the Science and Tech.
nofogy wing of the Department of Commerce and a single appropri-
arion request for that group of five units was made. Which is to say,
if -this is projected into the future, that there probablv cannot. be
sald o oxist. such a’ thing: as a ‘Patent Office. appropriation. This
rmeans that the purse control of-the Parent Office 1s-on a totally. dif-.
ferent basis than it historically has been. :And when you consider the
facx that the Office is under—as 1 have already indicated my. exgen-;
eme. confirms—the. control of someone ‘whose interests are not basi:
caliy-and  primarily .oriented: tothe Patent. system but to.; otherg_.
things. such as.science and technology. this has rather interesting.
implications.I could easily substantmte in-time, by examples, the:
fact that this inherent possxbnht) is. mdeed a reality. It could become’
inereasingly 4 problem. . - o

Mr. Browne pointed to the stmnﬂe dlchotomv by whlch the Prem— :
demtial appointee .who heads. the Patent .Office is sub]ect to review
by the Judiciary Committee, whereas that..person’s superior,.to,
wom_he must indeed responid; and wth: those directives he must:
inddeed comply. is sub]ect to review by a totally different group. And’
it was rather interesting I thought, in this: connection, that during
the confirmation hearings of the incumbent Assistant Secretarv for’
Saence and Technology Senator Tunney pointéd rather perceptwely ’
te the fact that, while the incumbent Assistant Secretary was to be .
highly. commended on the grounds of acientific. prowess, there was™
very little in the record to suggest any background of . dealmg effess-
_ tively with administrative matters, legal and. patent: matters,. and:

things of that sort. It -is.a matter of grave concern that an agency off.
oser 2,700 people, and, as you have heard, over 1,100 professm, 1P
should be subject to’ the influence of someone. who- hs.s had relativel$
kirtle oceasion to become acquamted with the barest fundamentals of.
what is involved—either in terms of the specific functlons or the. man-.r
agement skills involved in that kind of an operation.. » .-

“Now I do believe that the matter. of 1 improper. or. undue 1nﬂuence,.{,
is mot just confined to the last 2 years or soj it has, however, bees~
very strikingly in evidence. I speak again to one of the three points
¥ou mentioned earlier. There was not, so far as I can. recall, any sits-
uation directly involved in the terms which you. used—and I. c;ﬁ

recall them exactly Senator—in connection with picking.out & pagl
ticular application and dealing; with it..as it were, out.of turn, Them :
was not that kind of a situation, but there: was something that-3
think is not too different from it in basic prmmple I can’t partics .
Yarize at: this point becanse the specific matter is still pending; ared
under our law the facts relating to.that situation.must be preserved
im confidence. But the fact of the matter is that.the Commissioner.
‘r:s directed to follow a:certain.course of judicial action contrary to
the determination that he and the general.counsel, agreed was sound.
That seemed to me a bit much. By the smme sign, I think-——- . :

Senator Harr, But as you indicated. it is almost inherent in the”
structure as. we now have it, which to.me argues persuasu:ely for the-5
desirability f.oranmdependenc AGENCY. .« v g v I

-
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"Mr., GorrsCEALK. ‘Precisely. There has been such an sbsessw of

kmpwledge about these things as to- encourage bland aceept-

-ance of the generalized statements that this domn’t exist. I camrm

* to you'in.rather posxtwe terms and very specifically that it does. and
it 18 not new. -

You will recall that Mr Bmwne mentmned the name of Assnatant
Secretary Holloman yesterday—and that was back a few years. but
there ‘again the same basic structure existed. A good deal of mmflu-
ence was brought to bear. -

Now at this point X think I should mentlon spec1ﬁcally that ™ my'

ent the Administrateon bill. so far as the language of ® is
in their statement, dioes not go far enough. Their propoaal in
ence was, as I understand it, that the Patent Office remain where
- but that legislation be enacted to insure that the Patent Chlce
enjoy independence of the Department of Commerce =ith
- to its “adjudieatory function.” Well, T submit that thss is
st enough because that womld leave the Patent Office subject t® the
mftuence of the Department of Commerce with respect to matters of
geveral policy, legislation, rreaty arrangements and the like—amd it
was indeed a matter within that general category with which T most.-
sssociate the experience of some years ago-to which Mr. Brrwene
referred. So we can’t look te that language as providing an adeqraate
spfeguard, even if for ‘other reasons we were to accept the view= of
i administration that the Patent Office ought to stay put.
£ agree with you, 231 umderstand your posmon, Senator, tha an
dependent agency is strongly indicated.
nator Harr. Commissiémer, thank you very miich: I think wour
mony does bear strongix on the desirability of an indeperdient
fency because ‘T think ‘inherent in'this structure will be the reeur-
rénce of both lack of continwity and the competing claims. Whermus
with an independent office perhaps the tendency there and the e—izi-
e then would beithat. it wulg overstress the importance of pmi-
Bats and their role,’but at:lezst they wonld be preoccupied with mmt-.
entg.’ I am: grateful that on such short notice you have been willimsg
bo come in‘and give us-the beneﬁf of your. experlence and opm_’.lm..
in, thank you. :
r. Briinxan; What'is ver: posmon, Comm1ss1oner, on the “prre-
posed Office of Public Counsel?

Mr, Gorrscuark. I would say this, Mr. Brennan, 1t isd 11tt1e I a
fleult for me to answer as: ciﬂxrly as I should like for these reasmms.
I am clear that I would not be in favor of the public counsel fumec-
tions as proposed in S, 1321. T think some limitation and refinemeent
and sharper focusing would make that more effective. L?BI‘F_ELM_T
committed: to the idesa that ome representation of the pubhe mmGer-
&, and some broadehing of fegal approach within the Patent Offire.
are necessary. It is a little d%cult or me to speak to the admun:—
tirtion bill because, as you mwst be aware, I don’t know what it i= I
know about the administratiom position only what we have been ahsie
to learn from the remarks of Mr.-Kauper and Mr. Bakke. I have a
Strong feeling that there’is a° better:likelihood' by far that I womid
agree with those positions dealing with the pubhc counsel tha.n. I
would with those of S. 1321.
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" T feel this, too. The Advisory Council which is provided for in S
1321, and ‘which has not been much discussed.in the course of theas -
hearmgs seems to me potentially very important.. I.-would strongly.
favor such an arrangement. concerning the: public counsel as would
make it possible for him—nay would require him—to provide effective .
input to the Advisory Council. T would not:go so far as to say he
ought to be constituted in any specific.capacity such as executive, -
secretary or official birddog; but he ought to be the eyes and-ears of .
that committee. It ought to be made clear by the legislation that he-
is to have complete access to any information within the Patent
Office. T tend to shy.away from any concept of the. role of public -
counsel, however, which-would get him too deeply involved in repre-
senting the interests of private parties. I
T can’t help but deal also with' the maiter. of adversary pI‘OCEEd-
ings to some extent because I think thev and the.role of public coun-
sel are very closely related. I do feel that if adversary proceedings :
aTe initiated in any form, this is an area of activity which ought to .
be of special concern to the public counsel-~not necessarily in the .
role of an advocate, or even as.a participant, but from the stand-.
point of exercising close andcontinuing supervision to insure that
that important—and for us new and untrled—etporlence develops .
properly, to insure that the system is improved in the way that we
would hope, from the adoption of such proceedings. Here again, the .
way in which he would perform what functions would have te be
determined by what kind of adversary proceedings we adopt.
May I speak to that issue very briefly? .
. ‘Mr. BReNNaN. Yes, but please be brief, we. are running a httled
ate.
Mr. GO’I‘I‘SCHALK I apprecmte that Mr. Brennan, and the opportui-
nity to speak to the issues at all, . :
I would not favor the form of adversary proceedmcs that are seﬁ
forth in S. 1321. I more incline to.the.administration’s -view, bub
with reservations. There are two basic routes. which they propose.-I-
feel that the fivst:offers too little, for the reason expressed this morn-
ing by Mr. Clark, that is, that people will not come forward with .
prior art unless they are, really confident that it will be applied.
properly. As to-the second, I am afraid that.this alternative pro-
vides too much, and that it would open up the continuing kind of
litigation which has characterized the German opposition proceed-
ings which we view with horror. I am not sure that the antitr
approach suggested by Mr. Kauper would. be adequate to. cont
I do favor somethmg more like the idea whmh had its genesas in
the Patent Office proposal which was pubhshed some time ago-
‘Mr. Nasu. No questions. - . '
Senator Harr. Thank you. That last answer reminds us. how. ‘tough
it is to'move from. ag'reement on what generally is desirable to how

in the world you get there. -

Mr. GorrscHarx. Senator, it is- actually again the same pomt we.
were making earlier; admlmstratlon and 1mplementatmn are mter—,
changeable sometimes:: .5 - o _ .

Senator Hagr. Thank you.
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~BEHIND THE LEGISLATIVE SCENE n=
HOW WE GOT WHERE WE ARE”
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The H ble Robert G

b Jormer .S, Commis-
sionerof Parers: .

"I am really glad 10 be h:re in spite of the hour,
2nd am grale.ul for’ many things — among others, your warm
welcome. 5d alse the yellow ribbon on my badge thai says
“Speaker™ At this time of day, | find that very zeassuring.

Jim - Wetzel said 1I'd speak quickly. ‘Yoru bet I will! Te

. cover even the highlights of my ass:gnmem for this morning,

T really have to run'— or, 2s wé say nowadays, streak. Which

. brings 10 mind a-tale’] heard at lench yeslerday 2bout a

streakes who wag arresied in the House of Representatives
of Hawaii, As 1hey carried lem out, this frllow shouied ]
afm1he streakerof the Housel™

The gefinilion of the status quo as “the awful mess we're’

in" r.':rlalnly appl::s to the sitbation we're isoking at this

mnrmng Of course, It's not the’ ol‘ﬂy THess araund The smry
is going the founds in Washington -~ and I'm not sure it's
apocryphal — that one of our ftop-flight government
economisis was ‘asked whether' he thoughl hc could un-
scramble the current economic mess. He's'supposed 1o have
said: “Well, may'h: - rnayb: if 1 wers 'Ged, and ¥1Lhada
Cul‘npl.llﬂl'

Many of ui toncernied with paients and licensing aze
aften inclined — and for good reason - to see our own prub-
lems in much the'same Tght,

How did our’ gund s1mp|e, nicely working patem ‘ans
licensing systém end up in such a mess? You can't just sa;
we were unlucky. A lot more was involved than that. 1.thini
it is rhost essential to identily at lcast the major factors in-
volved. For we must undesstand not only whers we are, but
also where we've bezn and how we gou there, il we are to
plan intelligently for the future.

There are, as T soc it two "principal areas to consider.
One concerns the ‘matier of people and arganizations, and
their attitudes and their beliels. The other concerns the
mauer of events. 1 will try 1o paint for you this morning
very broadly the picture as I see it, whth respect to each of
thesz.

For what ir's worth, [ think that the matter of aititudes
and beliels is hasically respensible for most of the trouble
we've been experiencing.

1n this regard, I might say, there is clearly enaugh blame,
in my judgment, td g0 around. Gevernment in general, the
Patent Cifies, the Pacem Bar, the Department of Jushc:,
the courts, Congress, industry, the medm. the publi
evervbndy's invalved, and everybody's  responsible: Lc
consider these striatim, dnd in 50 doing I hope ‘you will
understand ikal I don'l mean to be negative, but I Lhink we
do have 1o look at these things both |ndmduall\. and also in
12rms of their inter-relationship and cumglative Efl'ccl

As 1o Government. | would ask vou how many Govern-
menlal institutions and operations You're satisfied with?
How many do you thiok would rate high marks in anybgdg s
book? Unforrunately, the faci is thal the patent sysiem in
large part must be regarded as a Governmemal operation.
1t involvés all threc branches of our Government — the Cen-
gress, the Courts, and the Executive.

Certainly, Governmental operdtions have amply carned
the reputation of heing inefficient, Why do people generally
hold’ so much of Gnvcrnm:nl and its \xerLs m such fow




for onc thing, there is in our Governments
Executive Branch a tremendous turnover of top-level
personnel. In a recent siedy it was revealed thar at the top
levels of Secretary, Under Secretary and Assistant Sec-
relary — whete the major past of policy planning and im-
plementation is carried out — more than hall of the Uader
Secretarics and Assistant, mnnun_.w:nu un? _mﬁ_n posts in Jess
than two years.

Closer to home, in the Commeree Unvm:anzﬂ approxi-
mately one-third of its top-level officials quit in less than
welve monihs, and nearly 40% - [eft somstime during their
secand year!

U_.:.Sm ry ewn three unu_,m in the Patent Office, we had
af course, 2 Commissioners; we_also had 3 different See-
retaries, and 4 different persons.in tlie pesition of Assistant
Secretary for Sciencs and Tethnology. And thar's the posi-
tion which, as you will reca is responsible for amang. other
_—::um mnuﬂé ion af the Patent Office.

Now in spite of kaving been vnaosn:w. clost to one past
of that w.:n::n such statistics really shake me!

The fact s that with such rates of turnover, appointees
doa't learn encugh in theic brisf sojourns on the jab to make
the decisions expected of them. Programs lack stability,
long-term planning gives way (o the “quick-fix” and
responsibility drowns in a sea of alibis, promises and “buck-
passing”. For such reasons among ethers, it sezms to take
Torever to gor anything done. Now as fae as the Patent Of-
fice is concerned, T think we are making some progress wsn_
1 am happy to report that the "voluntary protest™ p
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ample, in the January issuc of Farfure, in commentt on the
Washington scenc, we read this

“Cabinct offlicers seem to comsider it an eccomplishment

wher: “option papers™ reach the White House on

schedule; what happeas: after that doesn't seem o con~
cern them ety much.”

Here zgain, this is uuiﬂ?:m which ﬂzcu._n industey
could scarcely tolerate — but in Government jt is hardly
surprising. For in Gevernment, as | have suggesicd, resutls
are indeed hard to come by, and anybody in Goversmem
who is result otiented is very likely 1o be very frustrated
very soon. And cbviously that doesn't help cfficiency, either.

_These remarks may suggest to you that | plice great
..:.io:»:ﬁ on such matters as morale, motivation. and ad-
minisication as alfecting the. problems we are. concerned
with, and 1 certai _v. do. In.my view such matlert have not.
received, at Teast in the Patent Offics, nearly enough ap--
propriate attention. And over the years we huve paid a very
heavy penalty in :ﬁ:.n_n:nu. as the result of such inad--
cquariss.

Problems in :.E area u_ucn vnna compounded by the un~
fortunate fact that the patent xystem and the Patent Cifice:
have been treated, perhaps ‘mistrealed would be 2 betler
way Lo put it, ap of the G famity.
Thare is currently under consideration, for ¢xample, the
question of whether the patent system should be subject to

z by the Ci i the Judiciary Com-
mittes or the Science Commiltees of the Congrass. And all
tog often, :.avc..ﬁ:- palcnt Fw:_b-_o: doesn't even get

which | evolved and which was published many months
ago will {with luck, and if the schedule holds) begin to be
implemented in July — but this is almost twa_years alter its
inception. Another example: quelity contral within the
Patent Office is a matter of great importance because, as
you Know, the presumption of validily is basic in our strue-
ture. The Patent Cffice has been sharply criticized for failarz
1o monitor quality more closely, and confidence in the patent
system has suffered on this account. Many of the legislative
“eurc-aills™ which have been proposed from time 1o time
have had their genesis in this situation.

To deat with this problem, a quality contral procedyrs
— which was designed with infinite care, and with participa-
m by practically 2ll concetned eiements of the Patent Of-
Tice staff — was develaped about two years ago. But only now
is there a prospeet that it will soon be adopted.

One further example; More than two years ago | seat
the White House recommendations for the
vacancies on the Board of Appezls. Those vacancits temain
unfilled,

Yes, it seems to take Government liteeally forever 10 get
u:ﬁ:.:m done — cven when the course 10 mo__né s clear.
wzvn::mz rays that are oul-of datc before

Now moncy, May ol be the only factor’ invalved in. the
motisation of people —- but I's cermainly important. So. IU's
worth noting that the Civil Senvice pay scale poses problems.
In the Pawent Office, for example, there are no lzss than 50
people — and perhaps as many a5 100 — who are teday paid
the same salary as the Commissionsr. Such a salary “scale”
has much the same effect on efficiency as the high turnover
rate a1 the top levet to which ) have ceferred. Neither of
these would be tolerated for 2 minuie in private industry.
And 1here is also imponantly involved in all of this what [
would ¢all the “givil service memality™. There arc of course
many and notable exceptions — buot, by and large, ci
servamis seem to have @ general rendency 10 be program-
oriented rather than result-oriented, They go through the
motions of an honest day’s work - but if the motions are
mercly circular wat bothers them not toomuch.

Nor can we assume that such anitudes and practices are
cenfined to the lower echelons of Government. For ex-

ling of four -

idersd by the approp: co; A nolable case
in point concerns the rompulsory license provisions af the
Cleat Air Aci; which were never referred to the Paient Sub~
committe of which Senator MeClellan is Chaiman

And speaking of mistreated stepchildren, we must not
fail o notz alsa the peculiarly regrettable refatitinship which
for a long tifne has existed between the Commered Depart-
ment 2rd the: Patene Office which it has been ‘ostensitly
supervising ang assisiing. Thus, Senator-McCleitan June

of 197}, critically reported to the Scnatc that “a shronic

unsatisfactary relationship . . . has existed between the De-
partment of Commerce and the Patent Office.” He poitted
out Bat this “contributed to frequent changes in the Office
of the Commissioner of Patents and instzbility in the ad-
ministration and progeams of 1he Offige.” He scféryed to the
“apparent inability of the Department of Commerez. to de-
velop and maintain an effective working relatienship . with
the Patent Office™ and praposed legisiation to pravide preater
stature and more freedom for the Patent Offics.

Clearly, 'much of our presemt mess has i3 1oots nnnu in -

the nature and history of Governmenl and Govermnmental

practices in geacral, and in shortcomings of both the Dre-

pariment of Commerce and the Patent Offzét itself.

How about the Palent Bar? ‘A distinguished member of.
the group in this room this morning wrale to. me several
So___rmuwouznun_n.maonmo_sun_ ings: e

"My own feshing is that the patlent profession — _. no

forward thinking, no ssif-policiag and ro effective spokes-

man — is the major cause of the decline and ereates the
opporiunity of not for antitrust (meaning th: Depart-.
ment of Fustice) to work on.”

1 am not so sure that that misses (ie mark. In many
;uvonz 1 believe soul-ssarching would reveal to us that we
in the patent profession are traditionally guilty of wnncl-
vision; that we are resistant [0 criticism, and reloclant 1o
change: and that we have greal difficelty in amiving at a
consensus. This ast point was dramatically demanstrated
by Lhe testimony at the Senate last Seplember jn connee-
fion with Senatar Hart's Bill 5,1321. On principal issues
such as mm_..n.ana. Ennnn&:wm Bm__.__nzm:nn Tees, nn_.ninu

P . and the Iike, vicws

and
anecould imagine.

were 4% red and varied as any-




and absent the abilily of the professicn to agrée on programs, .
negalivism 1akes over, and very little ‘gets done, After a.
ceztain amount of 1hat, and as public i_rnpatienoc'incr:ases_. E

somecbody outside our profession who, doesn't know .our

- problams, doesn’t understand our problsms, and doesn’t

really know the situation, decides to mave and then offers:

his propasals. Then, of course, we as pmf:ssmnals shoot
therm down!

So the only word that the public gets Trom s — the. only .
. word that the Cangress gets fram us — is critical and negative, .. .

*In just this way, we have earned, you sée, thé reputation of

being wholly reactionary and obstructionist, to the pmnl .

Where Congrcssrnan Owens, for example, sp:zks of “mas-
sive resistance 10 change by the organized patent bar™,

The fact that charges of fraud are so frequently and care-.
fessly raiscd by patent lawyers can hardly be thought of as
helpful — particularly ai a time when the patent sysiem

needs 24 the support ard help it can get. On the contrary, .

such practices often fuel lhe ﬁrn of criticism. Ccmsrcsr
man Owens, for pisg, his 1
Senator Harts Patent R.:fclrm Bill, flatly stated that “1he
candor and good faith of the apphcnnls and their cuuns:l
are noit always all tha they should be.”

iLack of cundor and pood faith cannot b condoned
But neither can the indiscriminate and routme levelling - of
such :harges’

¥=s5, part of the reason we're in such a_mess is that many..

©f us — in just such ways as these — havz been fouling our
own nest.

By doing things we should not do, and by fanhng 10 do

things we should do, we of the pateat bar who aught to be
part of the solutien,
problem.

have made nurselves‘ pan of .the,

1

*Well, absent a clear voice speaking for the profession, . . ...

recent ‘erpsouth case, for- example, the Sugreme Court
cleadly based irs Bolding of nonsinffingemeat on an inter-
pretation -of our palem laws" which was bused on just this

- view, end expressed injust such lerms.

And Seaator Hart, in recently introducing his computsery
licensing. bitl 5.2287, opened his introductery remarks with
the .stalement that “The patent licensing system in this
country taday looks like the Joscr in 2 batraom brawl, The
bandaids, “gauze palches and wrappings pretty much dis-
guise the form undemeath.™. -

When Caongress and the Counts can hold such views of
our patent- system and our-licznsing practices, it's pretty
glear that we're in troubls up to Gute necks!

. How abous mduslry" Un.fnrtum!:l}, industry is not with-

" out its faults. ‘Too tmany bad actars have done too many
-.bad things; and thcough patent practices ineluding misuse,

cartels and fraud have made 2 very unhappy kind of puhlic

~record, Hartford Empire, National Lead, ICl, Telﬁcyl.‘.line_

- . Singer and Union-Camp -2re just a few of the situations

Weil, how about the Justice Department? 1 must say .-

that despite my high regard and great respect for many of
1he fine lawyers of this Department whom [ have known and

waorked with, many of their views, in my judgment, arc not,. . -

entirely sound, They seem to me 1o suffer from what Judge
Jesome Fraok, of the Second Circuit Court of appeals ance
characierized 25 “stonopoly phobia™

For whatever teason or reasons, their attijude tuward -

patents seems to be one of jealousy, Jear and’ suspicion.
They are very consciovs, for example, that the Pafent O

fice butdget is more than twice as Jatge as the sim of the. .

budgets of the Antitrust Division and 1be Federal Trade
Commission.

: that come 10 'mind, Thns: are lhmgs that prople know about

and remembsar, .-

The drug industry,in pamcnlar. has a very bad image,
In largs part,-this results from pricing practices. Ong¢ basic
difficulty herc'is that the public usually fails to appreciate
the high cost of ‘R&D in 1his field which is essantial to
progress, and that only-the relatively few successful praducts
enable this expense to be borns. Another difficulty js that the

. matter of -heaith- care and ‘drug prices has become one of

- tremendous political inl:r:sz — and hence a peliticat’ foots

- ball in varions ways.

- One current illustration s most enlightening. The French
patents covering Ampicillin owned by the Beecham Group
of Englang are being deliberately infringed by a French com- -

-pany with-the bléssing 6T the Frenck Goverament. This re-

sults from the fact that the drug sclls in France for S{0.90,

- as against §2.98 in England. The French naturally regard this
..as pulting:them at an unfair disadvantage. Bul the reason

for such pricing is that the British Government is antificially

..depressing 1he: peice in Engiand So logically and under-

Marcover, they seem to be smiteen, a5 are many others.' :

by the fact that a high percentags — 50% or more — of
lsigated patents are held invalid. Because they do not truly,

understand the mezning of such Tigures and praoject them

into a massive indictment of aif our issued patems, they

are understandably hostile 10 many arrangements predicated

on patents. For such reasens shey so frequently and fecvently
— with the missionary zeal of the. true belitver — anack
ticensing arrangements involving lemiterial, field ‘ot other
such limitations.

That they are seeing this entire scene in 2 grossly dis-
torted way is not a deterrent, but a spur, to their atracks on
ficensing practices we know to bt both justifiable and es-
sential. But.given their assumption that the statutory pre-
sumption of validity is really only a myth, then one can see
the basis of their contern,

They secm 10 be jealous, tod — in a way that surprised
me ~— of what one of them ealied the “wordsmanship” of
the Patent Bar. And so it is that when we engage in dialogue
or negotiations with them, we often find them very uptight
Ena way that makes progress very diffieult,

Unfortunately, many of the Courls and many members
of the Congress tend (o adopt she views and to follow the
tead of the Department of Justice in trealing patents as odiots
monapnlics which conflict with the public interest. In the

U Lystem.

-logically - and- understandably the Freach say

standably . the- Bescham Gmup is obliged lo rzcoup their
expenses -and to make their profits elscwhere! But equally
“not here!™
As we can see, then, ‘such price discrepancies are apt

ko be invoked by covatries (such as Frarce in this case)

and by members of our own Congress {zuch as Senator Nel-
son, -for example), as evidence of overcharging. And such

. “evidence? then tends to be used as the basis for compulsary

licensing. _selting price ceilings, toleraling patent piracy
or otherwise inhibiting the normal, necessary and effective
operation of a vital l'.nduslr)‘ and a vital patent and licensing

- Obyi

Iy, publu: under of this and praetically

_all ‘other - -aspetts of our situatien is horribly inadequalc.

In this connection, even the most respecied of our media are
hardly helpful. Let me read ta’you, for example, one jl-
Justrative patagraph from a recent Business Beek editorial,

“The ‘Administration’s Patent Bil} does manage 10

grapple with a2 main delect in the palent system, its

slowness, Speed alter aill is important to competitive
survival it world markets. A nation whose patent pro-
¢esses can take upward of 1wa years can :asxly be beaten
te the technological draw by :ompames in nations with
fasicr administrative reflexes™

This is sheer, unadulterated noasense!

Let us turn now, for the minute or two that remains, to the
sequence of recent events which have reflected these various
influences and attitudes.

Since the (986 Presidential Commission Report, we have
simply diddled and fiddled, Successive waves af legislalive
proposals have been advanced and drbaled. But nothing
much has happened.

The kind of disagreemem within our own patent circles



X mmmrauon failed for Years to come kp i
revision bill of.\ts pwn, A1 long last, and impatiently, Seaz1ors

. McClellan, and Scott wrotc a letter to the President’'on
Scpiember 21,1972, urging him to “rencw efforis to

. about:that,. Ang’ so; 1 think, was Tom Kaup
. Allorncy-General in charge of the AntiTrust Div
dirccted the Justice: ¢ffort’ in connection with thése ‘ask’ -

. thereafter,. the Parent- Qffice was without a  Comai
~. 10 head the Commerce cifort. Recently, the General Coltnsel
. nf the :Department- of: Commerce pornted these things out,
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ta. which 1 have refsrred is “pretty well duplicated” by dis
agreements and dilferences acising in Goverament. For ex.

.-..ample, the Depanment ‘of Fustice and- the Depariment - of
Commerce fought:to: a stand-still in the 197 hearings on

the Scott-amendments; and becauss of that conflict, 1he Ad
ith & patens law

Formulate an admmu(mmn Position o’ patent law tevision™,
Finally, then, 1he Admmls:ranun [ senuusu. 0 pruvﬂ

one, and- this-fed te the h of a-joint Con

. Justice. task -force efforr, under White House puidance and

pressure exsreised by Lenncth Dam of the Office of Manag:-

- meatand Budget.

-Unfortunately, 1. was ohhg:d to leave that entérprise”

about a vear ago, ;ust a5 we were beginning to make what
looked like encouraging progress, 1 was-and am really sorry

n,*wha

- foree aperations:: He wrote to me imawdiately thereafier,
and expressed- the deepest regret abaut ‘my l:avmg “I am

" confident”™ he said “thac if we'd been able to continue, our

relationship it would have beem most plcasant and that the

publicwell:” - -
-:The sad lruth is-that an:r I left there just:wasn't any

or the Commercé deams who' had had any practical ex-
. periencein the patent field. Morcover, for many meonths

obsening that jn consequence, in the Whits House dis-
cussions, "many issues were being #¥wfplved in the dark™
JIt-ways agains! that background and on such a basas :hat_

" the Administeation Bill was drafied and presenlcd

11 is very bad; and very unrealistic in ma
_Should we worry? Indeed we'should!

~ But is. that ba!l uha!s really beforz lh: Cung::ss for

acuon" No; hecause 2 rnﬂrkLp of that bill — wi
-t -appear on the scene and is fong overdue -
il modify itin many pamculars and hopefufly [
- But we don't know yet what it's going 10 be,
. So, there we are'— in a mess,

It isn't Quitetlear 1o’ me how we are gomg o get_out
cfl! norin whaz shape.

But it is reasomably clear to me, however, that if we ’
. are-to get ot of-it, 2nd in:good shape, we'll have to, learn”

from atr mistakes and shortcomings of the | pasl and :hal we
mll in the futurs, have to 2pply those lessans wéll.
-, Thank you very much ror \'onr pntlenee md mleml

- About. the Spmker The Honorab-'e Robert Gomc.&m'k

.lorrnpr Commrxsmnu af. Parems v.3.A.

| Assistant

body involved. in the task ferce effort, on either the Justice

foner

results of .our ctTens toward reform would have served the "
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‘April 23,1980 -

The Honorable Birch Bayh
363 Russell Senate Office: Bulld:l.ng
Washington, D.C. 20510 -

| aS: '£.2079, Independent Patent and
: : Tradanark Act

Dear Senator Bayh-

At the cenclusion of the Janvary 24 hea.rmgs on the sub}ect bill,
you requested the former Comiissioners who had-testified to respord to
four questions, which later were set- forth as part of your 1etter of
February 13. I respond to t'nese quest].ons as ‘follows:

1. Mo, I fJ.rmly believe t'nat the interests of the; ?1‘0, the
patent and trademark system and the nation as a whole
would be far better served if the PTO were an independent
agency as provided in 8.2079.

2, My experience has been similar in all material respects
‘to that of other formér Conmissioners who have reported
their difficulties in dealing with budget problems under
the present arrangement. (see further comment below)

3. No, I do not believe thet anything short of the ‘chaviges
prioposed in 8.2079 can accawplish the: objectives of that
bill, Neither uprading the rank of the Cammissioner .
within the Comperce Department nor providing for direct-
PTO camunication with Congress and OMB would overcome -
the basic problem of dominaticn and control of the PTO

- by 'the Commerce Department. . o

4. 'As_fc_nr: t_he presentation made at the hearing on behalf ‘of
" the Commerce Department, urging that the present arrange—
ment be continued, I can only say that this presentation
seemed to me in itself a most compelling damnstratmn of
the need for change! :
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As T listened to it, I could not help but wonder how any-
one at PTO could hope to work successfully with, or for

or through, any person holding the views then stated, or
having the negative attitude and lack of perception which
that testimony sc starkly revealed. The total lack of
respect for the Office which permeated the speaker's
remarks was particularly appaliing, as virtually precluding
any satisfactory working relationship between the PTO and
the Commerce Department, whether under the present arrange-
ment or any variant of it.

¥or was that presentation an aberirant departure: from Com—.
merce policy; it was wholly in keeping with it. Thus:
Aszistant Secretary Baruch on March 27 - with Commissioner
Didmond sitting right beside him, and powerless to spesk -
testified that "it would be a disaster™ if the PIO were to

be made an independent agency: and that the nation "cannot =
afford a system that would issue only perfect patents." o

-Such statements leave no doubt ag to.the arrogance of .atti-—
tude,.-ad . the lack of.any real concern.or understanding on

the part of the Cammerce Department with respect o the PTO.: -
They eloguently proclaim that the presc-mt ar:cangemant can-—
not a.nd rnust not cmtmue. :

At this point I would comment further concerning the PTIO's budqet Bro-
cess difficulties urder the Drese.nt axrange'fer\t, as, referred to in Questicn
2 above. . .

As the testimony and supplementary submdssions of - former Cammissioners
have rade clear, a fundamental. .concern in this respect is that the PTO has
not had direct and effective comunication with Congress and OMB. Illus—
trative PTO experiences with which I am fam.'l_llal’.‘ pomt D the dlfflculti.es
and penalt:.es resultmg frcm th.1.s sltuatlon

For many years, the unsatlsfactory state of the P‘IO reference files has
been recognized as a major factor in patent invelidity, the unreliability of
patentablllty and infringement studies, and a widespread loss of public con- -
fidence in the gatent system. At the same time, there has, 1éng been a con-
stant cry from a1l sides, for the FIO to "ccmputerlze" 1ts search files and
the examining process. i .

The problem thus posed is difficult, to be sure, but not insoluble. Yet
despite determined and persistent efforts of the PTO, it has not been solved.
Why?
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The basic difficulty as to both aspects of the problem-has been J'_nsuf-
ficient. funding to caxry or, . respons:.bly and effectlve'l.y, ooe_ratlons at’
three levels: .

._.(i) ‘ "catcha_ng up" to. overcone: def:.c:.enc:.es in the fn.les, IR

{id) "keepmg up" to mamta:.n reasonable sta:ﬂa_rds of cuxrency,
ocmplete_ness and aocuracy a.nd .

{:i,iij "'toolang up" to develop new systems and procedu.res ut:Li z:mg
- camputers and other advanced technolOQlES-‘- L

Desplte the lack of adequate fund:.ng, the PTO has been constralned to 7
try %0 do, as best it can, all of these t?'unqs ak once Not su.:prlsmgly,
it has fa_mled to do any. of them xeally well :

I beJ.J.eve these s]mrtccxm.ngs are ba51cally the result of the lack of:
commumication referred to above. The Congress, understandably, has been
calling on the PIC for improved results and more efficiency, such as would
result from the develomment of new preocedures -based on proven new technel-
ogies. Yet, without adecuate presentatlon of the PIO case, “it has not appro-
priated the funds requ:l_red to make such improvement poss:l.ble. Accordingly,
the PTC has not been in position to develcop or acguire the haraware and skiilleg
required. hY

The inability of the PTO to convey effectively to Congress and QMB the
nature of its problem and the means required for its solution, can \be attri~
buted in largest part, I believe, to the domination and control of the PTO
by the Commerce Department, which has cons:.stently frustrated the efforts of
the PTO to be heard. Q

This-is hardly any w11dly zmagmed scenarlo. Far’ from J_t w:r.tness the
brazen efforts of ‘Commercein recent months o deny, to the Senate Comittes
on the Judiciary, the informaticn it ‘specifically requested from the Ccm— '
missioner concernmg operatmg problems and needs of the PTOC..

Sadly, such "nmzzlmg" of ‘the PIO has long been establlshed Camierce
policy. It has denied to the PTO the opportunity to ‘obtain the understanding !
ard support of the Cdngress which is s0 essential %0 the PTO's proper perfor-'
mance of the duties with which it is charged; yet Commerce has néever acknowl-"
edged its own responsibility for PTO shortcomings which the Depa.rtment s m-."n
policies and practices either caused ‘or exacerbated. .

A cage in point: When the PIC attempted to "modernize" its classﬁlcat_'n.\og
and searching systems about ten years ago, it was ohllged, because of the

“unavailability of funds for that purpose, to finance 'its program with funds

originalty appropriated to meet other needs. Otherwise stated, the PTO. efforts -

N,
N
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to develop computerized classification and searching systems were largely
supported at the expense of the traditicnal search files; and these became
increasingly unsatisfactory as to currency, completeness and reliability.
When this latter situation reached a. critical point, it was necessary to
abandon mest of that development program, which was still far short of com-
pletion, in order to salvage and restore the tcadltlonal flles

The Cmnnerce mterpretatlon of this chﬁpter in P'IO hlstory would
undoubtedly be that of "poor management.” My own view is that the PTO,
motivated by reed and dedication, struggled in a valiant effert to somehow
overcome -its- problems. Meanwhile; its ostensible protector and guardian,
Cammerce, seamed neither to mxierstand nor care enough to pe]:m:.t the PO to
p:esent 1ts case to “the Congress

Sufflce it to -say that the madequacy of these tracht:.onal search f:ales
Ais still a major prohlem, and. that effective modernization of f£iling and
searching. operaticons ;Ln the PTO 1.5 almcst as far - away today as it was te.n
vears ago. o .

In addition to the four qQuesticns discussed above, a further guestion
was. posed as to how independent agency status for the PTO might be justified
as agamst the clalms of other units of the. government to like status. :

. That question has alxeady been addressed in Commissicner schuyler's
testimony and. statement, recounting the history of the Office as a component
of, at varicus times, the Department of State, Agriculture, Intericr and
Commerce. Comisgioner Banner's letter of Janwary 29, 1980 emphasized the
Spacial respehsibilities and quasi-judicial functions of the Office.. Com-
missicner Dann's.letter of February 11, 1980 further discussed the spegial .
statutory status of the PTO, and the long history of -its egsentially. autonomous
operatz.on.

Ioonm}rmthevs.ewssoexpressed Sare further aspects of the matfer

micht. be worth mtmg in this connectlon, and I cffer the follomng chservations
ooncem:.ng ‘them:

v
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1. .. It was perceptively noted many . years. Jo that- the
o patent law "stands’at the cross—roads of science, law -
,and busmess' " ) .

At Jeast two of thise dJ.SClplmes - scignce and
law = are wirtually polar: opmltes The first relates
t0. the réalm of exact physical s¢ience, and the latter
o that of inexact socizl science, The Patent Office

. -must cope with matters invariably-involving the joint
-application of: hz.ghly spec:Lal:Lzed expertlse m both of
. these fields. "

Tt is required of the Office that it perform these
functicns in such mammer as tc fulfill the Constituticnal
) purpos i~ namely, to "pramote the progress of the useful
arts,” This means, of course, that the chjectives and
activities of the Office must serve the nation's :Lnterests
w:Lth rewect to mdustrlal J.nrm;atlon and the econcmy

: What is more, its functions with' r%pect e both pat~
ents and trademarks are principally of a quasi-judicial .
nature, as noted above, a.nd concern the grant of J.rrrportant o
property rights.

... .. So.far as I am aware; there-is no other unit of govern- '
‘menk, involving anything like this extraordinary combinatiof:
of ‘characteristics and respongibilities, which is not S
7.a.'l_ready accorded independent. agency s‘tatus '

T20 0 The uru.que anc't mult:l.—faceted aspects of the Offlce 'Dm- .
kably accounts in large part for its organizational history
as a migratory misfit. In vwhatever department of govern: s
ment: it has ‘beer” placed fromi time to tm_;e oyer the years, _:Lt '
-has apparently always been "different” and unccxnfortahly out
of place.

- - The PTO's difficuities -of-the last forty five years -
T w'lth which I have been familiar are, I believe, both reflec—""
tiongs. and inevitable consequences. of this chronic dissonance.”

Not surprisingly, .comparable problems are c:cn‘mor!ly enoeuntered in pri-
vate industry: Where in the corporate orgam.zatlon is the Patent Deparurent b
to be placed and to whom shall J.t report'>

A study by the National Industr:l.al Conference Board some years ago
reported that in about one third of U.S. corporations the patent department
reported to the chief legal officer; in another one third, to the chief
technical officer; and in the remaining third, to the chief executive officer.
Mo general conclusions were drawn in the NICB report as to which arrangement
was to be preferred.
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My own corparate patent axpe.rlance over a Spa.n of more.than thirty
years, has involved operation in each of these three diffeérent ways. I
have found that in departments reporting to technical executlves, the
legal aspects of their operations. tend to .suffer; and that.in those
reporting to legal execuh.ves, techrucal aspects tend to suffer.. In
either cage, ther‘ was a oontmu:l.ng sense of pressure and mbalance.

The best arrangement I fou.nd, was that wh:Lch involved reporting
to the chief executive.. It was my.experience that here the patent cper-
ation could strike the proper balance between technical and legal consid-
eraticns, and ach;Leve the:u: appmpr:l.ate correlat:.on and ooordmatlon.

In this- sz.tuatlon, the patent department’ could perform 1ts ‘complex
and sophisticated functions more effectively, unencumbered by ‘the influence
of special or parochial interests of either technical or legal supervisors.

Tt could do this with improved corientation to the overall operations
and objectives of the corporation. This arrangement brought the patent
cperation more dlrectly in touch with top management with respect t& cor—
porate policy, program planning, budgeting, and accountablllty for perfor-
mance. It produced superior overall results. :

With respect to petents, I have found.corporate and governmental man-—
agement matters to. be strikingly parallel. -Based on experience in both
areas, I believe that ih goverrment ag in industry, the inherent nature of
patent activity requires that the PTO be permitted to perform its special
and uvnigue functions free of the restrajints and handlcaps imposed by Come-
merce Department damnatlon and oontrol. . )

I believe that the Offlce should be establlshed as an irdependent
agenoy, and as such report in effect to the Congress. - Specifically, I urge
the enactment of 5.2079. :

The history of the Office seems to.corifirm the wisdom of this course.
It has performed at its best when it enjoved substantial autoncuy and
independence. .. Its problems grew, and were exacerbated increasingly, as it
was deprived of autonomy and independence.

The time has come to reverse that trend ... and to restore the Patent
Office to the stature it deserves, so that it may make in full measure the
contribution to the security, strength and progress of thls nat:.on of which
it is capable. ) ‘
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N As the reaord shows “and the test:mony of. Ocmmssmners Spannmq

B ;flfty years. of experxence una,mmously confirms: there is no o‘thex way

' : L Respectfully, S S
N s \.-,.r WW“ SN

Robert Gottsc

== chnora.ble John c. Danforth e
g Ebmer Ccrmu.ssmners EE '

- :CtmwayP Coe
‘Robert C.-Watson

. '_‘Wllllam B. Schuyler, o, :
ey Marshall Dann
Donald W. Banner

Senator Bavm. Mr. Ladd‘? Co '

"Mr.. Lapp. Mr. Chalrman, 1 have no prepared statement My
remarks will be very brief. :

Senator Bays.-We will put the entlre statement of all you gentle-
men in the record, so if you Want to encapsuhze 1t we Wlll appreci-
ate it. -

Mr. Lanp, I don’t think extended remarks on my part are neces-
sary because you will find among’ the people before you now a
general homogeneity and consistency of views. You may find differ-
ent historical aspects and events which are emphasmed by different
mtnesses :

My name' is Dawd Ladd and I was Commissioner of Patents
during the Kennedy administration. It was during my tenure that
the Office of Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology was
created, and I will have some comments about that in a moment.

I Would like to make just one brief comment in relation, Mr.
Chairman, to a statement which appears in your extended intro-
ductory statement to the effect that the country is at the moment
living on “grandfather’s money” and Senator Danforth’s statement
of the need to 1mprove mcentwes for technologlcal innovation in
this country. -

~Qur’ nnmedlate busmess at hand of course, is to dlscuss whether
the‘ Patent Office should be made an 1ndependent agency, but this
has been a very encouraging meeting to hear statements from both
of you about the need of .encouraging technological innovation and
improved -productivity. This is an urgent problem. Business'Week,‘
in the current edition indicates the American standard of living in
real termis has now begun to decline; and so I appeal to you and to
the other Members of the Congress and the Government to get on
with- the business of stimulating thé creation of wealth through
increased productivity. The efficient operation of the Patent and
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Trademark Office and the patent system are an important element
in encouraging research and innovation

I think the comment of protecting turf is relevant. In all of the
proposals for reorganization I have ever heard, in private industry
or Government, I have never heard someone whose staff was pro-
posed to be reduced or whose budget was proposed to be reduced to
come back 2 or 3 days later and say, “By George, I think you are
right, I think these employees, these functions, and these funds
should be taken away from me.” I have never heard that happen.

On the other hand, the testimony that you hear from the people
who are here before you now is for no purpose other than strength-
ening this extremely important American institution and offered
with no ax to grind.

Reference was made to the experience of Commlssmners of Pat-
ents as sometimes representing an inside or limited- view.-Yet for
example, Donald Banner was chief patent counsel of Borg-Warner
Corp., and C. Marshall Dann was chief patent coungel of the Du
Pont Corp. It is unlikely they did not get a broad view of the
function of the patent system and the PTO as the consumer of the
product as well as from the point of view of the1r management of
the institution which presents the product.

Senator Bave. If you would just permit me to mter;ect a
thought, I think I probably asked Deputy Assistant Secretary
Wolek the wrong question. I should have asked him if he ever tried
to apply for a patent. Instead, I asked him if he had ever been to
the Patent Office and if he was familiar with its workmgs _

I must say I have talked to a lot of folks, the consuming public of
the PTO’s product, and everyone agreed that the Office should be
independent. Excuse me for interrupting.

Mr. Lapp. During my tenure the relations of the Patent Office
with the Department of Commerce were excellent until the Office
of the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology was created.
Until that time, we had the full support of Secretary Hodges and
the Under Secretary, Mr. Gudeman, and that support extended
also to the Bureau of the Budget, and to the committees of Con-
gress. And I think that that direct contact with the OMB and the
congressonal committees is evidence of this, and the closeness with
which the Senate Subcommittee on Patents, Trademarks and
Patent. Rights followed the activities of the" Patent Office, I would
point out that when the Patent Office conducted, under the chair-
manship of Earl Kintner, a former Chairman of the Federal Trade
Commission, a comprehenswe management survey of the Patent
Office, the Senate - subcommittee published the report of that
survey as a committee print. In the annual reports of the commit-
tee at that time there were commendations of efforts of the Patent
Office to improve-its administration and its functlon and those
reports, of course, are a matter of record.

Likewise, our relationship with the- Bureau of the Budget was
close. For example, the Examiner from the Bureau 'of the Budget
frequently - sat in on our internal planning and policy sessions
within the Patent Office. On occasion the Examiner from the
Office of Management: and . Budget—then the Bureau - of the
Budget—would actually go Wlth us on our management retreats for
the Patent Office; . . " - - SRR :
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If I may direct some comments to Mr. Wolek’s observatiors made
about the deficiencies in"budget presentations recently froin ‘the
Patent Office. If such deficiencies as he describes have appeared,
the budget officers are not doing their job and should be replaced. I
don’t know whether those statements of Mr. Wolek are correct; but
in any event, that does not necessarily bespeak the necessity of a
review. at the Department of Commerce level.

I can say parenthetically at the time I was there the budget -
officer for the Patent Office was regarded as a model within gov-
ernment, received a governmentwide award for excellence and was
highly regarded within the Bureau of the Budget. He was also one
of the finest men I knew, have ever known.

In earlier years in the discussion about Whether or not the
Patent and Trademark Office should be made an independent
agency, the argument is sometimes made that the Department can
lobby more effectively for the interest of the agency within the
Federal establishment than the agency can itself. On the basis of
the experience I have mentioned, I do not believe that to be true.

The statement has been sometimes made that the only function
of the Department of Commerce is to control policy, not the inter-
nal administration of the office. To that, several points need to be
made. In that kind of a formulation, the only real question is, who
decides ‘what is policy and what is administration? I can tell: you
that the Patent and Trademark Office does not make that determi-
nation. It is made by the Department of Commerce. In the past
that formulation has been interpreted to cover the interference in
contract ‘awards regularly made by: the Patent: and Trademark
Office, the placement of sponsoréd personnel, and the direct inter-
vention in the relatlonshlp w1th the Patent Ofﬁce employees and
their unions. - . T o

That completes my statement Mr Chalrman e

{The followmg letter was subsequently received from Mr Ladd]

s o UNvERSHY oF MIAbr, -
S - Coral Gables, Flm, A_pnl 4, 1980.
Hon. Bmcu BavH, L
Russell Senate Office Building, . Washmgton, D C

- DEAR SENATOR Bayn: This letter responds to your request for further views of the
former Commissioners of Patents who testified January 24,'on 8..2079.

.The Office of the Assistaiit Secretary ‘of Commerce for Science and Technology
was established in 1962, during my tenure as Commissioner of Patents. From the
creation of that new ofﬁce, the fortunes of the Patent Ofﬁce have steadily worsened
to its pregent grievous condition. :

- Commissioner Watson served a long and admu'ed tour of duty 1952-1961.. Thereaf-
ter, the turnover of persons in the post of Commissioner has been rapid, and the
average period of service has sharply declined. It-is not surprising that every hvmg
commissioner has lent his enthusiastic support to S. 2079,

In my view the interests of the Patent and Trademark Office; of- the patent and
tr&adilgl‘ark systems, and of the public, will be vastly better- served if your: bill .is
a
1 say flatly that as long as the Department through an Assmtant Secretary or
otherwise, preempts operating control over the ‘office,’ as ‘it has w1th speclal forces
since 1962, the same sorry results will be obtained.

C’ﬁl\_lothmg short of making the Office independent will restore and remv:gorate the
ice

‘The mission of the Patent Office is unlike that of any’ agency in Commerce or, “for
that matter, unlike any other agency under the supervision of the Assistant Secre-
tary for Science & Technology: adjudication applying statutory standaids and- proce-
dures.to questions of technology: I wholly endorse Commissioner Banner's views
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;presented in his lstter to you of January 30, 1980. The Patent Office should have
the independence and dignity of the quasi- Jud1c1a1 agency it is.

The only argument seriously urged, other than inertia, for housing the Patent
and Trademark Office in Commerce is that Commerce can manage the PTQ better
than the Commissioner of Patents. This is aséerted not proved, nor even supported
. with evidence. It is contrary to the experience of past Commissioners. Before the

e “creation of the Qffice of Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology, Secretary

Hodges and Undersecretary Gudeman allowed the Office substantial autonomy, and
our work prospered, to the approval of the bar and the Congress. The subsequent
story has been laid before your Commitiee by succeeding Commissioners.

The testimony of the former Commissioners.is compelling. If one—or more—were
motwated by unkindly memories of his own experience, does not. the unanimity of
opinion among them speak volumes?

The bill sheuld be enacted.

4 Respectfully, e S

2 o Davip L. Laop,

Professor of Law. -

Senator Bavn. Mr Schuerr'?

Mr. ScuuyrEr. Thank you, Mr. Chalrman Senator Danforth

My name is William Schuyler, I ‘was Commlsswner ‘of Patents
from May 1969 until August 1971.

I have a prepared statement that I have given to the staff and I
would ask that it be incorporated in the record.

Senator BaAvyH. Without obJectlon it w111 be 1nserted at the conc1u~
sion of your testimony. :

Mr. Scauvier. I concur in everythmg that has been sald by my
cglleagues 51tt1ng at the table today and wﬂl try not to repeat any
ofit. -

I was interested in the statement by Secretary Wolek that the
1981 budget is going to reflect some of the:coneerns:that have now
been brought to the forefront. Thatinterest after the fact has
occurred before, but it doesn’t last very long. " -

In the 1950’s, during the period of Commlssmner Watson and
Secretary of Commerce Weeks, I was on a-delegation of about 10
members of the Patent Bar that called on Secretary Weeks. I think
I was then representing the American Bar Association, and our
mission was to try to-persuade the Secretary to mcrease the budget
request for the Commissioner of Patents.

Secretary Weeks was very' sympathetic and: he" sald that he
would be glad to support us, but that his hands were. t1ed by what
was then known as the Bureau of the Budget.”

-So our delegation, without appointment, walked across Pennsyl—
vania Avenue from the Department of Commerce to the Depart-
ment of the Treasury and called on the Director of the Bureau of
the Budget. Be was not available but because of the distinguished
stature—not including myself—of some of the other members of
the delegation, we were. given an audience by a high executive and
he was.quite sympathetic, but he said he couldn’t do much because
he was having difficulties with the Congress. '

So our delegation came here and did persuade the Congress to
increase the appropriations of the Patent Office. .

The Department of Commerce, of course, Secretary Weeks had
been supportive of what we expressed as necessary but that pres-
sure from outside, which is again occurring at the present time, did
not bring results for very long.

I was also interested. in the comment of Secretary. Wolek that
they are conducting or have been conducting a zero-based analysis
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of .the Patent Office When I took office in 1969 ‘my ‘predecessor,
Commissioner Brenner, had laid the groundwork for just such an
analysis and I undertook personally to review every -unit in' the
Patent -Office. from -a zero-base -point of view, and: 1. recall very
vividly-the dedication of the Patent Office staff that Commissioner
Brenner had created for that purpose because iy time was -under
demand during office hours and we worked after hours on -that.
project many; many nights and did-then present to the Department
of Commerce ‘our requests for funds based-on a:zero-base review in
1969 and 1970 long before that became fashlonable in more recent
years e o R R TR O E A e

#Ine my opmlon the Patent Ofﬁce d1d very well in the several
Government ‘departments until 1950. Prior-to 1950, -the ‘Commis-
sioner of Patents derived his authority and respon31b111ty directly
from: the’ Congress, under which he operated: He was responsible to
the Secretaiy in the organlzatlon of the executlve branch but“he
réported to'thé Congress. :

He communicated with the Congress and the Patent and Trade-‘
mark—what was then known as the Patent Office, was performmg
well, the public had confidence in the-patent system, the invest-
ment in “research and development was on’ the increase. But what
happened in’ 1950 was the Reorganmatlon Plan 5,the report of the
Hoover Commission that for some, I think, acmdental reason trahs-
ferred all of the functions; all of the statutory powers of the Com—
m1ss10ner of Patents to, the Secretary of Commerce. ,

At the same'time, the Hoover Commission excepted quasi-judicial
agencies “from “this effort to consolidate functions in the Cabinet
Departments. Why the Patent Office was excluded, I think, was.an
dccident becduse it was called the Patent Office and 1ot the Patent
Commission. I don’t think the people who worked on that looked
carefully enough to find the quasa JudlCIal work that is the main
effort of the Patent Office., .. . :

This idea of not looking’ W1th a_broad” vrew and the 1dea of
pubhshmg and’ studymg studies such as the receiit Domestic Policy
Council Study is not new. In the 1950’s, the President, or the
Secretary of Commerce appointed a hand-picked comnnttee of sci-
entists and patent lawyers to study the use of computers to aid the
Patent Office in its searching effort and that Commlssmn was
headed by Dr. Vannevar Bush, a'scientist Whose name is legend in
the computer. field, and others.. .

-1 happen to have served-on. that commlttee, and that commlttee?
reported among other things, the Patent Office should undertake.a’
regearch effort and should seek the funding to perform the re-
search to see what computers could do to help this.-

Commissioner Ladd, implemented  that by appointing the. first
Asmstant Commissioner of Patents for. Research and Development

-Efforts were - continued by ‘Commissioner Brenner and I:contin-
ued thém, but-that fundmg has now disappeared. T don’t kiiow the
reason. I think there is a fair infererice to be drawn. I wolild like to
relate one personal experlence but ﬁrst let me refer to the hear—;
mgs on the Hart bill. : I

In*1973, when I was: testlfymg on other matters before Senator'
Hart “again, representing the American Bar . Association, the
American Bar Association did not have a position on the Independ—
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ent- Agency bill and I explained there was no position. I was asked
my personal view and I stated that at that time my relations with
the Secretary. of Commerce had been such that:I was one of those
who thought that the-Patent Office was better represented by a
Cabinet-level officer than it would be as an independent agency.
I have changed that v1ew because of things that have happened
since.. - -
Senator BAYH Mr Schuyler, COuld T mterrupt 10ng enough to say
we have. .just been:notified of a vote. I feel very bad about this, but
the facts of the matter:are, -we are going to-have to vote here in
~ about 7% or 8 minutes. Once we get over there, the likelihood- of
- our .coming back without keeping: you gentlemen waiting, is rela-
tively remote. If you. could encapsulize and let Mr. Brenner have.a
chance to summarize his statement I. would appreciate it. I am
going to ask, if you have no objection, that you answer a couple of
questions that I have in writing to.get them on the record.

My colleague, Senator Danforth would hke to ‘ask- some ques-
tions.

Mr. SCHUYLER Thank you, su' 1 think all of us understand the
need-under which you work. . :

-1 will conclude with ene personal experience. While 1 was Com-
missioner of Patents,.Senator McClellan introduced a bill to make
the Commissioner of Patents an Assistant Secretary of Commerce.

The Secretary of Commerce informed me that he would support
“that bill and the bill passed the Senate. I made.the :Secretary’s
wishes known to the staff. The bill passed the Senate and went to
the House, and was, called for. hearmgs in_the House on, rather
short notice.

The Secretary of Commerce was, out of the country and the staff
of the Assistant Secretary of Science and Technology, I now know.
by firsthand statements to me, went to the Office o Management
and Budget and established an administration position against the
bill which would have converted the Commissioner to an Assistant
Secretary of Commerce. So that administration position was pre-
,sented to the House and the matter did not come out of commlttee

“T'will turn it over to' Mr. Brenner.

[The prepared statement of Mr Schuyler, Wlth responses to ert-
ten questlons, follows]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF WILLIAM E Scmxn.sn, JR

My name is William E. Schuyler, Jr.,, and-1 am a artner in the law firm of
Schuyler;: Birch, McKie: & Beckett in Washmgton,. .C. Since’ 1940 I have been
engaged in- the pract:ce of patent and trademark law. From May 1969 to August

. 197 1 I was Comm.lssmner of Patents of the United States S

TI'[E PATENT OFFICE BEFDRE WORLD WA.R II-

In 1931 I was employed asg a part—tlme office bcy in a patent law firm in Washing-
ton, D.C. At that time the Patent Office was housed in its own building bounded by
Tth and 9th Streets and F and G Streets which:it had occupied for almost & century.
That building was.specially built- for the Patent Office and was one of the first
buildings built jn the Nation’s Capitol for an agency other than a department of
cabinet rank. Both the building and the Patent Office as an organization were
recognized’ ag' long- standing mstltutmns of ‘the Government of the Unlted States.:
Then, the positions of patent examiners were prestigious and:the examining corps:
was composed .of men of dignity held in high esteem.. Positions in the patent
examining corps were sought after and an examination was required in order to
select -those best quahﬁed because there were, many more apphcants than there
were pogitiong,. ;
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*:Commissioners' of Patents’ wére selected from leaders’ of-the-?atent bar.: Commis-:
sioner Thomas E. Robertson served from 1921 to 1923 and was 'followed by Commis--
sioner Conway P. Coe who.served from 1933 to 1945, oo o LT
~“There were reasons:why the Patent: Office was -a highly’ respected:agency in:the-
Executive Branch -of the Government..To begin:with, -the patent’ system had its
origin by the inclusion ‘of :Article 1, § 8-in  the Constitution in-1787, followed:ih 1790
by requests from Presidént:Washington for -enactment of législation, and the pas-
sage of the first patent law' by the Congress. In thé inning patents were-issued
only by a patent-board:comp of the Secretary. of State, the Secrétary.of War,
a.ntf the Attorney General. Those three positions were occupied by Thomas Jeffer-
son,;. Henry Knox, and Edmund: Randelph; all of whom tbg’ether -with. President
George Washin‘ﬂ]on gigned ‘the first patents, Originally the State Department was
charged with administering:the patent laws and by 1802 -the Patent Office had been
established as ‘a separate unit in the Department of State. From 1839:to 1862 the
Patent ‘Office served. as a predecessor for the Department of icultire, and:from
1959 until 1970 respbnsibilitiy for copyright matiers was assigned to the Commission-:
er of Patents. Jurisdiction of trademarks began in 1870.-" .. Sk e s
- Although the Patent Office was first in the State Department, transferred in 1849
to'the Department of Interior when that department was first organized, and finally
in 1926 transferred to the Departrent of Commerce;.it always enjoyed the status of
an independent agency which was almost entirely autonomous. Responsibility and
authority were given to the: Commissioner -of Patentsdirectly by the Congress
through statutory enactments. The Cabinet officers heading up those departments
of the Government did not exercisé policy control over the Commissioner of Patents.

Just last week I had occasion to review the legislative history of the Plant Patent
Act and was interested to see a comprehensive statement by the then Commissioner
of Patents, Thomas E. Robertson. That statement by the Commission of Patents was
transmitted to the Congress by the Secretary of Commerce but it was merely a
letter of transmittal endorsing thie statement by the Commissioner..

In 1932 the Patent Office was moved from its original building to the north end of
the new Department of Commerce building at 14th and Constitution ‘Avenue. The
entire north end of that building was specifically designed for the Patent Office, and
cut in stone over one of the entrances was Lincoln’s quotation: “The patent system
adds the Tuel of interest to the fire of genius”. Great ¢are was taken to provide the
patent examiners with the quiet atmosphere and privacy essential to the proper
performance of their duties which involve mainly the analysis of applications for
patent and the comparison of claimed inventions to what has previously been
revealed in the patent and scientific literature. For the next decade, until World
War II, the Patent Office continued to serve the needs of the nation and the
business and scientific communities by providing the incentives for the investment,
of time, mone,l\fl and effort so necessary to continue to encourage the research and
development that have brought the United States into its position of technological
leadership. However, heginning with World War II, the situation began to deterio-
rate and has continually worsened. . _ : LT

_ THE PATENT OFFICE AFTER WORLD WAR I~ | ' '~ °
+To:make room for war agencies, the Secretary of Commerce:decided-that-the:
Patent Office would have to vacate the northern end of the Department: of:Com-
merce -building. The patent examiners were transferred to. a renovated .tobacco
warechouse in Richmond, Vi.l;ginia. Even in 1947 ‘when the Patent Office’ was. re-
turned to the Department of Commerce building, it was not to' the specially -de-:
gigned space ‘in the northern end of that building but into very crowded quarters
scattered in other areas. By 1947, portions of the Department of Commerce with
more influence than the Patent Office had moved into the northern end:of- the
tI),uilding and-could not be displaced, at least by the influence of the Commissioner of.

atents. T R L ‘ Do e .
~ Even then, the Commissioner-of Patents and the Patent Office remained autono-
mous' and, on matters: of policy, independent of the Secretary of Commerce. But the
report of the Hoover:Commisgion .in 1950 which resulted in reorganization Plan No.
5, transferred to the Secretary of Commerce all of the functions of the Commission--
er of Patents and the Patent Office, although that same plan exempted from its
implementation hearing examiners. employed by the  Départment of Commerde, the
Civil Aeronautics :Board:and the Inland Waterways Corporation which were like-
wise then in the Department of Commerce. Had the Patent Office been identified as
the Patent Commigsion, one can surmise that it too might have avoided the disaster
of reorganization plan5 because the Hoover Commission deliberately refrained from:
dealing with such quasi judicial and quasi’ legislative bodies as the Federal Power
Commission, the Interstate Commerce Commission, the Federal Trade Commission;
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the U.S. Maritime Commission, the Securities and: Exchange Commission, and the
. Federal’ Communications €ommission, ‘Nothing was-stated: in-the report .of the.
- Hoover Commission to support transfer of the statutory.authority of the Commis-:
sioner of Patents to the Secretary of Commerce. Nevertheless, the vesting of these
funections from the Secretary of:=Commerce was codified by amendment of 36 US.C.
§ 3 in .19~ SubSequently Commissioner Watson persuaded:Secretary :of Commerce
Weaks to 'sponsor legislation: which would accord to: the Commissioner of Patents:
the exclusive right to.perform his statutory duties without interference: from the
%e(g-et?ry;of Commerce, -but that-legislation: was smothered:by:-the Bureau of the.
udget, - . i B T RT A SO LU R
- In 1962 the Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Science and Technology acquired :
jurisdiction -over: several bureaus in the Department. of Commerce- including the:
ureau of Standards, the Environmental Science Services Admininstration (Weath-:
er Bureau) and the Patent Office. The Secretary of Commerce; acting under the:
authority .of Reorganization Plan-5, delegated the the Assistant Secretary for.Sci-
ence and Technology certain:statutory functions of the Commissioner of Patents.
With the establishment of the National Oceanographic and -Atmospheric: Adminis-.
tration, the Assistant Secretary for.Science and Technology lost his major compo-
nent; namely, the Envirorimental Science Services Administration, leaving only:the.
Bureau of Standards and the Patent:Office as substantial entities...- ..-.. .. .
Coad S THE:PATENT OFFICE. OF. THE 1970'S . - . L
This chain of events in effect established the Assistant Secretary for Science and
Technology as the Commissioner of Patents so far as policy making decisions are
concerned and left the Commissioner merely as an executive to administer the
Patent Office. All proposed legislation or comments on proposed legislation had to
first be cleared with the Office of the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technol-
ogy, next with the General Counsel of the Department of Commerce, then the
Secretary of Commerce, and finally by the Office of Mangement and Budget. Any-
thing that remained could then be communicated to the Congress bg the Commis-
sioner of Paténts and/or the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology. When
I was Commissioner, [ had occasion to testify before the Congress on the basis of
such cleared statements, but on some occasions was. even then accompanied by the
General Counsel of the Department of Commerce. o :
On matters of budgets, appropriations and expenditures, the situation is even
more difficult. First, all proposed budgets must be cleared by the Assistant Secre-
tary for Sciénce and Technology, then by the Assistant Secretary of Commerce for
Administration, and finally by the Secretalg of Commerce before being communicat-.
ed to the Office of Management and Budget. Hearings on proposed budgets are
conducted at the Officé of Management and Budget. On the occasions I appeared at
such hearings, I was accompanied by the Assistant Secretary for Science and Tech-
nology, and the Assistant Secretary for Administration. When I testified before the
Appropriations -Committees of the Senate and. the House, the Assistant Secretary
for Administration was always present although he did not speak. Such appear-
ances, at least in the Senate, were very pleasant as I appeared before such under-
standing senators as Senator McClellan and Senator Margaret Chase Smith. In the -
House it was a very interesting challenge to me, as a trial lawyer, to appear before
Congressman John Rooney to defend the Patent Office budget. S ER
Dealing. with. the Department of Commerce bureaucracy was a continuing chal-
lenge and presented an obstacle to every effort to improve operations in the Patent
Office!'For example, when I took office one of my first efforts was to modernize the:
management of the 200,000 to 300,000 pending cases. Physical management of those.
files was in an antiquated system resulting in many, many misplaced files. It is the
equivalent of a simple inventory control system .in any modern business, and the
Patent.- Office. staff designed a computer system so:we would: always know the
location of a file, and any movement of the file would be recorded in the computer.
We needed a computer then: costing in the range of $200,000 and started the routine
through the Department of Commmerce to obtain that computer. The staff of the:
Department of Commerce was much more interested in.where we weré going to get.
the money. to pay for it than in helping us-clear the way to make the purchase, 1
assured the Department that we had the money and could afford the computer, but
when 1 left office two years later we were still trying to obtain.that computer, and.
the, Patent Office several years later settled. for a:-much less sophisticated system
that i& not as effective. * . .- .1 - P B S
- All contacts with other Government departments must be made through the:
Department of Commerce. For example, when-1 found it necessary to consult with
the Assistant Attorney General concerning.sa Department of Justice position on
legislation, .or with the Sclicitor General concerning: cases in the Supreme Court, it
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was necessary. for me. to go. through. the General Counsel of the Department of
Commerce and have him accompany me whenever such meetings are arranged.

.I;accepted the position as Commissioner of Patents with an understanding with
the Secretary of Commerce that I would have access to him in the event of any
difficulty .with the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology. That under-

standing was known to the Assistant and it was never necessary for me to invoke
the privilege “accorded by the Secretary. Moreover, the Secretary of Commerce
agreed with my contention the Commissioner of Patents should be independent and
have the rank of an Assistant Secretary of Commerce. Legislation was introduced in
the Senate to make the Commissioner of Patents and Assistant Secretary of Com-
merce and it passed the Senate. The House of Representatives Committee scheduled
a hearing quite promptly, but, unfortunately, the Secretary of Commerce was out of
the country, Word came to me that the &'ﬁce‘of Management. and Budget was
opposed to the legislation and the General Counsel of the Department of Commerce
acting on those instructions from OMB communicated the opposition to-the House

" Commitiee ;where the legislation died. Later I found out thaf the staff of the
Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Science and Technology had requested the
Office of Management and Budget to enter the opposition to the legislation. With
the Secretary of Commeérce out of the couniry, there was no way I could counter the
opposition by the Office of Management and Budget.:. -, - .~ . -

- Internationally, the’ Comimissioner of Patents had relative freedom, -could write
his own paesition papers for international conferences and speak on behalf of the
United . States at such conferences insofar as they involved matters relating to
patents or trademarks. The Patent Cooperation Treaty, which was negotiated by the
Commissioner of Patents on behalf of the United States in 1970, has been ratified by
the. Senate, and the Trademark Registration Treaty which was negotiated by the
Commissioner of Patents in 1973 is-still awaiting ratification, o

THE PATENT OFFICE TODAY

.. At the present time, the situation of the Commissioner of Patents and the Patent
and Trademark Office has worsened. In budget matters, the Commissioner of Patent
and Trademarks does not have the opportunity to present his case to either the
Office of Management and Budget or to the Congress. The Department of Commerce
dicates policy as well.as minute details of the budget and stands in the way of any
reallocation of appropriated funds. In seeking appropriations, the- Department of
Commerce dictates priorities which often do not correspond ‘to those established by
the Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks. T T
In legislative matters, the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology appears
and testifies on legislation in the. patent and.trademark :field. Even when the
ggcmmissioner of Patents appears to testify he is accompanied by the Assistant
retary. el - T LI AV P e o
At one time after 1 left office, the position of Deputy Commissioner was vacant
and the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology forced: the resignation of
one of the Assistant Commissionérs-leaving only-one Assistant Commissioner when
the Commissioner left office. 1 was present in a meeting with the ‘Assistant Secre-
tary. for Science and Technology when it was announced that the Asgistant Secre-
tary would become Acting Commissioner upon the departure of the then Commis-
gioner. I-pointed out :that -this was contrary to the statute (35 U.S.C.. 3} which
provided that the Assistant. Commissioner (even though there was only one on duty)
assumed -the position of Acting:Commissioner signed a patent in which our law firm
represented the applicant, we would return it end demand that it be signed properly"
according to.the statutes. I.don’t know if my arguments were persuasive but the
Assistant Commissioner of Patents became the Acting Commissioner: :
© After.the resignation - of - Commissioner Banner, a meinber of the staff of the
Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology moved into the Patent and Trade-
mark Office and usurped much of the authority of the Deputy Commissioner who
was then ‘Acting Commissioner. There was no formalization of this arrangemetit, it
was simply accomplished de facto:in:the name of the Assistant Secretary for Science
TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENT :IN THE UNITED STATES FOLLOWS THE PATENT OFFICE |

. When thé. United States. began to lose it position:of leadership in technological
development, in the 195(0's, it has been. blamed on many different causes, but never
on the lack of confidence in our patent system or the submersion of the Patent and
Trademark Office in the Department of Commerce. Whenever there are discussions
about restoring the technological development activities in this country, the conver-
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sation always turns to financial incentives such as government subsidiés or tax
advantages. While mention is made of strengthening the ]Eatent gystem, constructive
suggestions are never implemented. It is very apparent that the lag in technological
development in this country has followed the deterioration of the position of the
Commissioner of Patents, and the Patent Office in the Government’ organization.
The situation of the Patent and Trademark Office has been going down hill steadily
since World War II until it is now completely submerged in the Deépartment of
Commerce and has very little identity of its own. Patent examiners are now looked
on ag glorified clerks and no longer occupy the prestigious positions of the prewar
period. There have been times in recent years where there were not enough appli-
cants to fill the positions of patent examiners and the Patent Office has' actively
recruited in the engineering schools in an effort to keep its staff at full empl?iyment‘.
That has often resulted in getting the low end of the graduating class instead of the'
upper levels of earlier days. ~ - -~ S . i e
atent Office employees for the most part are still dedicated to their work and .
perform very well as-professionals despite the cramped working conditions under
which they operate. Here again, the Patent Office usually comes off sécond best in:
its effort to obtain more space in the Crystal City area because the Commissioner
does not have enough influence with GSA and the Department ‘of Commerce does'
not have enough interest in the Patent and Trademark Office to- try to-obtain’
needed space in & convenient location. Nevertheless; the level of proficiency in the
Patent (;Jfﬁce remains very high by Government standards. Even so, the loss of
identity by the submersion of the Patent Office in the Department of Commerce has
caused the public to lese confidence in the patent system and the courts to become.
quite critical of patents issued by the Patent Office. As a result; patents no longer
provide the incentive to the business and scientific communities to invest the time,
money and effort necessary for. this country to regain its position of technological:
leadership.
. . PERSONAL' COMMENTS

Prior to today I have not directly responded to inquiries of why I resigned as
Commissioner of Patents after serving about two and a half years. While my
. resignation was based on _the conclusion that I could not do much more which was
beneficial to the United States patent system, there was one event which triggered
my resignation. For many years before taking office, I had contended that it was an
anamoly for the United States Government to grant patents to itself and recom-
mendedy that the practice be discontinued and that the resources spent by other
Government departments in applying for an dprosecut:ing patent applications should
be transferred to the Patent Office to be used in the examination of patent applica-
tions submitted from the private sector. While I did not expect to accomplish such a
drastic change, |-had indicated that I thought there was room for greater utilization:
of inventions protected by Government owned patents. There had been in existence
for some time and -interdepartmental commiitee on Government patent policy
manned by representatives-from the patent sections of the many departments and
agencies. The chairman of that committee had been the Assistant Secretary of
Commerce of Science and Technology. I made arrangemenis with the Assistant.
Secretary for Science and Technology that he would name me. as Vice: Chairman of
the Committee and that he would normally not attend meetings so that I might try
to guide the Committee in a direction to render Government owned patents more
meaningful. I attended only. one meeting of that Committee before there was a
change in -Assistant Secretaries. After the: fact, I learmed ‘that members of the
Committee had prevailed upon the staff of the Assistant Secretary for Science and
Technology to.replace me as Vice Chairman and name ‘one of the: representatives
from another department in that capacity. That abrupt:change indicated a continu-.
ing policy of the position of the Patent Office when I:-was trying to upgrade-it. I
resigned the next day. L . T Dok
There may be a question as to-why my name has not: previously appearéd among
the former Commissioners of Patents who advocate. establishment. .of the Patent.
Office as an independent agency. During my: tenure.as Commissioner of Patents, [
had complete support from the Secretary of Commerce and on occasion invoked that.
Cabinet level support to tr{ to accomplish the objectives of the patent system. This
was particularly true in the interface between the patent laws and-the antitrust
laws which resulted in a collision between the Commissioner of Patents and the
Department of Justice. Having that support from the Secretary of Commerce at the
Cabinet level, I felt that if the Patent Office could get away from the shackles of the
Assistant Secretary for Science ‘and ‘Technology it would be able to function effec—
tively if the Commissioner of Patents at least had equal ranking with the-Assistant
Secretary for Administration (concerning budget matters) and the General Counsel

of the Departmment of Commerce (concerning legislative matters). =
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ESTABHSHMENT OF THE PATENT.-AND -TRADEMARK .. OFFICE AS AN INDEPENDENT
AGENCY OFFERS GREAT PROMISE AT NO RISK

I think that the SItuatmn of the Patent Office has changed so drastlcally and it
has been 56 submerged in the Departmeént of Commerce that only establishment of
an ‘independent agency will accomplish any effectivé change. The bureaucracy of
the Department of Commerce has becorne so intertwined in the affairs of the Patent
and Trademark Office that the Patent-and Trademark Office cannot acquire any
sort of an'independent status within the framework of the Department of Com-
merce. Only complete separation from the Department by creatmg a separate
independent agency will be effective. -

In retrospect, it is apparent that one of the most constructlve moves for the free
enterprise system in this country was the-action of the Corigress by transferring
administration of the eopyright law from:the Patent Office to-the Library of Con-
gress, The copyright system is alive, well "and prospering: it-has recently ' been
modernized and expanded by the new copyrlght law, Both' the copyright system and
the Copyright Office enjoy great respect’ in the business, literary, and artistic
communities. The Copyright Office has been confronted with many problems as a
result of the enactment of a new copyright law, but it has tackled those problems
and found solutions. With the support.-of the Congress, the CoPyrlght Office- is
regaining a condition of normalcy.in its-operations. - - .

Almost all studies, including the report of the Hoover Commlsslon, agree that
quasi judicial functions should be performed- by independent agencies or commis-
sions. While most of these agencies and commissions are regulatory in nature and
impose controls on American industry, the Patent and Trademark Office provides
incentives for industry to spend the time, money and effort necessary to-succeed in
research and development projects. These are incentives that do not cost anything.
They are not monitary, in nature. They do not reduce the Government. revenues.
They stimulate rather than hamper industry. Quasi Jjudicial functions performed by
the Patent and Trademark Office should be established in a independent Patent and
Trademark Office as provided in S. 2079.

This Congress has an opportunity, by enactmg 2079, to take a maJor step in
restoring the patent incentives which brought this country from a developing nation
to the leadership of the world in technological development over the span of a
century and a half. Regaining that leadership will not happen over “hight, but it
may never happen unless the Patent and Trademark Office is restored to the
position in the Government that it occupied before we started downhill. Enactment
of 8. 2079 is an opportunity without any downside risk.

’ SCHUYLER Birca, McKIE & BECKE‘IT,
o : ) Washmgton, D.C, February 7, 1980,
Hon. BircH BayH, !
Chatrman, Subcomm:ttee on the Constztutwn,
Committee on the Judiciary, ‘
U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C.

DEeAr SenaTor Bavi: Many thanks for your letter of January 30, 1980 concernmg
the testimony before the Joint Judiciary. Committee and Governmental Affairs
Committee panel on S. 2079. I am sure almost all of my colleagues at the Patent
Bar join me in expressing our appreciation for your interest in improving the patent
system, particularly by sponsoring S. 2079,

have reviewed a letter dated January 29, 1280 which Commissioner Banner sent
to Senator Danforth in: response to-a question posed during the hearing and I
completely support that letter and the views of Commissioner Banner.

The following are my responses to the four questions posed by the enclosure with
your letter of January 30, 1980:

Question 1, Do you believe that the interests of the Patent and Trademark Office
or of the patent and tradeinark system are better served under the present arrange-
ment than they would be by making the Patent and Trademark Office independent?

Angwer. In order for the United States government to properly administer the
patent and trademark laws so they provide the incentives to'create, invent, invest
and exploit for which they are designed, it is essential that the Patent and Trade-
mark Office be established as an agency independent of any cabinet level depart-
ment. Only by restoring public confidence in the patent system will the United
States reacquire a position of leadership in technologlcal advancement which it
enjoyed during the first century and a half of its existence as a nation.

Question 2.-Did .you find that the Commerce Departmeént and OMB listened to
your advice® when it came. time to prepare your: budget? Where you ever not
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consulted or brushed a51de by the: Commerce Department when trying to make your
needs known?

Answer, During my term as Commlssmner, the Commerce Department listened to
my pleas for resources and [ at least received a hearing before OMB, although the
latter was in the presence of at least two Assistant Secretaries: of. Commerce.
However, the Department of Commerce established its overall budget and forced the
Patent and_Trademark Office to conform to. it so the view expressed at OMB was
under restraints. imposed by the Department of Commerce. There were. many in-
stances when our efforts to improve the Patent and Trademark Office were simply
stalled by the Commerce Department. Examples of this are found in my prepared
statement submitted. to the subcommittees. -

Question 4. Is there anything short of making the Ofﬁce mdependent that can
acconiplish- the'same:objective,. for .example making the Commissioner an Assistant
Secretary or-providing the Office with direct contact-with OMB? - -

Answer. Ten years ago | thought the Patent and Trademark Office could perform
satisfactorily if the Commissioner. was: elevated to a level of Assistant Secretary of
the Commerce Department. Now, I believe that the Patent and Trademark Office
has been so intertwined in the bureaucracy of the Department of Commerce that
anything short of establishing the Patent and Trademark Office as an independent
agency will be ineffective. As stated in my testimony before the subcommittees, the
Department of Commerce has responded before to pressure from. industry in the
Patent Bar to endeavor to increase the Patent Office budget. While that response
has occurred, it has -been shortlived and there is no reason to believe that any
immediate relief due:to the present preéssures will be sustained. Moreover, the
budget bureaucracy within the Department of Commerce, as well as that of the
Office of the General Counsel of Commerce in legislative matters, will continue to
impede the efforts of the Commmsmner of Patents and Trademarks to reach OMB
or the Congress.

~Question 4. What was your reactlon to the com.ments presented this morning from
the Commerce Department for keepmg the present arrangement intact? Do you
think that the new found interest in the Patent Office by Commerce is adequate for
preventing similar neglect of the Ofﬁce in the future when the present p011t1ca1
heat dies down?

Answer. I believe the comments presented on behalf of the Commerce Depart-
ment during the hearing demonstrate how completely the Office of the Assistant
Secretary for Science and Technelogy dominates the Patent and Trademark Office.
There was no suggestion that the Patent and Trademark Office or the Commission-
er of Patents and Trademarks could express views beyond those of the Department
of Commerce. There was an offer by the Deputy Assistant Secretary to advocate the
needs of the Patent and Trademark Ofﬁce That is not a solution, it is the problem.

In summary, 1 helieve that there is an opportunity for the Congress to stimulate
invention and innovation in this country by legislating the dramatic move of the
Patent and Trademark Office from the Department of Commerce to the status of an
independent agency. That move will restore confidence ‘in the Patent and Trade-
mark systems so that they will perform the functions for which they were intended
by the framers of the Constitution and subsequently by legislation enacted in
accordance with the Constitution. To do less will imiss this opportunity and the
Umted States will continue to fall behmd in technologlcal advancement

~Sincerely, - ‘ R
WILLIAM E. SCHUYLER, Jr

Mr BRENNER. Let me start out by saying I strongly support your
bill that would establish the Patent Office as an independent
agency and would establish a 6-year term for the Commissioner of
Patents.

I have only reeently come to this particular posmon because,
based upon my past experience, particularly in the budget area,
when I was Commissioner from 1964 to 1969, I recewed strong
support for Patent Office budgets.

I was of the opinion that the Patent Office would be best off in
the Department of Comumerce at the Assistant Secretary level.
However, due to developments in the Patent Office over the last
several years, that have been discussed here today, and taking a
20-year overview of the Patent Office, I have come to the conclu-
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sioni’ that ‘the Patent ‘Office’ would: deﬁmtely be better off as an
1ndependent agency.

T think at. the present time, the patent backlog. is r1smg, the
trademark operation is a disaster.: We have been advised by the
mailroom in the Patent Office to expect it to take 3 weeks from the
time a letter is received until it arrives on the desk of the appropn—
ate official.

I think developments like this have to be laid at. the doorstep of
the Department of Commerce and, as you said, Senator, Mr."Chair-
man, the buck, I think, stops there at the Department of Commerce
when it comes. to these matters. :

With regard to-the matter. of the 6-year term,-1-think that-that
would be a very important step forward. I think one:of .the major
problems the Patent Office has had has been the'lack of continuity.
When there are changes. of Commlssmners, the office loses momen-
tum. ..

You can _]ust observe a Toss of- product1v1ty, a breakdown in our
relationships internationally with-other patent offices I thmk all
of this could be cured by a 6-yéar term. .

- If you took out my 5 years of tenure as Commlssmner I guess 1
am sort of the graybeard here, as I calculate it the: other Commis-
sioners probably averaged about 2 years service. In:fact; the period
of acting Commissioners during this perlod -hag- far exceeded the
time of the average Commissioner. In summary, then, T think that
to create the Patent Office as an indepéndent: agency and establish
a 6-year term for the Commissioner would be a definite step for-
ward for the benefit of our country

Thank you, sir. .

Senator. Baye: Thank you \

[Responses to written questions from Senator Bayh follow}

¢+ ASSOCIATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT oF INVENTION & INNOVATION, -
e S ) Arlmgton, Va, February 6, 1380
Hon. BircH BayH, o
U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C.

"Dear’ SENaTOR Bavm: In response to your letter to nie of January 30 1980 ’
concerning S. 2079, the following are my* comments on the four questlons you have
raised in the attachment to your letter: - ;

Question 1. Do you believe that the interests.of . the Patent and Trademark Office
or of the patent and trademark system are better served under the present arrange-
ment than they would be by making the Patent and Trademark Office independent?

Answer. As stated inh my testimony-at the hearing, T definitely believe that' the’
interests of the Patent and Trademark Office and of the patent:and trademark:
systems of our country would be better served under an arrangement in.which the:
Ofﬁce would becore an independent agency. :

* Question 2. Do you find the Commerce Department and OMB hsbened to your
advice-when it came time to prepare your budget? Where you ever not consulted ‘or
Erusheg aside by the. Commerce Department when trymg to ‘make your. needs

nown'

Answer. During’ rny tenure as Commlssxoner from 1964 to 1969 1 generally found
that my advice was listened to in the Department of Commerce However, I never’
had any contact with- OMB on budget matters. R 3

Question 4. Is there anything short of making the Ofﬁce 1nclependent that can:
accomplish the same objective, for example making the Commissioner an Asmstant'
Secretary or providing the Office with directcontact with OMB?

Answer. As a second choice, I support the proposal of making the Comm:ssmner'
an--Assistant- Secretary. .1 doubt that there is any- practical way in.the present’
bureaucracy of assuring on a contmumg basis -that the Ofﬂce would have d1rect
contact with OMB. . ey

Question 4. What was your ‘reaction to the comments presented this rnornlng from
the Commerce Department for keeping the present arrahgement intact? Do you
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think that the new found interest in the Patent Office by Commerce is adequate for
preventing similar neglect of the Office in the future when the present pohtlca.l
heat dies down?

Answer. My reaction to the comments presented by the Commerce Department at
the hearing, confirmed my suspicions that they have an inadequate background to
effectively evaluate and supervise the operations of the Patent and Trademark
Office. The Annual Report of the Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks for

- Figeal Year 1979 which just recently was published clearly reflects the deterioration
in the Office under this same Commerce Department management for fiscal years
1977, 1978 and 1979, Based ‘on this sad performance, 1 can see.no factual basis for
concludmg that their performance would be any better -in the future desp1te their
protestations to the contrary. -

With regard to the question raised by Senator Danforth at the end of the hearing,
I have the following comments on why the Patent and Trademark Office, as con-
trasted with other Commerce Department agencies, should become an independent
agency. First, I agree with. the point that has been made by several other former
Commissioners that the Patent and Trademark Office is basically a guasi-judicial
type of operation. Its patent and Trademark examiners are somewhat similar to
hearing examiners in other independent quasi-judicial agencies. The members of its
boards (i.e., Board of Patent Appeals, Board of Patent Interferences and the Trade-
mark Trial and Appeal Board) correspond somewhat to administrative law judges or
Commission members- in other independent agencies such as the Internatmnal
Trade Commission, the Federal Trade Commission, etc. -

Secondly, the Patent and Trademark Office has very little, if anythmg in common
with' other-Commerce Department agencies, even those inr the science and technol-
ogy area. Despite the fact that the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology
held frequent joint meetings. with the heads of these agencies, during my tenure I
found that there was very little if any interaction between the Patent and Trade-
mark Office and, for example, the Weather Bureau and the Bureau of Standards
which were the other major agencies. in the science and technology area of the_
Commerce Department at the time. - i :

Sincerely :yours, : : .
EDWARD -J. BRENNER. .-

Senator BavH. The Senator from Missouri?

Senator DanrForTH, I will put a questmn to Mr. Banner and ask
if he can respond to it:

Then if anybody else has anythmg to add to it or any difference
of opinion let us know either in person or in writing.

We are going to have to leave in minutes, but if you feel you:

cannot answer in time, I hope you will submit your answer in
writing and any other elaborations or disagreements in writing.

I think the basic argument against the bill will be something on
the following order: There are probably numerous agencies in the
Federal Government which would like independent status. They
would like to build their own empires, they would like to be out

from under their departments, they would like to be able to make

their own decisions without being hindered by somebody else. That
is. probably not a very good idea on a widespread basis. It is
probably contrary to the kind of consolidation and clear lines of
authority which make for good administrative practice.

What is so. different about the Patent Office that we should'

create a_special exception for it? Why shouldn’t we try to do what
the Commerce Department 1ndlcates we should do namely, im-
prove it from within?

Why shouldn’t we try to mmply change the ex15t1ng operating
procedures and, for example, allow direct submission of budgets to

the Congress or move to computers or make management changes

or zero-based budgeting, or something like that?
Mr. BANNER. Senator, may I answer that in wr1t1ng‘7 :
Senator DANFDRTH. Of course. .
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Mr. BanNNEr. I think that is a very good question and I want to
give you the answer which I think would take more time than you
aeerill to have at the moment, if that is acceptable. I would rather

o that.

Senator DANFORTH. Certainly you can, and the rest of you, if you
can get fogether, however you want, maybe you could submit a
joint statement and all sign it or maybe you could circulate it and
get everybody to agree or dlsagree or state exceptions to it.-

I think that really is the major criticism of this bill and one that’
we should just face head on. You heard the statement of Dr.
Wolek. Why isn’t he right? What comments do you have on that
statement? Why isn’t he right? He thinks the Patent and Trade-
mark Office should be kept in Commerce.’

Mr. BANNER ‘Very .good, sir. :

[A .letter to Senator Danforth from: Mr Banner and a.nswers to-
wrltten questlons from Senator Bayh: follow] -
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January’ 29, 1980

The Honorabié'éohn C. Danforih
460 Russell Senate Offlce‘Bulldlng .
Washlngton, D c: 20510 s T

Dear Senator Danforth.

On Januarv 24, 1980 a hearlng was held by the Comm1ttees
on Governmeht Affairs and on the Judiciary with regard to.
§.2079, the Independeit Patent and. Trademark: Act. - At the
conclusion of these hearinge you asked the former’ Commis-
sicners who appeared before the Commlttees ‘to-'state reasons-
why -the Patent.and Trademark: Qffice -is unigue: and quall;led
for 1ndependent status.  As I am:leaving the country for -an’
extended period, I have prepared this initial response and,
by a copy of this letter to each of them, ask the other for-
mer Commissioners to supplement this letter with their res-
pective comments.

The beginning of that Office lies in the Constitution
which, in Article 1, Section 8, specifically provides authori-
zation to the Congress to create a patent system. Congress
did so in 1790, and patents have been issued to promote -the
progress of the useful arts all through the history of our
country. The first "patent office," therefore, started ten
vears before Washington, D.C. became the capital of this
country and at a time when cur naticnal population was some
four million people. Since 1836, the year after the first
railroad reached Washington (and two years before Victoria
became Queen of England), the basic patent office operatlon
has been substantially the same as it is today.

Prom 1836 to 1948, the Senate and the House of Repre-
sentatives both had a Standing Committee on Patents which
directly oversaw the operations of the Patent Office. Dur-
ing that period, the chairmanship of the Senate Committee
included such historic figures as Simon Cameron, Reed Smoot
and William Gibbs McAdoo and nine members of Congress served
as Commissicner of Patents.

Throughout that period the Patent 0ffice remained sub-
stantially autonomous despite its location in the government.
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Hon. Jolin C. Danforth -2- : Jznuary 29, 1980:

However, after the Roover Commission Repoxrt in 1850 the func~
tions of the Comm1551oner were transferred to the Secretary

of Commerce. ' As suggested by the testimony of formet Commis-— |
sioner Schuyler, the transfer may not have taken place if ‘the
name of the Patent 0ffice had been the Patent Commission be-
cause other agencies, similar to the Patent Office in having
guasi-judicial :functions but named “"Commissions," were-excluded
frem the reorganization suggested by the Hoover Commissicn. ~ In’
any event, the Patent 0ffice siipped to its present position,. -
below an Assistant Secretary for Sc;ence and ;echnology, .in 1962

In 1ts regular operatlons today, the Patent and Trademark
Officé operates in a manner which is glearly gquasi-judicial,
For example, it issues patents to cover inventions which meet
the" s;a;uuory patent standards and registers trademar?s which
are used in interstate and/or foreign commerce and otherwise

.are in accord with -the requirements set out by the trademark

statute. Both the patent and trademark statutes prcv1ded for
judicial remedies such as injunctions and damages in cases of
patent anu/or trademark infringement. For example, the patent
statute gives to the patent owner the right to exclude all
cthers in the United States and its possessicns from making,
from using and from selling the subject matter embraced by the
patent for a period of seventeen years from the date of patent
issuance. L . L

In addition to'grahting'patents,_the Patent and mrademark
o0ffice, under the statutes governing it ‘dan, in reissue cases, '
narrow the scope of an issued patent or refuse to allow pra- '~
viously granted c¢laims; Leglslatlon to “increase substantlally
the authority of the PTO in such cases is now pending in 5.1679,
introduced by Senator Bayh. Similarly, under the trademark
statutes, the Patent and Trademark Cffice can, in appropriate

cases, cancel the registration of a previously registered trademark.

Furthermore, under 1ts governlng statutes, the Patent and
Trademark Office~determinegs to whichicne of a plurallty of clai~
mants particular patent claims should be awarded; in like fashion
the Patent and Trademark Cffice determines whether one or more
parties may register a trademark for designated goods for use
in a prescribed geographical area.

This dally agtlvzty of the Patent and Trademark Office in
granting and, in certain cases, withdrawing gubstantive rlghts
to persons of all classes throughout this country as well - as
persons in almost all other countries throughout .the world, and
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Hon. John C. Dbanforth -3- January 2%, 1980.

this selection by the Patent and Trademark Office of the par-
ticular one of a plurality of claimants to patent claims or
trademark reglstratlon obv;ously constitutes quasl judiéial
action,

It is submitted that this conduct of quasi-judicial
nature which constitute the basic activity of the Patent.and
Trademark Qffice, and which is of pivotal importance’ to the
strength and industrial vigor of ‘our nation, together with the
historic role of the Patent and Trademark Office -- founded on
an express Constitutional provision and cperating throughout
our history ~- clearly makes the Patent and Trademark Office
unigque. Its present position as a very minor portion of a vast
agency is a mistake of growing harmful intensity which ignores
both the history and the function of that 0ffice. The dele- .
terious effects of leaving the Patent and Trademark Qffice as
a part of the Department of Commerce are set cut in the testi-
mony of the Commigsioners who testified on January 24th; that
tastimony -- unanlmous in. nature ~—.elocuently states the issues.

I am pleased to share in the view embraced by all of the

living former Commissioners, one also publicly urged by many

of the other Commissioners who are no longer alive, that making
that unique Office a sebarate agency, independent of the De=-
partment of Commerce, is esgential and clearly in the best
interest of the United States; I thereforé strongly support
5.2079, .the Independent Patent and Trademark Offlce Act, and’
urge its speedy enactment. .

Sincerely;

1 Bnata W.C'Egrrrﬁei;c-“'"—év\

DWB:es

cc: Senator Birch Bayh
Former Commlssloners

Conway .Coe o
. Robert.Watson.. -
David Ladd /
Edward Brenner
William Schuyler, Jr.
Robert Gottschalk ,
C. Marshall Dann r
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The Honorable Birch Bayh
363 Russell Senate Office Building
Washington, D, C. 20510

Re: 8.2079 "
Dear Senatof‘Bafh: L

Thls is in. response to the "Questlons for Patent
Commissioners”. . [ :

Questlon l

Do you believe that the interests of the Patent and
Trademark Office br of the patent and trademark system are
better served urider the present arrangement than’ they would
be by making the Patent and Trademark Qffice 1ndependent°

Answer

The Patent and Trademark Office, and the patent and
trademark systems in the United States, would be much
stronger if the Patent and Trademark Office were indepen-
dent of the Department of Commerce.: The public would be
much better served. in having an Office in mote direct com-
munication with the Congress and OMB. Furthermore, unnec- '
essary layers of bureaucratic involvement would be elimi-
nated by making the Patent and Trademark Office independent,
thus making that Office capable of more rapid respodSe;

It should be kept in. mind ‘that the problems with in-
tegrity of the patent search file and arising from the de-
plorable state of the trademark operation -- for example ——
have existed for several years. These have not been -cor-
rected by the Department of Commerce despite its knowledge
that the problems existed. -Indeed, the budget of the Patent
and Trademark:Office was repeatedly reduced, despite that
knowledge. - Neglect of this kind can only he remedied by -
making the Patent and Trademark Offlce an 1ndependent agency.

Questlon 2.

Did you find that the Commerce Dept. and OMB listened
to your advice when it came time to prepare your budget?
Were you ever not consulted or brushed aside by the Commerce
Dept. when trylng to make your needs . known?
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Answer

The Patent and Trademark Office prepares the first .
draft of the budget and consultation with the budget people
in the Department ¢f Commerce cccurs. However, I was never
permitted to meet with OMB representatives’'concerning the
budget of the Patent and Trademark Office. Once I testified
before the House Appropriations Subcomrittee, but only under
strict guidelines laid down by the Department of Commerce.
My recommendations on the budget to Commerce were, in many
cases, simply ignored. I had no part in discussions concern~
ing the Patent and Trademark Office budget which tock place
between the Department of Commerce budget officers and OMB
or between such officers and the Congress. Indeed, after
leaving the Patent and Trademark Office I learned that there’
were discussions between the Commerce budget officers and .
the Congress in which the Commerce budget officers made state—
ments whlch I v1ew as completely erroneous.

Questlon 3.

Is there anythlng short of maklng the Office 1ndependent'
that can accomplish the same objective, for example making.
the Commissioner an Assistant Secretary or provldlng the
office with direct contact with -OMBZ. .

Answer

No. While making the Commissioner an Assistant Secretary
might avoid one bureaucratic layer, the requirement for con-
tacting and receiving approvals from other Commerce Department
units ‘would continue. -Indeed, the contact with CongreSS could
Stlll be frustrated by a Commerce budget offlcer

In other words, maklng the Commzssxoner an A551stant
Secretary is, at'best, a facial maneuver lacking the sub-
stantive remedial effect required. It should be ncted that-

a previoug bill to upgrade the Commissioner:to the;status of -
an Assistant Secretary was blocked by a Department of Commerce
budget officer. . -

Question 4.

What was your reaction to the comments presented this
morning from the Commerce Dept. for keeping the present ar-
rangement intact? Do you think that the newfound interest in
the Patent Office by Commerce is adeguate for preventing similar
neglect of the Gffice in the future when the present political
heat dies down?
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Answer

The Commerce Departwment-has argued that is necessary
to keep the present arrangement-intact because: (1) ‘the Patent
and Trademark Office is:incapable of preparing an appropriate
budget without Cdmmercé assistance, and (2} only by keeping
the Patent and Trademark Cffice in Commerce can administration
policy on technology and industrial development be consistent.
Neither point is .sound. Y

While Commerce has criticized the Patent and Trademark
Office budget processes, it is interesting to note that Com-
merce is now recommending funding for the Patent and Trade-
mark Office which it denied to the Patent and -Trademark Office
bhefore. The Patent and Trademark Office budget requests were
not wreong earlier, the Commerce Department: was. Obviously
the truth of the matter is that Commerce never paid sufficient
attention to the Patent and Trademark: Office and-did not un~-
derstand the preoblem. It is only in the:light of Congress’
interest that Cormerce has acquired religion.  Furthermore,
if the Patent and Trademark Office budget processes have been
so deficient for so many years as the Commerce Department now
alleges, it is perfectly obvious that Commerce should have
corrected the deficiency rather than use such alleged defi-
ciency asg an excuse for neglectful fundlng practlces

e I do not" thlnk that ‘the’ newfound interest in™ the Patent
Office by Commerce is adeguate to prevent neglect of the T
Patent -and Trademark Office in.the future. - Even ifithe pre-
sent Commerce management continues its- newfound interest, when
new, Commerce’ management takes over the.neglect may very well .
start again., It is of no small significance that every living
former Commissioner of Patents has recommended that the Patent
and Tradémark Office be separated from the Department of Com~ ~
nerce,. that it be made an-independent-agency; and ‘all .have 7

“supported 5.20792. 'This group of Commissioners- bridges a span
from Franklin D. Roosevelt to the present day.i...All such-Com~
missioners are convinced that keeping the, Patent ‘and Trademark
Office in the Depariment of Commerce is wrong and ‘that the
patent and trademark systems of the United States suffer un-
der such an arrangement. The country can ill afford, at this
time particularly, to neglect those systems. The necessary
correction can be made very easily by passing 5.2079, which
is unanimously approved by almost every unbiased person who
has seriously considered the prcblem.
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I appreciate #ery much the opportunity to express my
views on this important legislation. If I can be of any
further service, please let me know. : i

Yours™ very truly, -

'%;LW¢kﬁ‘UO QﬁﬁvzwL*jm'

.bDecnald W.. Banner.
Former U.S. Commissioner of:
Patents and Trademarks

DWB:es

cc:: Former Comm1551onersf
i) Conway P. Coe-
‘" Robert C. Watson
David L. Ladd
C. -Marshall Dann
Edward-J. Brenner -
- ‘William E. Schuyler, Jr.
" .Robert Gottschalk
Fohn ‘E. ‘Maurer -
Mlchael Blommer
Hon John C. Danforth

Senator DANFORTH Thank you all very much
n Senator BavH. I thank my colleague from Mlssoun for being

ere.

This business of trying to ignore the fact that many weaknesses
are the direct result of insufficient resources is very bothersome
and I would welcome your comments on this. Tt is amazing. I don’t
think I have ever been involved in any issue where every letter
supports a piece of legislation and where a group of witnesses like
yourselves agree, regardless of thelr own pol1t1ca1 background that
a change is needed.- ~

. Thank you, gentlemen.

[Whereupon, at 12:30 p m., the comm1ttee was ad_}ourned]




INDEPENDENT PATENT AND TRADEMARK
OFFICE ACT -

i WEDNESDAY MARCH 12 1980

: .U S SENATE

J OINT. HEARING OF THE COMMITTEES oN.- .
GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS AND: THE JUDICIARY S
o oan : salels - - Washington,: D.C..
The comm1ttees met at 9 45 am. .+ in ‘room 6226 Dlrksen Senate
Office Building, Hon. Birch Bayh presiding. 7" ok SEREE

= Present: SBenators Bayh, Thurmond; and: Danforth ;

Staff present: Kevin Q. Faley, ‘chief counsel and. executwe d1rec-‘
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professmnal staff member; Linda- Rogers-ngsbury, deputy staff
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Fitzgerald; Howard Bauleke ‘Donald Pupke, Subcommittee on-the:
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Jesse Sydnor ¢ounsel to Senator Howard M. Metzenbaum; Renn
M. Patch, assistant minority counsel, Subcommittee ¢n.the: Consti-
tution; Terry Jolly,. professional staff member: for Senator Saeser

Senator BayH. We-will reconvene our hearings, .~ °

This is the second day of hearings on-S. 2079, the Independent_
Patent and Trademark Office Act. On the first day of hearings we
had a representative of the’ Department -of -Commerce-and six:
former Patent and-Trademark-Office Commissioners -as witnesses.
Mr. Wolek of the Commerce Department said the current problems
in .the Patent and Trademark Office were not the fault of the
Department, - but “resulted from an insbility of the..Patent and
Trademark Office to get-its house in order. Mr.: Wolek said that the
oversight of the Department is.needeéd - -because:the Patent and
Trademark Ofﬁce Commissioners - had, to.-use his words;  “too
narrow a view’ and could not readily understand .how the patent
and- trademark system fits mto the larger plcture of the Amerlcan
economy. .- :

The Commmsnoners however, sald that there Was ' no _reason to
continue-under the present arrangement.-because ‘the Department
did not really contribute to the operations -of the Office, but often
obstructed the efforts of the Patent and Tradémark: Office:to reor-
ganize itself so that it could be run more efficiently. I must say it
geems fo me the overwhelmlng ‘response 1 réceived from private
industry ‘has backed the opinions of-the Commissioners and has
laid the blame for the present crisis in our patent and trademark
operatmns squarely at the door of the Commerce Department '

-We are really not trying to assess any blame. It is interesting to
note that despite the often repeated -assurances that many adminis-
tratlons ‘have glven when there was an outcry about the 1nefﬂc1en--
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cies and delays encountered when trying to obtain patents and
trademarks, there seems to be a continual state of crisis in our
gystem. Patent Commissioners are routinely ignored when the De-
partment prepares its budget each year; they are not allowed to
tell the Congress what the problems of the gfﬁce really are; and
Commissioners have been.prevented from making even modest
changes in’ the operatlons of the Office without consulting the
Department.

I, perscnally, asked Commlssmner Dlamond on November 30,
1979 when he testified on another bill before the Judiciary Com-
mlttee, to prepare for me a list- of the needs: of his Office and his
recommendations on what can be done to modernize its operation.
The Commissioner dutifully prepared this material and, pursuant
to the normal way things are done, submitted it to the Department
of Commerce and Office of Man‘agement“- and Budget for clearance.
I now understand that a decision has been made not to release this
report, but.instead to send me a letter full of generalities thanking
me for my interest. This material is being held up at the same time:
that the Depa.rtment is. getting: ready:to present.the Patent and
Trademark Office’s budget to the Congress this month. The Depart-
ment expects: the Congress to approve its estimation of what the
Office needs without allowing the Congress to have direct. contact
with ‘the real experts. I can_ understand the Departments reluc-.
tance, in light of- its previous history of routinely: 1gnormg the.
recommendations of the Patent and Trademark Office. - . '

‘The Governmental Affairs and the Judiciary Commlttees are
privileged to have. with us this morning many distinguished. wit-
nesses who have direct working. relationships with:the Patent and
Trademark Office. It will -be: interesting to see if these witnesses
agree with the assessment of the Commerce Department that the
needs.of our patent and trademark system are being well served
under the present arrangement. This is more than an:academic
question to all of us: Patents and trademarks’ are the lifeblood of
our innovative - businesses.  When these companies are needlessly
delayed in delivering new products to.the American public, we all’
suffer. I frankly believe that by allowing the :Patent and Trade-
mark Office to function without interference-we will be taking a
very important: step forward-toward solving our:current economic
problems, like inflation, through the most effective means——-m—
creasing our product1v1ty and innovation.

How easy it is to say we are going to golve inflation by mcreasmg-
our productivity. Apparently it is more difficult to convince the
bureaucracy that it itself is part of the problem.

At -this' point in the record I would like to msert the prepared=
statement of Senator Hatch: -

“[The statement of Senator Hatch follows ]

STATEMENT OF SENATOR ORR[N G HATCH B .

My, Chalrman, I.cannot disagree with any of ‘your openmg remarks' There is no
question that a strong Patent and Trademark Office is essential to- a vibrant
innovative climate. As ?resently operating, the PTO is a disincentive to the inven-
tive spirit. The personal success of oiir most dynamic community is'dependent upon
the efficient operation of a strong PTO. But instead of helping the ¢ause, too often
the PTO results in serious complications for an otherwise productive invention. As.
the Chairman has indicated, there are patents missing from every patent subclass
in the PTO files. These misaing patents are adm]ssﬂ)le evidence in challenging the
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validity of & late issued patent. Further, the number. of trademark examiners-this"
year have not 1ncreased from the number of examiners. in the PTO. five years ago,
and yet the examiner of today has 20 percent less time in which to process 65
rcent more applications than their counterparts of the last decade. These prob-
I)ems are a direct result ‘of serious underfunding of the PTO in past-years. The
underfunding has resulted in understaffing, from which these problems have:arisen:
Witnesses that the subcommittee has heard from in the past weeks have indicated
that the PTO is plagued with peor administration; poor administration on both the
part of the office itself as well as its parent agency, the Commerce Department.
I' would like ‘to emphasize to the chairman that I share his views that a strong
PTQ is essential to assure continuance of the new technologies and ideas that have, -
in the past, made America the economic power, that it has grown into today, and 1
am concerned with its decline. The chairman is aware, however, that I am very
much opposed to unneceéssary growth within the federal government: I'ts possible
that enactment of this legislation would merely. transfer the current:unsatisfactory
situation from the Commerce Department into an independent sphere, and in. so.
doing. further complicate these probléms with those problems associated with sepa-
rate agencies. Additionally, T feel strongly that irresponsible administration by a
parent ageficy should ‘not be réwarded by relieving them of their unpopular duties, -
The chairman may have found an exception to my reservations. -All previous :
testimony has pursuaded me that an independent PTO. would operate more. effi-
ciently withouit the overbearance of the Commerce Department. I look forward to
hearing the views- of the private sector witnesses today, and, if they repreésent
unaminity of opinion onthis legislation, I will appropriately review ‘and-adjust my
philosophy of opposing a proliferation of mdependent agencles, w1th respect to the:
patent office, .

Senator BAYH. We are honored this mornmg, and I thmk pr1v1—
leged, to have three very busy 1nd1v1duals, who are experts in their
own right, to come not only as witnesses, but as those who have a-
working experience in this field which calls us together: Donald R.
Dunner, president of the American Patent Law. Association, Wash-
ington, D.C.; Arthur R. Whale, chairman of the National Council of
Patent . Law Associations, Indianapolis, : Ind.; and- Morton David
Goldberg, chairman of the patent and trademark sectron ‘of. the
American Bar Association.: -

- Gentlemen, we apprec1ate your bemg here. Lay it on us.

TESTIMONY OF DONALD R. DUNNER PRESIDENT AMERICAN
‘PATENT LAW ASSOCIATION; ARTHUR R. WHALE, CHAIRMAN,
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF PATENT LAW ASSOCIATIONS;
MORTON DAVID GOLDBERG, CHAIRMAN, PATENT TRADE-
MARK AND COPYRIGHT SECTION AMERICAN BAR ASSOCI-
ATION . :

Mr. :DUNNER. Mr: Chalrman 1 have been asked to go ﬁrst I
suspect because I-am a Purdue graduate = :

Senator Bay#. That doesn’t dlsquallfy you. [Laughter]

“Mr. DUNNER. I am delighted. o .

My name is Donald R. Dunner. I am pre31dent of the Amencan' :
Patent Law Association. : :

I would like to note for. the- record that I and the other. members-
of this panel are: really here representmg the patent trademark
and copyright fields. +: -

'The -American Patent Law Assomatwn supports S. 2079 We feel-
that it would mgmﬁcantly strengthen the patent system 1n th1s-
time of ‘heed. - i

As you know Mr Chalrman the Patent and Trademark Office '
has been: located in a number of .executive agencies: the State
Depzrtment, the Agriculture. Department, the Commerce Depart-
ment. But notwithstanding that fact, over a long period of ‘time the
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Office had a high degree of independence until the early 1950’s.
fact, from 1837 to 1940, the Office was directly respons1b1e to
standmg committees on- patents in the House and in the Senate,
had a direct relationship with those:committees, and we- suspect-
that the elimination of that direct relationship and perhaps the
abolition of those committees has significantly and deleteriously
affected the operations of the Patent and Trademark Office. ,

We feel that the Congress has a very significant role to play in
the operation and vitality of the Patent and Trademark Office. Yet
this comnmittee and you, Mr. Chairman, have heard from six Com-
missjoners, indicating that the communication between the Patent
and Trademark Office and the Congress is virtually nil. You have:
mentioned in your statement today facts to support that point. The;
isolation between the Patent and Trademark Office and the Con-
gress:- has_also been pomtedly d1scussed in- the statements of the.
Commissioners. -~ -

I'note merely by way of example that in 1976 the Senate passed
a bill, S.. 2255, .which was the first significant piece of patent
leglslatmn since the 1952 Patent Act. Notwithstanding the. per-
cetved importance -of that legislation, Senator McClellan on the
floor of the Senate, stated, '

I again express my regret that the administration has not authorized the Commis-
sioner of Patents to make his views known to the Congress: The subject matter of

this legislation is highly technical. The. Congress in adopting a new patent code
ghould have the counsel of the. Commlssmner of Patents )

Not only has there been isolation between the Patent and Trade—
mark Office and the Congress, but there has been isolation between
the Patent - and - Trademark Office and the very Department:
charged with its administration, Commissioner Banner, in his Jan-:
uary testimony before this committee, Mr. Chairman, pointed out
that notwithstanding the fact that the administration was consider-
ing and drafting a very important Government patent policy bill,
neither he nor anyone else in the Patent and Trademark Office has
been consulted on that bill, and, to the best of my knowledge that
consultation has nottaken place even today.

We feel that the bill we are talking about today, will significant-

-ly improve the operations of the Patent and Trademark Office and
will increase the sensitivity of the people responsible for the ulti-
mate decisions to be made in the system to the Patent and Trade-
mark Office. That sensitivity has been almost nonexistent. For
years the Patent and Trademark Office has been significantly un-
derfunded, resulting in significant deteriorationn of the services of-
fered by the Office. Notwithstanding that fact, Mr. Wolek, who
testified on behalf of the Department of Commerce in January
before you, Mr. Chairman, acknowledged that the administrators of
the Patent and Trademark.Office were competent, but he blamed.
the past problems on confusing budget requests. He said the Patent:
and Trademark Office hadn’t presented. a significant case for added
resources. He made that statement notwithstanding the fact that:
the Department of Commerce, through Assistant Secretary: Baruch,
‘supported an increase of $14 million. Having supported that.in-
crease, and having induced Senators like you, Mr. Chairman; to go
out on a limb.in support of that budget, the Department of Com-:
merce; withdrew its-support at.the last minute,- blaming its: with-:
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drawal on the fact that the money might be misused: Mlsused by~
whom? The same admmlstrators Mr Wolek suggested are hxghly-
competent. - .

Senator BAYH. Mr Dunner, 1f I may mterrupt That Was one of ‘
the most interesting, to be kind, experiences I have’ had in my time.
in the Senate. Apparently the Department and the COmm1ss1oners
have completely different views of where the problems are coming-
from. Frankly, everything ‘that-has been presented to.these hear-.
ings, so-far;: tends to support.‘the ‘Commissicners. ‘We jare in 4’
period right now where it is going to be even more.important than-
it has been in the: past to.verify-the need for:each dollar. When
asking- for extra money to make that Office run properly, we. will.
beasked *is that wasteful, is thatinflationary, or is:that money
really going.to.be:-used to make the process . function in-the way it-
was meant to.function and get the ideas: out -where people: can tse .
therg and deal with the problem of: continued: Amencan productw—v
ity”

Mr. DuNNER. Mr.’ Chairman; -1-believe; and: my assocratlon be-
liéves, that ‘money could not'be better spent. We realize there are:
going to be conflicting’ demiands on the dollars available from the-
Government. That money will result-in improved. efficiency of the
Patent Office operation. It will result in the improved credibility of
a patent grant. The-improved credibility of a patent: grant will, we-
feel, and the President’s Committee on Domestic Policy, on Wthl’l I
served feels, that having improved credibility -will .induce industry
to spend more R. & D. dollars; will- generate .more ;products, -will
improve the balance of trade, will improve tax. revenues to-the
Government. We feel the money will come back tenfold from. th1s
investment, and the money could not be better spent. - . | ’

- Senator BavH. Thank you. Pardon ine for mterruptmg

- Mr. DUNNER. That is all right,:Mr. Chairman. - :

I would like to mention one other point. Again, blammg the
problems on the Patent and Trademark-Office is just belied by the
record. Commisgioner Banner testified that when he first-came into
office in 1978, he found a significant budget deficiency which would
cause the Patent and Trademark Office to be. in a situation not to
be able to pay its examiners. Nothing was done about -that. until
1979, until it was too late. At that time they had to pay printing
pena1t1es They had to print some: 15,000 t0:20,000 less patents than
they. would have printed. That is not the PTO’s fault. We can: lay.
that at the foot of the Commerce Department. - - ;

- 'We feel there is another problem, and the problem a31de from
inadequate services being rendered by the Patent and Trademark .
Office, is going to be compounded. Everyone in the Patent Bar and
everyone -out there knows the frustrations that the present Com-
migsioner and past Commissioners are feeling in not being able to
talk to the Congress, in not being able to talk to the Commerce
Department effectively. The ‘interest in serving as: Commissioner is
going to diminish substantially. We have seen it.already. The pool.
of competent, talented people who would otherwise be- available, we"
fear, is going to be d1m1n1shed When that happens the| problems
will be exacerbated. . - .

.In closing, Mr. Cha1rman, 1 would like- to say the country de-

serves: better than it has got. We feel that Band-Aid measures may:
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be available short term, but.a bill such as 8. 2079 is a long range,

effective, well thought out solution to:this problem. It is.supported:
almost unanlmously by the Patent Bar. It is supported heavily by
the ‘business’ community.. It -is -supported - by almost -everybody 1
know except for the Commerce Department, whose reason for keep-:
ing: an:agency presently within its confines may be-well under-.
stood; just by the .workings of Government. agencies trying to pro-
tect their turf. We do not believe.that.the Patent and Trademark:
Office would-be better served by staying with the: Commerce De-
partment. The: details of the reasons. have been spelled.out elo-
quently by six former Commissioners: Every living Commissioner .
supports this-bill. Their words:should not be: lightly disregarded..

‘Senator. BaAvyH. Thank: you, Mr.: Dunner.~I find: that. testimony:
helpful from someone who has:had kind of ‘experience you have.
had and the constituents you represent Who are anx1ous to-see the
system work: I thank you for giving it to us. ' e : .'

Mr. Whale, g

Mr: WHALE.. Mr. Chairman, my name is Arthur: R.: Whale. I am
chairman ‘of ‘the National Council of:Patent Law Associations. We'
number: about ‘43" associations, connected mth State bars and local-'
and State groups of patent lawyers:~ = -

One thing I think distinguishes us in testlfymg in thls regard is
that, in-a sense;. I will' modestly: say, we are experts. We all have
some kind of dealings with the Patent office, many of us for many:
years, So when we:speak of conditions in and at the Patent Office
and the condition of: products commg from the Patent Office, we do:
so from personal experience;. . ‘i ;

~We:feel, the associations: representmg the natlonal council;’ that ’
the function of the Patent -and Trademark Office is indeed im-.
paired by its connection with the Commerce Department: This view
has been specifically communicated to ‘me, and I am authorized ‘to
transmit -it .to you, from-24 of.our 43 associations. Normally, the
chairman does. not speak:for the entire membership unless he has:
authorization from the entire’ membership..In the short time.in:
preparation for this hearing only 24 organizations were able to get
their internal procedures together to' transmit their views.” They.
‘1313\2787311 w1thout exceptlon, asked me to convey their support forf

Mr. Chalrman I would 11ke to pursue for a moment a pomt you
raised with Mr. :Dunner; the relationship between ' the patent
system and some of the other problems that are confrontmg us
now. Certamly it is no time to “polish the brasswork,” as we used
to do in the old-Navy, and it is a bad time to urge actions that-are.
going to cost money. But indeed it is a good time:to urge programs-
that will-be cost effective;, the:effect of which will be to buy-us:
programs that will: help solve nat1ona.1 problems and achleve na-.
tional goals. - - i

We hear much about the mnovatlon lag 1 suggest that mventlon
is the progenitor of innovation. It is really invention put to: ‘work.
The inflation that overhangs all of this must also be considered in
any redress:to the problem. But we must remember that the patent:
system provides the shelter for the investment in the inventions
and innovation that, in turn, can give rise to increased productivity
through- de51gn of new processes and new machinery, the substitu-
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tion: of less expensive materials for materials used before inindus-
trial processes, development of new ways to do old things, finding
ways to get sick people back to work sooner, increasing the indus-
trial process yields and yields from agricultural: processes. - These
are all part of innovation which are, in turn, come from inventions,
and: it is- the ‘Patent Office that is the residence of the patent-
system. So it is approprlate to leok at. the Patent Office in. thls :
broader context. -
-1 think it is: no c01nc1dence that the patent system is der1ded for
the condition it is in today. The courts have some: harsh things to.
say about it. Even though we look at.50 ‘percent validity, we have
to: remember that thls ﬁgure 1s an average There are some -
courts—— : =
Senator BAYH Excuse me, you are saymg that is a 50-percent
failure figure here. . . , , :
- Mr. WHALE. Yes: E ' R
“Senator ‘Bavn. That is hardly somethlng that makes one rest”
comfortably in mvestmg large amounts of money : il
-Mr.. WHALE. That is right. : :
-“We believe a part of the problem we can address in S 2079 arises
from this Commerce connection and the fact the Patent Office is
really a stepchild in this major Government department. You have
heard six past Commissioners report the views . of eight Commis-
sioners, all with remarkable consistency, to-the effect that:the
Commerce Department and the Patent and Trademark . Office
should be separate. These Commissioners: who have 'testified  have
‘come from various backgrounds. They were: all chosen' for their
competence in the field. They can’t’ all be wrong. Over all these:
vears there has been'a remarkable consistency in their views as
vovgtfl as the views of members of; the bar dealmg w1th the Patent
ice. - - :
As a matter of fact Senator Hart when he mtroduced S. 1321 in
1974, included as his very first provision in the bill a requirement
that the Patent Office ‘be separated from the Department of Com-
merce. He said, and 1 quote, /“First, the Patent Office would be
made - more :_independent', -divorcing it from the interests of. the
Commerce Department.” Senator McClellan didn’t often agree with
Senator Hart with regard to :patent legislation, but he did in this
instance: Senator McClellan said: “A chronic unsatisfactory rela-.
tionship has existed between the Department of Commerce and the
Patent Office-and this has contributed to the frequent changes in
the Office of the Commissioner of Patents and the 1nstab111ty in the
administration and programs of the Office.” =
As a matter of fact, Mr, Chairman, one of:the ex~Commlssmners :
who testified before you recently computed that in the last 10 years
the Patent and Trademark Office has been without a Commission-
_er -for. about 2 years, about 20 percent..of the time. This problém,
lack of continuity, of course, is compounded by the corresponding .
changes in the administration at the Commerce Department, and
particularly. in the composition of the lower level departments
within the Commerce Department w1th whom the Patent Ofﬁce
must deal. .. -
-As customers of the Patent Office, we are- sort of l1ke Wholesal-"
ers, really. Our:clients use the products of the Patent Office, and
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our premise:is that the Commissioners who have had. experience :
inside - are --talented, are gentlemen in whom we have had confi-:
dence and in whom the -administration that appointed them had.
confidence, and they have consistently. come: to this conclusion. .
They know the substantive implications of many of the problems
that the Office presents to its customers, and these problems have:
persisted through a succession of Commissioners,.so they are not .
associated with any identifiable weak personality at the head... :

We :think this constitutes circumstantial .evidence that there
must be a separation between :the-Patent Office and Commerce.

We could catalog, and I:am not going to-do it-.to any extent:
today, the matters of-administration that we see, as customers,
indict the relationship between the Patent Office and Commerce..
They are, you might think, susceptible to administrative.correction,
but the persistence of these problems suggests it i is more-than that..:
I refer to such things as the fact that examiners’ time devoted to
applications-is going. down-instead .of up, something -around -15
hours to study an application, to ‘look at the law, to make the:
search, and to make the substantive comments to the patent appli-
cant. In fact, the printed patents are sometimes months in coming
from the Government Printing Office or the agency doing the job.:

Senator BAvH. Excuse me, Mr. Whale. Are the ideas that are-
being studied, the ideas for which the patents are bemg requested
are those gettmg simpler? .~ - .

-Mr. WHALE. No, they are not. They are gettmg more comphcated
because technology is getting more complicated.

‘But the real problem in the-unavailability of these patents prop-.-
erly classified and:in: place is that the public isn't able to:search,
nor are the examiners able to search adequately to determine: the'_
patentability of inventions-before them, and the public is not able
to make its infringement searches and its determinations of wheth- -
er or not it -ought to file applications. When the files are incom-
plete sometimes to the extent of as high as 28 percent, this means.
that close to a third of the patents-are sometimes missing from the
files that are searched for these important purposes..: :

There is urgent need for reclassification of old patents and for
the 550,000 new domestic and. foreign. patents coming on stream. :
Would you believe in this Patent Office, representing: the most .
progressive nation in the world, the patent examiners. write. their
office actions out in longhand, and they are sent around the world
to patent. applicants in carbon' copies?. We are sometimes. unable
even to reproduce these carbon copies. Sometimes:the original:
Patent Office files of the actions of the examiner and applicant,
which are subsequently made available for public 1nspect1on when
a patent issues, are lost. No copies are kept on mlcrofilm ER

Senator Bayn. If I were doing it, you couldn’t read mine: -

‘Mr; "WHALE, ThlS often - 1s the ' case, and we- have to ask for
clarification.: .

-We also, Senator Bayh sometimes have to’ supply the Patent.
Office with our copy because they have lost theirs, -and: our copy
becomes the official record of the Patent Office. . .. ~

These things are even magnified in the Patent and Trademark'
Office where the search for a mark is very important prior to
launching of a new product.:But as of August last year, there were"
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10,000 marks that had not been laid .open for public ingpection-and-
were lodged in the administrative procedures of the trademark-‘
segment of the Patent and Trademark Office.: = +

-As a matter of fact, last year they: estimated by 1989 it: Would be
7 7. years between the time a trademark was filed and the applica-
tion was acted upon and laid open so that the public could inspect
records to see if their trademark was going to be safe and if they
could safely proceed with the preparation of their advertlsmg lit-
erature and introduction of products under those names. By that
time it would be 10 years between the filing of a tradémark appli-’
cation and final disposition of the application in the Office. Now
there have been measures  taken, we ‘are advised, partially I am
sure because of the concern you expressed in the last few months :
to rectify the situation with respect to-trademarks.

- Frequently, we have seen the crises-shift from one activity: of the:
Office to another, as the brigades are shifted to put out fires. What
I am saying is these Commissioners know the substantive implica-
tions of these administrative deficiencies, and we are. persuaded'
there is more than adequate circumstantial -evidence, in-conjunc-.
tion with ‘our testimony, that they would have corrected these -
deficiencies-had they had the freedom of action to do’'so, the free-
dom to dismiss incompetent employees, the freedom to-reorganize
the Office and to run their shop the way it should be run

Mr. Chairman, just in conclusion, invention and innovation are
highly dependent on an effic1ent patent system. New products, new
processes, new technology for increasing productivity, and produc-
tivity overtones for inflation, all these things come from innovation
and invention, and they are important factors in working out the
economic- problems we face. Fostering invention and innovation is
the sole purpose of the patent system. Under the patent statute
and the constitutional provision for it, the Patent and Trademark
Office is where the patent system starts. We feel S. 2079 offers a
way to significantly improve. the-efficiency and effectiveness of the
Office and through 1t the patent system a.nd all; 1ts correlatlve
functlons

Thankyou SR ' R

- Senator BAYH: Thank you very much Mr Whale I

Mr. Goldberg. - ~ :

* Mr.. GOLDBERG.. Thank you, Mr Chalrman : ;

My name is Morton-David Goldberg, and I am a partner in the'
New York City law firm' of Schwab, Goldberg, Price & Dannay. I
am chairman of the section of patent trademark and‘copyright law-
‘'of the American ‘Bar Association, ard I appear ‘on behalf of the
association at the request of the ABA president; Leonhard Janofsky.

Both the section of patent, trademark and copyright Law and the
American Bar Association strongly support this legislation to make.
the Patent and Trademark Office a separate and independent’
agency: We wholeheartedly: concur - with-the- cohments  you have
_&Eﬂ;a{leard from my dlstmg‘ulshed colleagues, Mr Dunner and Mr :

e .

Let me h1gh11ght some of the Teasons ‘we belleve S 207948 . very"
much needed. For one, the actions of the Commissioner, the presi--
dential appointee who heads the Patent and Trademark Office; are
" subject to review by the. Judiciary Committees of the Congress;:
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while actions of the Commissioner’s superiors.in the Department of
Commerce—those: superiors-to whom he must respond and with-
whose directives he must comply—are reviewed. by totally different
groups within the Congress. Those persons within the Department
of Commerce through whom the PTO presently must work are not-
knowledgeable in patent and trademark .matters, nor do they have-
{(1)1;301: experlence m the operatmn of the Patent and Trademark
ce o
Ag a consequence, the demsions Whlch Congress must make, af-.
fecting the Patent and Trademark Office, are based on insufficent
information, are based on erroneous information, and are not based
on information supplied by those who. are. most. knowledgeable of
the patent and tradémark systems. . . -
The proposed legislation would permlt the Commlssmner to be-
heard directly in those quarters: where the legislative -and. budge-
/ questions: affecting his ability to carry out his assigned respon-
sibilities are:debated .and- decided. That is,. he -would. be heard
directly, rather - than having Congress receive the information:
second-hand, third-hand, fourth-hand, and even further removed
from the source. In_other words, he "would not be subject .to the:
distortion of hearsay, a problem whlch we, as lawyers, all recognize
is.ene which distorts communication to a significant degree. . ... :
The work of the Patent and. Trademark Office affects the busi-
ness community. it affects the scientific.community. It -affects the
consuming public. It affects the economy of the United States as a-
whole. It plays a vital role in stimulating innovation in our coun-,
try, innovation which is sorely needed at this critical time. In his:
October: 31, 1979, statement to Congress on his Industrial Innova-
tion Imitiatives, President Carter acknowledged this, and he ac-
knowledged the need for an improved; effective and: efficient patent:
gystem. In order to obtain such a patent system, we submit that it
is imperative that there be .an improved, effective and efficient
Patent and Trademark Office. The bill before you would greatly
faclhtate this by making the PTO an 1ndependent agency. ;
It is particularly telling, as Mr. Dunner and Mr. e =have
pointed out, that every living former Commissioner has strongly
supported separation of -the:PTO from :the Department of Com-
merce. These are Commissioners who have had considerable exper-
tise and experience in patent.and trademark matters:. Each and
every one of those Commissioners who testified and those who were
unable to be here before you—they have had this .experience, this
expertise .in the.operation -of the PTO, as well as experience and-
familiarity with the needs of. the U.S. business-and industry. Co
It is also’ quite significant, I might point out, that the American:
Bar Association’s Patent, Trademark,.and Copyrxght Section, which
consists ‘of over 5,000 attorneys from .private practice, corporate.
practice and the Government, who deal regularly with the Patent:
and Trademark Office,: overwhelmmgly support the. separatmn Ofs
the Office from the:Department of Commerce. : V
The work of the PTO needs no supervision by the Department of
Commerce. In examining and. rendering: decisions .on applications
for paterits and registration of trademarks, the PTO clearly per-:
forms-a quasi-judicial function; and it is a common characteristic of.
governmental : agencies 'which: perform: largely. quasi-judicial func-:
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tions: that they ‘have the independent status wluch S 20’79 would
grant to the Patent and Tradémark Office. :

Present operation of the Office is hindered by nuerous problems
They have been described. Typical is a number of patent search
files with large numbers of patents missing. As a consequence it
makes - it very: difficult- to estimate accurately the likelihood of
obtaining patent protection on néw innovations. It ‘makes it very
difficult to determine adequately whether proposed new products
infringe existing patents. It makes it very difficult for examiners to
perform -thoroughly their .  important function in determining
whether patents should be granted on applications, and very diffi-
cult for industry to rely adequately on the patents it does receive:

‘In the trademark area, meaningful trademark searches cannot
be conducted, ‘because ‘of obsolete search systems. This leads to
erroneous business decisions on ‘the use of trademarks on_new
products from U.8. industry.

There are excessive delays in obtalnmg opinions from the trade-
mark examiners on ‘applications for - registration of new trade-
marks. 'As a result American busmess delays’ commercmhzatlon of
new products.

‘The Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks lacks authority to
reallocate budgeted funds to different missions when the necessity
for such reallocation becomes known only long'after the budget
forecast has been submitted by the Office to the Department of
Commerce

These problems, and others, impede the inéentives Whlch Amerl-
can industry needs to justify research and development exendi-
tures. And these research and development expenditures, as I be-
lieve you certainly know, are necessary for our economy, for our
society, for our Nation. .

In evaluating the performance ‘and requ1rements of the PTO the
Department of Commerce makes unrealistic estimates of its pro-
duction capab111t1es and needs. Those needs of the PTO which are
recognizéd are given low priority by the Department of Commerce
when it presents its overall programs and requests. The Commis-
sioner of Patents and Trademarks is required to support what the
Department perceives as the administration’s programs, and this
often subjugates the needs of the PTO to other: entities within the
Department. Thus, the spokesman for the PTO is unable freely to
communicate :its needs to Congress. Establishing the PTO as a
separate and independent agency would free the Patent and Trade-
mark Office from the restraints imposed by its present low prrorlty
position within the Department of Commerce.. -

1 would like to comment, if I might, on a proposutlon urged by
Mr. Wolek. He urged that it is necessary for the proper functioning
of the administration and the proper coordmatlon of policy within
the executive branch that the PTO; remain within the Department
of Commerce so that.its. policies can be coordinated with the other
entities within the Department and -the other entities: within the
administration. This, in substance, according to. Mr Wolek Would'
appear. to be the Ioglcal approach. . ;

I have several comments on that approach thch are approprlate
here. One is something Oliver Wendell Holmes once said: “The life
of the law has not been logic, it has been -experience.” And this
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committee has had placed forcefully before it the long,-painful
experience of the Commigsioniers.of ‘Patents and Trademarks who
have tried to. govern the PTO w1tlun the constralnts of the Depart-
ment. of Commerce. -

“In addition, the experts in the area of admlmstratlve law say to
the contrary of Mr.. Wolek. Professor. Kenneth: Culp Davis, the dean
of the administrative law specialty, says precisely to.the contrary.
Indeed, I had occasion recently to.come: across a very interesting
article in the Yale Law Review entitled “Regulation and the Politi-
cal Process,” at. 84 Yale Law Journal, 1,895—1975-—which makes a
comment which I think is most approprlate here,;-to the effect, “As
a practical matter, the inside agencies are no more. subject to
Presidential dlrectlves on. specific policy issues than the independ-
ent agencies.” The senior author of this article is-none other than
Lloyd N. Cutler, who, as you know, is counsel. to. the President,

I submit that it has been recognized in the highest areas of the
administration that it is not necessary for the proper.functioning of
the PTO that it remain within the Department of Commerce. If
one looks at the organization chart of the Commerce Department
in the Government Manual, it is apparent that the PTO compriges
but the little toenail of the body politic of the Department of
Commerce. In a Nation such as ours this is a disgrace. If the
Congress is to implement its power under the Constitution to pro-
mote the progress of science and the useful arts, the PTO must be
given its independence.

On behalf of the American Bar Association and itg section of
Patent, Trademark, and Copyrlght Law, I strongly urge the enact-_
ment of thls leglslatlon

“Thank you, Mr, Chairman. - _

‘Senator Bave, Thank you very much, Mr Goldberg '

Gentlemen, there may be a question or two that I would llke to
submit to you in writing. I-know you are very busy, and we have a
number of withesses we want to have a chance to ear If you don’t
have an objection, I w111 submlt my questlons m wrltmg I am
grateful to you. -

[The questions referred to will be found folIowmg the prepared
statements.] - 3

We are all concerned about product:mty, efficiency, good man-
agement, and it just seems to me that we have t¢ persevere- agamst
the forces of the status quo.- We are going to continue. I don’t
attribute any malice to anyone, but it is sort of like the fellow that’
accidentally killed his neighbor with his empty gun. He was sorry,
but the neighbor was still-dead. I think it is important for us to get:
this situation changed and I can’t thank you enough for “your
contribution.-

‘Senator: Thurmond, it is good to have you -with us. You are one
who is concerned about productivity and good management. -

- Senator ‘THURMOND. ‘I would like to ask this-question. You ‘can
each. -express yoursgelves. Would there be a:need for increaged fund-
ing:if you set up the Patent Office as an independent and separate
agency? Frequently: when we set-up an office‘as a separate agency,
then there seems to be a demand for more: staff, .more appropri-
at1ons, more fundmg The people now’ are demandmg less staff to

‘1 Bee Davm, Admmmtratwe Law Treatlse, § 2.9 (2d ed 1978)
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reduce the bureaucracy, to reduce the people in Washmg'ton I Just
wonder about your opinion on that.

‘Mr. GOLDBERG. Senator, I would simply respond to that very
briefly. We are talking about an existing bureaucracy—if you wish
to call it:a bureaucracy——an existing bureaucracy, not a new. bu-
reaucracy which is to be created. Second, if indeed the Patent and
Trademark Office were removed from ‘the Department of. Com-
merce, it would be possible to reduce some of theexpenditure
presently devoted to communicating and to attempting liaison with
‘the Department of Commerce to break the barriers of communica-
tion which are built into that Department. In other words, some of
the levels of bureaucracy which presently exist would indeed be
eliminated were there a transfer.

Senator THURMoOND. You.don't think the cost would be less‘?

Mr. GoLpBERG. With respect to that, there clearly would be: less.
The existing needs, the woeful deficiencies in the operation of'the
office, which both Mr, Whale and Mr. Dunner have described very
eloquently, those deficiencies would, be remedied. Some of that
remedy would cost money. But the alternative, whether the PTO
becomes - independent or remains within the Department, is to
leave those deficiencies unremedied. The remedy must be applied,
Senator, we . submit, whether the PTO becomes independent or
whether it remains within the. Department. :

Senator THUrRMOND. The . deﬁclenmes have to be remedled in
either event. ) B y ; .

Mr. GOLDBERG. That is right.

Senator THURMOND. I would be glad if these other gentlemen
would express themselves.

Mr. DUNNER. Senator, I would add to that, 1 baswally agree w1th
Mr Goldberg. I have seen a number in the record. There may be a
short term, modest cost of establishing the Patent and Trademark
Office as an independent agency. I recall seeing a number like
$100,000 short term. I, personally, feel that there are certain needs
that will be required whether the agency stays as it-is or is moved.
And long term, T think efficiencies will result which will more than
offset that very short term, very modest cost by eliminating double
layers of review which presently exist, and the present inefficien-
cies which exist, ‘But the number I have seen is no more than in
the neighborhood of $100 000 short term for creating an mdepend—
ent agency. I believe it is in the record before thlS com:mttee, the
precise number,

Mr. WHALE. Senator, I thlnk there is another source of savmgs
quite apart from the 1ndependent increases that might be neces-
sary to redress some of the problems, and that is a savings that
would result from the Commerce Department end. We have heard
that Commerce is so confused with what they hear from the Patent
and Trademark Office in connection with its plans, with its pro-
posed budgets, that it assigns-many people to work over the prob-
lem and, presumably, to try to understand enough of it to transmit
it to Commerce and to the Office of Management and . Budget.
Certainly there would be a substantial savings at the Commerce
level. If you look at the total picture insofar as the Patent and
Trademark Office is concerned,.in the testimony here today we
have related the increased efﬁ01enc1es that we believe would be
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possible’ were the Patent and Trademark Office to be ‘set' up as a
separate agency. The greater investment.in processes and- products
that will lead to new products and greater productivity and to
those thmgs which do have a bearing on inflation.-We-are certainly
not experts in costing a new agency, but we do see the efficiencies
creating savings. We see the savings within the Commerce Depart-
ment certainly working strongly against any increased cost to ad-
dress some of the deficiencies we have talked about today.

Mr. DUNNER. Senator, may I just supplement one point. I have a
statement by Senator Bayh which ‘he presented at the hearing on
January 24, “The added cost of 8. 2079 would be minimal, estimat-
ed at: about $150,000 a year.” That is short term That is’ where I
got that from.

Senator THURMOND. Next T was’ gomg to ask about efﬁc1ency,
whether there would be an incréased cost and whether it be more
efficient as an independent agency: I think you two gentlemen
have responded. Mr. Goldberg, what is your opinion? - -«

Mr. GorpBERG. Clearly, for the reasons which have been men-
tioned by all three of us, T believe greater -efficiency ‘would occur
within the independent agency because the efficiencies could be
implemented- without the additional ‘bureaucratic complications
attendant upon being a part-of the Department of Commerce. The
Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks would have the flexibil-
ity, for- example, to make certain reallocations of efforts and of
some of the funding within the PTO when the needs arige, It would
be pogsible to respond to needs as they are perceived rather than to
detect the needs, then'go through the hierarchy of the Department
of Commerce, and then perhaps a few years later- be able to come
back to those needs to try to do something about them. What I
have just described was the experience of several of the Commis-
sioners - of- Patents and Trademarks who test1ﬁed at the pnor
hearing. ' -

I recall’ spemfically Comm1ssmner Schuyler 1nd1cat1ng that he
detected a need for computerization in one of the areas of activity
of the Patent and Trademark Office, but by the time this imple-
mentation of the computerization was approved by the Department
of Commierce, it was-already a few years later and the néed had
become far, far greater and problems had become far, far greater.

“Senator THURMOND. Let me ask-you this now. Suppose you had
an - Asgistant Secretary of Commerce specifically for patents and
copynght would that answer the questxon‘?

Mr. GoLDpBERG. No, Senator, T don’t believe so. : '

Senator ‘THURMOND. ‘Th other- words,: if he actually was there
physically, that is his job, if he is an Assistant Secretary of Patents
and nothing else and gave his whole time to it, then he wouldn'’t be
back and forth. He would be there. - -

Mr. GoLDBERG. I don’t believe that would really resolve the prob-
lem, Senator, for a number of reasons: There would still be the
need eveén for the Assistant: Secretary to work with, and through;
the bureaucratic levels of the Department of Commerce. The Gen-
eral Counsel’'s Office and other areas within the Department of
Commerce would still-be subject to a perceived, or a misperceived,
need: for-elaborate coordination between the Patent and Trademark
Office and other elements within:the Deépartment of Commerce.
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Andeed, 1f I may, Senator,-this proposal, which I know has been
made before is to.me reminiscent of some of the movie sets that
are constructed where there is a facade only and there are-a few
props behind 1t creating the image, the appearance of a solid
structure, but, in fact, there is no solid structure behind it. It is a
cosmetic constructmn and it really .does not meet the problem.

T believe that Abraham Lincoln asked the question, if you call a
dog’s tail a leg, how many legs does the dog: have? He said ‘the -
answer is not five, it i still four, because simply calling it a leg
does not make it a leg." And simply setting up a position which
purports to give nominal autonomy and greater prestige for the
Patent and Trademark Office does not, in fact, give it that prestige,
that autonomy which we believe is necessary and which we believe”
this'bill does provide.

Senator THURMOND. So it is your judgment, from the cost stand--
pomt it '‘would be rio ‘more expensive to operate, from an efﬁc1ency
standpoeint it-would be improved, and from a-standpoint of time, if
you want to put that as a third element—that really comes under
efficiency I guess—your work would be expedited and it would be
for the convenience of all concerned is that your Judgment‘?

- ‘Mr. GOLDBERG. Yes,sir. _

“Senator THURMOND. Is that your Judgment‘? o

My DUNNER. Yes; Senator. '

- I would like to very briefly supplement what Mr Goldberg sa1d'
in responge to your last question. That question was asked of the.
six former. Commissioners who testified January 24. Their position-
states it more elogquently. I can read a sentence to summarize what:
they said about making the: Commlssmner of- Patents an: Assmtant
Secretary. Commissioner Dann stated, ‘ N

Direct contact with OMB would be better thaii‘the present mtuatmn, but would'
have not much effect unless the PTQ: budget were made independent. -5 .

If he were an’ Assistant Secretary, he would still be subJected to’
the views of the Commerce Department. And the unanimous view, '
current’view, of the six Commissioners is- that it would not be
advisable to ‘make him an Assistant Secretary. In fact, the Com-
merce Department opposed previous leglslatlon to that effect wh1ch-
. has been proposed in Congress. ..

Senator THURMOND As 1 understand you have one Commlssmn—
er’now, : - L

Mr. GOLDBERG. Yes

Senator TaurMoND. He is the top man over there. - T

Mr. DunNER. Yeg, sir, in the Patent and Trademark Ofﬁce s

.‘Mr. GOLDBERG. SubJect to'what we have testified about. " -~

Senator THURMOND. SubJect to: the rules and regulatrons of the
Commerce Department.. ° :

“Mr. DunNER. And -the COntrol of the Assmtant Secretary for-
Science and Technology.: There is an Assistant Secretary of Com-
merce for Science and. Technology, who is the Commissioner’s boss, .
and that in the.past, in.our opinion, and in the opinion- of the
Commissioners, has created substantlal problems not only because
there has been-a revolving door in the Assistant Secretary’s office,
with Asmstant Secretaries coming and :going, but it has hampered
them in their freedom of operation and in the ability to control the_
functions of the Patent and Trademark Office. .
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Senator TaurMonD. Has this Assistant-Secretary gwen full t1me
to this or is the Patent Office just oné of his duties? :

"Mr. DUNNER. Just one of his many respons1b1ht1es, and it is only :
4 percent. of the entlre Commerce Department Itisa very small':f
part. :

‘Senator THURMOND How much t1rne would you estlmate that he
gives to this? <~ .

Mz, DunnER. I really would not hazard a guess.

‘Senator THURMOND. Wouild it be 50 percent? ' i

Mr. Dunner. I would guess it would be much less than 50
percent certamly no greater than 25, a.nd I would be surprlsed if it
were that.. ,

Sen?abor THURMOND Has the Assustant Secretary testlfied on that'_
point?

Mr. GoLpeerc,. His deputy did. testlfy, Senator T do not recall
whether his. deputy ] testlmony 1ncluded response to.your specrﬁcj
question, -

.Senator Bava. We have had the. Commerce Department testlfy _

Mr. GorpBErG. If I. may, Senator Thurmond I would like. to:
make one comment with respect to your questron To. the extent
that the time of the Assistant, Secretary for: Science and Technol-
ogy is devoted to Patent and Trademark Office affairs, we have an
area of superfluous activity which could be eliminated and where
there would be a budget saving if the Patent and Trademark Office:
were made an independent-agency. In response.earlier to your -
question about the alternative remedy of making the Commissioner .
an Assistant Secretary, I think; to use:the legal cliche, that would:
be a triumph of form over substance That would not achieve the.
substance which S. 2079 clearly would. -

Senator Baym: I would say-to my colleague from South. Carohna,
we have had the Assistant Secretary 8 deputy up here who really
has the line item function. :

Senator TaurmonD., I just wondered if the Assistant, Secretary
who actually oversees the Patent Office and is responsible for. its
operations testified on this point.. . .

Senator Bavu. The Deputy Assistant. who, actually does that was;
here to testify, Mr. Wolek.. ~ --

Sie]?a?tor THURMOND. And what percent of the t1me does he devote,;
to this

Senator Bayn. He dldn t say. Obvmusly not enough ‘because the
Office is.a mess. ..

Mr. WHALE. On the: other hand we mlght say he glves too much
The concept of: the Assistant Secretary .of Commerce has been
around for a long time. Indeed, I was in favor of that a number of:
years ago: Ithink inevitably it would bring:about an incremental
improvement in communication: But just as-inevitably I think we
need more than :an incremental improvement:at this time, and:
under these conditions of ‘innovation problems and- mﬂatlon prob-
lems; I think we need to take the bull by the: horns: 5

Senator THURMOND. 1 might say normally I favor consohdatmg.
agencies to reduce cost, and thls mlght be a- case where Just the'
reverse istrue.

Mr GOLDBERG. Prec1se1y our pos1tlon



Senator Bavu. -Before you leave, let's just-deal with this cost
question, because I expressed my concern with it before the:Sena-
tor from South Carolina got here. This i$:one of the few agencies of
Government that actually charges fees for the semces they render,
is that correct? :

- Mr. DUNNER. That iz correct.. : : :

. Senator Bava. And. if we get the operat1on runnmg the Way it
ought to be, if we can get the operation cleaned up, we are really
going to raise more money, is that correct‘?

‘Mr. WhALE. Yes.: :

~Senator Bavn. Is it not also accurate that all of the money they
raise goes into the Treasury and is not returned d1rect1y to the"‘
Patent and Trademark Office? -~ = =

~Mr. DunnEr. That is correct. VR 8

Senator Bayd. Even as they pay as they go and support most of
their expenses, we still have to go through a lme 1tem __budget
again.

‘Mr. GoLpBERG. That is correct.

If I'may, Senator Bayh, as Mr. Whale 1ndlcated very appropnate-
ly before, far greater than the contribution to.the Treasury ‘you
have just described is the contribution to the gross national prod-
uct, the contribution to income tax revenue, and the other benefits
which the Government would receive and society would receive if
\(x)rgf_ have a more efficlently functioning Patent and Trademark

ice.

Senator THUERMOND. It is your interpretation under the legisla-
tion that is now being considered that the Patent Office would just
be cut loose from the Commerce Department and retain its present
structure of having a Commissioner and the other officials as is
present, or would you envision a new type of structure for the
Patent Office?

Mr. DunNer. We would envision the former. It would be cut
loose and essentially there would be the same general overall struc-
ture. There obvicusly might be deficiencies resulting within, but it
}vould not be a totally revised, totally revolutionized agency in

orm.

Senator TaurMOND. Would you contemplate one Commissioner,
like you have now, running the department?

Mr. DunNER. Yes, sir.

Mr. GoLDpBERG. And that Commissioner would have a fixed term
under the legislation, Senator.

Senator Taurmonp. He would be appointed by the President,
correct?

Mr. GoLDBERG. Yes, by the President, with the advice and con-
sent of the Senate.

Mr. WHALE. May I add that the creation of a separate agency for
the Patent and Trademark Office is not like creating a new depart-
ment that didn’t exist before. We have statutory constraints and
metes and bounds and the organization has been going since about
1798. We have a very great need for the independence to tinker
within to improve efficiency.

Senator THURMOND. All you want to do is cut the umbilical cord
and let it go.

Mr. WHALE. Let it go.
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-.Senator Bavn. I appreciate. the Senator ] mterest

Gentlemen;thank you. .= =~ 7 I

i 1: notice; Senator Danforth from the Governmental A.ffalrs Com-'
mlttee has joined us. Did you have. questions?:: -

Senator DanrorTH. No questions. Lo

Senator Baya. Thank you very much, gentlemen, Seldom have I
seen such unanimity amoeng affected:groups as to how the problems
of Government could be dealt with more efficiently. than has been
presented by your testimony here. It is doing to be interesting: to
see what the other witnessess say. I notice we have the National
Small Business Association, which has more than a passing inter-
est in this problem; and we have the National Association of Manu-
facturers and the U.S, Trademark Association::So it will be inter-:
esting to hear Where your cl1ente1e come. down on: thls 1dea Thank

OW, - _ TR S
y - Mr. DUNNER Tha.nk you

Mr. WaaLE. Thank you.

Mr. GoLpBERG. Thank you, : o

[The prepared statements. and answers to wr1tten questlons of
Messrs Dunner, Whale, and Goldberg follow] o
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF DONALD R DUNNER, PRESIDENT, AMERICAN .
PATENT LAW ASSOCIATION

I.am Denald R, Dunner, current :President of tha ‘Anerfcn Tatasf Law =
Asgociation, ..The American- Patent Law Assoclation (APLA) 1s”a national éociétji: '
of lawyers engaged .in the practice of?atent, trademark, copyright, licensing
and related fields of law relating to commercial and intellectual property
rights. APLA membership includes lawyers in private, corporate, and éﬁve‘fﬁment
practice; lawyers assoclated with universities, smell basirdeds and large
business;_and lawyers active.both in the domestic and :Lntemét:ﬁnal t"r‘arisfer'-
of technolepy areas,

__The American Patent Law.Asscciation. strongly supports 8. 2079, the
Independent Patent and. Trademark Office Act. ‘Thé’ Asscciation believes that
the enactment of this legislation would si'g'niﬂcantly strengtheh -the patent
and trademark. systems-of the United States. - °

IE RN RE R ES

The functfon of the Patent and Trademark Office (PTO) 1s to exécuté and °
administer the Federal patent and trademark laws: ~The PTO determines whether -~
an inventor.who files a patent application will or will ﬁbt be pranted by the
Government 17 years: of exclusive use of that invention, Whether & patent will *~
issue requires an applica-tion of the law to a certain set of fagéts. ' Such
quasi~judicial decisions are made tens of thousands of times by thé PTO each %
year, and have been since 1836, -The PTO aleo determines whethér tradematks
meet thg,:stal:ut,ory.requir?unents for Faderal reglstration. The procéssing of
thousands of trademark registration applications in accordance ‘with'the law
goes on each year, and has since 1870, - o

Although the PTO has been administratively located within the Executive

Branch in the Departments of State Agr:l.cu!_t,ure and c:ommawe., until ‘the early
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1950's it possessed a High degrae n;_i::é.c;pé}aléance{ '___Ffdn- 1836 thrsagh .I‘;‘Ji&ﬁ,
the PTO was directly responsible to Etn;—.nding Cowalttees nn Patents of the
House and Senate. . It.is.clear -from hindsight that the :elimination of this:
direct responsibility and the ultimate. sbolutlon of -those.Committees has had a' "
ser:[:ous, and deleterious impact.on :the:working relationship between. the Office n
and the Congress, . .. :: dalivami o

. V'I‘hie:_qu_c:etar.:y.p_fr Commerce and the Assistant Secretary for Sclenmce and
Technology have no role whatever to.play in:substontive. decisions made fn-the ~
PTO. Woether a patent will ilssue or.whether-a trademerk will:be registered:
are declsions which should not be subject. to extranecus influenee, “Tha PTO -
must continue to -be responsive: only..to -the-letter and-spir;l.t of Titles 17 and
35 of the United States Code, However,.the Congress of the United States, and
particuiar_ly.tha House and. Semate. Judiclary Conmittee's do have a sighificant it
role to play regarding the vitality of the: patent and trademark laws and -the’
manner In which they are executed by the PTO.  However, this Commirtee has
heard from six former- Commissiouers of Patents: and Trademarks that there is
virtually no unfettered. contact between the PTO and the Congress.-

The isolation of the PTO from: the Congress has- been:made manifestly clear '
to us by the ;eatin;ony of these. former Commissloners:and.by:the following’ _' -
incident, In 1976, the Senate passed a. bill, 5. 2255, ﬁhich—-ﬁbuld Have
significantly amended the patent. laws, -reorganized, the PT0, and implemented
the Patent Cooperation Treaty.  This.was the mést significant plece of legis- "

lation to reach either I-louse_-of_Congreas;relatiug' to:patents- since. the 1952

dct. Yet on the.floor of. the Senate, Senator MeClellanisaid: -7 - ;

I agaln expresg my regret that the-administration®
has not authorized the Commissioner of Patents to make
. hls views known to.the Congreas. -The:-subject matter of::
this legislation is highly technical. The Gongress in
. adopting a new patent cede. ghould have:the counsel of -
the Commissioner of Patents. '

-2



The 1éolétioq ef the PTO ig, hnwgver,,nég;bnly'WLth zarpact o the
Congress. As the six Aurmer Covnissioners hzve/m‘da amrlj clagy, the P79 im
effectivgly isolgted, as well, from the: very Department charpged with. its
administration. By'way'of example, on January'24, 1980, the most recent,
former Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks_teutified before this Committes
that the Carter Administration was about to propose a significant plece of
legislation affecting the owngrsﬁip of patents arising from research and

development funded by the Federal Government.. And yet, Commisaioner Banner

and his succesasor Conmissioner Diamond, presumably appolnted. by the President :

and confirmed by the Semate because of experlence and expertise in just such.. ..

matters, were not consulted.

The net result of this structural arrangement is
that the Commissioner is a bystander, not a participant,
in many . policy decislons directly connected with patents
and trademarks. For example, a recent administration
proposal has been made relating to the ownership and use
of patents arising out of government contracts. This
issue obviously relates to-the effective use of tech-
‘nology on which a tremendous amount of tax dollars has

_been -- and will be —— spent. WNevertheless,. the Gommis~
sioner has not had any contact whatsoever with that
- propesal nor any volce in its formulation. Therefore,
nelther the President nor any other person in the entire
Administration or in the Congress has had the benefit of -
the Commissioner's views.

To this day; although the Buhject of gﬁvernﬁént éafent poliéy; (iﬁcludiﬁg the
proposal of President Carter) has heen actively cousidered by at least three
Committees of the Congreas, ne word has been heard by Congress from the
Commissioner or anyone else in the PTO. .

'The APLA belileves that évery effort must be made to establish a Qorkiﬁg
relationship between the PTO and the Congress. :6n1§ then céﬁ the Congress
meke an informed assessment of how the patent and trademark systems are B

operating and how the patent and tradematk laws are being executed. ha are

w3
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confident that  the Congress would desionstraze a slgnifieantly hipher degres of
interest in and sengitivity to thE‘impdrténce’of the patent and trademark ™
systems'to our- country than has beén demonstrated in the past yedrs by the
Depattment' of Commerce. -
. kK E K KRk Kk

Tha\Report of the Hoover Commission in 1950 led to the approval bf
Congreas ;f a reorganization plan which, “among other things, vested the
authority of the Comie_cioner of Patents in the Secretaxry of Commerce, ‘Ta
1962, the Patent Office .was'"pla'ced under’ the authiority of the Assistant
Secretary for Scilence and-Technology. These actions desmgraded the Office as
a governmental entity and cut the Commissioner off fro'm.'a direct working
relationship with the Secretary of Cofmerce, ~We agree witi fqmcr Commis~
sioner Schuyler thet tn.eee'twn‘ enente ntecipitated tne'dete_rioration of the
efficiency and effectivenees'n'f_ the-_ PTD,which contloues ‘today,’

There can be nehnueétionr that the. .P'-I'O‘ niays' e: ci:itica,l:‘ cen_tral tole ia
the operation of the patent and ttadematk sygtems, There can also be no )
question that the PTD has been seriously underfunded for many years and that
inadequate resources have setiously eroded the setvices the Office provides to
the public. 'I‘hose facl:s have been repeatedly demonstrated before this
Committee :I.n the recent teatimony of numerous lmowledgeable experts. _ ) )

We would note at thia point the significant increase in funding ($6 ?43 000)
for fiacal year !.981 In testimOny before I:his Committee on S 2079 the
Commerce Dcpartment spukesman, Dr. Francis Wolek explained that in the past )
the PTO‘ tequests for funding “were confusing" and that the PTO "had not
ptesented a convincing case for added resources In our view, this testimory
begs the question as to wh}r the Department ot’ Commerce, Kfor many ye s 1_n‘

whm
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control of. the budgrtary.declsions rega:ding;the_PTD,;didnft.attempt:toﬁ L
determine until this past.year whether:these.requests were-legitimate or.mot.:.. .
This obvious.lack of interest:in.the PTO by the Department.of .Commerce OVer ..
the past; decade stropgly .demonstrates the need to make:the:PTO.an indepencent .
agency.. -As Commissioner Dann has said: "Independent status would.permit. . .:...:
control-aﬁd.managemgntqof the 0ffice; by persons who. are knowledgeable and,
interested in the field of intellectual prnpertynrathé;Jthan_byzpersons_whoc;,, g
may have substantially greater.concern wi:h;other_ﬁattars;“r' Ced el oran oo
The ;members.of this .Assoclation and.our.clients depend upon the Patent
and Trademark O0ffice. You:can well-imagine our concern.in hearing:frem the-. . .-
Commissioner and from.the.Assistant Commissioner. for Trademarks: that-cap-
abilities of 'the Office:are rapidly. deteriforating... In October:of.1978,:then
Comnissioner Domald,Baoner: wrote: ... ..io .- .- A
:Internally,: the Patent and Trademark Office is.in.

dire straits. Years of serious ‘under-funding have

resulted- in:. .iu.a (& 1engthy 1list . of operating defi- . . . ..

ciencies) .... Clearly, at present resource allocation

levels, the United, States;will have, in a'wery few.:, .G ... fos oo i

Years, a second rate patent syatem.

And 1a August of 19?9 Sidpey A. Diamond then the Assistant Commissione: for

e Coﬁmissioner

f the PTO, said

Trademarks, and now

Cmnn el PRI NP SR o

All of you are aware of the fact that the Trademark
vt - Examining Operation has been. falling .farther and: farther. .- . ..qo -7
behind in its work....Our goal for pendency to first
; ;action 1s three'months, based .on the-fact .that this 13 ..ino<5r
the shortest practicable perlod of time; and three )
. months. pendency. to first.action actually.was.achleved-in - i
fiscal year 1977. By the end of fiscal year 1978, this
had risen.to gix months. - Our estimate for fiscal 1979 ... .
1s that pendency to filrst action will increase to four-—
-teen months ... ...(Fven)..(1)f we .get :the additional per~ _ .
‘sonnel requested in the 1980 budget, our pendency to
o firat action will be::. 1980 estimated .= -13.months; 1981 . .. ..
esgtimated - 16 months; 1985 estimated - 25 months ....
In conclusion, T can tell.you:that I certainly did not,
take this job in order te preside over the demise of the
-United- States.trademark aystem.. .. ... ..o .

% k& *”tq* XEE

—5= SRrdansn o]




Commissioners, each servinf an- average of léss than three years. ‘During the- 7'

_Dffice, and particularly an- " the profe-sional examiner corp
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The Office of Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks has had a proud

tradition.  From 1836 through 1948, not only did many promident :lawyers from

‘intellectual ‘property practice sérve but nine former Membérs of Congress alsos i

sexrved as' Commigsionersi: However, today we must:face the reality that the -
Coumissiocner is an’employee of an Assistant Secretary of the Commerce Depart— .- ks

ment. Since Commissioner Watson's term ended in'1961, there have been seven -

past ten years, the Office of Commissiober has baen’ vacant for tio’ years. ¥

The best among us have agreed to serve as’ Commissloner. However, it-1s

‘becoming well~known that this position-is marked by a high level'of frustraticn

born of the:inability either to administer the PTO or have effective input‘?n--’
policy effeetingEtHe patent and trademark systems. *We believe thisg "revolving.
door” situation casts doubt on whether the most qualified persons will-agree':
to serve in the future. We alsn believe that the rapid turnover of Gommis-

Gk

gloners has had a definite deleterious impact on the 2800 employees of the

**********

The United States and the American people not only deserve but need to

have efficlent and effective patent and trademark systems. The Patent and

Trademark Office must be meaningfully upgraded. In our view, S 2079 s the

only effective way to do this in- the long term. S 2079 has the atrong support
of all of the living formEI Commiaaioners of the PTO. It has the neax unanimous

aupport of lawyers who work closely with the PTO and are in a position to

understand its deterioration. It is strongly aupported by th.

business community We understand the desires of the Commerce Depertment to

maintain the status quo. However we believe that the cOngress oE the United
States must asseas thia problem dispaseionately and corradt: tHe nistakee of
the past by the enactment of §,72079, This bill fs in the national interves:
and deserves to be enacted.

Thank you. . N
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Inemediste Part President 1.8, 2079 to create,an independent Patent and -
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four questions regard:l. g fssues which have’arisen 1a'con-
nection wir.h that proposal.

Board of Managers
The above persons and
Bucene L BarvarD
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Jonw A MausHari - 50 that they could ha\re more cnntrul gver” it.‘
Davtp 5. Ukey - < 1 :
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" Giry Mo
RebRRY Krne ©
RariJows -y iginesses and indépendent inventors all thé ‘way to and’
Cosedtman 1o Neprd * - LHeiunding the’ ldrgest mabufacturiiig ‘corporatibns «inithe .
Jou C. Doremais .. & United“States. . The::commgon denominator;is that:all of thes . -

"patent bar" represents the interest of g¢lients who have a

‘Exf:u.‘we Disestor right to be Protected unde,r appropriate clrcumstances and
MICHAELW 310MMER Yo purshdnt’ to Btatute in ‘thédr” intellectual property. While
P L it s’trwelthat the "patent bar" swirtually-unanimouslyi’
V. icovSupports- §¢,207%,. 4t &5 not: true and: I have seen.absolutely
no evidence that :h:Ls support :mel\res selfish 0 ultesior
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Attorneys whose careers involve working with and .
depending upon the PTO aré im a unique positlon to appreciate
that that agency of the government must operate im an .=
efficient and effective manner...Over the past several
decades it has been made manifestly clear to us that the PTO
is not functionlng properly. In recent years, the seriousness
of the situation has forced us .to speak out. In 1976,

Senator McGlellan on the floor of the Senate publicly made w
us aware that an Ilmportant patent reform bill would pass

that day without any input from the Patent and Trademark' : - :
O0ffice. ‘The 96th Congress 1s now debating a significant =
bill relating to government patent policyiand:yet we aré

told the PTO has had no input into_ that policy. .:’ '

In the course of our practice we see the efficiency of
the PTO deterilorating. Unconscionable delay of -operation
exigts from the issuance of patents and the registration of
trademarks. to. the processing.of mail. The; PTC. has insufficient
offi¢ce space. The number of patent. examiners is declining
and the dmount of time they can allot to -eath appllcation 1s
the lowest in the history of the Office.”"

We clearly observe, as that group in the private "~
sector which deals ‘directly with theg PTO, thdt a serious.
management problem exists. Commissiconer after Comm1551oner
resigns after short tenure;:each complaining.of the frustration
that current governmental sStructure creates.. -The Commissioners
all express’ frustratlon that’ they are cut off" from poelicy
decisions involv1ng the patent and’ trademark systems within
the Executive Branch, The Commissioners all express frustration
at having éxtremely-linited contact with the Congress. The
Commissioners all éxpress frustration at not being allowed
the authorfty to administer the PTO, Aincluding having a ;
signiflcant voice in- tha formulatlon Of the PTO budget._--;

What thef patent bar' wants is an efflcient “and affective
PTO. Those who would say the.bar would like to control the
PTO ‘miss the point: The Office ds currently isolated amnd
ignored. "What we desire 'is an’ active," constructlve and
vigorous interest in the PTO and in the patent and trademark
systems by the Congress and by the O0ffice of the Presldent
through OMB. If the PTO is made independent that is who
would control the PTO, not the patent bar.
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Question 1: .The. Commerce-Department -testified-
on Januarj 24 1980 that therpresent arrangement
;cof Department . oversightﬁ i
"Trademark.Office was . bette
Office and for the ,patent .
or dlsagree with this assessment?
Eevidenee that you know of to.support the
_Depattment's .contention? i e

We believe that the "evidence"” is clear that the
current .position of the PTO within .the Commerce :Department
causes .a seriOUS and contlnuing weakenxng of..the PTQ. . .The .
direct’ testimouy of the six. former ~Commissioners makes .it. .
manifestly .clear- that the situation .is causing. direct harm‘“'
to the PT0 and the ‘patent and. trademark gystems. Any
possible benefits which derive from the fact “that the PTO
is a part of the Commerce Department are greatly uutweighed
by the disadvantages of .that.relationship. .. Moreover, we -
know of mno evidencerto}suppprtqﬁhe epartment 8 contention

d

Question 3: There are. rivate slgnals being )
given out by the Department. that ‘they -now -s5ee -

the error of their ways..and will do .a better.
job from here on.out if the PTO . is Just left
under their care. Would you feel.comfortable
as a membey of the patent bar -1f..th
arrangement was continued aftér the Department

promised to do, .better? -Have, you ever . heard:
similar promises in the past, -and. if 50 hat
was_the resuit?l. . R T

.We .are aware that im the face of .a serious malfunctioning
PTO and the grow1ng 1nterest in, the problem by -the Congress,
the Commerce Department. is publlcly and,.privately: stating
that a more understanding and . upportive xrole will be-
undertaken ln -the future.t We.. have .no .doubt . that the present
Gommerce Department,executives intend to: attempt--to. understand
and support the PTO,.and its m1551on. - We believe, however,fg .
that the prohlems of the PTD do. .not, 1nvolve personalmties‘h
but the structure of the Commerce Department. :

3. 2079 1s 1ntended to sOIVe-an‘institutlonal problem.—:
Whether or not the PTO gets sufficlent support and whether
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or not the Commissioner of ‘the PTO is” involved in pollcy
decisions should not and. canmot- be determined by person-"
alities. As the head ‘6f-an independent agéneyy the Commissioner
of the PTO will be in dirdct’/cdontact with those persons ‘in

the Executive -4ndiLégislative Brauches-respon31ble ‘at the’
highest level for-implementing’ Tational policies - The'

economic circumstanceés of fécent years make i€ clear-'to all

that the services rendered“by.thewPTO.should ‘be. and must be

of the hlghest quality. '

P

In Light of the foregoing, wé ‘would not feel comfortable”’
if the presént arrangement was continved, notwithstandlng
any curremt- promlses ‘of ‘fhe Commerce Departmenmt.’ I should
note, however, that I havé no- dlrect ‘knowlédge of ‘similar” -
past promises of ‘the Commerce Department to improve the' :
operationsiof the PTO w

i

Questlon 2 The Commerce Department told usg -

at ithe dlast hearing that “the érux of "the

present PTO problem was the inability of the

Office to get ‘its Houde ‘in o¥der: ‘and ‘the : P el
"limited pérspectivé" -of the former Patent ™~ :
and Trademark: Comm1551oners ‘who'"could mot

perceive the big pidtute ‘that supposedlY ;

concerns “thie Departments Do you have any

comments on this assertlon° :

The record is 1ncompatible with this ‘dasertion. " If °
anything, it strongly suppdrts ‘the view’ that'ﬂt 1s thE"
Department which must.get. its. house in.order. :

By way of example, for yeéars thé Patent’ and Trademark
Office ‘hHds. been. slgniflcantly underfunded ;> resulting “in
significant: deterioration ‘of the ‘sérvices offered by the’ )
0ffice. Notwithstandlng that fact, Dr.-Wolek ‘who' testifled_‘“
on behalf of the Department ‘of -Commerce, ‘dekrowledged ‘that - ~
the ‘ddministrators’ of the Patent and -Trademark ‘Office were
competent’, but he blamed the pest .problems ‘o confusing K
budget ‘reguests.: He gald ‘the Patent and Trademark Office -
hadn't presented a gipnifdcant ease for added resources. ‘He '~
made that statement notwithstanding the faet that the
Department of Commerce, throu h' Assistaut Secretary Baruch
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supported an increase in.the PTO .budget:of 14 million dollars,
Having supported that iImcrease, the Department withdrew its
gsupport at the last minute, ‘blaming Tfs witHdrawal on the

faet that the money might®be - ‘mistusedi’ Misused by whom? The
same administrators Dr. Wolek suggested-are highly competent?!

S¢t111 further, Commissioner Bamner testified that when
he first camesdnto office :in 1978, he found.'a siganificant
budget deficlency which would prevent the Patent and Trademark
0ffice from paying itsiexaminers.  Nothing was .done .absut
that uneil 1979, at which point the PTO had ko pay printing
penalties and print-approximately 15,000-20,000 less patents
than it would have printed. Again, wheose house is not in

As"to the "limited perspective” of the former PTO
Commissioners, I . would only note-that the six former Commissiomers
who testified before this Committee had diverse and broad
backgrounds and included men from both private and corporate ... .
practice with ilmpressive leadershlp credentials and ex-
tensive managementrexperiencé, ::Thelr Jlong-standing:. conceras
about the conditions in the PTO were vindicated by the
President Vs ‘recent recogiitionithat the United  States was™

-experiencing an 1nnovat10n crisis and that one of the things

that had to e déné’ to-sol¥e the problem wWas td’ upgrade ‘the”
cperations of the PI0., If the Commerce Department had that
"big pieture” PpricT to thé Président's Domestic Pollcy

‘Review, it. kept that picture a big secret..

If we:can .be qufugther.assigtance to.you, please-do.. . . ¢
not hesitate to advise.

s néergly,

DRD 114 e
cc: APLA B ecutive Commlttee
Michael .W. Blommer, Esq.
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STATEMENT OF ARTHUR R. “WHALE,

CHAIRMAN NATIONAL COUNCIL

" OF . PATENT: LAW: ASSOCIATIONS
CTUON 8.4 20790 7

I am Arthur R. Whale of Indlanapolls, Indlana.- My
collateral dutles as a patent 1awyer for nearly twenty-flve

yearschqve.1ncluded_the'preslﬁepcy oféthehhpe;lcep;gatent.Law f

Association and the chairmarship of the State Bar of Miéhigen!e N
Patent, Trademark and Copyright Section. I appear at your kind

‘*in?itatieq*tpday_ae Chairman of the Ndtional Council of Patent

Law A55001at10ns.

The: Natlonal Councll is a loose federatlon of over forty
autonomous local tate and natlonal patent law assoclatlons

and patent and trademark sectlons of state an'”

throughout thercpuntyy,i:;t is'pnhsuel“fe;.théfﬁétioﬁali@oghéii

chairman to speak for its members in a representative “capacity
pecause of our organizational strictures: agalnst representatlon

of fewer than all the memhers However, I have sought speclal

approval to speak on the subject of these hearlngs for as many

member associations as. possible, b“

“ause I know of the strong

feelings that are runnlng in the bar concernlng this leqlslatlon

to establlsh the Patent and Trademark off;ce as a se

rate
agency. ‘I am pleased to report that ggggz menbexr assdcietibn“
that was able to complete its organizational formalities in
considering my request on short notice has advised me that it

wishes to be counted as favoring the passage of S, 2079. I
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have no reason to believe the substantive_resultg will be any

dlfferent when all the returns are. 1n..u_t_v

I want you to know the 1dent1fy of these organlzatlons, e

betause they ipclude some ofrtngwka;gest,anﬂ_mpst_agtlve_and'.
influential patent and trademark groups in the country. They .

are: . s T Togn e ot b e
American Association of Req. 'Pat! Attofneys s ‘Agenks v
American Patent Law Association

%Central New York Patent Law Assoclatlon
Chlcaqo Patent Law Assoc;atlon

" Cineinnati Patent Taw Ass"latlon PR
©.Cleveland Paternt.Law Association:

- .- Bar, A55001at10n of .the DlStrlCt of Columbla Lo JVH_,;

Eastern New York Patent Law Assoc;ation

‘tate- Bar of Georgla, ‘Pre “§ectid
... ’Houstofi -Patent :Law:Association ... =

Indlana State Baxr Assogilation

Maryland Patent Law Assoclatlon:

“Patent Law Adsodiation 6E Los Angsles

New York:Patent Law:Asscclation . 0D 50 e 7:af

~:Ohio.8tat e Bar Assoc1at10n

Phlladelphla Patent Law Assoc1at10n

'Plttsbuxgh Patént Law AsSogiatidn”
I:Rocheéster Patent:law Association:: - .
=‘_AKBaJ: Assocxat1on oE Metropolltan gt. Louls PTC Sectlon

Texas State Bar Assoclatlon, Intellectual Property Sectlon

Toledo Patent ‘Law Assoc1at10n _
TaiifrWashingtonsStatesPatentsLaw Assoclation . oor coe soie s
There is also-something wnique:I want:you to-know about:in;.

the support-of these:gréups:for 5. 2079:7x:I.can-conceive:of-no.
way that;any individual:in tne,National Counci;.no:“any;inﬁividualg
in the'practi¢ing patent. and trademark:bars;;could personally::
benefit from the separation of the Patent and Trademark Office

{PTO} from the departmert of Commerce. I can assure you with
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unquallfled certltude that I brlng you an unblased and unpressured
assessment based on accumulated experlence and observations of ’
the PTO as ‘an agency of the Commercé Department. That there

should be ‘such unanimity ameng so many people on afy issue is

remarkable -- and that we find this unanimity among all these’
lawyers it is absglutely unigue. . . .. % R ¥
Backdrop

In approaching's 2079 it ls 1mportant to lay a philosophlcal
basis that is consistent wlth today 5 realltxes. We:;eallze this
is no time in our naticn' s.11fe-to-be‘spend1ng money ‘o "polish

the brasswork," as’ we dld 1n'the old Navy I knew. It-is'a'bad

time to urge action that w1ll ost money. .But . 1t 15 the very

best time to get behind programs:that:can be cost effective if

the effects we are buying w111 be 1mportant to the solutlon of

important national problems eor to achlev1ng important national

cals. We believe S. 2079 epitomizes -this category.
goa’s Y

There are lndlcators that say our 1nnovatlon is flagging,

because the generation of new. technology has slowed partlcularly
as measured against our intermational competitors.: "Innovation"

is afdiffuse:word T thlnk whén wé are talklng hard facts ‘and

soft dollars 1t needs deflnltion.l "InnOVathﬂ"rlS really

invention put to work.  From-a broad perspective;.an "invention"

by itsélf and however ingenius, is- only somebody's.source of. .

self gratifiéation or.a contribution to the:1ibrary~0f*knowledge.~~
bf ¢ourse; " someone ‘may check an:invention out:ofotheylib:ary and ...

make it inté. an-innovation.. But.an:invention to. qualify as an
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i putting’ people’ to’ work producings <
things>peoplée will buy,  or in”providing new ways 'to increase ¢ e
produetivity, or in-sérvihg agovernmental function, such:agi---.i
nationalsdefense, ~<7 uoinlad Toownoeanoedn esn sen cmpues oo
But ovérhangifig 4ll’ thesé efforts, of course; is-inflation. =’
While 1t%Would b’ presumprndis of mwe ko talk to you about:s. i
economics, even a"patent  lawyer knows: that productivity of eur: ™ :
industry Eha'éééﬁding:by5§hr'§OVérnﬁént:éfe.majOr’avenues‘bf
attack en inflation. "Productivity,"-as méasured by the'
economists'. magic figures, is said to have gone down in-this
country’ for thé First- time® in out history. -~ I'm not sure what - o7
that means. ~But T’ do know ‘that- innovations“that enable the
Américan worketr to turnout more product in less  tile by using ®
better equipment, or to’ substitute 1655 ekpensive.parts or
ingredients For thosé previodsly used, or to'do ©01d ‘things ‘in
. new ways’"or tb:gét”éiék”bédpléhbéékxtd work sooner’, or to v
increase ‘yields 6f ddricultural products '-- ‘these make it: i

possible to stay competitive or to reduce prices or to compete - of

more effectively here and abroad., Viewed. in. this way..,
productivity is directly :glatequtp_technology_and,‘aqcor¢ip§1y;
to investment: in the development .of new technology... o e

-Reduced government .spending -is everybody's partial answer .
to inflation. But,; of course, .a blind cut in,spending,ﬁin_'
government -as. well as .in industry,.can -reduce the dqllQIS spent .
but,; at:the same-time, diminish or destroy: the effectiveness..

of those efforts most needed to deal, long term, with the very
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problems werare addressing... If the; cuts;are not strategic they .. .
can be counterproductive. . There may.even be areas:where increased.
expenditures are needed to increase.the effectiveness of agencies. .

or programs that have the promise of helping the fight against ;.. .

inflétiQF_;_We are not experts in:costing a- new agency's |
'operations;,but we. sgeriously. doubt, considering the: increased
efficiencies we would: envision at.the PTO and. reduced costs at
the Commerce Department,.that there,would“be.auSignificant
increase occasioned.by the separation.’
T suggest that in-a real sense there is no activity of. -
government more directly related to the seolution of the long-
term and.related problems of productivity and inflation than.
is the.system of patents administered by; the Patent and Trademark, .
Office. The prospects, for temporary respite. from copiers of the
fruite of inventive labors underlies much. investment, in phgx?r -
development of technology leading to,new products, new jobsy
higher productivity and, ultimately, to. greater qqmpe;itipna

in prices.and. quality. -

Rationale for ‘An independent agency - '~

-~ There is the danger, of course, that some: of what you hear
from those of us outside the PTO will sound “like’ trivia that is
susceptible '6f administfativé correction and,  therefore, bears
little rélevance to the issue of ‘establishing the-PTO as:a- ‘-
separate agency. You shdﬁld-know,-hoWevef,'that~£hE'mattérs-I~

will raise ‘have been With us ‘for many -years and through many -
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leadership teams -ati-the Helm :of- ‘the PTO ‘Thé current system = =7

demeans -this: country-unbelievablyy:'demeans -the professionals: i
in the PTO that try to.make:it work and subverts an importidnt”
and inxsomenrespectsjdriticalhfunctioﬁ'wﬁoée-shcrtddmihgs*are
catching up with us. 7.

It is -persuasive -to? us:-that ‘eight of the last eight i =i

commissioners :have reached the conclusion that: the time is now, ©i"

as it has been for-years;- that.thevPT0 be:séparated from the
Commerce Department.; ..0f :these. eight),:you have seefi.and heard ‘: ~
six .of. them -and, undoubtedly -have: formed your views as to what U
kind of men-they:are. ' They have been among the best we' have to’
6ffer.'aTheblast:tWO}hCDmmissioners:Dann'ahd“Banher, had headed: "~
corporateipatent:departménts.fo;.tWQ of:our: country's major:-
corporations. . Thereswas: no better:training for the!job of . w.::
commissionér. :But ‘you havelheard: Commissioner Banner!s.ringing:-
indictment of: :the status. quo: and the forceful ‘comments of :i::""
Commissioner::Dann té the same:effett. and -the others-have’
spoken similarly offexpErienCEsfand'relatiénshiﬁs of another day.
Their testimony is. powerfully. persuasive-as views from within:®
delivered ‘after reflection and wi£h‘complete:immunity from any:
benefit arising from the passage of 5.:2079. .

T would: mention; .too,.;that diring: the period of service-
of:these eight commissioners whose:views were presented-oxr:
represented to‘ yot -in earlier hearings,:there hawve: been even .
more humerous changes in the Department of Commerce’ hiarchy,-i:

including especidlly in: the:staff positidéns:with: which.the PTO:
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is relegated toc dealing.gn many; matters.. Through all:these <& . i7"

permutations. of people -there .seldom evolved a workable: relationship-

that endured.longer than one of the. incumbents.
On -the: other hand, this is not:implausible..~ The :Commerce ’
Department, given its insistence on the rather complete: =

subordination.;and even .its distrust -of;the PT0O leadership, is:

composed- of agencies and functions:having little or -no connection: .

with the mission of .the PTro.’ Commerce is concerned with:. ..o

administering. such diverse .functions as: the Maritime:Administration;
. the U.;S. Travel Services, the Bureau.ocf the: Census, the National -

Bureau of Standards, the National Fire.Prevention .and Controlix & ...

Office,-the National Oceanic.and Atmospheric Administratiohn and:

the National Telecommunication and Information: Administration. ...:=-

Its functions:related to U.: 5. and foreign trade would,.:at-first ...

impression,; suggest some-dommonality.with the PTQ. . But the:

significance. of any.common. interest /is. effectively -denied inuthe:i::

unresponsiveness: of the’ Commerce Department to the .problems. of i«

the PTO and to: its destructive intervention -in PT0. affairs.-
These have been presented to youin..earlier testimony. .

Much would:be: gained, if only from eliminating.wasteful-. ..
slippage, if the PTO as a-separaﬁe.agengyecould make its own .

representations.:: In particular, the budgeting process: needs

the direct interchange between:the PTC and:the:0ffice of:Management:

and Budget.: The tales are legion on the slips in translation: or

transmission that-have: occupied high. priced .government officials .

for inordinate periods: and:.have:had. devastating effects on the.. . .-
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money available:to =% and hence the programs implemented by =t
the PTO over the. years.--The availabilityiof a cabinet-levei’
spokesperson has’seldoi proved to be df bensfit to Ethe’prd; sé -
far as we can determinev’ In'fact, the relégation of PTO matkérs™
to busy and otherwise-octupied-asgistant écietariss and by
"sequential ‘referral” to" lower staff levels has been“and remains
a serious problem visible even to PTO"customersi & i@ 7

We ‘have  seen many ‘problems sHift'in seridusness, ds Pefer
is ‘robbied to pay Pauly through severil administrations in the
PTO :and at ‘Commerce - -There is sufficient -evidende to convinge < "
us that -3 -separate ‘agency would Be'in a ‘better positich to®
addrasstheseand other problems: ¢ one redsdn {s that earlier ¥
and more decisive ‘dction could be taKéW by eliminating fhe v -

layered bureaucracy that’ prévents the removal of-reordanizdtibn =%

of human iresources reéspoisive more immediateély ‘as the problems
- arise. Another reason is that administration would €ruly be “in’
the hands of “experts fin the matteérs af Harnd and in the = ‘& =%

substantive cohsequences. It -is imgorfart simply té Know what®
is important.” There 'is ‘need for''on-Hands-contfdl rather than = %"
subservience to'a ‘departiient whose ‘atféntisn and ‘concers are” "

measured, ‘we' believe, by the proportion ‘of its budget represénted

by the Pfo* -~::about5% .

in 1926. andthe'il952' Patent ACt conhferreéd full fesponsibility ™~

for its affaits ‘oh the Sedvetary of Commerce.’ “Takeh Wwith the - 9*

Legislative: Recrganizaticn' AGt 01948, howsver, ‘Ahofialy’ devéloped.
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This act‘gbolished ;he Standing Committees:on Patents.of the
House and the Senate and passed. jurisdiction. for patent.. -
legislatign:tq,therHouseL@ndﬂsenate-Jddiary Committees. But-
the Department of Commerce is . responsible to:other gongressional

_ groups. _SO-tpeLQQmmisg;qner.of-Patents.and;TrademarRSi
theoretically answers to.different .congressicnal aufhorify:than,-m"
does the Secretary of .Commerce, . ..: Lol

I say "theorstically! because.on.at.least-three. occasions
that have come to our attention the Commerce Depaftmentnhashflatlyﬁ
interquteq efforts of .a commissioner to:respond to. inguiries:from:
members othpg_ﬁenagezqqdipiary Committee, .apparsntly -to make .sure::
it waszthgICom@gxce‘;iqe_:athe;ithqqnthe,vigﬁ of -the government's. .
top patent man that was transmitted. -Senators McClellancand-. . 'r-
Scott had this. strange -experience in 1974, when they .solicited. : ..
Commissioner Dann's views on the Administration's patent bill,:.

S. 25D4aﬂandJ5qna;q:gBayh had .a. more recent experience.. ...

Tﬁe lateZSQnato:_ngtﬁwasVneyer‘;ggardedias,;;griend~of-.i
the views of the patent bar.on legislative matters, .He
nevertheless perceived a, fundamental.problem ;rising from the
residence of..the PT0, in.the house .of Commerce... Senator Hart ... ..
introduced 3. ;gg;qinilg73_fo; the..general revision of the patent ..
laws and included provisicns for establishing the: Patent Office: ..
as a, gseparate agency.. In his introductory. remarks, he.said:
"First,. the Patent. Office wonld be. made more .independent, .
divorcing. it from, the ig;érests.Qﬁutpqugmmgrce?Depa:tMQntgF;‘=_1;;

In commenting on.this provision, Senator. McClellan, who:seldom .-
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report: :",..a chronic .unsatisfactory relationship has.existed
between .the Department of .Commerce .and. the Patent Office and...
this contributed to frequent changes in the Office of -the .
Commissioner .of .Patents and. the -instability in the administration-
and programs of the Office."  The.situation hasn't-improved.
One ex-commissioner has calculated that in-the last ten-years -
the office .of commissioner has been vacant about 20%-of the time.. .
.=,- The mission of the PTO ig rooted.intthe”Constitution.
and spgllgd‘outnby Congress. ' It -deals with highly specialized :-
subject matter and concepts -in which :Commerce -has no expertise. .-
In this circumstance, :again, there would.seem to be special merit.- -
in a separate agency.. . .
We .do .not wish to urge the needless -expenditure of.funds
unless :they,appear, on sound, dig¢passionate-analysis; ‘o -be- ..
cost efféctjve,n Nor do we pretend to have-knowlédge;-oﬁ;what,}.- -
a separate agency would ential in.terms of cost.  We -can only.:
express our hope that the Congress will be persuaded.the patent
system is .an important function -to be put in.good working order.
It appears to us-guite possible-that noqsignificant ingcrease -in
expenditures would be:needed. Increased .efficiencies arising.from.
more timely action in the PTO, increased time of PTO officials ..
then available for the problems at hand.rather .than:the care.and ...
feeding. of “the-Commerce Department might mitigate.added expense.:
Further overall savings are bound to result in Commerce from. .. -

removalgfrom-itsﬁcha:gezthis;troublgsqmetanqﬁgimenqqnsuming;;_

v Lot LA LD

stepchil@.s i opew oo : R R e creat
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Vigible 'broblems =- Patentg s .-

Speaking’ from the: viewpoint 6f "customers"” of theé PTO's ®
services, I will identify-some problems we - tride géner&dlly to the "~
Commerce conhection By virtue of:their persisténce through the SR
administraticns of ‘a succession of competent ¢émmissionérs. For
example, from time to tinme we Have seen ‘th& printing of patents
delayed by months - (fecently so/examiners could beapaid)ii The
importance here ‘i3 that patents are often thé*fiféﬁfdisclosures
of new technologies: to the public. 'Alsog.siqnificant statutory )
rights comménce with the-issudrce’of the patent. ’Issued patents - "
become "prior art”:for citing 'in ‘the Patent:and Trademiark Office
against pending applications in the determifiation of pateéntability.

We are dealing also with the uncertain numberof patentgi: -
(from two to twenty-eight percednt) missing from files ‘§éarched
to determinei'the-patentability-¢f-inventions, validityof patents;"
and infringement. We gre seeing éntire files: removed from ti:

public:seadrch facilities for rec¢lassification and hot returned-i:-

for a’yedar of mMOre.: < .vs T i0e Tl s m
We drej on’'the other hand, 1iving with ‘the“urgent need:

for such rédlassification so‘patents can ‘be-located for-all the
rea‘séns*t'hat patérit searches dfe made. “The PTOis literally years:
behind “in “this eéffort.:: We are-séeing, bélatedly, the citdtion of -+
paténts‘and publislied literature in controversies involving-

issuéd ‘Paténts ---that--’s‘héﬁid have: ‘been cénsidered by the BTO befores”
the patents issuédi’ R
Sometimed thHe 'chdarge “of fraud is-leveled against the.-patent:-

owner  {not, of course, the PTC) when a patent issues in thelface >
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of gﬁ@iscbyeredqart.:-Ehe;pale;gp:ed PY0- several years. ago.

asked. and then r.equia:_egip_aj:ent_, applicants, in-effeqt},zt_o,,.,subﬁit .
patents. and Pub}ications.that might. show. their invention.to be
unpatentable. This may. seem a curious.call. for admissions.:
agaips;finteges;s,.but_gegare‘cqnginced_that_the applicants,
should, in; fact, share what they know.of the most.relevant art.
with the examiner. After all, profound rights are, conferred by, . :.
a patent, and to. accept those.rights in the. face of  knowledge

that they might nop.have:beep:prope:;y conferred is of .serious, ..
concern. .But. the subjective element of "obviousness” that must.
be considered in assessing patentability makes. it often difficult :
to determine what art need be cited,. for the,views of reasonable
persons differ.on this question. But.the question-of. fraud:: .
frequently injected in patent litigation really has its origins
in.the inadequate.facilities for.searching with which the .
examiners ,must contend. One:study has shown. that 85% of patents .,
challenged in court were valid with;regard to those references . -
considered by the. PTO. .

We:see what. should be the world's.greatest. storehouse of
technology running out.of space and unable to .cope with. the ..
influx of U. S. and foreign patents.and.literature_inwa‘mgnner
that would assure, or at :least facilitate, retrieval by examiners .
and by the.public.. There +is no provision.for.adequately. storing, . .
classifying and retrieving: the 300,000 U. S. patents {including
cross-;eference,copigs and. entries). and 250,000 foreign Pat39t§l
added to the ‘search :files .each year. -.



142

13 EIv

We se&-the--time Permitted’ exdminers*for’ studyihg,’ séarching, - -
examining legal questions and’ respordify ‘to’applicahts for patelits
actually dininishing over' pastiyea®s. 'This is ocourring in® the ™
face of the fact that £he Compléxitf‘of‘invenfibnshéénerallg"*':‘ﬁ:
and the volume of.art to be' searchéd have' irncréased dramatically,”

- B S -

about: e\fery ten years. Gam it Javern i 0D a0 RO Hin T
We“'see,” from what should be the world's ledding’ patent:
procesging-center,’ official “arguments: from examiners t:o‘f-':tiwe'ii":t::o:r:.‘fs‘-""3
.all over'the world handwiitten’ and transmitted in sometimes -
illeéibiéicarbon'copies}f“We'Seé twot o three’ weeks elapse before -
mail géts from the point of receiPt to the examinerts office. - We -
see pending applicatiohs lost for months ahd even y&ars, and we hive
all furnished  copies of the ‘¢lient*s original files' to.tepladé” those

lost in the’PTO. ~We have seen'the’ file HiStories' of issued patents’
forever lost or Stolen and’ not recoverable because no microfilm

exists'of theit contents. ' (It 'then  becomss impossible o ‘futnishi

a true certified copy as required in court proceedings.)’
.We' see” gredt need for'a major effort at ‘computerizing thé
art in mahy fields for retri@val by the' éxaminer: TN fact) with ™.
all the émphasis on thé communication’ of technology aﬁd its
availability not’ only' in the PTO but' in industry everywhere, there
should one day be’a mas&ive ‘goverhment effort -in this direction, -
but until then mieh could be’ done with existifig programs and.
available equipment that would make sSeatching giticker and- more
sure, increase the certitude of & patent's validity:-and ‘leave

more examiner time for substantive argument and response.
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We seé the PTO -induced ‘to-accept ‘a-role.as a so=called *
Receiving- Qffice. :and .an - Examining Qffide under the Patent - &i o
Cooperation Treaty, which.-was designed to :brifig some unity and,

ultimately, savings to patenting-in niajor ‘countriés of: ‘the: world.w:

" But the :treaty calls :for ‘events tc happen oh an-ordained schedule;

and these -schedules can only be met by sacrificing -examiners”
time in his -existing pursuits, for no.additional ifunding: was
provided. : We see the:Trademark -Registration Treaty-languishing
in Commerce through inaction instead of in Conéress.years after
it has been‘negotiated, with many othe; countries waiting to ;ééﬁ

PR . C e F R
what the U. 5. will do.

Vigible proﬁlems -=_trademarks .

_It:is,our view that the trademark operations .in the PTO
represent a case study of a di;integrating government function.
Trademarks a;eﬁpf great importance to.cpmpaniesr;aunching new
products. . It is impdr;ant to,kng_ifrgpnflic;ipg or siﬁila:
marks have been registered or if regisprq;;oqslhavg_been‘app}ig@
for on such marks gefoye,markeging.plagg aqd_aéyg?tisipg materials
are developed. “It-is customary for these companies to commission
searchegkofnphe t;;dema;k_fi};s to qeterm;ge‘the,aafegyloﬁ,the;r
new marks f;pm infringement ox }ikg%xroypositippﬁby qﬁherg{
Proquqrgs;gal}“fo: gpp;%gantsﬂigf_trademg;klrQQistra;iops to
Ireceive-wqrd_ﬁrgm the PTOiwben:thei{tgppliqqtiéns“argzdgemggrip
order. _They are then availabie,gér public searching.

Bgtﬁas¢pﬁ,June_1979a,s0@§ 10,000 trademarks were awaiting.
processing and entry into, the search files. Théyﬂﬂere,rphg;gfq:e;,

unavailqblegtq_thogg,maﬁipg}searches_fq;qclientsil_
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In August.-1979 :it -was projected:. by: the PTO. that by 1989
it would take:7.7 years from-£iTing.to examination:. (and more: = oo
time to-availability of. the .marks:in -the .search files} and i e oo

10 years:to: final -disposition of: the trademark applicatién;;

We understand--that money hasg .finally bheen allocated :to relieve:i-
the prolilem.to.some .degree, but-a huge.backlog will s€ill remadin. ..
This situation would, we siugdest, not have.developed.in -an.:

independent agency. that had direct:-access.:to:DMB:.and the:Congress.:

§,__E£2=”h . . . B,

On behalf of the 1dent1fled constltuent members of the B
National Council, I have tried to outl;ne our views and glve o
you a perspective from the customers’ standpolnt on‘the-merlts‘¥~35t
of S. 2079. We welcome this opportunity to express our suppoft,
as we weldoma the §éfdeptivévéffdrtstthe'bill:repfésents in T
addressing a pivotal problefi of the patent system: Other
improvemenits’ in the patent system, 48 ‘they ire proposed, ‘would be
more effectively implemented Dy & sepirate Patefit and Tridémark -
Office. §Z'16+§ recently passed'out ‘Gnanimously by the Seate
Judlc1ary Commlttee, “f'san example.

Fiﬁalif,§WE‘draﬁﬂcoh§idérabIe'Eoﬁfidenée ifi Gur views from~ <
the strong and lnanifious positicns on S. 3079 presented by and én™
behalf 6F tﬁé-iaét'éight:cdﬁﬁigéfoﬁﬁfsf':Tﬁéy”éamé from diffeérent -
backgrounds ‘But, we belisvé, ‘tHey possesééd 'in common ‘the Falent
and vision to léad an uhfettered agency ‘into ‘better ways. "It ig™ =™
smgnxflcant that they, ‘A well as all Gt the respondlng ‘mémbers

of 'th& National Council, havé independently and with no’'éxpectatic:

of benefit other than’ thé Betterment &F° the s?ﬁtéﬂqédméftbfthiéb3”"“
remarkably tonsistent conclusion.

We urge the passage of 5. 2079.



145

American Associalion of Reg P.u Attomeys & Agents  State Bar of Georgia, PTC Section Niagara Fronticr Patent Léw Association

American Patent Law A: EHouston Patent Law Association Ohio State Bar Association

Boston Patent Law A-oua |an Indiars Statc Bar Association Oklahoma Bar Associal PTC Section
Caniral New ¥erk Patent Law Asséciation | Towa Patent Law Association Oregon Patent Law Agsociation

Chicago Patent Law Associalion Maryland Patent Law Axseciation Peninsula Patent Law Association
Cincinnati Patznt Law Association Patent Law Association of Los Angeles Philadelphia Patent Law Associatien
Cleveland Patent Law Association Michigan Pnlent Law Association Pmsburgl! Pateat Law Assocm i Lo

Columbus Patent Law.Association . |, -
Connecticut Bar Association, PTC Spc('nn

+. . Raghester Paten: Law Assogiation
Saginaw Valley Patznt Law Assoc

ion

Conneclicut Patent Law Association . ¢+ Mwnnesota Patent Law Associ S+ 0 - Patent Law Assodiation of San Francisco ™ B
Dallas-Fert Worth Paieat Law Association . National Patent Law Association Bar Assaciation of Metropolitan St. Louis, PTC Section
Dayion Patenl Law Associstion. . * New Jersey Patent Law Association Texad State Bar Association, [niellectual Propeny ‘Seetion
Bar Association of the District of Columbia New Jersey State Bar Association, PTC Sec(mn Toledo Patenl Law Association © - -

" Virginia State Bar Association
Walhmglﬂn State Patent Law Assucualmn

-~ Eastern New York Pakﬂl Law Association’ N:w York Patenl Law Association

Cku"m . Vice Chmrmm BRI :,_Secrelary Treasurer -, I_egtrlauw Repomr -

ARTHUR R, W}{ALE CHARLES F. SCHROEDER WILLIAM JOSEPH JA PRE.VITO J. JANCIN, JR. -

“Eli Lilly and Company  Fiberglas Towér POBox & - % - ‘Empire Siate BKg. - - - 7815 Fulbright Court *
Tndianapolis, IN #6206 Toledo, OH 43658 Bldg, K], 4A56 New York, NY 10601 . West Bethesda Branch

(3173 261-2192 (419) 248-8174 Schenectady, NY 12301 (212) 736-2080 * Washington, DC 20034

{518} 385-8113 (703) 920-5442

3 March 31, 1380

Senator. Birch Bayh
i United States Senate

¢ '363 Rugsell Senate Office Bulldlng R ;
--¢Wash1ngton, D. c.-'20510 BT Sl

Dear Senator Bavh:® ‘_:3.: LT B e

By letter of March 17, 1980, you asked for'views on four ™ = - ¥
- guestichs that -accompanied yéur letter.,: I am- pleased ‘to
respond with the attached statement.. .

" ¥our questinns were timely’ and penetratlng, partlcularly in T
view of the testimony you réceived from' the representative -
i 0f the Department- of Commerce.. We feel handicapped.in not
being able to answer directly much of the issues raiged by
Commerce, because few of u§ have been @ direct party in the’
relationship between the PTO and Commerce., We rely, of
course,; on-the’ testimcny of the commissioners whlch you have‘- :
-already heard: - sor, g EREL T P RES IR

We are comfortable in’ this’ relxance Fot two reasons. Flrst,
the last eéight ¢ommissioners, -all Soining:in’support of
© 2079, have -themselves :come :from different backgrounds :and: -
declare different philosophies.of management and even of :the .
interpretation and role of the patent system, Of course, .
‘they have also brought dxfferent strengths ‘and weaknesses Lo
‘the job' of commissioner, ' The office of commissioner has -
never been highly:politicized: under any president; and the
choice of commissioner has been primarily based on merit,
_ _intellect, backyround, and professicnal standing. . S ~

NATIONAL INVENTORS HALL OF FAME

co=sponsored with Patent sod Trademark Office, 118, Depantment of Commeree
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Second, desplte the profe551onal emlnence of these commls—".
sioners..and:our. ‘confidence 1n~the1r capabllltles, we have
sgen relatively little in the way’ of positive results 1n
solving the problems of the'PTO, We are unwilling to:
believe that these-competent men did not do the best job
permitted by the circumstances which they encountered. In
several cases’thé.commissicnérs whom you heard' testify
entered upon the office of the commissioner from high places
in the profession from which they had advocated changes -
later found. 1mp0551b1e‘0f attalnment by v1rtue oii he Com-
merce:’ connec‘lon. e ; . . T

I refer to references, beginning at page 3 of my statement,
to the participation of thé patent system in the investment
in-invention and innovation and to the inherent contribu~-
tions to factors that counter inflation, such as increased
productivity, decreased absolute costs through the! develop-
ment of new methods of production; or: néw. products.to-.do the
same thing, to the creation of jobs for.new products;-and

to increased competition with our foreign competltors. In
view of the special qualities of the patent’ system that make
it important.in these.regards, I believe.we.have not - suf~
ficiently brought to the-attention of the-Congress’what we
see as a positive cost-benefit ‘ratio ‘and’, indeeéd; the”
prospect -that.a more effective patent system would follow
from the establlshment of . the PTO. as- a separate agency
without the expenditure - :
the contlnued assoc'

om

Indeed,. it seems 1nconcervab1e tOzme tha Comm n view
of its consistent opposition to removal of the- PTO from its
fold, has not made its, own cost. ana1y51s of a-separate
agency. T am.nof. -
produced for: publlc view.:: It: seems clear: that the efficien~
cies and economies from‘separatlon would be added to the
savings wrthln Commerceﬂltself, 51gn1flcant in terms ‘of the

T hope this analysid ‘and response will
Please let me know if we can help in any other way.

‘Very ‘tEqly volrs,”

(L vl —

ARW:leb
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- RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS-PROPOUNDED: IN SENATOR' BAYH'S
" .LETTER-OF MARCH 17,1980, CONCERNING -§..207% '
(THE INDEPENDENT PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE ACT)

Questlon I; The Commercé Department testifled on January 24 1980
that the present arrangement of Department oversight of the Patent. and
Trademark Office was better for the Patent 0ffice. and for the patent
system. Do you agree or disagree with this assessment? Is there any
evidence that you kaow of to support the Department's contentlon?

1. I disagree. w1th the assessment ‘that overdight of
the PTO by the Department of Commerce 1s better for the PTO ’
and for the patent system, -

There 1s, however, a certaln cosmetlc appeal in the
notion that such oversight would be benefici#l.’ - I cannot ~
cite "evidence" in: ‘support of: :the ‘department s contentlon,'
because I have not been in a position ‘to observe the inner”
workings and:xelationships between: the. PTO &nd’ cOmmerce. My
disagreement. with the assessment:is based on' a persistent ’
lack of progressin solving what all:agree-are problems that :
need to he.solved, despite. a procession of commlssroners in oo
the PTO. front offlce.m

Questron, ;-The Commerce Department told ug- at the last hearing
that the erux of the present PTO problem was the inability of - the
Office to get its house in order and: the"limited perspective” of
the former Patent. and Trademark Commissionets’who could not perceive
the big picture that supposedly concerns. the Department Do you
have any comments on thlS assertlon9-“ i

2. The assertlon that the problems of the PTO atre:
attributable- to: the."limited perspective" of former commis
sioners argues persuasively.that-the. PTOushould’ be a sepa—:-
rate agency. :I see this reference to- "limited perspectlve"
as 901ng, at least.in important.part; to concerns of* former
commissioners about problems which Commerce:appareltly rlews”
as teoo parochlal and: insignificant to warrant: remedial
attention.: It ig true that our former commissioniéirs have
not been experts in or legitimately concerned with’the "big-
picture” as seen through the lens of the Secretary of
Commerce, who mustscontend-with:the-major missiéns:of hig’
department and.with:.a myriad eof lesser included<functicns,
such as the.Maritime Administration, U.S. ‘Travél Servides;: ;
Bureau of,the Censusj National Bureau-:of Standards; National -~ °-
Fire Prevention .and:Control -0fficey National Oceanic and: .
Atmospheric: Administration; rand the National Telecommunlca-'r~ L
tion and Information:Adminigtration. ~Added to-thigiig: the
Patent and- -Trademark-@ffice; .which accourts for less than"
five percent of the Commerce budget. It is understandable:-”
that Commerce musit perceive the "big plcture" and that a .
small activity.like-t 0.:is: not | major cornponent of t e
picture, . N e

But althéugh’ ‘tHa' pTo
position 6f° 1mportance Wlth respect to ‘€hé natidn's, economy
and its- echnologlcal ‘progress, Comnmerce apparentlyndoes
not really belleve that the’patent system does what,the1
Constitution” says 1 1s“supposed to do, for otherwise it
would, over the'yéadrs; have given it stronger’ support., -
Apparently Commerce’ does not really believe . that investment.
in the generatlon il technology ig highly dependent on .the
prospects for dependable patent protectlon.r. he so-called :
lag in innovation is belng viewed as nece551tat1ng many R
forms of nourishment, but there s£ill seems to be .only . small
awareness of the deplorable condition of ‘the PTO, reflecting
directly on the effectiveness of the patent system, as a
critical aspect of the overall problem.
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Commerce acknowledges that. the. PTO: should:be“a majoxr
contributor. to public.policy.in” the area of innovation and
industrial development, . But:its;failure-to perceive the
"limited perspective"” of the PTO underlies the diminishing
,.effectlveness with which the PTO ¢an .and doesrcontribute,to.,a
'”?thls pollcy o e : UL L i

. . -One crlthlsm of the PTO by Ccmmerce 'is said to be the
Jlack Of'a‘convinéinig dase made by the PTC.in its requests -
for funding or the reallocation of existing funds. Yet, in
testimony. before. your committee;::Commerce has alluded, by
way of .example,. to -the problem -of missing patents from
gearch Ffiles, 8Seen in isolation, I am sure ‘Commerce viaws :
this as a simple -administrative problem. I can only view
the Commerce- position circumstantially;,:but I suggest thati: -
the continuation of this deficiency through. several -adminis=" -~
trations of commissioners. who;appreciate: the conseguences of’
1nadequate flles suggests that: Commerce is part of the :
problem. These.commissioners have.lony agonized at the lack
of resources to tend the search file: problem, the reclassxfl
cation. problem, the aliocation of time ‘by. Examiners for - o
examining and.other: matters. seemingly susceptible of. easy
adwministrative correction but of necessity addressed on’the
"rob Peter-pay Paul" philosophy. I believe Commerce has
-¢imply failed to.-take the-time to understand the:substantive.
'consequences of the ;accumulation..of 'these deficiencies on =
the patent. system——lts dependablllty, ‘perception by the: :
.courts and stature:among; analogous systems of other countrles.

“r would pclnt out that patents are, by statute, 1ntended R
to carxry a presumption of validity. That presumption can be
ne better than the art available:to:Examiners: who have:
adequate time.to search; evaluate and apply: the:-arttoc the‘
inventiong .in applications: which:they: are examining. - The
domino theory.is in full-swing; for.courts:often-criticize-
the PTO. for its. work, :and patents:are fregquent]ly- assaulted
by invention. copiers:who.know- they: have ‘a. fair shot’at’
finding some: art. to conv1nce an already-doubtlng judge that

worth taklng serlously

In the; face of a. deterloratlng patent syste
Commerce representatlve says that: justlfylng data. for:
expandlng the quality:review program in the: examlnatlon
process.were-inadequates .. I. suggest that the dataj reasy to’
develop from-the..fate of . .patents:in.theivariolsijudicial
circuits, and judicial commentaries onsthe patent systeéemy,
.were probably adeguate but that the:understanding’ of the
consequences of poor qual;ty patents was" mis ed in-th
picture.": :

Flnally, o : 4
system, beglnnlng with the PTO, is not easily perceived

because it is inherently complex, . This.coemplexity. begins
with the patent statute itself, reguiring that' inventions .
not only’be-rnew but be’ unicbvious. 2add. to_ this. the fact. that-
the compleéx eéxamifation process, .including 1nterferences -and -
appeals, must “then be” applidd to inventions. representlng “the ;
newest in all technologies.‘ ThlS requires an organization.
that can only be managed from within and by those. /of suit-
able experlence and” trainlng in technology, management and. .
the law.—
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" Question 3:%There-ate: private? signals: being-givern out< by’ the
Department that-they now see the error- of their ways and will do a’
better job from here on out if.the PTO:is. just left: under. their care.
Would ycu feel comfortable as- -membets of the patent bar if the present
arrangement: was' continued after the Department promised to’do better9
Have you everiheard: 51m11ar promlses in- the past and 1f 50 what

was the resu1t7 :

3. A renewed commltment 1n Commerce WLLI; I predlct,_
have little present and ho futuFe beneflt for the patent ,
system, The other demands on the 3551stant secretary )
responsible for the PT0 would remain-large.in his visien. -
History hag not seen a551$tant secretaries intérested” Ln‘.
devoting the’ time and’ resources . to, the 1mprovement of” the_.
PTO. . . e

I am not acqualnted w1th past promlses of cammer
deal more understandlngly -with the PTOQ. I can readlly )
suppose, however, that this has accurred, only to révert to
a "subcommittee" approach within the Department to listen to
the PTO.

guestion One criticism that could be made against S. 2079 is that
it is in the Interest of the patent bar to make the PTO Independent
so that they could have more control over it. How would you respond
to this charge?

to

4. It can positively be asserted that it ig in the
interast of the patent bar, in my view, to create the PTO as
an independent agency. The reason is that the patent
system with which we work is our professional world, and
where we see it functioning.poorly or being administered
ineffectively we are moved to action, In the recent past,
there has been an attitude of frustration over the decline
of the patent system, But we believe the concern of the
patent bar is entirely consconant with the national interest
and what should be a public policy to make sure our patent
system does what it is supposed te do,

Does the patent bar want an independent agency so it
can exercise greater control? Yes, to the extent an inde-
pendent agency would give us a better patent system in the
ways outlined by bar representatives and former commission-
ers. No, in the sense that we want to exercise control over
agency operations that would bring individual and special
benefits to patent lawyers or to our c¢lients apart from
participation in the general benefit to the public from an
improved patent system.

One important quality of the patent bar which is
frequently overlooked or disbelieved is the truly balanced
perspective represented within the bar as to patent legislta-
tion, patent policy, and the administration of the PTO,
given as a basic premise the desirability of a strong patent
system for this ccountry. For example, the patent bar is
rather evenly divided between patent lawyers associated with
private corporaticns and those with private firms. Among
those serving private corporations are lawyers with major
corporations and with corporations of intermediate size.
Among those in private practice are lawyers representing
individual inventors and small businesses, as well as the
intermediate size and large corporations. In the assertion,
licensing and litigating of patents, there are always patent
lawyers on both sides of the questions, meaning that there
are lawyers contending both for and against the patents and
advancing arguments and urging precedents both for and
against patent validity and for and against specific bases,
arguments and statutory interpretations.
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Although only a small: percentage of patents reach the::
litlgation stage, it' is the. accumulation.of legal:precedents

= over the years: that guides: the: interpretation-and. disposi-

- tion of cpatents in licensing -matters.and disputes:that. are

And- it j.S"'_.
the reliance on the.patent system:as. viewed: agalnst these: .. - -
precedents that guides the assessment of the prospects for. o
patenting and for enforcing patents and, ultlmately{ in

large measure’ determines the - vestments'ln 1nvent ve

~dn far.greater.numbers: than the courts:-ever see

:”to "control“
the PTO in the manipulative sense; not ie within _
the capacity of the diverse interests representéd ‘within the -
patent bar to exercise such control if it wanted to. The
fact that support within the patent bar for 5. 207% is
v1rtua11y unanimous, in vieéw'of this dlver51ty, testlfles to
its soundness and to ‘thie ~ = s t :

g

March 31, 1980
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STATEMENT -OF "AMERICAN ‘BAR. ASSOCIATION
© Hearings :0on5.2079 i
United States Senate
:Commities on Governmental Affairs
Commmttee on the Judacrary

' March 12 1930

Mr Cha;rman,.mf name is Morton Davrd Goldberg, and I am
a partner in the New York Clty 1aw flrm of Schwab Goldberg, -
Prlce and Dannay.' I am Chalrman of the Sectlon of Patent, .
Trademark’and Copyrlght Law of the Amerlcan Bar Assoc1at10n and
appear on behalf of the Assocratron at the request of the i o
Presrdent Leonard Janefsky. ;'-' - o

There are over 9 000 patent and trademark attorneys 1n-:t f‘
the Unlted States.. Over 5 000 of these are members of the . .
Amerlcan Bar A59001at10n Sectlon ef Patent, Trademark and
Copyraght Law.¢ The Amerlcan Bar Assocratlon has a total

membershlp cf over 250 000 attorneys./--

‘ Both the Sectlon of Patent Trademark and Copyrlght Law

B

and the Amerxcan Bar ASSOGlathn ltself support leglslatlon

'maklng the Patent and Trademark Offlce a separate and 1ndepen—

dent agency At its recent mld—wrnter meetlng ln Chxcago,
the Amerlcan Bar Assocratron House of Delegates passed the

followrng resolutlon'

RESOLVED That the Amerlcan Bar Assocratlon

favors. enaqtment of 5.2079 (96th Congress)

or similar legislation which would recog-

‘nize -that streng patent andtrademarK:. . e oo swsfa?
. systems are vital to the econcmy of the
LoredntUndted States. and-would. . £avor. removal-of e

the United States Patent and Trademark

Offjice from the Department of Commerce and

would make it a separate and independent

agency.
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In the Legislative: Reorganization:iAct of -1948:the House

and Senate Standing Comm1ttees on: Patents were abolished and

e

jurisdiction over patent leglslatlon was. glven to the Judiciary

Committees. This has resulted ln the actlons of the Commissioner
cf Patents and Trademarks, the Presrdent;al appointee who heads
the Patent and Trademark Offlce, belng subject to reV1ew by the
Judlclary Commlttees, whrle actlons of the Commasslcner's
superlors 1n the Department of Commerce, to whom he must respond

and wlth whose dlrectlves he must comply, are rev1ewed by
totally dlfferent groups‘w1th1n Congress. .

Those persons w1th the Department of Commerce and the Offlce

- g

of Management and Budget, through whom the Patent and Trademark

i

Office prescntly must workr althouqh clearly well 1ntentloned

are not knowledgeable cf patent and trademark procedures or law.-

Nox do they have dlrect experlence 1n the operatron of the

Patent and Trademark Offace.' Thus, they cannot fully apprec1ate

the rmpact of thelr dec1srons a fectlng thc Patent and Trademark

Cffice, As a consequence de01slons by Congress pertalnlng to

the Department of Commerce, but affectlng the Patent and

Trademark Offlce, are based upon anformatlon supplled by the

Department cf Commerce and nct by those most kncwledgeahle cf

the patent and trademark systems. -

e i

This proposed 1eg1s1atlon would permat the Commrss;oner of

Patents and Trademarks—t‘ be heard 1n thosexquarters where )

legislative and budgetary questlons dlrectly affectlng hls

are,debated
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and Gecided, The 'bill ‘alst'calls ‘for 'd ‘fixed teérm for:the
Commissioner. : This will provide dgreater stability:-in that
position ‘and will-eliminate the problem ‘of  frequéatly occurring
periods in which the United 'Statés is.without a Commissioner
of Patents and Trademarks. -
' The work of the Patent and Trademark 0f£fice affects -

the business community, the scientific community, the:consuming
public; “and the economy .of the United States as a whole. It
plays a vital rolein stimulating innovation in our country--
innovation which:is sorely needed’at this-critical time. In.
his October 31, 1279 statement to Congress-on his Industrial-
Innovation Initiatives, President Carter -said:-
. Industrial innovation '—= the development.

and commerclalization of new products and

progesses: —— is an essential element of a:

strong and growing Ameriqan economy. It

s -hélps -ensure eccnomic vitality, "improved

productivity, international competitive-

ness; job:rcreation, 'and ‘an. improved .guality -

of life for every American.

. ‘ ”**'k

Patents can provide for a wvital incentive

for inpovation, 'but the patent process has

become expensive, time-consuming, and

udreliable.: Each .year, fewer patents are

1ssued to Amerlcans.
Thus, the need for an 1mproved, effectlve and efflclent patent

: system has been recognlzed in the hlghest quarters. In order

to obtaln such a patent system, 1t is lmperatlve that there
be an 1mproved effectlve and more. efflc;ent operatlon of the
Patent and Trademark Offlce. Independence of the Patent and

Trademark Offlce would promote such 1mproved effectlveness

and efficiency.



It is particularly:-telling that .every:living -former .. . -

Commissioner has strongly supperted’ separation: of ‘the Patent::@wn:

and ; T¥ademark Office-from.the Department of ‘Commerce, as:is:. '@ i:o.

exemplified by thelr testimony .before: Congress: .. Each of .-
these former Commissioners has considerable-expertise:and:.: .::.-
experience:in -patent :dhd trademark matters and:in the.operxation

of the“Patent~and,Trademark Officej as well as :experience and..

familiarity:with the . mneeds.ofUnited-States business-and-in-..::. -

dustry:, ‘They perhaps are the:most.qualified persons to.-comment .-

upon the effect of :our:patent andi tfademark-systems on.the: ::-

economy .of:thé United States: . .

It is also quite - significant:that.the American :Bar Asso=v. .

ciation's Patent Trademark and Copyrlght Law Sect on, whlch

consists of attorneys from prlvate practlce, corporate practlce

and government who deal regularly wrth the Patent and Trademark

Office and the: patent and tra&emark system, overwhelmmngly

support separation of the Offlce from the Department of COmmerce.
The work of the Patent and Trademark Offlce needs no

supervisicn by the Departmert of Commerce In examlnlng and

rendering dec1srons upon appllcatlons”for patents and for
reglstratlon of trademarks, the Patent and Trademark Offlce
clearly performs a quaSL—jud1c1al functlon. Most, 1f not all,
of the other governmental agenc1es performlmg quasl juélclal -

functlons have lndependent status. Those personnel of the

c1al functlons

Unlted States Government perr

rmlng quasr 3

must be free to perform them w1thout 1nterference from any

-4—
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other governmental entity..-Making the Patent and Tradeﬁark
Office an independent.agency .would free it from such.inter-
ference, would:-aid in-improving the gquality of . issued patents,
and would revitalize :the procedures. for clearing and register-—
ing trademarks, thus promoting fair and strong competition in .
fhe United States.
Present operation of the Patent -and Trademark .0ffice is
hindered by numerous problems. .-Typical of these are:
.*.Numerousapatent.search-files with :large numbers
of patents missing.. As a consequence it.is im-
possible for invegtors to accurately estimate
»:the likelihood of obtaining patent - protecticn -
- on‘new innovations.. Likewise, industry: cannot
;-determine ‘adequately whether . proposed new
products infringe existing:patents,  Patent
" “Examiners .cannot . thoroughly. perform their
"wimportant;function of determining whether -patents
-.should be.granted on applicaticns, .and so ..
industry cannot rely adequately on: the patents

it dees receive,

~* Inability .of businessmen -to conduct :meaningful

trademark searches due to obsolete search .= v o0

-systems. . Thisileads to:.erronecus business
sdecislons on the ‘use: of +trademarks:.on new-

;. products. from United States -industry. -
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*:Inadequate personnel :are-available to perform
routine ‘functions within: a reasonable time:
Consequently, the time required for examina--
~tion and-completion of ‘'work on applications-

for patents-is unduly long. -

“* Delays in obtaining opinions from the Trademark
Examiners:on applications for registration of . .-
“ new trademarks.  As. a result American business

delays commercialization of new products.

*-L;ck of authoxity for .the Commissioner of iPatents
and Trademarks to reallocate budgeted funds toc
different missions when the necessity for such
reallocaticon becomes known only long after budget
forecasts have been submitted by -the 0ffice ‘to
the Department of Wommerce.. Therefore, as needs
shift over the course of:a year, the Patent - and

Trademark Offide .1s unable to fully respond.

These problems, and others, impede the incentives which
American indudtryv: needs. to justi.fy research and development
expenditures.

In evaluating the performance and the requirements of
the Patent and- Trademark Office, the Department .of Commerce

makes unrealistic estimates of its preduction capabilities and
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needs. Those needs of the ?atent and Trademark Offlce whlch
are reCOgnlzed are glven low prlorlty by the Department of
:Commerce when it presents its overall programs and requeste;:ﬁ
The Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks is reguired to
support what the Department perceives as the Administraﬁion's
prcgfams, which often subjugates the needs of the Patent'and"
Trademark Office to those of otheflentities'Witﬁin £he-Deﬁart-
ment. Thus, the spokesman for the’ Patent and Trademark’ Offlce
is unable to freely communlcate iks needs to Congress. ‘
Establishing the Patent and Trademark Cffice. as a seéarate
and independent agency would free the Patent andﬁTrademarE"
Offiee‘inen'nhe.fesﬁraints imposed by its present low priotity’
position within the Department of Commerce. On behalf of the"
American Bar Association and its Section of. Patent Trademark

and Copyxright Law, I stronqu urge enactment of thls leglslatlon.

-7-
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~ april 14,1980,

The Honorable Birch Bayh
United States Senate
Wa.sh:l.ngtcn,. D.C. 20510

Re: §5.2079, The Independent Patent
and Trademark Office Act : AR

- Dear Senator Bayh:

I was pleased to have the opportunity to' present the
views of the American Bar Association and its Section on
Patent, Trademark and Copyright Law at the hearings March
12, 1980 on 5.2079. I also appreciate the opportunity to”
provide answers to the specific questlons you have sent me
with your letter of March 18, 1986.

For convenience, I set. forth each question, and then -
my response.

The Commerce Department testified on January
24, 1980 that the present arrangement of
Department oversight of the Patent and Trade-
mark Office was better for the Patent Office
and for the Patent system.

Question 1.

Do you agree or disagree with this assessment?

Is there any evidence that you know of to
support the Department's contention?

Answer. I firmly disagree with the Commerce Department's
position. Indeed, the present arrangement is what has led
to the present problems. TUnder the present arrangement, the
Patent and Trademark Qffice has continually suffered from an
inability to make jits needs heard and from budget inadequa-
cies., Considerable delay, confusion and difficulty are felt
to result from the present existence of numercus layers of
bureaucratic review by people not particularly knowledgeable
of the Patent and Trademark Office or the American patent.
and trademark systems.

I know of no evidence to support the Department's con-
tention, but I can present evidence to the contrary.
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On October 31, 1979, the President’ announced that-legislation
would be submitted to prov1de innovation initiatives and that this
legislation would include a statement on-patent policy. ''The PTO
promptly submitted :its proposals to the Department of Commerce
but ‘it was not until approximately fite months ‘later that the
Department of Commerce finally presented.an Administration bill
. in an attempt to carry forth the Pre51dent's statement

In 1973, the- Trademark Reglstratlon Treaty was negotlated.
Proposed implementing legiglation was prepared bub never sub-
mitted to Congress. As a result of delays within the Department
of Commerce, seven years have elapsed and Congress' still has not
had an opportunity to consrder the Treaty and the requlred 1eqls—
latlve changes

The marked drop in effectlveness of the Patent and Trademark
Office in the past three years is-a direct resuit of budget cuts
and of the lack of understanding by the Department of Commerce of
the operation atithe Patent and Trademark Qffiee.’ It ig not
.understood how the Commerce Department can contend. that. the
Department oversight of the PTO'is for the benefit: 0f the PTO
in view of the history of continued reduction of:-the budgets
requested: by the Commissioner. While theé information regarding
handliing of the budget- is seant, it is of publi¢ record that in
Fiscal Year 1979,.the Patent and Trademark Office submitted a
budget request in:the amount of $9%6,9%105000, whereas the-budget
submitted to Congress was only $94,753,000: 'QOf much greater
significance.is the budget cut whichocecurred in Fiscal Year '
1981. The Patent and Trademark Office submitted a budget request
of over $124 million whereas the budget Commerce recommended to
OMB was pared down to $112.6 million and the budget eventually
submitted to Congress was only $113.2 million; “a cut of approxi-=-
mately $11 million-=and at ‘a timé when the work belng demanded
of ithe"Patent and Trademark Office was increasihg and the effi-
ciency of operation and effectiveness of the services provided
‘by "the PT0 was dropping drastically. These cuts were made with-
out the Commissioner being able to communicate diredtly with OMB
or Congress.

‘Not only was the budget cut, but the Patent and Trademark
Qffice was specifically diréected by the’ Department to reduce ‘its
staff in certain areas, such-as its mailroom. -"As ‘a result of
thede staff reductions, the delays in making available t6 'the
public information about pending tradémark applications has -
become so intclerable as to- reduce the gignificance of the
Trademark -Office Search Room records to -minima}l levels. This "7
greatly affects-the ability of American industry to promptly
market its new products and to market those produdts with some
degree of asgéurance -that it is not violating the rights of'others.
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In Fiscal Year 1979, there was insufficient money to pay
the FPatent Examiners’ salarles due to.a budget error. The '
Department ignored the plezas of the PTO. for many months, result-.:
ing in the PTO having to curtail printing of patents, to the
detriment of the public and. the patent owners, in-order to pay
the, Examlners' salaries, . :

Procurement of badly needed equipment and services is
delayed by wirtue of the multilevel. structure now. involved and
that delay results.in greater costs and inefficiencies. For
example, the Patent and Trademark Office had money allotted to
it to cbtain data processing facilities in order to help it keep
pace with -increased, demands. However, as a result of Department
delays and complications, such facilities were not acquired, and
are stJ.ll belng J.nvestlgated with costs being 1nflated steeply.

The above represents a_ small sample of the dlsadvantages of -
having the Department oversee the Patent and Trademark Office.
The continued actions of the Department reflect the Department's
priorities, considering all of its many responsibilities, rather
than the priorities of the Patent and Trademark Gffice, I believe
that in view of the importance of the patent and trademark system
to this nation, especially under current conditions where United.:
States leadership in technology is belng reduced.and may be lost
in the 1980's, the patent pelicy and the priorities of expenditures
ought to be decided by Congress, not the Department of Commerce.,
Congress ought to have direct access to spokesmen from the Patent
and Trademark Office who can best answer the hard questions about
the operation of the Office and the effectlveness of the patent
and trademark system. . .

Question 2,. The Commerce Department told us.at the last hearing
-, that the crux of the present PT¢ problem was the in--
ability of the Office to get its house in order and the.
"limited perspective" of the.former Patent and Trademark
. Commissioners who could not perceive the blg picture that
supposedly concerns the Department.

Do you have any comments on this assertion?

Answer. While there is much to :be done at the PTC in .order to
"get its house in order," the major impediments appear to be
inadequate budget and the unresponsiveness of the Department of
Commerce. While the PTO Commissioners individually may not have -
sufficiently broad background teo perceive the - "big picture” that
supposedly concerns the Department, it must be observed that-
there is a Patent and Trademark Office Advisory Committee, which
includes non-patent oriented individuals who: have the- broad
background requlred The Committee's charter is to-advise the
PTO.
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- furthermore, we:believe that on matters.as important.as .
fostering invention, maintaining the nation's technological lead
and improving the econemy, it is. up to.Congress to evaluate the
"big picture" and -decide priorities, not the Commerce. Department.
Under the present-arrangement, Congress has .no opportunity to, )
obtain the PTO posrtlon, Congress only hears the Commerce Depart-.
ment's view. E ) . .. ‘fi Lo . -

Any complaint by the Department of Commerce”that thekPTO is”
unable to get its:house in:order is .inappropriate and misplaced.
For example,. the PTQ Advisory Committee, together with the PTO,
submitted plans ‘for important organizational revisions to the
Department, only to find that .implementation -of -the suggested
revisions still has not been acted upon. These plans were
prepared by.those -intimately familiar .with the operation of the
PTC upon the advice of an independent public adviscry committee
which could reap no personal gains: from the suggested reorgani-
zatlon.

Furthermere;'it ié ihcdﬁprehensible=toﬂbiaﬁe the PTO for

" not getting its house in order when it is the Department which

specifically, and in detail, determines how the budgeted funds. are
to be spent. Discretion is not the pleasure of the <PTO. .

It is: suggested that, rather than the PTO hav1ng a 11m1ted
perspectlve, the Department.is o absorbed in.the:"big plcture"
as it interprets. it, that the Department is. unable to percelve
the needs ‘0f the PTO. Indeed the Department of Commerce is
believed to have 'a iimited perspective of . the patent and trade-
mark . systems .and of how best the PTO.can be administered.so as .
to encourage. innovation and competltlon in -the American market-
rplace. . .

The PTO Commissioners have_been.men,of considerable experience
in patent and trademark matters and in the requirements of american
industry. They have been familiar with the requirements and the
unanswered needs of the: patent and trademark system-as a.whole and
with the PTO through -direct perscnal.experienge.... They gained this
experience during vears-as Chief Patent Counsels of, or. -during
representation of, -competitive,. 1nnovat1ve and economlcally
sucCessful Amerlcan corporatlons. ; : . .

: Support for the concept of an-, 1ndependent Patent and Trade—.
mark . 0ffice-comes from.substantially all .those who deal with' the
American- patent. and trademark systems, 1nc1ud1ng corporate. and
private practltloners represented by the American .Bar Association,
the American Patent Law Association and nearly every regional,
state and local patent association in the country. While these
people can be considered to have a "limited perspective," no one
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better undérgtands the needs of the system.and for:the system than
people with the experience represented by our BTO Commissioners,
and "the members of the various associations which have commented
upon the importance of making independent the Patent and Trademark
Office. ‘As long as this nation is committed to ‘a patent and
trademark system, to consider the views of so many knowledgeable: .
practitioners and users of the patent and trademark systems to.

be of "llmlted perspectlve,“ approaches the ludlcrous.

Question 3. There are private 51gna15 belng glven out by the
: Department that they now see the error of. their ways
and wil:k do a better job from:here on out if ‘the PTO
15 just left under: thelr care B L

" Would you feel comfortable as‘a member of the
" Patent Bar if the present -arrangement -was contlnued
* after the Department promlsed to do better?

Have you ever heard similar promlses 1n the past,
and 1f so, what was the result*

Answer. Ever’ slnce 1948, when the statutory powers of: the
Commissioner of Patents weré transferred to the Secretary of
Commerce, the effectiveness of the Patent and Trademark Office
{then Patent Office) has been reduced due to the reduced atten-
tion- focused on the PTO by Congress and OMB because of -the in--
ability of the PTO to communicate diregtly--indeed at all--with
Ceongress and OMB., The multitunde of problems which have been
occurring have continuocusly caused the PTO, - industry- and the-
patent bar to make its feellngs ‘known. -However, experience has
shown that the Departmént of Commerce was unresponsive to:the -
needs of the PTO despite these cries of concern. Indeed, it
was not until the hearings on $.2079 that the Department of
“Commerce. showed ‘any concern for the deplorable COndltlonS at
the PTO.

It s my bellef as well as the belief of many' others who:
have been involved in attemptlng to improve conditions at thlie
PTO, that the only reagon the beépartment of-Commerce.has become:
somewhat responsive recently-is because of the concern for: the ..
seriousness with which S§.2079 is being considered.. It is feared -
that without the pressure of these hearings and the possibility

“that the PTO will be made’an independent agéncy,-the inattention
suffered’ by the PTO within the Department will continue:. because.
of the relatively low priority 9051t10n in which  the Department
of ComméEce has placed the PY0, as has been-exemplified by its
actlon, or’ lack of actlon, for the past several years.
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" Mpre 1mportantly, although the present admlnlstratlon may
1mprove the situation which has existed at the PTO, there can
be no assurance under the present .arrangement that.a future
“admlnlstratlon w1ll not revert to the previous deplorable 51tu-
““ation. The only’ way toc assure the Patent and Trademark Office
the voice it needs in the management and-budgeting 0f its own
affairs and in the ability to communlcate its needs directly-to
Congress and 'OMB, both now and.in.the future, is to make the
Patent and Trademark office an lndependent agency.- -

Question. 4. ° One cr1t1c1sm that could be made agalnst S 2079 N
is that it is in the interest of the Patent Bar to
make the PTO. 1ndependent so.that they could have more
_control over it. . ; o

How would you respond to thls charge°

Answer.  ‘The patent and trademark ‘bar has no control over the
Patent and Trademark Cffice and does not wish such control. The
concern of the patent and ‘trademark bar is to improve the patent
and trademark systems ‘for the good of:the nation so that they
properly opérdte, as was intended by ‘our founding fathers, to
enhance the nation's economy and. to provzde the proper 1ncent1ves
to 1nventor5 and 1ndustry

The concern of the bar 1s to properly represent its clients
in a manner &5 to allow its clients to properly use and benefit
from the patent and trademark systems. This includes both re-
ceiving rights to which their innovation entitles them ard bene-
fitting from the technological disclosures of patents promptly
and properly issued to'othérs. -As a result; the bar is deeply
concerned :at the .deplorable. operatingiconditions 4t the PTO be—
cause it believes that the téesult of such conditions. is having
a serlous adverse effect upon the health ‘and ‘wealth of the Un:uted
-§tates. . The:bar's position favering an independent’ Patent and
_Trademark Office is based upon its belief .of the .need to obtain ..:
“the services which the PT0 offers, both ‘timely and accurately
That the actions of the bar represent the best . 1nterests of this
‘nation is.best illustrated by the? fact. that ‘the bar's pésition’is
,overwhelmlngly supported. and approved by .large:companies,. medlum
szzed companles, small companles and 1nd1v1duals alike.

Son It must ‘be remembered.that the’ PTO'S ‘activities ard controlled
not by..the dictates of an 1nd1v1dual manipulated’ by: the bar, but. by
statute. While the PTC can recommend statutory changes, it is up
‘to Congress to make ' these ‘changes and certainly everyone concerned
Wwith the effect of the retomniended changes would have a‘‘right to™
speak.with Congress. Clearly, if. the Department -of Commerce, and:
othar inter&ited parties, disagree with any statutory change pro-
posals of the PTO, they have the right and ablllty to, present_
their views to Congress so:that Congress can make the' proper'-'
-ch01ce. R . - . S o : ;
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Whether or not the guesticn may arise concerning agencies
which are "regulatory" in nature, no guestion arises concerning
the PTO Jas to any exercise of control by the regulated" over the
"regulators": wunder its governing statute, the PTO is not a
"regulatory" agency. Like the courts; it has rog powers to reach
cut to regulate or 1nvest1gate lndustrles, companles or, 1nd1v1duals.

It is belleved that 8.2079 places’ the Patent and Trademark ~
Office‘and the Commissioner in positions in which they can best
exercise the independence which their quasi-judicial functions
require. They will not be beholden to the patent and trademark"
bar, nor restralned by that bar as they now are by the Department
of Commerce.

In c1051ng, I would like to- express the appreciation of
the American Bar Association and of the patent and trademark
bar as a whole for your interest in the American patent and
trademark systems, and I would like to again urge you and your
colleagues to pass this most important piece of legislation.

Respectfully,

W%-Dw/%

Morton David Goldber R

Chairman, Section of Patent
Trademark and Copyright Law,_

Amerlcan Bar Assoclatlon :

MDG/pab

Senator BayH. Qur next Wltness is Mr Louis M Glbson, presr
dent of the U.S. Trademark Assomatlon from St. Louis, Mo.

I yield to Senator Danforth.

Senator DaNFORTH Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am dehghted at
the occasion. I am a strong supporter of this bill, and T am glad we
have some St. Louis support. '

I might say, Mr. Chairman, that I Wrote a letter to a number of,
I think, very knowledgeable people in my State concerning this
bill, askmg for their views, and the response that I received has
been both voluminous and very, very supportive. I think that it is
fair to say that throughout the country—if not in Washington—
there is a very strong feeling that, first of all, all is not well in the
Patent Office, and that, secondly, this bill is a very good and well
thought out answer to a problem whlch has had a maJor effect on
America’s creative capacity. " - .

Senator Bayn. Thank you, Senator Danforth, - L

Gentlemen, good to have you with us. Mr. Gibson, you may
proceed. '

TESTIMONY OF LOUIS M. GIBSON, PRESIDENT, U.S. TRADE-
MARK ASSOCIATION, ACCOMPANIED BY ROBERT O’BRIAN,
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

Mr. GiesoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Louis
Gibson, and I am Trademark Counsel for Monsanto Co. in St.
Louis.

Senator THurRMoND. Could I ask you, is that the same Monsanto
that has a plant in South Carolina?

Mr. GissoNn. Yes.

Senator THURMOND. I would be very interested in what you have
to say.
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- Mr: Gieson. I.am: accompanied -by. Mr. Rober‘t O’Brian, trade-
mark counsel for Bristol- -Meyers in New York, Mr..QY Brlan is also

* .executive vice president of the U.S. Trademark Association.

. Senator Bavs..Is that. the same Br1stol Myers that bought the
Tom plant in Evansville, Ind - o _ .

. Mr. Gisson. Yes. . . ot

Senator Bavm. - Got 2 couple experts here, .Strom [Laughter]

"Mr. GiesoN. We are both here this morning on behalf of the
USTA. We have about. 1,500 members. These members are corpora-
tions and . law firms, " Our membership owns or represents the
owners of the majority of all the registered trademarks through
the world. Our. membership comprises a majority of the Fortune
500 companies, as well as many small companies.

Senator, BAYH ‘Excuse me, who dld you -say your orgamza.aon
represents‘? :

"Mr.. GIBSON Members of our organ1zat1ons own or represent the
owners of the majority of all the reg’xstered trademarks in the
world. .

‘Our ‘association is commltted to the premlse that the Patent and
Trademark Office must be capable of effectively performing in a
timely manner the services for which it was established. We feel
that, the separation of the PTO would promote thls kind of
performance, .

.The' association has’ taken a strong pos1t10n favorlng ‘the’ separa—

tion bill, and our board of d1rectors has passed a, resolutmn favor—
mg it.” :
‘Due to the fact that the name of th1s agency is'the “Patent and
Trademark Office,” there is a belief among many laymen that the
purposes and functions of patents and trademarks are closely re-
lated. Patents and trademarks are quite different, and it is only by
coincidence’ that they are administered by the same agency. The
trademark problems are unique, and are only related to the patent
problems ‘because of the same fundamiental disease—inadequate
funding; lack of attention from'the Department of Commerce, and
lack of knowledge about the Trademark Ofﬁce on the part of the
Department of Commerce. -

‘Based upon- prior negiect that has dlrectly led to the present sad
state of:affairs, it is clear ‘that:the Department: of Commerce has
little' knowledge: of either the purpose or the operation of the PTO.
This basic” lack:of understanding on' the ‘part of Commeérce has
made-it. impossible:for the Trademark Office to’ function efficiently
as an ' agency designed ‘to serve the pubhc in estabhshmg and
protecting tradéemarks. ;-

The selection and reglsterlng of a name for: marketmg purposes
iswital :to “all businesses. It: affects every individual or-company
des1r1ng to: do- businéss in this country. The delays and inefficien-
cies of the- present operation make-this selectlon and registration
process extremely difficult for everyone, but it is particularly diffi-
cult-for individuals and small companies that Just are less equlpped
to cope with it than are large companies. - :

-In order for anyore to sell a product or: offer services in whlch he
hopes to :obtain repeat -business; ‘he .must .offer that. product or
service under:a name-that will: be:exclusive to him. He must -be
able to continue to use that name so that he can build goodwill and
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a reputatlon However, for neW products and serwces, thls is be-
coming an impogsible task. -

There are'two key factors that make 1t dlfﬁcult to obtaln a sound
trademark position in a timely fashion. One involves a determina-
tion as to the availability of a proposed new ‘trademark’ via a
search of the Trademark Office records, and the other involves the
length of time requlred by the Trademark Ofﬁce to accept or reJect
an application, -

In order to determine the avaxlablhty of a proposed new trade:
mark it is necessary to search the records of the Trademark Office
to identify possible conflicts. However, the search facilitiés in the
Trademark Office have been. allowed to deteriorate to such a
degree that the results of a search are of little value, This deteno-
ration of the search facilities causes unnecessary uncertainty in
the selection of a new trademark and results in the filing of trade-
mark applications that would not otherwise be filed. This in turn
leads to increased litigation w1th trademark owners who have ac-
quired earlier rights, It results in loss of time and money due to
the necessity of changing names in midstream when a newcomer
unexpectedly encounters conflicting prior rights.

The second factor relates to the time delays that have increased
to an unprécedented level. In 1977 the Trademark Office cotild
make an initial examination of a trademark application within 3
"~ months. Thig period has now grown to 12 or 14 months, and it is
anticipated that it will requ1re 7 years by 1985, This projection of 7
years for an initial review of an application is based upon Com-
merce continuing with its policy of giving low priority to Trade-
mark Office programs and requests, Whether the wait is more or
less than 7 years, business cannot delay the. introduction .of new
products these long periods of time to determme whether a product
can be sold under a particular name. .

This inefficiency stifles the growth of the economy Every busi-
ness—large or small—is affected by. these.delays. They make it .
particularly difficult for ‘a small businessman to introduce a new
product in competition with established brands. :

The trademark examining corps has been. reduced: from about 70
to 89, while the number of trademark applications have increased
up. to 70 percent. In the face of these kinds. of figures,. the Com-
merce Department reduced the budget. Every. study made by our
association reveals that the basic roadblock lies in the fact that the
Trademark Office has not been granted the right to convey its true
state of affairs to the people who make the leglslatlve and budge-
tary decisions affecting trademark operations. :

The vast majority of trademark owners would. be w1111ng to pay
substantlally higher fees for an.efficient trademark operation.. If
operated as an 1ndependent agency, our assoc1at10n would support
a substantial increase in fees. This would résult in a. decrease-in
the overall cost of the operation to the government and perm:t a
substantial increase in the Trademark Office’s budget. ;

It is imperative that the environment of the trademark: oper-
ations be improved. The failure to-do so has seriously damaged the
morale of trademark personnel. At a time when skilled people
should -be developed.and: trained, the young talent-is being:frus-
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trated to the extent that they prematurely leave, thus creating an
even more inefficient operation due to inadequate staff. . = .~
There has been mention of the testimony of the prior six Com-
missioners. I won't go into that other than to comment that that
kind of unanimity should speak very forcefully toward this exact
question, . ... P P SR E PR VA S
. The PTO needs.no supervision from the Department of Com-
merce. This proposed separation legislation would permit the Com-
missioner to deal directly with the legislative and budgetary ques-
tions affecting the operation of his.office. This ability to deal with
its problems and to communicate directly with Congress will pro-
mote the effective and efficient operation of the Trademark Office.
" At the time I prepared my formal comments, some 10 days or so
ago, I said soméwhere in- here that the trademark operation had
reached a crigis situation. That was true then. In the interim, it
has become a great deal worse. For all practical purposes, the
Trademark Office of the PTO has ceased to function. as. of 10.days
ago: I don’t think it would.be an.overstatement to say it is almost
down the tubes, in joining the countries where registration requires
8, 10, 12, maybe 15 years. I say this because the Official Gazette at
the Trademark Office is no longer being published. That is a statu-
tory requirement. This has to be. published.” But it .isn’t being
published. The last one was published January 19—in any event, 1
got it the day before yesterday, and it was out. of phase—they
skipped 1 or 2 weeks. This can be traced directly back to the
budgetary problems with Commerce and the fact that the trade-
mark operation couldn’t afford to go to the Government Printing
Office to get the Official Gazette printed. Instead, they went to an
outside source because they could save $300,000. An outside source
can’t handle this. - T e
" In view of the fact the Official Gazette is not being published at
this point in time, there is no notice as to the applications that
have passed through prosecution. There can be no opposition be-
cause puiblication is necessary for opposition. I don’t know, but 1
would stippose that this is backing up into the examining corps and
giving the examiners the feeling, “Why bother?”’ Ewven if they
examine an application, even if they pass it to publication, it is not
going - to. be published. There are people out there waiting to get
their registration so they can license them. There are people out
there waiting to sue on infringement. But they don’t have a regis-
tration because they can’t get it published. It may be necessary.to
publish somewhere in the area of 15 to 16,000 trademark applica-
tions in one volume. If that has to happen, there is absolutely no
way the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board can cope with the
work load that will be generated by all the oppositions, about
16,000 applications published at one time. . - _ cr e
) io in respect of the trademark operation, in any event, the crisis.
18 here. - e T (8 LTI T SR P SR LRI L
T have ‘'mentioned budget, and my colleagues who preceded. have.
mentioned budget. And that is important, but it may. not be the
most important factor. The most important factor could well be the
right of highly specialized agencies-to have a voice in it’s .own
affairs. Most general lawyers have only a slight, if that, knowledge
of patents and trademarks. If general practitioners have little
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k.nowledge of this area, it follows that laymen in the screntlf'ic and
technical area, as in the scientific area of Commerce, would have
even less knowledge and less sensitivity to the issues and problems
of the PTO. I feel that is especially true in connection with trade-
marks which are not based upon either science or technology.
Patent practitioners almost always have some knowledge of trade-
marks, but scientists rarely do. There is, I feel, a demonstrated
need for the PTO to have a volce in Congress to have a vorce m
resolvmg its own fate.

‘It is a position of the U.S. Trademark Assocratlon nothing short
of creating an independent agency will remedy the situation. We
echo all the statements of our colleagues who preceded us this
morning, and cur Assomatmn, whose members comprise the single
most ‘active force in the trademark ﬁeld wholeheartedly support
thig separation’ leg'lslatlon _ _ :

- Thank you, gentlemen. - : A ‘ K

Senator BavH. Thank you very much I appreclate the way you
have analyzed this. You brought in another segment really of the
whole patent/trademark picture.

I may have a question or two I want to submrt in wrltmg

Mr. GiesoN. Yes; sir. - .

Senator BAYH. In deference to others, before we have to give up
this room, I hope you will forg-we me by Just havmg you answer
those questiong in wrltlng _ , -

Senator Danforth. ~ -~ '

Senator DANFORTH. Mr. Chalrman I want to ask a questlon I am
gorry I came late and have to leave early, but 1did want to hear
Mr. Gibson’s testimony. -

The whole field of patents and trademarks is somewhat arcane.
It is a separate field of law. Those of us who practiced law in a
more general sense never really knew what was going on in the
patent and trademark area. But a company such as Monsarto, as
an example, is highly dependent on innovation, on research, on
technological improvement. It is our understanding that a great'
deal of what you do and a great deal of our prospects for the future
growth in your industry are dependent on technolog1ca1 innovation:
and scientific advancement. w

Is the effective operation of the Patent and Trademark Office
related to how well you do your business? Is it fair to say that an
ineffective Patent and Trademark Office has a hindering effect on
technology development, research and development, know-how in
America, or is it just the sort of thing that maybe is of some
passing interest to those who are experts in this arcane field, but
really doesn’t affect the country as a whole?

Mr. GiBsoN. Senator, I think it is' more than a passing interest. It
is more than that. There is a very ‘direct correlation. There is a
gentleman in this room who can speak to that more, the director of
the Patent Department of Monsanto Co. But I might say from my
nontechnical point of view, that the bottom line would be why
should a company spend, arbitrarily, 10 years, many, many, many
millions of dollars in developing a product if upon development and
gale anyone else in the world can pick it up and use it with
absolutely no expenditure of the time, effort or money? We must
have a patent position. ‘And without an efficient operation, I think,
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again, I can only echo what my patent colleagues said earlier this
morning, technology, the innovative process has got to suffer. That
in turn is going to have a direct bearing on the licensing of technol-
ogy, the sale of products: both in.this- country and:in exports. We
are talking about something that, in the long term, is even going to
affect the balance of payments.

Senator DanrorTH. Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

. Senator BayH. Thank you very much Mr GleOIl

Mr. GiesoN. Thank you.:» -

[Mr. Gibson’s prepared- statement and responses to written ques-
tions from Senator Bayh follow:].. o
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T STATEMENT oF "

{-THE UNITED STATES TRADEMARK ASSOCIATION -

Hearlngs .on 8. 2079
United’sStates Sénate’
Committee on Governmental Affalrs
-~: Committee on the Judiciary.

March 12, 1980 -

My name is Louis Gibson and I am Trademark Counsel
for Monsanto Company in St. Louis. I am President and Chairman
of the Board of The United States Trademark Association and
appear on behalf of that Association.

The United States Trademark Asscciation (USTA) repre-
sents nearly 1500 corperations and law firms. Our membership
owns or represents the owners of the majority of all the regis-
tered trademarks in the world.

The fundamental aims of our Association are to promote
and further the trademark concept, to protect the rights of trade-
mark owners, and to acquaint business, educators, the press and
public with the proper use of trademarks.

) Our Association is committed to the premise that the
Patent and Trademark Office (PT0) must be capable of effectively
performing in a timely manner the services for which it was
established. The separation of the Patent and Trademark Office
would promote such effeqtive and timely performance.
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‘At 1ts ‘SeptenbéEr 1979 meeting, “the Board of" Dlrectors B
of the USTA passed the following resclution:
. RESOLVED, . That The.United States Trademark
Association supports the proposal that the
Patent  and Trademark 0Office be éstablished
..as.-an independent agency. of: the government: .
and that it be removed from the Department
of Commerce.
VDue to the fact that the name of thzs agency is the__
“Patent and Trademark Offlce" (PTO), there 15 a bellef among
many 1aymen that the purposes and functions of Patents and trade-
marks- are. closely related,. Patents ang trademarks.are quite
different and it is only by.coincidence that they are administered:
by the same agency.. The. trademark problems. are unique, and are-
only related to the patent problems.because.of the same. funda-: .
mental disease -- inadequate funding, lack of attention from, . .
the. Department of Commerce, and lack.of-knowledge. about the.
Trademark Office.on the part of the Department of Commerce.

You have learned from various sources that the Trademark ~
0ffice has deteriorated to an.alarming degree,.This situation
has developed over.a pericd of time,:and has now reached.a
crisis. position that deepe:etely needa;attentionqq;attention__;
which has ﬁot been forthcoming from the Commerce Department.

Based upon prlor neglect that has dlrectly leﬁ tol'h“
the present sad state of affalrs, it is clear that the Depart—  'M
ment of Commerce has little knowledge of elther ‘the purpoee or

" the operation of the PTO. This basic lack of understanding on
i the part of Commerce has made it impossible for the Trademark
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0ffice to function efficiently as an agency designed- to serve
the publiec in establishing and protecting trademarks.-.

" The selectlon and reg;sterlng of a name for marketlng
purposes is v1tal o_all buslnesses. It affects every individual
or company deslrlng to do bus;ness ln this country._ The delays

and inefficiencies of the present operatlon make thlS selectlon
and- reglstratlon process extremely &1ff1cult for _everyone, but

it is partlcularly dlfflcult for 1nd1v1duals and small companles
that are less equlpped to c pe with 1t tha_

are large companles. ;

 In order-for anyone to sell a prodﬁéé or. offer’ sérvices
in-which hé hopes to obtain repeat business, he must offer'that -
product or service” under ‘a‘name’ that will be’exclusive to him™
or hik company.  He must be able- to-continge to use that name’
so that he can build goédwill and & reputation which will permit
his business to-flourish. 'However, for new products and servicesy
this is becomifig an’ impossible task, becdause of the ‘detéricration’
of the Trademark\ﬂfﬁige.

“'There are’ two key factors that make it difficult to
obtain a sound’ trademark pogiticn in a timely faghion. ~‘One -
involves a determination -as-to the availability of a proposed
new trademark via a Séarch’'of the Trademark’ Office recoirds,”
and the other involves the length of time requlred by the
Trademark Offlce to accept or re;ect an appllcatlon for the
regxstrat;on of a trade <rk.' ’
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“In’order toé detérmihs thé’availability of a proposed”
new trademark it is-necessary to search the ‘records of the
Trademark Office to identify’ possiblé conflicts, - However, the -
search facilitie&'-in thé Trademark Of£iéé-have. been allowed o
deteridrate to such a degrde that the resiilts of a seafch 'of
the records is of extremely dubiocus value. This deteriofaticn -
of the search facilities cauges unnecessary uncertainty in the
selectlon of a new trademark ‘and results 1n the f111ng of trade— _
mark appllcatlons £hat would not otherw1se be “filed. Thms 1n o
turn leads to 1ncreased lltluatlon with trademark owners Who .
have acqulred earlier rlghts. It also results 1n loss of tlme
and money due to the necessity of changing names in mld-stream
when a newcomer unexpectedly encounters ‘conflicting -prior rights.

If there was ever an area that lends itself to computeri-
zation, it is the fieid of trademerﬁ recor&s. Yet in a countrf'
that is ‘the world's leader in computers, maasive delays have
been encountered in the efforts to oomputerlze records because
of the apparent 1nab111ty or unwrlllngness of the Department
of Commerce to llsten and respond.

The second factor relates to the time deldys that have -
increased to an unprecedented level.  In 1977 the Trademark '
Office could make an 1n1t1al exam;natlon of a trademark appli-
cation w;thln three months. This perlod ‘has now grown to twelve
or fourteen months, and it is antlclpated that this same 1n1tial
exam1nation will require seven years by 1985.‘ Thls projectlon )
of seven years for an 1n1tlal review of an appllcation is based
upon COmmerce contlnulnq w1th 1ts polxcy of giving low priority
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to Trademark Office programs. and.requests.. Whether. the wait
is more or:iees&thapﬂseyen years, business. cannot delay.the:
introduetion. of  new products these long periods of time .to..
determine whether a product:can be sold under a particular.
name. :Delays of this magnitude would ohviously. be detrimental
to bueipese.%,.ﬁh

Thls lnefflclency st;fles the growth of the economy.,,':
Every buslness - large or small - is affected by these delays B

and 1neff1c'

_ncles They make 1t pertrcularly dlfflcult ror
a small bus;nessman to lntroduce ‘a new product in competltlon
with an EStabllshEd brand. ‘

The.trademark-examining”corps-has Been reduced from
about 70 to 39 while the number of trademark appllcatxons have
1ncreased up to 70%. In the face of these klnds of Figures,

the commerce Department reduced the trademark budget._ Every‘
study made by our Assocmatlon reveals that’ the ba51c roadblock
lies in the fact that the Trademark Offlce has not been granted
the rlght to convey ‘its true ‘state of affalrs to the people who
make the legislative and budgetary declslons affectlng trademark
operations,. A way.must be .found for.the.Patent and Trademark
Office to be heaxd in the Congress. .

The vast majorlty of trademark owners would be w1111ng
to’ pay substantlally hlqher fees for an eff1c1ent trademark
operatlon. If operated as an 1ndependent agency, our Assoczatlon\
would support a substant1a1 1ncreaae “in feea. ThlS would result _
in a decreaae 1n the overall cost of the operatlon to the govern-r

ment “and permit a ‘Substantial increase in the Trademark Office's
budget.
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ViAsit ‘presently stands, money“coming intethe trademark
opération goes directly £o thé -Treasury with no réflection as 'to
either source or amount. A simple’ example of this 51tuat1on is
that the Trademark’ Offlce, ‘like the Patent Office, must pay a
set amount each time ah on-site photocopy machine is used by the °
public. Even though I pay to use the machine; the foney I pay
goes to-the Tréasiiry and is mot returfed to the ‘trademark opéra=- '
tion nor credited to its operation. Therefore; if T use-the
machine, I take away from the Trademark offlce ] budget. Like-
wxse, the flllng fees and other charges made by the Trademark
Office go d;rectly to the Treasury thh no credl ﬂback to
trademarks. '

It is imperative that the énvirbnmént'of’the"traaeﬁark”
operations be improved. The failure to do so has seriously
damaged the morale of trademark personnel. At a time when
skilled people should be developed and retained, the young

' talent is being frustrated to the extent that they prematurely

leave, thus creating an even more inefficient'operation due to
inadequate staff,

There can be nothing more convincing'as evidence of
the necessity of separation than the statements of all the past
Commissioners of the Patent and Trademark Office who, regardless
of party affiliations, regardless of the era in which they served,
have uniformly supported separation. ©No single group of men could
pbssibly have greater knowledge or experience of the PTO operations
or problems.
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‘... -The Pakent and Trademark Office performs. a.quasi-judicial
fuhctign.‘ It needs no supervision. from the Department of Commerce,
This proposed .separation legisletionquuld permit. the Commissioner .
to deal directly with,the legislative.and budgetary questions,
affecting ﬁhe_operations of his office.. This ability. to deal ..
with its problems, -this ability to. communicate directly with .-

Congress, will promote. the effective and efficient. operatlon -
of the Patent and.Trademark Offlce.'

' It 1s the poaltlon of The Unlted States Trademark

Assoc;atlon that nothlng shorL f creatlng an 1ndependent agency )

will remedy the situation. Our ‘association, whosé members .com=~

prise the single most active force in the trademark fleld, whole-;:
heartedly, supports, this separation.legislation.. .




: TH! UNITED STA'I’ES TRADEHABK ASSOGIATIOH B
& EAST 45TH STREET > NEW YORK, N.Y, 10017
. TELEPHONE: 212-986-5680. . :

oFFIcE ﬁF'THE PRESIDENT

“mpril 8, 1980
* Thé& ‘Honorable Birch Bayh S
The United States Senate ! : L
© 363 Russell Senate (0ffice Buildlng e :
Washlngton, D.C. . 20510 . .
ATTH: Mz Tog Allen” '
B%.i-__s.ﬁ_'”_g
Dear Sir:
Thank you for your kind letter of March 18 coheerning
the Independent Patent and Trademark Office pct. I
was pleased to submit testimony. on behalf of the USTA -
cand am gratified that you have seen fit fo submit .

__add;tlonal questions to us, Our responses to the,
questlons are as follows.

”QUESTION No. 1

Yo mention in your statement that it now takes 12 -

.+to 14 months fér a trademark examination and that

this wait could increase to 7 years if current-
-trends continue. What does this pendency time de

. teo a company that is try;ng to market. a new innova-
- tive product?

ANSWER

pendency times of this duration substantially increase -
the risk and cost of selecting a new trademark. Further~
more, -the introduction of new products is delayed and
matketing plans go awry. .

If a businessman proceeds'wmthout full clearanée on a 7
new name, he runs a high risk of encountéring a thlrd
party who may have prior rights in theiname. The - @~
.. result could mean the withdrawal of the product from

the market, expensive litigation to determine the
rights of the parties, or because of the economics of
the situation, leaving the newcomer no choice but to
buy his way out of an unnecessary conflict caused by
the inefficiency of the Trademark 0ffice.
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These unconscicnable delays can be devastating to

the small businessman who doesn't have the resources

or knowlédge to cope’ with them nor an already ‘estab- |
lished brand name that he might be able to use until .
a new name can be cleared. Every bu51nessman, ‘large ®
or small, wants to introduce a.new product under a
new and exclusive identifier. These delays are
forcing merchants and manufacturers with new products
to either delay introduction of their product or to
use a mark they might already have registered, but
that does not necessarily suit the new product.

Everything sold in this country :needs to be-identified

by an exclusive means of identification:-so:that:a business
may be rewarded or penalized:for “its-products and so a
consumer has a means for making an informed decision as
to which product to purchase. and which to aveoid. The

PTQ is supposed to facilitate this process but it is

not serving this purpose if-a term of years is reguired
to obtain clearance  or a reésponse from the Trademark
Office. cn

QUESTION- NG._Z_&:

You: mentloned that the” Department of Commerce has
reduced’ the number of trademark examiners and has
cut ‘their budget inspite of the: tremendous increase
in trademark applications. The Department is now
saying privately that the current problems are the
fault of the. Patent and Trademark Office's inability
to run . itsg operations.and that oversight from .the
Department .is needed- to. “get a broader perspective.”
Do you believe that there :ig any reason for® the '
Department to have oversight of the Trademark Office?
Has this overdight helped or hurt the trademark system
in your opinion?

ANSWER

The. Department of Commerce has been overseeing the
BPTO, including the trademark. section for decades.

In the face of strong facts and figures on increased
f111ng, Commerce, with' its "broader perspective"
forced substantial: cutbacks on the Trademark Offlce
cperations to the detriment of all U:S. businesses.
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the forced: budget cuts,: the. cutbacks in personnel,
and the lack of attention and knowledge by Commerce -
have been devastating. Commerce makes decisions
without consulting the Trademark Office or even
advising. the Trademark Officé. These kinds. of
decisions, based as they are upon disinterest and .
wrong or poor information, have a tremendously o
adverse effect upon all facets5:of the Trademark -
Office. As an example, Doctdr Wolek, who testified
on behalf of Commerce, has. stated that one of .the
reasons for the increase in filing for trademarks
was because so many paténts were being held invalid.
A patent has absolutely.nothing to de with a trade-
mark., If Commerce cannot recognize the fundamental
differences between patents and trademarks, it is
" in no position to provide "over51ght" If Commerce
cannot understand the purpose of a. trademark, how
can it properly oversee the Office? .o

As far as the Department’'s comment that’ the current R
problems are the fault:.6f the Patent and Trademark =
Office's inability to run its operation, it is 7
Commerce that has caused the operation to fail by’
denying :proper funds and by interfering in the

operation of an agency it does not understand --

an agency, that is unrelated to -all other -Commerce
operations. .. For over a hundred years (1838 to 1948)

the PTO was direcdtly responsible to Congress. From

1948 to 1962 it reported to the Secretary of Commerce,
and from 1962 it has reported to an Assistant Secretary: -
of Commerce. The deterioration of the Office over the~
years can be traced directly to the Commerce Department
handling of the PTO's affairs. S i

QUESTION NO."3

Do you thlnk that e should glve the Commerce Department
another ‘chancé or do you think that the previous history
justified making the Patent and Trademark Office 1nde—_ﬁ
pendent without delay? :

ANSWER"

The Commeirce. Department has had decades to perform. ...
The PTO has been knocking. on their door. foir years .and

has not. been heard. <Commerce has been. so consmstently
negligent over such a long period of time that it is . ...
inconceivable that Commerce be offered another chance
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to further destrey the. PTO.. It is critical -that. the
PTC be made. 1ndependent without further delay..: x

For the first time in history, the Trademark Office
has been unable to consistently comply with the -
statutory requirement for publishing new applications
and issuing new registrations. For example, in the’
Trademark Official Gazette dated March 4, 1980, which
was not distributed until March 21st, there ,were no )
registrations granted. Agaln, in the March 18th Issue
{distributed March 28) no registrations were granted.
The normal number per week is at least 7507 In fadt,
every week so far this year the- Trademark office has
been unable to issue anythlng close to the ‘Proper
quota of registrations that should be granted each.
week., Some weeks-only ten’ percent (10%) of the ’
normal number of- reglstratlons have been issued.

In the meantime,: U, ‘businessmen -‘and 1nd1v1duals

are waiting for the 1ssuance of registrations that
were allowed months -ago.. This printing. fiasco is:the: :
result of the Commerce Department's handling of a: con-=
tract with an inexperienced printer..:The.Commerce '
Department had no .conception of the.-legal requlrement
that calls for a thirty day. nctlce to:the publlc from
the date of. publlcatlon.r; :

We just cannot afford to tie up the Offlce for another
.year or two on 'a so-calleéd ba31s of “g1v1ng the Commerce
: Department another chance o : .

QUESTION NO. '4'- s

You mentloned ‘that"if the PTO was 1ndependent the .
U.8. Trademark Association would support a substantial”
increase in trademark fees to decrease the cost of the
trademark operation and make it more efficient. Would ™ -
you support such an increase if the Trademark Office
contlnues to operate under the present arrangement° o

ANSWER ©°

Absolutely not. Under no circumstances could we ask
anyone to support an increase. where the operation has
no hope of providing the services. that are required.
The USTA will -only support an increase” in- fees if the:
fees ‘are credited to the operation of the ‘Trademark
Offlce.' Under the Commerce Department thlS w1ll not
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Any increase ‘in trademark fees 'while the 0ffice is
under the control of Commerce would not necessarily

be directed to the trademark :operations. The Commerce
Department knows this. . When the filing of trademark
applications increased by 70%, the Commerce Department
cut back pergonnel and denied the Trademark Office

any penefits it might receive from these additional
filing fees because Commerce had overall- budget prob-
lems ‘that had nothing to do w;th the operation of

the Trademark offlce._

The people who use the Trademark Offlce are Wllllng :
to support an increase providing the requlred services
‘are preformed. " The end reésult could be an overall
reduction in the government's budget,: with no cost-

to the taxpayer.  Even with an increase in fees,; an: .-
efficient operatlon of the Trademark, Office would.
actually result in a savings to every user of the
tradenark reglstratlon system.' .

Please do not hesmtate to contact our Association 1n
the -event we mlght be able to help in any way

‘“VeryjtfuIY'XOurs,“ o _’-

Louis M. Glbson ‘
President: ’ ’
The Unlted States Trademark Assocxatlon

T

LMG: b

cc: Dorothy Fey . .
. John T. Lanahan

O Robert D. O_Brlen
.| Thomas J. Ward
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Senator BAyH. OQur next panel of witnesses are Mr. Jack Maurer,
chairman of the intellectual property task force, and Mr. Archer L.
Bolton, Jr., chairman of the science and. technology task force of
the National ‘Manufacturers’-Aggociation. :

Gentlemen; we’ apprec1ate your bemg here

TESTIMONY OF ARCHER L. BOLTON JR CHAIRMAN, SCIENCE
AND TECHNOLOGY. TASK. FORCE, NATIONAL ‘MANUFACTUR-
ERS’ ASSOCIATION,. ACCOMPANIED BY -JOHN E. MAURER,
CHAIRMAN INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY TASK FORCE NATION-"
AL MANUFACTURERS’ ASSOCIATION -

Mr. BoLToN. My same is ‘Archer L: Bolton. I am cha:lrman of the;.
board of Bolton- Emerson, Inc:;-a Lawrence, Mass., based manufac-
turer of processing equlpment forthe’ pulp, paper, and plastics
processing industries. T-am also a member of the board of directors
of the National Association of Manufacturers, and currently am.
serving as chairman of NAM’s Committee on Science and Technol-
0gy. . _ . oo :

Mr. John Mal'irer, who is with e, is patent counsel _fdr; 'Mon-
santo, and chairman of NAM’s task force on intellectual property.

The National Association of Manufacturers is a voluntary mem-
bership organization ‘of more than 12,000.companies. These compa-
nies produce approximately 80 percent of the goods manufactured
in the United States. Among NAM memberships, some 80 percent
can be classified as small businesses, of which my own company is
one, NAM is affiliated with 158,000 businesses through the Nation-
al Industrial Council and the NAMAssociations Department.

Most of our members use and rely on patents in one form or.
another, and the NAM, for more than 20 years, has had an offi¢cial
written pohcy on patents, which reads in part:

The patent laws of the United States have coniributed greatly to the h]gh stand-"
ards of living of our people and to our world leadership in modern technology. The
incentives of our American system of patents are vital to our continuing industrial
growth as well as to the establishment and success of new ventures. The property

represented by a valid patent should stand before the law on a par with other
property and should be accorded the same legal protection.

Thus, the NAM, as an association of manufacturing companies,
is unequivecally supportive of the patent and its owner.

But let me cite another very important part of the NAM policy
position on patents, and it refers specifically to the Patent and
Trademark Office, perhaps the only policy statement that directly
addresses a specific agency of the Federal Government. It reads:

An adequately staffed and efficiently operated U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
is essential to the continuing success of the American patent system, and therefore,
the Patent Office should be supported at a sufficient level to accomplish such end. It

is in the interest of the public welfare that patents be issued as promptly as possible
after their applications have been filed.

That policy statement is simple and direct. Unfortunately, the -
Patent and Trademark Office as it exists today falls considerably
short of the intent of the policy statement.

The Patent and Trademark Office is a unique element within our
Government, being among the first bodies to he set up after the
founding of our Republic. It is really a repository of man’s efforts
" to change things to enhance his well-being. It is an especial reposi-
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tory for the pecuhar Amerlcan gemus for the gearch” for better
solutions: .~ -

The NAM- pohcy statement recogmzes the essentlahty of
adequately staffed and efficiently operated Patent and Trademark
Office.” Instead, the Office is quite understaffed, and is inefficient.
Search files are incomplete and out of date, time required to issue
a patent or trademark is being stretched out and the manpower
and funding is inadequate. - -

Some - concerns about' the Patent and Trademark Office have
been no-better expressed than by Senator Bayh himself I would
like to quote-him" to. reemphasize how:seriously the Patent and
Trademark Office has deteriorated..He says, and I quote:

~The Patent and Trademark Office has been- senonsllj-,lr underfunded for years, yet

this simple  fact has never been clearly stated in- the budget requests that we
ccms1der

“Senator Bayh further states

Not only are a large number of patents missing from the files, but only a small
percentage of the files are covered.by a. security sirstem ‘to prévent theft and
misfilings. The Patent and Trademark Office is not able to hire the needed person-
nel to fill the existing vacancies—the number of trademark examiners in 1980 will
be the same ‘as in the mid-1970s; yet they are expected to process 65 percent more
applications. Patent examiners have 20 percentto 30 percent less time to spend on
patent applications than 20 years ago, which means that all too often a -patent
holder is shocked to find his patent struck down by the courts because of data that
was not considered by the patent examiner in his hurried search for previous
fatents and related materials. Inventors and businesses must also wait longer and
onger for their: patent and trademark apphcatlons to be processed

‘The NAM represents a large and varied commumty of interests
that depend heavily on an ef'fic1ent and reliable Patent and Trade-
mark Office. Our members’ experience fully-supports what Senator
Bayh has learned. And we share his ¢concern that the Patent Office
has so deteriorated and has been so handicapped.

Our natural inclination would be to support any remedles that
would immediately correct the inefficiencies of this key govern-
- ment service. 8. 2079 appears to oﬁ"er an 1mmed1ate solutlon to’ the
ills'we all recognize.

The administration contends that it has" been the’ Pres1dent’
policy to limit the number of independent agencieg only to cases
where there is a‘demonstrated need. The NAM cannot but dgree
with that sentiment. NAM: has been:concerned about and its mem:-
bers have suffered from proliferation of agencies; and particularly
regulatory ones, to the point where we.are generally appealing for
a stop to such expansion. But the Patent and- Trademark Ofﬁce is
neither a-new agency nor a regulatory agency.

It ‘could be argued that the President’s- pohcy in fact remforces
the proposal of 8. 2079 to separate the: Patent and: Trademark
Office from the Commerce Department because ‘many now detect
that “demonstrated and compelling need” for such independence.

But as we view the idea of ‘separating the PTO from Commerce
and giving it independent status, “we' are not yet persuaded that
this step would be the'only solution. ‘

In our testimony on a bill mtroduced by the late Senator Ph1l1p
Hart—S8. 1321—that sought to do what S.:2079 seeks to accomiplish,
the NAM took the position that “we noted. the laudable objectives
in the proposal to establish the Patent- Office as -anindependent
executive agency reporting to the Congress.” We testified then that
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“there clearly are advantages in having a Cabmet officer. at-the
organization pinnacle in which the Patent Office is located. There-
by matters affecting the patent. system-may, when necessary, be
- more readily brought to the direct attention of the: President—and

his support may-be enlisted for programs: merltlng and requlnng
such backing if they are to succeed Yoo

-We further argued back in 1973: that “in terms of 1ntergovern-
mental relationships it seems that the position and support-of the
Secretary of Commerce may be of far greater value to carrying out
the goals of the Patent Office’than. would be the relatively lesser
prestige: and weight of .the -head-of -the- Patent Office if the latter
were to be an- 1ndependent executive agency:” i1 ¢

Much to everyone’s anger and frustration, the oppos1te has hap-
pened. Perhaps- that :frustration has been no-better exemplified
than by the testimony of so many living ex-Commissioners of Pat-
ents who support S. 2079. The understaifing. and: delay continue.
Funding remains inadequate. The voice of the PTO is not heard at
Commerce, the Office of Management and. Budget or-on the Hill:

Last year, the President’s Domestic Policy Review of Industrial
Innovation sought to ferret out ‘and 1dent1fy where | there were
bottlenecks in the Federal Government 5 role VlS-a-VIS the 1nnova~
tion process. -

The draft report of the Adwsory Subcommlttee on Patent and
Information Policy of the Advisory Committee on Industrial Inno-
vation, established as part of the. Domestic. Pohcy Review, made
recommendatmn to improve the reliability of the patent grant In
considering the provisions of 8."2079; we would. like to.quote the
first recommendation, which is in two parts: i

_Upgrade the Patent Office by: (a) Providing an, adequate examin:-
1ng staff to assure a rigorous, high quality exammatlon This would
increase confidence in the patents that are issued. (b) Providing
modern search tools that increase the.probability of finding the
relevant prior. art. . This, would be a cost,_effective investment, by
reducing research time per examiner, as well as reducing the. fre-
quency of subsequent proceedings to argue the prior art.

When the President issued his set of nine industrial. innovation
initiatives on October 31,.1979, he noted that. the “patent process
has become expensive;; t1me-c0nsum1ng, and unreliable.””. One. of his
_solutions. is to. direct the Patent-and Trademark Office to under-
take a major effort. to upgrade and modernize its processes, in
order to:restore:.the incentive to patent——and ult1mately develop—
inventions. A praiseworthy intention, and one jthat ought to. be
given a chance. The President says that such upgrading and - mod-
ernization ‘will: be paid: for “by.-adjusting the fee schedule of the
Patent Ofﬂce s0:-that those who benefit w111 pay for the serv1ce-
they receive.”” - ;

. Those who are begmnmg to have less and less conﬁdence in: U S
patents are. not likely. to.pay. more an more in:filing fees in the
hope that cond1t1ons W1ll 1mprove That is placmg the cart before'
the horse...

. Further, hlgher fees W111 act as a d1s1ncent1ve to 1nd1v1dua1 Alis
ventors and small firms, if they are prohibitively high: - -

-The -provisions of 8. 2079 and the ground swell of support for 1ts
separatlon provision:have riveted:attention -on the problems -and
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failings of the Patent Office.”We join in the concern of others that
the time has come for strengthening the Patent Office; for provid-
ing adequate funding and staff; for confidence in the fulfillment of
its -mission, the. professionalism of its tasks, the efficiency of its
operations, and—what we at NAM considet the bottom hne—the
reliability of issued patents and trademarks. -

“We understand - that the Commerce Department is now glvmg
attention .to these matters ‘at: the highest level. Combined with
President Carter’s ‘expréssed intention to upgrade the Patent
Office, such attention leads us to expect posmve 1mprovements
there.

‘We know that Congress- will- gWe careful conmderatlon to the
plans that Commerce  will develop to deal with the recognized
problems of the Patent and Trademark Office. However, should
Congress not receive such plans promptly or find that those plans
will ‘not solve the:problems of the Office on a long-term basis, then
we fully support passage of S. 2079.- :

‘Mr, Maurer and I would be glad to-answer any questmns

Senator BAYH Thank you, Mr Bolton I assume that is a: Jomt
statement. W
" Mr. MAURER. That ig* correct sir: s ‘

-Senator Bavs: ‘Gentlemen; I'am a very patlent soul and I don’t
hke to tamper with somethmg ufiless ‘it is not functlomng “If it

ain’t broken, don’t fix it”:is pretty applicable -in ' many instances.
We need to have the support of the Natmnal Assoc1at1on of Manu-
facturers’ in our efforts here.

I will just be very frank with you “Mr. Glbson in' representing
the U.S. Trademark Assoc1at10n spoke at least for the trademark
parts of the major corporations in the NAM. How long do you give
the Department of Commerce to stralghten 1tse1f out‘? ‘The' Presi-

dent’s study came out in October, ~
" We asked the present Commissioner to give his assessment of
what needed to be done to improve his Office. That report has been
made, the shopping list has been prepared. But the very bureau-
-cratic structure that keeps. the Patent Office from functioning
properly or being subject to the right kind of congressional control
and oversight has prevented us from getting the assessment of the
Commlssmner, unabndged and unadulterated from the blas of }us
supemsors .

“This bill zsn’t gomg to. solve aIl the problems, but ‘this is one that
can be done with a minimum amount of pain. . .

- We have had Patent and Trademark Commissioners almost since
the beginning of the Republic. Every one that is:still alive has
testified to this committee going back through Republican and
DPemocratic administrations to Eisenhower. And we have had all
sorts of pronouncements from the Department of Commerce that
they: were going to clean up their act. Is there any reason to think;
if we are going to talk about long-range consequences, that we are
going to. have different results. by giving them more time?
Shouldn’t we cut that umbilical cord and gwe them the mdepend—
ence to do this job? What do you think?

Mr. Borron. Senator; I think we are stuck with the record.
Dehberately, our testlmony included our position in 1973, when we
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were hopeful we could work out of the sﬂ:uatmn then Our sﬂ:ua-
thIL has:-not improved; and has deteriorated. - R
' As you can appreciate, because we have: many relatmnshlps w1th
the Commerce Department ‘other than:the -matter-of patents:and
trademarks, we are subJected to various ‘internal influences: in' our
association concerning Commerce. We have ‘a somewhat -political
problem. of our own to wrestle with. We are saymg that essentially
we think that this is'a judgment question: If in the judgment of the
Congress: the agency should - be’ spun off and g1ven mdependent
gtatus, we will support, that. -
Senator Baya. Thank you, Mr. Maurer‘?
‘Mr. Maurer.: No, 1.fully support what Mr. Bolton: said: We
beheve as he said, the record is there, but we think, in fairness; is
what we are saying-, you-sh‘ould,- and I know you*will, give consider-
ation to what Commerce’s plans might be: I think you still have to

weigh that with the concerns that have been-expressed and wheth-

er, on a long-term basis, ‘there is: any way realistically. that . the
problems can be - solved to the satlsfactlon of those who, use.the
system. - o

Senator BAYH Thank you We are gomg to continue studymg
this problem—but I think you can.study.something to:.death. You
pointed out 1973 proposals. We could be sitting here in 1983, I don’t
know whether I-will.be, but you gentlemen could be, and having
the same: kind of.critique. I think we just have an inherent prob-
lem with the organizational structure, where the Patent Office is
really 80 subservient to a lot of other interests in the Department
that, it is an involved stepchild. .

But you have been very kind, gentlemen, and 1 apprecxate your
remarks. I may submit written questions to you 'Thank you..

. 'Mr. BoLToN. Thank you, sir. .

{Responses to ertten questlons submltted .to Mr. Maurer follow]

: MONSANTO Co.,=%
St Lour,s Mo March 28 1980

Hon Bmcn BAYH, v
US. Senate; Cammutee on the Jud:czar% .'
Subcommtttee on 'the Constatutwn, Was. mgton D

DEAR SEnaTOR Bave: This responds to your letter to me of March 17 1980.

Let me say first that the National Association of Manufacturers apprec:ated very
much' the opportunity: to testify on:S. 2079, the Independent Patent and Trademark
Office Act, and the leading role you personally have taken to determine and bring
to the attention of the Congress and the Executive branch the long standmg serious
situation that exists in the Patent and Trademark Office (PTO). -

Question I, Many times in'the past when there wasg an: outery about the 1nefﬂc1en—
cy: of having the. Patent and: Trademark. Office under the.Commerce Départment
there have been promises from:the Department that if the PTO was: left under
Commerce it would get better treatment in the future. Historically, when this
clamor died down the Department has gone- right back to its usual practice of
neglecting the Patent and Trademark Office. Do you think that the present prom-
ises of the Commerce Department will be:more effective than: those given 10.years
. 2go? What will happen to those promises if there.is a new administration:next year

or if there is a cabinet reorganization which so, often_accompanies a second term?

- Answer. The neglect of the Patent and Trademark Office (PTQ) ovér such a long
period of:fie would seem: to 'indicate - a ‘structural problem, especially in- the
inability’ of :the: Congress to receive the -frank views of the .PTO itself. There is no
reason why a truly determined Commerce Department canniot. propose an effective
plan and take the necessary budgetary steps:for the coming year. Whether the
action would carry through with a new administration or a cabinet reorgamzatlon
would'dépend somewhat on-thé: apparent success of the first year, but more impor-
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tantly onthe new perceptions of priorities—which of course cannot be foreseen. In
this regard the Congress coiild of course help to establish those priorities. _
Question 2. Do your companies have any dealing with the PTO? How would you
rate the present system? Does the fact that the Commerce Depattment freguently
ignores or opposes the. recommendations of the PTO about its budget concern you?

. Answer. Although we have not made a specific survey, there is no.doubt that the
. gréat majority of NAM’s more than 12,000 ¢ompsnies file in the PTO applications

for patent and for registration of trademarks, and are also affected by patents and
trademarks obtained hy others. Further, the efforts of the PTO on the international
scene affect the quality of patent and trademark. protection obtained by our member
companies. - . I L o . L

In the past, the Commerce Department’s performance vis-a-vis the PTO has been
spotty and unpredictable, but in general far from responsive either to the perceived
needs and proposals-of the PTO itself or the needs:of the country as perceived by
NAM’s Task Force on Intellectual Property. The result is the present severe under-
staffing and inadequate searching capability with resultant poor services.

Question 4. On November 30, 1979, as I mentioned in my statement, T asked the
Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks Mr. Diamond to give me a list of the
needs of his office so that the Appropriations Committee could help the PTO in this
year’s budget. [ now understandP that the Department has embargoed this report
and will not let the Appropriations Cominittee see it but will insist that the
Departiment’s word on ‘the needs of the Office’ be accepted without any: possible .
contradiction by the real experts at the PTO. Does this refusal to allow the PTO: to
have direct contact with the Congress bother you at all? Don't you think that we
are taking a substantial risk if we just accept the Department’s word that it will do
a better job when we could make the PTO independent and be assured that the real
experts will be running theshow without interferénce? = D e

Answer. We feel that the PTO’s own recommeéndations to Commerce should be
made avaialble to the Congress and to the public, even though Commerce may differ
with some of the recommendations. Also, the cognizant Congressional committees
should be able to receive testimony from and question the Commissioner of the PTO
and his staff. We think this especially so in view .of the quasijudicial nature of the
PTO. Obviously, Commerce's observations and actions on the PTO proposals should

" be equally available to the Congress.

Based upon' the past performance of Commerce and the testimony of recent
Commissioners of Patents, it is difficult to believe that there will be-any long lasting
change: for the better.-On.that basis there is clearly -a-risk that the-PTO will sink
further toward becoming a second-class operation. We should not-accept that risk. -

Please be assured that if there is further information or assistance that we can
supply, we would be more than happy to do so. :

Respectfully, - P
IR IV se R T weer - JOHN B, MAURER, o Do
) Chairman, NAM Task Force on Intellectual Property.... .
-Benator BavH. Qur-tfiext: witness-is -Mr. Eri¢ P.-Schellin,’ chair-
man of the board of trustees of the National-Small Business Associ-
ation:.. ‘oo R TR O O S SRR I
. Mr. Schellin, you are no stranger to the committee. It is good to-
have you back: - - B S R P LI S
TESTIMONY OF ERIC P, SCHELLIN, CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF
TRUSTEES, NATIONAL SMALL BUSINESS ASSOCIATION . =
~Mr. ScHELLIN. Thank-you very much, Senator.” -~ -oowt
-:As-you indicated, T am ‘chairman of the board of trustees of -the:
National Small- Business -Association. I. am also the executive vice
president-of the National Patent Council.- - "~ .« "o s wine o
-If T appear before you today a-little bit redeyed -and subdued,-
which.is unusual for me, it is because I just came in this morning’
on the: redeye. special from. California: I- was -out there for:2-days,
working with the National Science Foundation -and approximately .
260 small business enterprises and entrépreneurs that: were thére
for a series of conferences to bring in:207to 30 Government agencies
in grder to teach productivity to increase productivity, and to share '
with them the experiences the Government has had.. - . . - -
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You, Senator Bayh, have mentioned several times today the
point which is in the equation of maximum importance to us all—
it is productivity. And yet 'S. 2079 would pose problems. It would
pose problems in the executive branch, prlmarlly because the ex-
ecutive branch views it as a causal proposﬂ:mn In spite of some of
the estimates that it would only cost $150 000 the executive branch '
would use a different number.-

Why is thi$ important? Very easy. The executive branch very
recently, as you know, has put severe constraints on the budget for
fiscal year 1980 and also looking toward 1981, What happened at
the National Science Foundation conference over the last few days
I think is very important, because over one-third of the Govern-
ment agencies that were supposed to be there didn’t show up under
the specious argument they couldn t make it because of budgetary
restraint.

Now the meeting was set up for the purposes of 1ncreasmg
productivity. And yet one-third of the Government agencies don’t
show. 8. 2079 will also be perceived as increasing the budget and,
therefore, I think that we will have a great, dlfficult t1me in
harvestmg the crop after we plow and put the seed in.

I just shared that with you by way. of background. I have a.
prepared statement which I have submitted.

Senator Bavs. We will put that in the record. C

Mr. ScHELLIN. We commend the committees for the opportunity
to address the issue of establlshment of an 1ndependent Patent and
Trademark Office. o

Permit me to begin w1th the statement that drastic circum-
stances require drastic measures. .- .

This committee hag recently heard testu:nony from most of the
living former Commissioners of Patents and Trademarks. In each
case the witness gave anecdotal evidence of personal experiences.
These experiences demonstrated that the PTO is consistently treat-
ed as a backwater by every administration, which you pointed out,
too, without regard to party affiliation.

-Thé PTO is an old-line agency virtually finding its genesis con-
currently with the founding of this Republic. Through the years.
sport has been made of inventors, patent attorneys, and patent-
examiners, all have been the subject of cartoons. Yet, somehow in
gpite of caricature, the agency comes through to the pubhc as being
some grande dame; not quite understood but tending to her knit-
ting which is her business. The agency does not evoke. passions; up
until now it has found only a small constituency.

The Patent and Trademark Office has recently become the sub-
ject: of increased. attention due.to diminution of innovation result-
ing in a lag in America’s productivity growth: The patent system: is
validly perceived as playing a role by providing incentives to in-.
creased product and process productivity. Considerable testimony
before these commiftess and. other congressional committees by
numerous witnesses have already stated the same- conclusion, so:
that it is redundant to spell out the premise again at this point.

-However, in passing, it should be noted that the National Patent.
Council and the National Small Business Association, in concert,:
have been.involved in furthering the patent system long before it
became fashionable. These organizations; through their representa-
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tives; have testified; before: various committees: of the Congress and.
have gone -on"record in briefs as friends of the court in regard to
our :perceived notion that there was and. continues to be a runaway
movement in the direction of ‘use of .trade secrets as:an.alternate:
means. for. effecting -intellectual - property protectlon because of a
poorly funded PTO and patent system. It is our belief that the use
of the trade secrets as the ultimate means of protection, interest in,
and use of the patent system would continue to erode.that system.
An extensive record has already. been made as to how and why the
patent system has fallen into considerable disrepute, and our
prophesy has come true. Protection afforded through the concept of
trade secrets is anthesis to the concept of disclosure as found in the
patent system. In other words, a trade’ secret does. not “teach” ag a
patent by virtue of the prlnted disclosure is said to “teach,” The
patent, then, bécomes a tool upon which improverments ‘may be
made or efforts may be made to design around. A trade secret may.
have perpetual life, while the exclusivity afforded by a patent has a
known limited term’ after which the subject of the invention goes
into the public domain. Finally, and most important, the patent
system has been declared to be more important to small business
than to ‘big busmess Big business -¢an often depend upon its mar-
keting acumen ' to give it ‘the ‘clout to obtain exclusivity. Smiall
buisiness must more often depend upon a patent and the degree
that that patent can be ‘enforced. .
‘Tt will be seen, therefore, that the small business constltuency‘
will favor any legislation that is percelved as upgradlng the patent
system. Small business:does indeed percewe S.°2079 ‘as’ constituting
-salutary leg1slat1on that ‘would assist in upgrading that system. It
is' believed "that“an independently-‘constitutéd Patént and Trade-
mark - Office’ would- be more” responsive-“to ithe Congress, to the
executive branch and those usmg and paylng for‘ he patent
System Ler ] : ; .
“An- analysls of the present PTO reveals hat ‘A multllayered'-
bureaucratlc infrastructure in the following areas normally requir-
ing interaction has: posed consideration” problems, ‘and I call: your
attention: ‘toa series-of charts I’ prepared :in- subsequent:-pages-in
the printed statement ‘entitled::“Budget,; Legislation, management:
and ‘organization; and pres1dent1al -policy on’innovation; for:exam-
Dle, -government. patent:-policy:” I won’t go"through: those, ‘because:
essentially the former Commissioners -of:‘Patents ‘that: testified
before have covered that subject more than: adequately “But if you
will look: at -them -momentarily,:you : will .$ee’ the Commissioner
must work up .and-down a-line. r1fe wit 'problems at each step,
subJect to.considerable delays. RS
~From! memory 1 would alse’ ‘call. your attentlon to what Herbert
Holloman who,.;at’ the time-he wasiAssistant-Setretary.-of Com-~
merce for Science and Technology; told’David Ladd -at the time he
was: Commissioner, .of -Patents—I " believe. around: 1963.: He said,
“You issue the patents ‘Iwill make pohcy JAnd so:it- appears, that
it has been well ‘established. that the Commlsslonerals a functlonary
to-deliver the patents: s )
-Even_ if the Commlssmner is not to be mvolved in. any pollcy
de01s10ns, what is the answer to the question: Is the PTO delivering
its services and goods in, a satisfactory: manner? With that question
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comes theconsideration, what is it that the PTQ is percelved to do?
With regard to patents, I have provided in succinet form a review
of title 36 which I think bears looking at. But it indicates essential-
ly under section 6 he has a duty fo issue patents. Under section 8
he has a duty to maintain a library." Under section 9 he may
clasmfy patents. And under section 10 he may print patents. :

If we merely wish to“assess the efficiency with which the P’I‘O
dehvers patents or the granting thereof and the majntaining of a
library of such’patents, one can conclude that the PTO is relatively
efficient. For instance, the Commnissioner does indeed grant pat-
ents; by statute of action. If scale is important, then we will find
that approximately 80,000 patents are granted based upon the
ﬁlmg of 100,000 patent appllcatlons The percentage of allowability
is high and the absolute numbers that we are talking about are
also massive to say the least. It would appear that - efﬁclency ls_
indeed excellent. = - '

Second, the time between filing a patent application and the
resulting issued patent is at the present time quite ma.nageable
We hear talk that it may increase to 2 years and perhaps beyond:
In any event, it is not foretold that the pendency time will increase
to what it had been in the years prior to compact prosecution. As a
result of the patents that have already been issued, it will be well
appreciated that the library maintained by .the Commissioner is
indeed voluminous, It is said that approximately 22 million docu-
ments are classified somewhere.in the confines of the PTO, the 22
million documents being_ defined as the.original patents, ‘the var-
ious cross-references thereto, the foreign patents and the literature
references available in the PTO. Having determined that the PTQ
is indeed efficient in granting. patents and is.efficient in.the gen-
eration of information for a library, it should be perceived that the
PTO is fulfilling somewhat its statutory function. I shall not dis-
cuss. the nature of the quality of: those issued patents, however;
that has been discussed at other times. before: other committees.:

In a recent.survey undertaken by me and first referred to in a
talk-given by me on June 12, 1976, in a conference on the Patent.
and Trademark Office, I ﬁrst became aware - that . the -infrequent:
users of the patent.system were uhaware of the very limited area
in which the. PTO. operates. The more frequent users complamed of
the inadequacy apparent to them . . B

-Permit ‘me to'summarize. o :

For instance, there. is ‘ho evaluatlon program of the kmd found
now-being administered by some ‘universities under various Federal
grants. PTO is not a source of funding. of any kind ‘comparable to:
the NSF-Small Business Innovation ‘Research-or the DOE-Office of
Energy—Related Inventions.: There is no- consolidation ‘of programs
to help inventors in the PTO:itself, which are meager; and other
agencies. There is little help for the inventor who has filed his own
patent application, for example, patent apphcatlon preparation and
prosecution. There 'isn’t even the use ‘ofia toll-free telephone
number whereby someone in the PTO can be responsive to the
inventors’ inquiries. The issued patents are classified for the bene-
fit of the PTO examiner; not for the public:who should be the real
end users. There is little assistance to help inventors interested in
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“ selling or commercializing . the1r patented inventions. There 1s no;
assistance from the PTO in helping to enforce a. patent :
‘Tt is apparent from the foregoing that the PTO:is: set up to do
virtually nothing for the mventor-lnnevator before the patent ap-
plication is filed.-. . .- .

. The PTO is efﬁc1ent in’ 1ssu1ng patents, a8 we. say, as’ long as the
inventor-innovator is adequately represented by a patent attorney:
or patent agent

The PTO is set up to do nothmg for the patentee a.fter the patent
issues. .- ; :

.On June 6 1979 Adm1ral Rlckover stated that the PTO, is-
merely mvolved in .a recording function.: I submit to you. unless’
drastic measures are undertaken, such as by:the establishment of
an independent. Patent and Trademark Office, Admlral Rlckover
will continue to be correct in his assessment.

.An-independent PTO will provide a vehicle to insure that 1ts two
primary functions are carried out in a much better fashion. Future’
issued patents can be made more reliable and the library of prior:
art can more easily be discerned as constituting: the world’s great-
est repository. of information ‘on.téchnology. I have had occasions to
lecture before faculty and students at various schools of ‘engineer-
ing who are amazed to learn that the PTO is a storehouse of

~information.
Once having reformed the two primary functions of the PTO,
future consideration can be given to giving it enhanced activities
all in the name of increasing innovation and being of greater
service to the public.
Before closing, permit me fo share with this committee two areas
of concern as we view S. 2079.
One, we feel that limiting the posmon of the Commissioner to “‘a
person with substantial experience in patent and trademark mat-
ters” is too restrictive.
Most of the former Commissioners that recently came before
these committees have achieved their experience as the top patent
attorney in a patent department of a large corporation, the others
have -come from firms which have been successful as a result of
representing large corporations. Future Commissioners should not
necessarily follow this route. For if they do, they may be geared
only to carry forward with those things with which they are al-
ready well familiar. If an independent PTO is to move beyond
merely being involved in a recording function, the position of Co-
missioner should be open to any talented individual that can fill
the position with panache.
. 'T'wo, we are also concerned with the fact that the independent

PTO, by virtue of S. 2079, being in a position to establish policy
would not have a set means for seeking appropriate input.

Therefore, we recommend that S. 2079 be amended to include a
National Patent Board te advise the Commissioner. Such a board,
if properly constituted must have a small business representative,
A parallel to the National Patent Board may be Gi;gund in the
National Science Board of the National Science Foundation.

If I can personally be of any assistance in providing the suggest-
ed changes, I would be happy to cooperate. We of the National
Small Business Association are grateful for the opportunity to
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participate in reviewing S. 2079 and conclude that it is forward--
locking legislation, insofar as we look at it as a beginning and not’
the end ‘in itself. I would, therefore, argue somewhat with the
gentiemen that appeared earlier representing the bar, where -they
were seeking to establish an independent Patent Office to continue
in the way it is being operated today, with perhaps some cosmetic
improvements. I feel 'we should look at S. 2079 ds a begmnmg to do
a lot more. _ ) :
“Thank you very much... : o : T ,
Senator Bayn, Thank you very much Mr Schelhn I apprec1ate-
your thoughts about the Natlonal Patent- Board. That sounds very
interesting. I hope we can work together to see what we can do-
with that. I appreciate your support for this legislation and the:
deep concerns that you express on: behalf of the small busmessmen-
of this country. ; o
I may have a question or two in wrltlng Thanks for takmg the
Red-Eye Special to be here I have done 1t myself and I know 11: 15
not easy. Thank you. . .
‘Mr. ScEELLIN. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Schelhn and responses to Wntten
questmns follow ]
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STATEMENT OF
ERIC P. SCHELLIN
ON BEHALF OF _
NATIONAL SMALL® BUSINESS ASSUCIATION
AND
NATIONAL PATERT COUNCIL
BEFORE A JOINT MEETING OF TRE
. SENATE CONMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS
AND. THE SUBCOMMLTTEE ON THE CONSTITUTION OF THE
SENATE GOMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY
HOLDING HEARINGS ON THE
INDEPENDENT PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE ACT :
5..2079 .- ¢
MARCH 12, 1980

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Comm1ttee ‘ )

My name is Eric Sche111n I am Cha1rman of the Board aof Trustees of the
Natjonal Small Business Associgtjgn,(msg), a mu1;1—1ndustry trade association
representing approximately 50,500 $m§11 bu;inessﬂfirms nationwide. I am alsc
Executive Vice President of the.National Patent.Council and Chairman of the
Advisory Committee of-the American Society of Inventors.

We commend the committees:for the opportunity to address the jssue of the
establishment of an independent’ Patent and‘Trademark Office.

Permit me to begii with the statement that drastic circumstances require
drastic measures. - e

This committee has recently heafd tééti&bﬁ& from most the the 1jving farmer
Commissioners of Patents and Trademarks. In each case the witness gavé anecdoctal
evidence of personal experiences. These experiences demonstrated that the PTO
is consistently treated as a backwater by every Admimistration without regard to
party affiliation. .

The PTO is an o]d i1ne agency v1rtua11y ftnd1ng 1t5 genes1s concurrently

w1th the foundTng oF h1s repub11c “Thrqughttherygars §port,ha$ been made of
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inventors ,-patent ‘attorneys and patent examiners, all have been the subject
of cartoons. Yet, somehow in spite of .caricature. the agency comes through

to the public as being some grande dame; not quite understood but tending to
her knitting which is her business. The agency does not evoke passianﬁ;“ug,,h“
until now it has found only a small constituency. )

" The Patent- and Trademark Office has recently become-the subject of
increased attention due to diminution of innovation resulting in a Jag in
America's productivity growth. . The patent system is validly perceived as
- playing a-role by providing incentives to increased .product and‘process
productivity: Considerable testimony before these committees and other
Congressional commitiees by numerous witnesses haQe alveady stated the same | .
conclusion; so that it is redundant to spell.out the premi;e again,

However; in passing, :it should be.noted that the National Patent Counctl
and the National Smail Business Association, jn.concert, have been involved .
in furthering the patent system Jong;before.jt became fashionable. These . . .
organizations through thefr representatives have testified before vgridus‘
committees:of the.Congress.and have gone.on.record.in briefs.as friends of
the court in regard to our perceived notion that there was and continues to.
be a runaway -movement in the.direction.of the use of .trade secrets as an
alteraate means for effecting jnte]Iectual ppoperty,protection,”a11ﬁtq_yhe
denigration of -the patent-system. yIF was -our belief-that the use of the . -
trade secrets-as the ultimate means -of protection;:interest in, and, use of. the.
patent system would continue to erode that system. An extensive record has
aﬁready been-made as -to how. and why the:patent system has fallen into..

considerable.disrepute. Cur prophesy-has come true. . Protection -afforded.through
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the conéépilof trade secrets §s antithesis to.the concept of disclosure as
found in the patent system. ~In other words,a trade secret does not "teach” as .
2 pateht'hy'virtdé of the printed disclosure is said to "teach." The patent,
then, bébomes-a tool hpbn which improvements may be made or efforts may be made to
design around. A trade secret may have perpetual 1ife, while the exclusivity .
afforded by a pétent has a known limited ‘term after which the subject of the
invention goes into the;pu51ic domain., Finally, and most importantly, the
patent system has been declared to be more important’ to small business than
te big business.' Big business can often depend upon its marketing. acumen to -
give it the clout to obtain exclusivity. ' Small business must more often’
dwmd@mapﬂmtmdme&mwtmtmnpuwtwhmeﬁwmm

Ip will be seen; therefore, that the small business constituéncy will
favér any Tegislation that is perceived as upgrading the patent system.

Small business does indeed perceive 5.207% as constituting salutary
1egi§1atidn'that would assist in upgradfng'the patent system.® It is believed
that an independently constitited Patent and Trademark Office would be more"
responsive to the Corgress, to the Executive branch and those using and paying. -
for the patent system.

An afalysis of the préSeht PTO revedls that a multi-layered bureaucratic:
infrastructure in the following areas normally requiring interaction nas-posed. .
considerable problems: A) ‘BUDGET, B) LEGISLATICN; C) ‘MANAGEMENT AND
ORGANIZATION and D) PRESIDENTIAL POLICY ON INNOVATION {e.g., GOVERNMENT
PATENT POLICY): R

In the following I will to the best of my knowledge share with you what
I perceive as the identifiablé layers in the bureaucracy and will take the
Tiberty of specifically calling attention to comments made durirg the

- testimony given by the former Commissicners at the recent hearing,
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BUDGET ...

Congressional- Appropriations .
Committees

Adiinistration (Office of Budge ‘
and Program Eva]uatwn in Corrwnerjge

{

{

|

a

e o

Ass1stant Secretary fmr- Pruduct1v1ty, Technology !

& Innovation {formerly Science and Technolegy} é_ I |
plus Deputy Assistant B

Secretary and Budget Officer... .

1

Commissioner ...: .

PTO Budget Officer

1. Former Commissioner Banner:says that it .is important to.note .;th_at, the .
Commissioner is:only.a bystander with respect l.to discussions with Congress and
OMB concerning-thebudget. - -ovui v teiiia e o o e

2. :He.also-noted that Commerce caused many months delay. in obtaining _ .
funds to pay-examiners;in 1979..-Also faﬂure of :Commerce .to.take any. actwn )
until tate in the year meant that the printing of patents had.to ;b‘e.curtaﬂed_
drastically.

3. Banner noted how Commerce misspoke when Commerce stated that PTQ
would "misuse” any extra money to be allocated teo FT0,

4. Former Commissioner Schuyler stated that Commerce delayed his request

for a new computer facility for two years even though PTO had money to pay for it. .
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Commitfees of Congress
0MB

commerce General Counsel {and Ass1stant
General Counse1 for Leg1s1at1on)

Assistant Secretary for Product1V1ty,
-, Technology & Innovation (and Assistant
o General COunSET for<p.0.1. o

Commissioner

PTQ's Office of Legislation andiﬁ
Internationat Affairs ;

1. Former Commissioner Dann at page 56 of the transcript says many
problems vesulted simply from the additional layers of veview.-. =

2. 'As ‘example of a'delay, thé White House arinounced on:October 31,

1979 that under its. innovation initiatives Tegislation toiéstablish re-:: 1. -

examination would be $ubmitted.: This has not been done and ‘furthérmore ..
no detailed input has been received by the Congress in spite of such

pending legislation.
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MANAGEMENT*AND”ORGANIZATION'fi'“

I

.Secretary of {ommerce

Assistant; Sécretary for Administration
{0ffice of Organization and :Management

Systems, Office of Budget and Program
Evaluation and 0ff1ce of Personne])

Assistant Secretary for Product1v1ty
Techno]ogy &,Innovatton (and Deputy)

PTO - appropriate dffices

1. Former Commissfoner Banner testified that a reorganization of PT0
budget and finance was proposed ear]y Tast year and nothing has been done yet
2. Former Comm1ss1oner Dann stated that Commerce de1ayed his

reorgan1zat1on of documentat1on organ1zatlon for six months

3. Former Comm1ss1oner Schuy1er stated that after Banrer s res1gnat1on,

a member of the staff of the Ass1stant Secretary of Commerce for Sc1ence and
Techno]ogy {at that time) phy51ca11y moved 1nto the PTO and usurped much uf

the statutory author1ty of the Act1ng Cmnn15510ner

Yol

4. Add1t1ona11y, the Secretary of Conmerce was stated by Comm1ssuoner o

Schuy]er to not have suff1c1ent 1nterest in the PTO to try to obtatn adequate '

office space which 1s desparate]y needed
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PRESIDENTIAL POLICY ONINNQVATION: -
{e.g., GOVERNMENT PATENT POLICY)

Pres1dent

Office of Science and Techno1ogy

Secretary of Commerce

Ass1stant Secretary for- Product1v1ty
Technology and Innovation {and Deputy)

PTO

Former Cnmm1ss10ner Banner stated that the Conm1ss1oner is not an active
participant in many po11cy dec1s1ens which are d1rect1y connected w1th patents
and trademarks In other words the Comm1551oner has had no vn1ce in
Adm1n1strat1on prop05a1s concerning government patent po]1cy .

From memory 1 wou]d a]so call yuur attent1on to what Herbert Hoi]oman
who, at the t1me he was Ass1stant Secretary of Cmnnerce for Sc1ence and
Technoiogy,tu]d David Ladd at the t1me he was Cormissioner of Patents (about
1963) : ="You 1ssue the patents, I will make poT!cy<" And 50 1t appears, that
it has been well estab]1shed that the Comn1551oner is a funct1onary to de]1ver »
the patents.

Even if the Commissioner is not to be involved in any policy decisions,
what is the answer to the question: Is the PTO delivering its services and goods
in a satisfactory manner?"™ With that question comes the consideration what is

it that the PTC is perceived to do? With regard to patents, a review of
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Title 35 U.5.C. Sec., 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 probably-capsulizes -the PTQ functions in
a way that at the same time.also.defines the presept_duties,of;the Commissioner.
Accordingly, a review .of these sections reveals.that the Commissfoner is to issue
patents and to maintain a library of such patents. ... _...v - .

Sec. 6. Buties of Commissioner T

(a) The Comnissicner...shall superintend or .
perform all duties.required by .Taw respecting -the .. -
granting and issuing of patents and the registretjpn
of trademarks...and shall have charge of property
belonging to the Patent and Trademark Office.-
(emphasis supplied}

Sec, B. Library Dherition 2t noumer”

The Cmnn1ss1oner shall ma1nta1n a library of
5c1ent1f1c and’ other works and per1od1ca]s both
fore1gn and domest1c, in the Patent and ’

Tr-ademark Office to a1d the ofﬁ cers in the
discharge of their duties. " (emphasis supp11ed}

Sec. 9. C1ass1f1catton of Patents

The Comm1sstoner __x_rev1se and ma1nta1n
the class1f1catlon by subaect matter of Un1ted
States Tetters patent and such other patents and
pr1nted pub11cat10ns as may be necessary or
pract1cab1e, for the purpose of detenn1n1ng w1th
read1ness and accuracy the oveltz of 1nvent10ns
for wh1ch app11cat1ons for patent are f11ed o ; .

(emphas1s supp11ed)
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o See. 10, -Certified-copies of records : & -

" The Commissioner may furnish-certified copies of
specifications ‘and ‘drawings ‘of patents issued » =
by the Patent and Trademark Office.. i’
{emphasis supplied)

Sec. 11._ Publications © =i uif TEiavoornanin

(a) The Commissicner-may print, or causé 'to be- -
printed, the following: ‘-

1. Patents....-+" 7"

2. Certificates of trade-mark'régﬁstrationsf:{.-

3. The Official Gazette....

(emphasis supplied)

If we merely wish to assess the eff1c1ency w1th wh1ch the PTO de11vers
patents or the granting thereoF and the ma1nta]n1ng of a 11brary of such .
patents, one can conclude that ther?TD is relatively e£f1c1eht. .For 1nstance,
the Commissioner does indeed grant patents If sca]e is 1mportant then we
‘will find that approximately 80,000 patents are granted based upon the f111ng
of 100,000 patent app]1cat10ns The percentage of a11owab111ty is htgh and
the absolute numbers that we are ta1k1ng about are also massive to say the
least. It would appear that efficiency 1§,1ndg§q excellent, Second]y, the
time between filing a patent épp]itation anﬁ the hgtulting.Jsgued pateht 1;7
at the present time quite manageable we hear ta]k that 1t may 1ncrease . .
to two years and perhaps beyond In any, event, 1t 1s not foretold that the
pendency time will increase to what 1t had been 1n the years pr1or to

compact prosecution. As a resu1t of the patents that have, a]ready been
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{ssued, it will be well appreciated:that’ the: 1ibrary maintained by the™ ' :
Commissioner is indeed voluminous.. It is saidithat approximately 22,000,060
documents- are ¢lassified somewhere in.the confines of the PI0, the 22,000,000
documents heing defined as the original patents, the varicus cross-references
thereto; the:foreign patents and the literature references available: 'in.the
PTD.- ‘Having“determined that the PT0is indeed efficient in granting patents
and is efficient in the generation of information for:a- library, it should be
perceived that the PTO is fulfilling somewhat its statutory functioni It
shall not discuss-the nature’ of ‘the-quality of those/issued patents. -

= In & recent survey undértaken:by me”and first referred to in a talk

given:by e on June 12, 1976, in‘a-Conference on the Patent and Trademark Office,

I first became aware. that -the infrequent users of -the patent system were unaware
of the very limited area in:which the PTO operates. --The more frequent: users
complained ‘of the inadequacy apparent to them.

Permit me to summairize:

“1) There is ho'evaluation program, of the ‘kind found now being administered

by ‘some universities’under Federal girants.
2) PTO is not.a soirce of funding of any kind 60mbarab1e to the NSF -
- Small Business Innovation: Research-or the:DOE - Office of Energy Related
*. Inventions. : -
7:3) ‘There *is ‘no-consolidation of programs to help-inventors in the PTO
jtself, which ‘are méager,:and-other dgencies.
4):There s Tittle help for the inventor whe has-filed his’ own patent
application; e.g.; patent -application ‘préparation™and prosécution:
5) There fsn't.even-the use ofia-toll free teléptiong number whereby

someone in the PTO can be responsive to inventors*“ingiiries. ™



6) The issued patents are classified for the_ benefit of .the: PTO examiner.

tnot’ for the:public.who should:be the real.end: users. . .

. 7). There:is little .assistance.to help inventors interested: in.selling. on.::

~commercializing -their patented.inventions..

- 8) There is nd.assistance from the: PTO in helping. to.enforce-a patent. ...

- It is apparent ‘from the foregoing, that the PTC.is set wp.to.do virtually:
notﬁiﬁg for the inventor-innovator before the patent application is:filed. .

The PTQ is. efficient in issuing‘patenthasA1ong:as-fhe inventor-innovator
is adequately. represented- by a patent attorney .or:patent agent.... .

The PTO is set up:to do nothing:for the patentee after the patent issues.

On: Jene 6, 1979, Admiral Rickover stated.that the PTO. is merely involved:.
-in a recording function. . If he:dis even only: partly correct,.then L.submit:to: :
you that unless drastic measures;are undertaken; such-as by the establishment :.
of an independent Patent and Trademark:Office Admirai:Rickover will:continue.. .
to be correct in his assessment.

- An independént PTO.will provide: a vehicle-to insure.that its two primary
functions are carried out in a much‘better_fashion.;uFuture-1ssued patents can
be made more: reliable.and-the 1ibrary of prior art camr:more eas{ly be:discerned
as- constituting the world's greatest repositoryof :information on.technology.

I have had occasion to lecture before faculty and students at various-schools
of engineering, who are ainaz,ed,:t_o_ Tearn:that:the PT0-is a.storehouse of: information.
Once having reformed the_two;primary;functions‘of-the PTO, - future - -:
consideration can be given to giving:it.enhanced activities all-in.the name of
increasing innovation and.being of greater service to the public. =
Before cloéing, permit:me to share:with:this committee, two areas of

concern as we view S. 2079,..
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1. We feel ‘that limitfng tﬁe'poéitiohxdf thEECoﬁmiﬁsiuqer.t

with substantial experience_ih patent and ttadema?k}mattéré

restrictive. -
Most of the former Commissioners that recentT & before this committee
have achieved their experience as the top patent attdrney”fn a patent department
of a large corporatien, the‘others have come from firms which have been
" successful as a result of represeniing large corporations Future Comm1ss1uners
shauld not necessarily follow this route.” For if they dd, they may be geared
oh]y to carry forward with those things with which thgy are”Fami1iar. _If qn
independent PTO is to move beyond merely being involved in a recording function,
the pos1t10n of: Eonm1551oner shou]d be open to any ta]ented 1nd1v1dua1 that can
Fi11 the pos1t1on with panache ' o ‘ '

2. Ne are also cuncerned w1th the Fact that the 1ndependent PTO, by

5V1rtue of S 2079, being in"a pos1t1on to estabesh pol1cy would not have

a set means for Seek1ng apprupr1ate 1nput . .

Therefore, we recnmnend that S. 2079 be amended to lnclude a Nat1ona1
Patent Board to adv1se the Comm1ss1oner Such a Board, 1f proper]y const1tuted
must have a sma11 bu51ness representat1ve A para]1e1 to the Nat1ona1 Patent
Board may be found 1n the Nat1ona1 5c1ence Board of the Nattona] Sc1ence
Foundation. o _ L o .

If 1 caﬁ’persqnhTty’be of Qny"gssigtancé'in'broviding-the”iﬁgg&sted_cﬁanges
I would be happy toICDoperaté. “In “the heéhtiﬁe:we'otjthe"Nét16h$1 Small
Business Association are grateful for the opportunity to participate in reviéwing

5.2079 and conclude that it is forward looking legislation.



NATIONAL SMALL BUSINEZSS ASSOCIATION
N58 Building » 7604 K Street, N.W,
- Washington, 1.C.. 20006 : Télephone (202) 296-7400

,: 1980"" - ‘:k. LT aT ¢

. Joseph P. Allen
Lqubcommlttee .on The, COnStltuthD.f{Hr{
Room 1025 : '
Russell Building, . . ... . ...
Washington, DC° 20510 o

© pear Joe: T

“imhis i87in response to vour letter of. Juné 103:1980% by t7..u
means of which certain guestions have been pased. The questions
and answers are set hereinbelow. LTI FepoanT ey

QUESTION 1. ' How importantiis the:rpatent system to-the small
business that is trying to compete against larger companies?
. How .does the present situation.in the Patent and Trademark Office
affect this situation?

ANSWER 1. To the small business gntrepreneur the patent grant’
generated by the patent system may.be the only way for a sma;l
buginess to compete 'with'larger companies who have' economict
acumen for rapid market penetratlon. As the small business
‘entreprerneur depends heavily’on the patent anythlng -that
disturbs the reliability of the patent and the ability of the
holder’ of the patent to enforce. the' rights afforded by ‘the patent .-.
will be disastrous. Small business can count less and less on )
the ability of the Patent and:Trademark 0ffice -to deliver a: .-
patent that inspires confidence that it will survive an. attack.

QUESTION 2. Do you feel that there is any justification or '"
evidence from,your experience, with the PTO that: arques for
continuing the present arraigément on ‘the promlse of the”
Commerce Department that it will do better in the future?

oo DTl L B R T S A R R
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ANSWER 2. With perscnalities aside, the Department: of Commerce
cannot validly deliver on its promise... -There:are too many in . °
being channels of communication that can never pe:mit interfacing
directly with the PTQ.- In fact to do so might in fact chazge

the Department of. Commerce with délegation of authority and’
responslbllltles that cannot ‘be valldly delegated. -’

QUESTION 3. What do you think that result would be if asmali
‘business Had'to conduct ‘its decision making. along :the ‘lines of
command that you have outlined in your testimony ex1sts  teday

:1n the PTO”_

{ ANSWER 3. First cf ail; small bu51ness does’ riot have the
~luxury of  a chain of cammand as.geen.in the PT0. Nor do they
then have a’ dilution of authorzty and resporsibilities. small
businesi's forte is- frequently merely the ability to respond
;qulckly to:opportunities: A diffuse helrachy of command:.is
a barrler to a rapid- dec1510n.

DUESTION 4. If the pendency time keeps increasing as ‘it has déne
.dn*the :past -what- effect does this have on the inncovative:small -
VbuSLness? - oo . .

ANSWER'4. . Increased pendency time'in the PTO Of - patent appllcétions Sy
will result in postponing ‘decisions to commercialize an. innovation and.
the resulting coroilary may be that a postponed dec;sxon is a

:lost opportunlty forever.-

QUESTION 5. - Would you feel comfortahle in llght of past hlstory
to. leave the reorganlzatlon of the PTC in the hands of Congress’

(ANSWER 5. . No.. There is a lack of understandlng of the patent
system by most iadividuals in the Dept. of Commerce. This is
~borne out by the Fact that it is not recognized that the search
files in the PTO constitute one of the greatest Iep051tor1es

of technical information and that the paternt system is in fact,
when fully operative, the best incentive to innovation. '

I'remaiﬁ'at“ioﬁf service, -

‘Eric' P, schellin *'

iﬁPé:céz,:
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Senator Baym. Qur last witness is Mr. Alan Douglas, represent-
ing the Patent Office Professional Assomatmn : :
Mr, Douglas good to have youw w1th us.

TESTIMONY OF ALAN P DOUGLAS PRESIDENT PATENT
" OFFICE.PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION .

Mr. Dougras. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

My name is AlanDouglas;, and I -am - Pres1dent of the Patent
Office Professional Association. "

The Association is a labor organization enjoying excluswe recog—
nition under . 5-U.8.C. 7111 to represent the - professional patent
employees in.the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, Department of
Commerce. I am here to:speak on behalf of the patent professionals
the Association represents as-well as the U.S:. patent:system, for
the POPA constitution recogmzes that* what benefits the system
will benefit the examiner. - .

I want to invite you now to-stand back from: today s concerns JU.St
long enough to g0, back to 1869 when Mark Twain published ‘“The
Innocents Abroad,” describing a pleasure trip through many- of the
capitals of the World In dlscussmg Rome, Mark Twain sald

The popes have long been the patrons and preservers of art, Just as .our new
practical Republic is the encourager and uphelder of mechanics. In their Vatican is
stored up all that is curious and beautiful in art; in our Patent Office is héarded all
that is curious or useful -in mechamcs When' a man invents:a new style of horse
collar or discovers a new and superior method of telegraphing, our government
issues a patent to him that is worth a fortune; when a man digs up a statue in the
Campagne, the Pope gives him a fortune in gold coin. We can make something of a
guess at a man’s character by the style of nose he carries on his face. The Vatican

and the Patent Office are. governmental noses and they bear a deal of character
about them.

If Mark Twam is st111 correct about governmental character
then today some things will have to be changed or we will all have
to be satisfied with less of a character than we might want.

I cannot presume to instruct this committee about the patent
system, but I do want to tell you something of what the patent
examiner does go. that you may better understand our position with
respect to S. 2079.

As a quasi-judicial officer, a patent examiner can also be consid-
ered a technological Sherlock Holmes. The examiner must explore
every avenue of the patent statutes, rules, and regulations, to be
sure that the patent applicant has overcome every hurdle which
the law has placed in the way of his receiving a patent. I will
oversimplify those hurdles: Initially, whether the invention may
properly be subject to patent protection; whether the invention is
new or novel; whether the invention, although new, is obvious;
whether the 1nvent10n is disclosed in the application in a manner
so sufficiently precise, clear, and definite that someone in the art
to which it pertains could make and use it; to these and other
substantive issues are added a host of formal determinations. Most
of the deliberations in which an examiner must be proficient in his
job are discussed in the “PTO Manual of Patent Examining Proce-
dure,” a 500-page volume. To this knowledge, of course, must be
added a considerable body of case law. Finally, the patent examin-
er brings to the job a technical expertise sufficient to make him
conversant with what is old and conventional as well as what may

be new in a given technology.
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‘Now obvioushess as -a légal ‘concept is probably as elusive ‘of’
understanding as anything could be; it may hold the record for the
most words written about it, to the exclusion of a definition.” At any
rate, obvious'nes_s and novelty can only’ be ‘determined after a
search of the prior art. Some of you may not be aware of this, but
patent searching is accomplished today ‘exactly as it always has
been: The examiner manually sifts through the prior art looking
for some part or all of an invention. It is“not uncommon for
hundreds of documents-to be handled in a typical search."

Although searching is the same, however, responmblhtles have
changed. Today, most of the examiners have unreviewed authority
to grant U.S. patents. The examining corps, I am proud to say,
wears that mantle of authority with great dedication and ¢ommitt-
ment to a job well done. Which, within the framework of the
examiner’s search of the prlor art br1ngs me to my ﬁrst spemfic
point with respect to S. 2079,

Senator Bayh has said that “2 percent to 28 percent of the'
patents are missing from every subclass in the Patent Office files.”
A group of examiners recently wrote to ‘a high-level PTO official
complaining that patents in great quantities were sitting in stacks
waiting to be refiled—so ‘that ‘they could be properly searched.’
Shortly afterward, in a routine meetmg, ‘T'agked that official what
he planned to do about those examiners’ plea to get those patents
refiled. His answer was that the Office didn't have the money to
pay for such activities: Who gains from that? Certainly not the
examiner who wants to do the best job he can, ‘or the U.S. patent:
system which cannot afford to have incompletely searched patents
being granted. This disciission of search file integrity begs a ques-
tion: What will 8. 2079 do about that lack of search file ihtegrity?
It is not clear that S 2079 will correct it. If it will, we are for 1t it
it won’t, we aren’t.: " .-

A discussion of the act of searchmg is mcomplete ‘without the
following information. Although there are no exact figures, it is
generally acknowledged that the average search of the prlor art 1s
accomplished in 4 hours. Contrast that w1th_th15 ' %
committee on Patents, Trademarks and: Copyrlghts in 1955 Mr,
Donald Brown, then vice president and patent counsel of Polaroid
Corp., said that it was Polaroid’s “commion practice, even in fields
in Wthh we are reasonably expert, to search the art beforé intro-
ducing a new product commercially, ‘These searches, which are-
usually - limited to U.S. patents of the: last 15 or" 20 years, may
average 4 to 5 days of one man's time.” Every search by the
examiner is estimated to average 4 hours:- ~ '
- 1 ask you how would you rate the relative re11ab111ty of the

results of those two searches? I would like ‘to add that in 1961,
about 1,000 examiners with a total of nearly 3 million'patents to
search dlsposed of 77,869 applications; today, less thain 900 examin-
ers have nearly 4, 200 000 patents to search and have still disposed’
of 100,000 apphcatlons Incidentally, whenever the subject of patent
searchmg comes up among nonexaminers, the topic of machine—or:
computer—assisted searching appears as though'it were the rain-
bow at the end of the storm. Indeed, conceptually, it has certain
appeal; But examiners believe the paper documents'are irreplacea-
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" ble; it ls the nature of the job. To examine, one must pick up one

document,. study it, turn its pages to find one bit of information,
compare that w1th the invention, put it- down, pick up another
document and repeat the process, integrating all these pieces of
paper. Even so, millions have been spent Just studying the possﬂ:uh-n
ties of machme—ass:sted searching. -

There are some specific reasons: why we are not entirely in favor

of an independent, agency:bill. As representatlves of the profession-
al employees we see instance of PTQ supervisory and managrial.
behavior which we consider intolerable from the standpoint of the
employee and. the patent system. In one such instance a. profession-
al- employee complained to the. Department of Commerce that he
.was being retaliated against in the exercise of certain legally pro-
t'tected rights by PTO managers. Retaliation is a nasty word, but
the Department agreed and ordered corrective action by. the PTO
Wou‘}d we want to lose the review of -the P’I‘O’s actrons in that.
cage’

In: another case a manager of about 7 5.examiners told 10, of them,
he would fire them if they didn’t increase their production in 3
months. His action was so, palpably indefensible that the same day
we notified the Department about the facts, before we even.began
using the negotiated grievance procedure, hlS actlon was reversed;
Do v}&lre w‘;ant the PTO to be an. 1ndependent agency in c1rcumstances;
as those? . . - .

In 1977, the Department and the PTO agreed that the. ﬁnanmal
management was bad enough in the PTO to .require a special
officer, a. controller, to oversee that activity. Would the PTO have.
taken such a step as an independent agency? ¥

In a routine activity, the. Department of Commerce in 1977 con-
ducted a personnel management evaluation; the purpose of which
was to evaluate the status of personnel management and to provide:
guidance and.assistance for improvement. The Departments 23-
page evaluation recommended the PTO change its ways in 16 speci-:

fied areas and required 5.changes, most :in the area of merit.
staffing, which is where POPA has had great difficulty in the past,
leading to one recent arbitration. As you know, perceptions of
merit - staffing - irregularities., are. very. destructive of employee.
morale. In the absence of that departmental evaluation, would thej
PTO have changed its ways sua sponte? . -

In a rather remarkable. case, management tned to balance exam—;
ining work.lead to meet deadlines by telling examiners with train-.
ing and experience  in. electrical . and ‘mechanical arts that: they
would be examining applications in the field of organic chemistry.
Within days of our knowledge.of that attempt to vitiate the quality
of patent examination and the presumption of patent validity, ‘it
was disclosed. to the. appropriate authorities. and reversed Should.
actions such as-those go unreviewed? . . :

Senator Bayh has said, in his enthus1asm to achleve a robust;
Patent and .Trademark Ofﬁce, that . the. 1ndependent .agency. bill
“will be concrete: proof that we are indeed serious: when we say.
that we want a-patent and trademark system second tc none.”.
Former Commissioner Banner observed in his testimony before this:
committee that “the new. European Patent Office has 2% times our.
funding per.patent application .and twice. our staff.” Will S 2079,
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have the result of increasing PTO funding per patent application-
2% times and doubling our staff? If the answer is _yes, we are in’
“compléte support of the bill. If not, we are deallng in patent medl-r
cines, not patent systems. :

~At the first day’of hearmgs on-S. 2079 thls comnnttee heard
from the figuratlve generals in the battle. '

Our perspective, however, is different. We -are* the front line"
troops. We are the ones who, day in‘and day out, actually deal with
the public. We see in the public the belief in the patent system | as.
it should be; as it was before and as it should become again.

We want a wgorous ‘patent system. Former Commissioner Wil-.
liam E. Schuyler, Jr., in his testimony before this committee said
that apprommately 50’ years ago, “the positions of patent examin-
ers were prestigious and the exammmg corps was composed of men-
of dignity held in high ‘esteem.” You do not need ‘me to tell you'
that does not obtain today. We are concerned with why that is so,
and we believe you should be also; not because it affects the status
of a few hundred civil servants but because it d1rectly ‘accounts for
‘the condition of the U.S. patent system today. The answer is two-
fold: One, what we call the numbers game, combmed ‘with: Two, a
complete reversal as a pohcy, of what 18 the mission of the patent
system. Both have a pernicious effect on the patent system. The
first, the numbers game, seems to have really gotten rolling during
the 1960 s when, “instead of hiring more examiners to handle an
unacceptably large ‘backlog of pending applications, the Patent
Office or the Department of Commerce, or both promised Congress.
more work out of the same amount of people in the same amount
of time. Instead of offering you a litany of abominations to profes-
sional employees which resulted from that, I will simply-say ‘that
an employee who has to cut corners to satlsfy 'his' boss will. The
more or less direct result will be patents being granted without a
complete consideration of the prior art. ‘A court which discovers
that will fly the flag of invalidity and in a few years we have the
public asking, “Why bother with a patent anyway; it’s not worth
the powder to, blow it up.” T am proud to say, however, that many
examiners do work nights and weekends because their professmnal
standards are higher than those of the PTO.

The second reason I referred to is a reversal of the mission of the
Office; this is relatively subtle. From 1790 to perhaps just after
World War II the attitude within the Office was that the examiner,
on behalf of the United States, was the sole obstacle to the grant of
patent and limited market monopoly rights. That was something
not to be lightly considered. Examiners were in fact men of dignity
held in high esteem as Commissioner Schuyler said. They had, as
Senator Bayh has said, 20 percent to 30 percent more time 80 years
ago to spend on patent applications than today. Today the official
attitude about examining is that it should grease the skids to the
issuance of a patent. If and when a patent thus examined gets into
court the judge would understandably be quite shocked to find that
the gkids have been so well greased during examination that the
file record of the application prosecution does not reveal why it
became a patent. Former Justice Abe Fortas, beginning to see what
trouble the patent system was in, said in 1971 that the examina-
tion of an application was “quite often in the nature of a titanic
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struggle.”- That may have; been ;frue in Mark Twain’s time, and
probably was, . but I assure you it is not now. Nelther is it generally :
believed that a patentee.has .a document that.in. Mark Twain’s.

- time was worth a fortune.

I have been discussing the Independent Patent and Trademarkr
Office Act, S. 2079. But, as I understand this committee; that act

was . not.proposed as an end in itself, but rather as a meang to an

end: achieving greater technological innovation within the United.
States. We agree with the assumption of this committee that there
is-a direct. connection between a strengthened patent system and:

greater technological innovation. But we must caution that if this

act.becomes law and achieves its.goals—and, we. have admitted.

above to a certain hesitancy about what those goals are—then we
still must protest that those achievements will not be enough. The
Congress must increase the PTO- exammmg staff, assure top-ﬂlght

management, and insist on. a551duous exammatmn so that patents.

are not easily invalidated.

The Congress establishes the pr10r1t1es whlch ﬂow dlrectly from'

budgets. Until very recently, congressional interest in patents was
hard to find; even the Subcommittees on Patents, Trademarks, and
Copyrights have. gone on extended vacations. But if S. 2079 will
have the salutary effects POPA" thinks it will, we will support it
with the proviso that the Congress does not throw the switch,
creating an independent PTQ, and then walk away, hoping that

the infended results will follow Patents whose presumption of

validity is impregnable will reinvigorate a lagging confidence in’

the U.S. patent system, and thereby stimulate technologlcal mno-_

vation. We' eagerly ant1c1pate those results .
Thank you. : R
Senator BAyH. Thank you very much Mr. Douglas I apprec1ate
your testimony. The folks who are members of your asgociation are

the ones on the firing line called upon to provide sophisticated

services through a rather antiquated system, it seems to me. I
appreciate your thoughts on how we should broach this problem. If
I have any questions, I might submit them to you and have you

us.
_Mr. DOUGLAS Thank you

las]

answer them 1n wntmg I apprec1ate your, takmg tune to be w1th_

[The followmg letters ‘were sent to Senator Bayh from Mr Doug- '




SOCIATION.: rostOfice o 275 Acingron g 220

R -l ‘-, . -Date: . April 22, 19386

Dear Senator Bayh,

2. Thank you-again - for. the chance . to:prefent our views
on 8. 2079; both as to.the hearings eon March:12, 1980 and
in this response to your questions.

. " Your questlon No. 1is in'#o partS" (1) did I

know ‘that the Department has" lobbied against the ETO

budget? -and " (2)- do I“know that the- Department has blamed

the PTO for the Department's' own mistakes?. My answer to

the: first part is no . I:4id not know that the Department
lobbied against. the PTO budget. We. have no-direct knowledge
of any activity such as that. Our information on Departmental
activity and hudget poiicy determinations is only based on

'_hearsay. My answer ‘to the second part is also’ no, for the

* samé reason, I should add, however, certain information
- dealing:with the’ subject of ‘"mistakes", to wit: during the

“..progess’ of studying -the need for and usefulness of a special

pos;tlon at-the: PTO to oversee budget/policy determinations
a management ana1y51s group comprlsed of.. representatlves
of both the Department and the PTO deternitied in a paper
_dated December’ 28, 1977; for ‘hAssistant Secretary Baruch

and - Actlng CommlsSloner Parker that. )

.Internal/external budget wvariance. .The discrepancy

-, +: between the. Congr9551ona1 submission and the PTO
_internal operating plan is. long ‘standing, probably
beginhing around 1970, shd has become 1ncrea51ngly
severe this year.. The definition of reprogramming
contained the EY 1977 reports of the House ‘and
Senate Appropriations Committees:highlighted and .
attracted attention in the Department and PTO.to
,this wvariance, as did the 1ncrea51ngly close .
scrutiny of the Department and OMB in the recent
past. Attempts by PTO to yesclve the prcoblem in
"FY 77 weré not successful due to ‘data rdliability
problems. - The conflict over ' the budget variance - :
is typified by the August 18, 1977, memorandum from: ::
Enzo Puglisi, the: Department's budget apalyst for .
PTO, to Charles Jennings, then PTQ Program Analysis
Offlcer, in which Mr. Puglisi concludes that "funds

Professional Rﬁ'pzesentatipn fqrfa_zgm Professionials
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which were reported as reprogrammed, from
patent printing to the personnel.account
actually used for other purpoe

Unreliable budgetary data. Pxobl ms: with. incon-

sistencies and conflicts in budgetary and:pro-
~iiduétion .data submitted rtosthe Department’ ‘appears

to be a shortcoming generally acknowledged by
both PTC and Departmental officials. A lack
of data reliability has created a deep sense of
distrust on part of the Department, particu-
larly when coupled with the budget variance
discussed above. It has had severe ramifi-
cations by causing:

. ~PT0 budget:requests.to: he put 1n a "hold"
.status by the Department-- -

~-severe communlcatlon proklem between the
Department and PTO, generally characterlzed
by a lack_ of: understood definitions of .
termlnology, multlple sources of: data,‘-
and-variation - among these sources' in sta-
tlSthal and analytlc sk ls-~ "

—1ncreasmng demand for detalled explanatlons
.~by the .Department in.a very short time frame.
AS a result-of: the level;of distrust at.the
Department,-PTC hasg been constantly reguested

to prov1de detailed explanations” of ‘papers
submltted to'BOC. Because of the highly

ized PTO budget system the: -expla-

..often dlfflcult for the central-

ized PTC budget office to prepare within the
cmver o time framesorequestedsc This-has:led to
E o 1ncomplete or-incorrect dat ‘Bbeing forwarded
o whlch later requ1res correctlon.

ThlE document supporte the conclu51on that the PTO was
dealing with:the Department: on-a: basis which was at best un-
reliable, and at worst, not-candid. ‘With-such a background,
the COnfllct you refer to ‘in your cuestlon would be inevitable.

Regardless of this partlcular faetual issue, you should
be aware of what my information suggests.is a.long-established
antipathy:: ‘between the Department and the PTO.: The effect
of this relatlonshlp would necessarlly color the facts
1nvolved 1n your questlon No._l.‘ e
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Your question No. 2 goes to the point.of our March -
12 statement, i.e., what basis is there for.believing- hat ;
the PTO will get more favorable treatment from' Congres
relative to its budget if it pleads its own '¢ase.. -You:, ..
believe it is reasonable to assume that® the desired result
will follow, Our experience does not” support” that:cornclusion
even’ though we:wish ‘otherwise. ‘A "reasoriable assumption”
in terms of the PT0 is a contradiction in terms. Would
you think it reasonable to assume that an Assistant Commis-
sioner would know how many professiocnal staff he had on
board? One day we asked and we are told "X". The very
next day the Assistant Commissioner tells us the figure is
really "X minus 50". In the instance we noted in our Maxch
12 statement concerning a manager who told ten employees he
was preparing to fire them, would you Eeasonably assume that
that manager would make himself avallable to those employees
to discuss their clrcumstances° On-the contrary I- can tell
you that the manager issued the notices on a Friday and on
the following Monday began a three-week holiday. On the
point of a direct appeal to Congress in. the budget process,
I recall the stories of J. Edgar Hoover's ability to get
from:Congress what budget he wanted,; not just what he
needed. Will the PT0 case be pleaded by’ someone’ with
Hoover's effectiveness? Is it reasonable to assume that it
will? '

My short apswérqﬁo_jour gquestion is: based on experi-
ence, no; based on'faith'and hope, yes.

Your 1&5t'§uéstipn addresses our awareness of an act
by the Departmént blocking a report by the PTO. The act you
describe was, and is, not known by us.

Thank you for your continued interest in our position
on the PTO, the Department and the patent system. As vou
can see we believe much improvement is necessary; our con-
cerns go beyond 8. 2079. We believe that some of the prob-
lems the PT0 faces are a direct result of its own mal-, mis-,
or non-administration. Although you have not asked us to
specifically address those concerns, we would welcome the
opportunity to present those to you.

Sincerely,

President, POP,
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“May 30, 1980

-Honorable -Birch:Bayh .- s
Committes on- the. Judlclary ; B
.Subcommittes on the. Constitution +
102B Russell Senate Office Bulldlng
Washlngton, D C. 20510

=Dear Senator;Bayh

Please accept these remarks,as supplemental to the statement
I made at the! hearlngs on-5.2079. on. March 12; 1980:;

“Thank you for con31dering this additional materlal.

Pre51dent

Professional Representation for Patent Professionals
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In oy statemént'df‘Mafch'lZ 1980, we' g%ﬁe quallfled support
to 5.2079. The reason we quallfled our/support for the- blll was
that We saw Some benefit in the 1abor—management rev1ew functlons
performed at times by the Department of Commerce. Our concern "
must be labor-management.relations, whlch is our reason for being.

However, with respect to budget éontrol, certain facts have
come to light which bear on the guestion of the DoC/PTQ relation-
ships separate and distinct from any lzbor-management context.

For example, the Department has actively lobbiled against increases
in the PTO budget.' To the extent that this has occurred, it argues
strongly for separation of Department and PTO. PTO duties and
responsibilities are not 'dimi.nishin{:;, in fact they are expanding:;
we, the professionals who perform the work of the Office, know that,
and we know ¢of no non-magical way that more work can be done with
the same resources.

It has come to our attention that a report from the PTO
describing needed resources, prepared in response to a reguest
from Senator Bayh on November 30, 1979, was blocked by the Depart-~
ment. Such okstruction is most unfortunate. Congress funds the
executive branch; if Congress wants some information relative to
-funding, it should be ahle to get it. If the Department of Commerce
is in the business of denying Congress access to information it
wants relative to the PTO, perhaps the Department and the PTC should
be separate.

These remarks are submitted as supplemental to our statement
of March 12, 1980, and in no way in substitution therefor.
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Senator BavH. We will recess the hearings pending the call of
the Chair, or-a.final decision that we are now prepared to mark up
the bill. Thank you all for being here.

[Whereupon, at 12 noon, the commlttees recessed to reconvene
subject to call of the Cha1r] '
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" MATERIAL SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD
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BGTH CONGRESS
18T SESSION 2079

Tn lmprove tha admmlstratron of the patent and trademark la.ws by establlshmg
 ithe  Patent -and Trademark- Office ‘as :an. independent agency, and for other
~ purposes.

T¥iE sl

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES'

' DEGEMBER 5 (]egwlatwe day, NOVEMBER 29) 979 -

Mr, Bays (for himself, Mr. DanporTH, and Mr. NeLsON) introduced the follow-
ing bill; which was Tead twice ‘and releited to the Committee on Governmen-
tal Affairs and. if and when reported -tothe, Committee on the Judiciary

_ ABILL

To improve the admmlstratlon of the patent and frademark laws,
by estabhshmg the Patent and Trademark Offlce as a,n‘ '

B

mdependent agency, and for other purposes

Be it enacted by the Senate amd House of Representa-“
twes of the Umted States of Amemca in C‘ongress assembled '
| SEC 101 Tltle 35 of the Umted States Oode is hereby'

amended as follows

Sec. 102. Sectxon 1 is repealed and the foIlowmg 1s‘

S o o W M‘-:»—x_.‘-;_

mserted in lieu thereof:
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“5$1. Establishment

“The Patent end Tredemark Offlce referred to.in this
chapter as the ‘Offlee shall be an mdependent agency,
where records, books, drawings, specifications, and other pa-
pers and things pertaining to patents and to trademark regis-
trations shall be kept and preserved except as othemse pre-

vided by law.”
SEC. 103. Seetmn 3(a) is amended by strlkmg out the

-}ast sentence and msertmg in heu thereof the followmg “The

Commissioner shall be the Chief Officer of the Offlce and
shall be a person of substantial experience in patent and
trademark matters. The Commissioner shall be eppbint_ed for
a fixed te_rm o_f& six_jears. e,nd shell__;he.removeble_ from‘ofﬂee
by the President with the eonsent’_of__the Senate, only for
good cause. The OOmmiesioner shall appoint all other officers
and employees of the Office._”.

Sec. 104. (a) Se_etion S(b) is repealed.

(®) In section 3(¢) th‘e:“ Wot'dS‘-‘l‘Secretary of Commerce”
are struek out and the word "Commlssmner 1neerted in Heu
thereof and seetlon 3(0) 1s redemgne,ted as sectlon 3(b)

(e) In seotlon 6 the words under the dlreetlon of the

| Secretary of Commerce and sub]eet to the approval of the

Secretery of Commerce are struck out wherever found

(@ In seetzon 7 stnke out “Seeretary of Commeree

and msert in heu thereof “Commlssmner
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g TR
(e) Tn section’s1, strlke out éubjé:ff;i:;: to the approval of

the Secretary of Commerce V _‘ o
(f) In section 181, the th1rd paragmph in the last sen-

tence strike out appeal--to,the.Secretary of Co,;nmerce and

_ ingert in lieu thereof “a.right to.appeal from the order under

::rules preseribed by the Commissioner’™. =

( )In sectlon 188 strlke out “Secretary of Commerce .

'a.nd msert in 11eu thereof “Commlsswner of Patents and

: .Tr.adema,,rks_.-.z G e

g
i1

© BEC. 201, Sectlon 1511(e) of t}tle 15 Umted States"""

Code is repealed
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“STATEMENT OF THE
. AEROSPACE. INDUSTRIES ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA, INC.
' oN 5. 2079
BEFORE THE
‘GOVERNMENTAL' AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
UNITED STATES SENATE

‘The' Aerospace Industries Associaticn of America, Inc, (AIA) 15 the
national trade association representing. the major manufacturers:of aero-
space products 1nc1ud1ng a1rcraft and manned and unmanned spacecraft
sate111tes and m15511e5, as well as the components and power p1ants thereof

Be1ng at the Tead1ng edge of advanc1ng technnlugy, AIA member campan1es
have through the combined years of their experience 1earnéd¥to‘éﬁpiéciéte
the Q.S. Patgnt:System and:itsuinhergnt‘incentives that:have so significantly
contributed to advancing the nation's technological base and improving the
economy through innovation. In the Tight of this expé}ienee,‘th;;VASSDC%a-
tion expressing the views of its members, has supported legislation and im-
piementing reguTations which serve to improve or advance the U.5. Patent
System, including the prncédures under which patents issue,

AIA has reviewed S. 2079, introduced by Senator Birch Bayh for the
purpose of establishing the Patent and Trademark Office as an Independent

Agency. It is the unanimous opinion of our members that the enactment of

S. 2079 would resuTt in improved operations of the Patent and Trademark Office.

Accordingly, AIA strongly supports and urges passage of the bill.

-
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“POSITION STATEMENT ON THE U.S. PATENT SYSTEM’

" INDUSTRIAL ‘RESEARCH INSTITUTE™

The industrial Research Institute {1.R.1.) affirms the basic canéepts of the U.S. patent system
as originally premlsed in the Cunstttutron and as they exist today. We believe that the funda-
mental merits of the patent systém afé as sound today as they were in the period of industrial
growth and respect for patents in the nineteenth century and in the fitst half of the twentieth
century. The Federal patent taw still responds to the Constrtutronal objectwe *to premote the
progress of . . useful arts by securing for limited t|mes to ... inventors, the exclusive rights
to their . ., dISCOVErIBS Continued industrial sucesss of the U.S. régiiires “the ifcentives of
the patent system, not only to encourage the necessary investiment of caprtal and effort in
research and for ‘the commerclahzatton of inventions-so that socrety can ‘enjoy therr benefits,
but also 19 encourage the drsclosure of mventwe technology

The grant of a |m|ted exclusronary nght bv the enabhng e _era| patent statute in return for’
the prompt disclosure of newly created technology provides the basis’ for these incentives.
Without these incentives, innovative research and development would’ not be stipported with
the degree of enthusiasm and wr!!mgness to invest risk capital that has been the American
tradltlon Moreover, the inventions produced by R&D might otherwise be kept secret. to an
extent which would inhibit technological progrEss The exclusionary right granted under a
well-examined patent does not take from the publrc anything that prevrously existed; rather,
the paieni rght stimulates the creation, early disclosure, and ‘utilization of new techno.ogy'
thus adding to the store of human knowledge. The exclustonary rlght often sttmu!ates others
to “invent around resultmg in further techmcﬂ. progress.

Our patent system has a number of featu ‘es of srgnsfacant ment wh:ch should be preserved
and strengthe ed k

1., 'The basrc requrrements of a patent—noveltv. L:t|hty, unob\nousness Best mode and

. enebllng disclosure—dre reasonabiy well deve&oped in the' statutes and patent juris-

prudence. L.R.1. advises against atternpts to fegislate detailed changes or additions

.o these requirements or to introduse standards of Judgment and disclosure that

would be stricter than the Arerican mvent' executwe or’ patent lawyer can

‘ressonably understand and manage Such attempts would result in unn essary and
undesirable uncertainty. . :

A 2 The U S Patent and Trademark Offrce generally performs weII in rts exammatron

. of patent appllcatlons but there i is room for improvement. Itis staffed with many

competent and dedicated professronal employees of Migh 1ntegr|ty 1.R. ! encour-

... .ages 1mpr0vement in fundmg, training,. and management of the exammmg corps
-~ and especraiiy, _therr admlnlstratwe‘support .

< The examrnatlon of patent appllcatlons sheuld be as comprehenswe and ‘thorough
) as practmable 50 that issued patents wril be respected by competltors of the patent
_owner and by the courts. Such respect is an essential pari of the patent incentive

for industry. This thorough exarnination need not be exhaustive, but should be
reasonab!y prompt, however. Early issuance of worthwhile patents adds to the cer-

tainty of buslnessmen when consrderxng the mvestment ‘of nsk caprtal to make the
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a grace perlod :
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new technology .available to the public; they.want. to know.if they can plan on
patents of their own ‘and whether patents of others will cduse problems, Early dis-
closure also helps keep the published technglogies current with the actual state of
advance. The balance betwezen thorough and prampt examination should be

. v_ymghted .in favor o_f_thoroughness.

Awarding a patent to thi first-ta-invent rather than the firsi-to-file is deemed by

the 1.R.1, to have continuing justification, It respects the value of the individual in”

American’ tradrtlon and avoids inequities whlch “can result from a "race’ to the

j'Patent Qffice’; thorough and thoughtful reduct:on -to- prac‘tlce of merltorlous
‘_technology should contlnue to he encouraged

LR, l strongly endorses the present one-year grace periad between certam events’
" such as first sate or publlcat:on and the app!lcatron filing date. This llkewase facili-

tates thoughtful and thorcigh refinement of |nventuon"rt ‘éhcourages prompt
patent disclosure but with greater completeness than occurs under the abrupt

The us. patent system desplte its basic soundness and almost 200 years of valued existence,
is not without areas where improvement could be made. LR.I. encourages attention to the

followmg areas, on a tarlcred basrs pomt by pomt to avord confused poorly drafted .or
overly detalled patent [aw re\nsmns : :

1

¢

We recogmze the generally sound exammmg skifls of the Patent Offrce and the

basic honesty and sincerity of patent applicants, patent owners, and patent lawyers.’

We also recognize, however, the inability of the Patent Office to examine applica-

‘tions as comprehensively as the public and courts might desire, even with the fre-’

quent assistance of the patent applicant in supplying prior art and other informa-
tion to help the examination process. Without judging the merit of the criticisms,

. we beluave that the exammataon procedure is l::rltl(:lzed because it is necessarily con-

* tioh arid the progriety of the patent grant

"'Therefore the IR.I. endorses the concept of p'ermltting useful; reasonable, and

tlmely post-issuange’ ‘participation by the publtc in; the exammatlon of the inven-

_Such participation should gecur after the patent has issued to preserve the rights of
Tihe mventor. Part:crpanon sholild only be pernitted in 2 manner which strengthens
“the’ presumption of’ valldlty and adds confidence in the overall examination system;
it should not unduly increase the expense and dlffrculty of gettmg a patent, and

should not detract from the certamty desired by the patent owner formaking a
commercialization investment, The reissue practice, introduced by former Commis-
sioner Dann, is a sound step toward this public participation, but could be im-

" proved by rule changes or legistation which would permit reasonably simple and
i prompt re- exammatson of an issued patent by permitting any person to cite prior
art and possmly other re- exammatlon consnderatlons * I R. l does not favor re-

*53% aof the 1. R.I. membership were in favor of limiting re- exammation to publlshed prior
art; 42% were not in favor (sée Patent Survey Results, attached).

2
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examination adversary proceedmgs of the tvpe employed in Gerran appositions or
“J.8. patent ltigation, Such proceedings would undulyr erode the U.S, patent
system by favoring those patent applicants with resources and by mtroducmg unac-
ceptable delay and unmanageab!e uncertarnty : :

The L.R:l. believes that the term of a patent should be changed from the present
17 years from issuance to a term-of 20 years-fromdate of the first filing. If exami-
nation is expeditious and there is nd Interference; the current 17 véars Is satisfac-
tory. However, there continue to be a number of patents, particularly cormmer-
cially important-ones; which have‘lengthy-and:complex-prosecution of as much as
5 to 10 years because of ref!hngs appaals, ‘of ‘interferences. This | can ‘result in
patent terms “which expire as.long as 22 to 27 years after initial filing. A carefully
conditioned term ending 20 vears after.first filing will prowde greater equnty and
certamty for patent owners and the:r competltors

- Enforceability. of. a patent is an integral part of the -patent system because:-assers
tion in ||t|gatuon is'the ultisnate test 'of the basic exclusionary propertv right.of the
patent. Many paténts are afforded their deserved respect without the necessity of
litigation, This respect will be broadened if overall” ‘batent quality is improved by
better examination, There has, however; historlcally been.a need to litigate patents
~which--involve -honest differences:-of opmlon ‘on validity and scope between the
patentee and alleged infringer, Unfortunately, stich ht:gatlon ‘has’become comnplex,
lengthy, and @xpensive, in a large measure because of the scope of discovery; this
presents difficulties for both the patent: owner and actused infringer. - Litigation
problems have unduly discouraged patent owners, partmularlv those with limited
financial résources, from assertmg their patenis because a validity.determination by
a court:is expensive and uncertain; and if the patent is upheld, the damages may
'not be enough to pay for the litigation. This reluctance to-assert has encouraged
“infringement of paterits which should otherwise be' respected. L|t|gatson €xpense
may intimidate a patent owner into-accepting unfavorable settlements. Conversely,
a patent owner ‘may ‘intimidate & Wweak- infringer with the-éxpense of litigation.
Compounding these problems is the variancg in the opinions in the Federal courts
regarding patentability standards. Patent.owners and infringers jockey to get into
courts which.favor their own inferests.-This further adds to the expense and un-
certainty of ownifg patents and making investmants in feliance on' patents, -

The 1.R.1. supports degislative and judicial-efforts to decrease the expense, uncer-
tainty, and mequmes experienced by ‘patent owners and those accused infringers
having honest d:fferences of Uplmon ‘on _the, validity and scope of a patent. We
befieve that it would be worthwhile to glve careful consideration to.a single court
of appeals:for patent ||t|gat:on which would speed up patent Imgatlon and make it
‘friore tniform and certain. | such a court could institute discovery reform, fitiga-
tion expenses could be reduced. This concept of & Patent. Appeais Court: has bean
controversial because of a predicticn ‘that:the patent court WOi.'JId be rigid, 'techni-

cal, inflexible, and . unable to. handfe issues’ ancillary.. to, patent validity and
_,anfnngement such ‘as unfair competstlon and antitrust, |ssues Even .if this predie-.
tion were accurate, we submit that the reduction In expense, time; anc: uncertalnty
wouid sngmflcantly m‘fset any shortcommgs of the spec:ahzed court +t
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. Patent Survey ReSults

This is a summary of the responses to the questionnaire which accompanied the draft I, R I posltlon state-
.ment on the U.S, Petent System, distributed in June 71978 1o the 245 |,R.1. member companies. There were
127 responses, which provided yes or no answers to the questlons Many exira Comments were also made
and the numbers of these are tabulated. :

A. Do you agiee with the basic premises of the first two paragraphs’

. Yes 100%. - . NoO% - .- 21 extra cornmenn;.

B. Regardmg the U.S, Patent system features of merit, do you agreg that:
1.

5.

6.'

The basic requ;rements are wall deflned and should not be changed7 )
Yes 93% ' No 6% No Answer 1% 24 extra comments
The Patent Offlce performs generally welf: 3 ’

- Yes 86% s Mo 12% - . No Answer. 2% - 4B gxtra comments.
.. Thoraugh examinatio_n is important; ;

Yes 87% No 1% No Answer 2% " 34 extra cominents.
It should be balaficed with reasonabw prompt examination: R R

Yes 97%, -. . Nad% .. - i No AnswerZ% LT 27.extra comyments.

Thg patent should go to the first- “to- mvent L S C
Yes 89% No 7% No Answer 4% 743 extra comments.

. The one-vear g_race period should be retained; e e B
T Yes O4% " No&% - e NoAnswar 1% .07 31exwa comments.y
JAre there any other features of merit which should be emphasszed in the paper? .

e

Yes32% No 50% . No Answer 18% 4z extra comments

C. Hegardmg araas for improvement, do you agree that!
The {.R.I. should take a positive approach and some |n|t|at|ve"‘

1.:

.Yes 75% o No 17% s No Answer 8%

‘Yes95% ¢ i Nel% . - No Answer 4% ¢ 25 extra comments.
-The. Patent. Office examination slwuld .be:-supplemented by public participation to improve

thoroughrsess and openness of examination:
Yes85%. . . . Noi13% - Ne Answer 2%
Such re-éxamindtion should be after issuance: :

53 extré comments,

: " 4% extra comments,
Such re-examination should be llmnted to published prioy art: -

Yes53% No42% ‘Mo Answer 5% 54 extra .cnni}nénts1

Such re- cxammatlon should be moderatg in procedure and scope: '
Yes.78% -+ . Noi13% . - NoAnmswer9% .- .- 43 extra comments,

- Do you agree that the;Courts” and the Department of Justice’s concern about the lack of public
_participation in the exarnlnatlon _pracess wili cuntlnue even If Congress loses |nterest in Patent

Law Revision? *

Yes 75% -+ N0 73% ' No Answer:12% T 40 extra comments.

The term of the patent should be 20 years from filing rather than 17 yvears from issuance.
Yes 70% - 7 ... .. No27% No Answer 3% . ... B9extra comments.

" Enforceability of a patent in court is 56 complex Iengthy, expenswe and uncertaln that the full
" value of the patent incentive is being eroded: :

Yes 84%. - - No 10%. - -:-. MNg Answer 6‘% [ 35 extra comsnents, -
Variance in the courts on standards. of patentability. is a part of these problems: . .

Yes 84% ' No 77% Na Answer 5% "35 extra commaents.’
Some fegistative and judicial efforts 1o decrease these problems should be made:

Yes 86%- i No 7% ‘No'Answer 7%. 32 extra comments,: .
A single couct of eppeals.for patent htlgatlon should be conmdered .

Yes 72% . No 26% . No Answer 2% 52 extra cumments

Would such *a court, if properiy organlzed streamllne and 5peed up patent I|tagatlon and make
it more umform? :

Yes 76% . . Ne 13% No Answer 1% ... .48 extra comments. .

Would, such a court tend to be rlgld technlCaI InflEK[bfe and unable to handle Jssues ancdlal‘y to
patents?

“Yes21% - No 64%: . "No Ariswer75%. . 69 éxtra comments; ;
¢ Ifssuch 2 tourt.) dud have these problems, would the nmprovement aduantages outwelgh them for

the principal industrial users of the patent incentive? S
Yes 59% "No 29% No Answer 72% 26 extra comments.

“ Do you know of any other Ieglslatwe or |udic1a! change whnch should be consrdered to réduce
i7rthe.burdens of litigation2 i

Yes 59% - o Nod7% o Nn Answer 30;6 . 84lsxtra comments

Should this be used instead of, or in additien ta, a smgle patent appeals court?
Yes 36% No 9% No Answer 55% 43 extra comments.”

*[but many related to the ambiguity of the question)
Are there any other areas for improvement which should be emphasized In the paper?
Yes 20% No 47% No Answer-33% 46 extra comments.

4



297

The Patent Offxce‘ Soc1ety

?O BOX 2089 ARLiNGTCN VIRG[NEA 22202 ¢

March 7, 1980

Honorable Birch Bayh
Committee on the Judiciary
United States Senate .. ---
Washington, D. C. 20002

Dear $Senator Bayh:

In response to your letter inviting comments on S. 2079,
enclosed please find our Statement for inclusion with the record
-of testimony to be taken on: March .12, 1980.

This Statement has. been critically. reviewed and approved. ..

by the Board of Directors gf the Patent Office Society.
.S':i.nce'rély',
R P Ny
Pt T v ))(p(t&i'&a// .

[/6"*-/ MORRIS KAPLAN, PRESIDENT

_ DEVOTED TO IMPROVEMENT OF THE, PATENT SYSTEM
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‘

The Patent .V.AO'ffi‘Cé ':.SOC:i‘e.ty

PO, BOX 2089 ARLINGTON, VIRGINIA 22202 L

STATEMENT OF
THE PATENT OFFICE SCCIETY
ON § 2079 T
THE INDEPENDENT PATENT AND TRADE@R_K OFFICE ‘ACT .

March 12, 1980

The Patent Office Society (Society)” wishes to thank Senator Bavh
for this opportunity t¢é present the Society's position in favor of
§ 2079, The Independent Patent and Trademark Office Act.

The Society was founded ;n 1917 as an organization for patent
professionals with a stated purpqsé of improvement of the patent system.
The Socfety has been active since it's formation in promoting necessary
reforms in the  patent system and patent laws. “As‘early as 1917 the
Society was consulted by the National Research Council for recom-
mendaticns with respect to: {1) Establishing the CGffice as an inde-
pendent agency, (2) Formation of a single Patent Court of Appeals, and
(3) Patent Office staffing and salaries."” It has been a long time
since 1917 but the Society is here, again, today to urge the passage
of this bill which will make the Patent and Trademark Office (PTO)

. an independent agency.

DEVOTED TO IMPROVEMENT OF THE PATENT SYSTEM

b
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The' PTO is’one of thé'oldedt:agéhciss ih’ our” govérnment off the = "
' basis of"Article I’ Sectitn 8! of ®hr Constitution: =Tn féét,fﬁhe."*
Departient of Agritulturé is an outgibwth of the Patent Office, " ' i
From the beginning of ol Country until 18495  tha” Patent-0ffice was i
part”of the”Staté’Depattinént.” “Froin 1849 until” 1925, i't-Was Tocatad  * "
with the-Départment of Interiorj and sinéé 1925 within' thé’ Daepartment’
of Commercééi+ This histdty'of dislocdtion #&n give rise 67 the thought'
that thePTO"functién- is’ sufficiently” diffetfent that it cannot be
assimilated’by; or ihtegrated with; 'a largér departméntal organization.:
The PTO is indeed, unigue in the world of governmental- agencies
because’ one*of: it's basic functiens'is to éfeafé‘propértY'rights-ih
peoplétsihew 1deas.? Once’ an applifant takes the . initiative and com=

municates his néw idea;'in®confidencé, to the: PTO there follows a’

quaéi—juﬂic}&l examination’of thevidea in“a neiitral’ seientific’ atmos—
phere dévdid bf any politiecal; sééial,” or public policy: cohsiderations.
If the-idea- is determined to-be heéw and useful, and within-the statutory
classes of patentablie subject matter, the applicant obtaing:a-patent ™=
which has 'all”the” attributés of propétty. - Unless there is’ a réigsue
application,” the ‘PTO has nc.mﬁre*jurisdiétion over the patent — ~ it’ -
does not fegulate’ the usé’ of it} nor dbed it encéuragd itis exploitation.
What other adgency in government performs such a singuléfly beneficial
service without-‘attaching someiprovisoc of regulation?

-Fbrithese:reaSQns;'théﬂSociefy betieves that the PTO should be an
independent agency.

The latest homé of the PTD is'in the Commerce Degpartment; Office
of the Assibtant - Secretary for Scieénece afd Technology. - The Department;:

in' the pexson of the Deputy Assistant: Secretary,:testifisd: before’these
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committees on January. 24, 1980 in,oppp§ition,to-this biil.. In:that
testimony. the PT0O was repeatedly eguated;with the "patent: system”.
Such a comparison:is without foundation. .The PTQ is a necessary.and . .:
" basic part cof the "patent system" butjip does not constitute the. .
whole system. For example,:the issuance of a patent which completes o i
the invelvement.of. the:PTO is only.the beginning:of the industrial
and gconomic benefits accruing tp.tnginyentprathrgugh:his patent,; .
rights. These benefits, sepaégte“frgm the PTO_function, are the.
financial incentives.and. rewards which-make up . the major portion of . ..
the "patent system"..

Contrary. te the-teétimopy of the.Bdministration spokesman,. the
PTO does not actively "promote,innovation;gnd_industrial-devg;ppment?,_3'
other than by it's.mere-existence, and.it:does.not.provide expertise
concerning-ﬁprpduct_liabiiity-and industrial standards”.. Further, the: .
PTO. is pot a "major contributor- to, publi¢ policy!' but, more signifi-.. .
cantly, due to its. guasi-judicial statug, must be independent of any:
such: considerations,

-The testimony of the Department of.Commerce underscores it's
lack of understanding of the role.of the .PTO in the patent: system.
. Such misunderstanding by the parent organization is yet. another reason..
to support this bill. . . PR

Finally, the failure of the Department to provide_adequate,
funding to the PTO dictates the:;emovngﬁf the: PTO from the Department
of Commgrce.

This laék of adequate funding has- led to.the- dismal record §f~
patents being held invalid in the Federal courts is known, particularly.

when:new references, not cgonsidered:by.the PTO, are introduced. in gourt
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procedings. rstatiétiés?shOW'that”at'any'giveh”time*hpito'2B%Tof :

patents are-absent from the:search. files of the PTQ and that’ ekaminers:

have 20 to 30% less time to spend on each application™than’they had- "
30. years ago.-,The“time it takes.to ‘obtainia’ patent is increasing®
from approximately isjmonths-in'lBFS'to'19-monthé'in~19?8 and esti- v
mated to.be 22 months in 1980: Concurrently-PTO personnel’staffing
has decreased from almost 3,000 in 1976 to approximately 2,700 in

1979, wﬂile the nunber of pending patent applications has increased

frém about 142,000 to 152,000 during the same period. To combat these

_shortcomingé, the PTO has repeatedly requested more funding from the

Department of Commerce without success.

In each fiscal year 1977, 1278, and 1972, the PTC has had a net
decrease in funding of approximately $1.5 million per year.

Reprogramming of the PTO budget has become an almost yearly
exercise for the Congress. Just last year the FY '80 budget was
increased %2.2 million by the Congress. This additional sum was
arrived at only after officials of the Department of Commerce argued
agaiﬁst the.PTD receiving even larger funding proffered by the Senate.

During these hearings on the FY '80 budget, the Department of

Commerce stated that it would require about $14 million additional

‘funding to make the PTO as effective and efficlent as possible - main-

taining an 18 months pendency level. 1In view of all the foregoing

the Department of Commerce in it"s FY '81 budget regquests an additional
57 million for the PTC, This request for half the necessary funding,
by the Department's own admission, is yet another demonstration of

the relative unimportance given to the PTO in the Department of

Commerce'es list of funding priorities. It seems rather basic that
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the PTO cannot perform:it's function properlty without adequate

resources and the.Department is unwilling or unable. to provide those :

necessary resources.

Because-the PTO is a totally unique agency and because it has.not.

been fiscally supported by the Department of Commerce, the Patent

Office: Sogiety advocates independent agency. status for the PTO...
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. PAUL LOU1S GOMORY - : A w0
- © 5609 [JGnEN ROAD, WASHINGTUN ve. 20015

S February 4 1980

Senators Birch-Bayh:and John Danforth
363 Russell Senate Office Building
480 Russell Senate Office Bu11d1ng
Washington, D.C. 20510 :

My Dear Sematars: . . ...

This constitutes mj.Etatement for the'Fecnnddin”supbortrof.s._2079:;
Bayh which would improve the administration of:-the Patent and Trademark -
Taws by estab11sh1ng the Patent and Trademark Offtce as an—1ndependent
agency. . B T E ST D . R RS AT

First, I take th{s occasien to domp11ment yod beth on.your exce]ient
informed, and detailed conducting of: the hearing on January 24, wh1ch it
was my great p!easure and sat1sfact1en to have attended . Pt E

1 would 11ke the record to show, and accord1ngly ask that th1s s
letter be printed in the record, that the Commissioner of Patents has
indeed been, quite frequently,.a "bystander" and in fact that he has
been rather 5y5temat1ca11y “supressed" . : c

For example, upon attendung Former Comm1ss1ener C. Marsha11 Dann 5
confimmation, conducted. by-Senator McCIe]]an, -at.which Mr. Dann.indicated
publicly that he believed some of the provisions of, the then pend1ng
patent law revision: bill-would require more consideration, . drafted a
letter dated March 12, 1974, ..to Mr..Kenneth R. Cole,.Jr. whom I had-
personai]y met with:at-his home on Februany 3,:1974.- -The March-lz;letter
is reproduced in the addendum to th1s 1etter. Mr. Cole reported directly
to President Nixon,. - . - R : R Y

“In my Tetter to Mr. Co!e I had noted on d1fferent watters--patent -
policy and ccmpu]sory Ticensing.in the: then energy bill, 5.-1283 Jackson,.
that the administration position was presented by Dr. Betsy Ancker- . ¢
-Johnson whereas Mr. Kauper.presented the Department of Justice views =i .
which were disconsonant-with,: indeed-opposed, to those of-the:administration.
I stated that acting on this precedent it would only be fair to-all of. -
these United States, and to its investing and inventing community in
particular, to have. the: Department of Commerceior at:least the Comm1ss1oner
of Patents present the views of. the Patent- fo1ce .

I had heard Mr..Dann respond to Senator McC]e]]an s quest1on, in
effect, asking Mr, Dann to there agree, which he did, that he would gives.:
his "personal” views on the then pending patent bitl 1f he was confirmed
to be Commissioner of Patents. An answer in the affimmative was given
by Mr. Dann.
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Three days 1§t§r, the Association for the Advancement of Invention
and Innovation (A1) speaking through its Executive Director, Former
Commissioner of Patents Edward J. Brenner, who had served well on the
President's Commission on the:Patent System, requested President Nixon
to see to it that Commissioner Dann would make known his views. Mr. Brenner's
Tetter is also a part of the addendum to this letter.

In his letter Mr. Brenner outlined the situation stating that it
had been the then President's intention to have an "admintstration with
each member having the right to express his v1ews ful]y and frank]y "
Mr. Brenner also stated in so many words

"It also now appears to the inventive, industria1
and professiona] communities, that the Commissioner of
Patents' views are being suppressed. If this is the case,”
this is fndeed unfortunate since in our type of govermment,
freedom of information should be:the rule, :In-this® =
connection, it seems odd that in legisltating revision-of
the United: States patent Taws, the person who must direct
the operations of the United States Patent Gffice has not
been heard from anywhere, not even so far as the publlc
knows ---and the public ‘should know:-- by the very - [
Subcommittee of the Congress that s now working on the -
Administration's bil17,S. 2504, Thisisituation certainiy-
will add fuel to the fire of those advocating that the Patent
fo1ce be estab]lshed as an 1ndependent agency s

"Thus, I urge you to take 1mmed1ate steps to arrange ‘
to have the Commissioner of Patents: express’ pubTicly
his full and frank views on which provisions of the
proposed. legislation would promote and which provisions
of the proposed ]eg1s]at10n would deter the progress of -/
invention:and :innovation in the country. Because time
is of the essence, I hope that the Congress and the pub]1c
can have-the benefit of: the Commissioner's comments .
immediately without having his views: suppressed through
any: time-consuming procedure requiring that his- :
comments be filtered through the Anti~-Trust Division, etc.
In view of the many national needs and problems
requiring-invention solutions 'at the- present t1me, we i
must have the best possible patent revision bil1,"namely, -
a bil1 which will: truly and effectively “promote the progress.
of the useful. arts" as our Constitution so:states-with -
respect to the estab!1shment and 0perat1on of our|patent
1ncent1ve system o

MAEE Iater on’ March 25 1974 Senator John L McC1ellan, Chairman: - :
of the Senate Subcommittee on Patents, Trademarks, and’ Copyrights together -~
with Senator Hugh Scott the ranking minority member, addressed a joint
1e]tter to the Pres1dent of the Untted States pmntmg out that they‘ Bl
be 1eved ;
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) o"eo.that the enactment of a-sound new patent-code would -
be apprec1ab1y facilitated if you would authorize the Cumm1ss1oner
of Patents to directly make known to the Subcommittee his’
comments on 5. 2504 and proposed modifications. Our request
. s consistent with the authorization recently-given to.the. -
"Department. of Justice to'testify independently ‘of the
Administration's - pns1t1on on the patent prov1510ns of: severaI
enérgy bills." ; : .

Befieve it or not - and I do,be]ieveuthat you be]ieve me; simply -
because of other evidence along -the same-lines - Commissioner-Dann was
not directed nor was he allowed to give his views. . This in spite of ‘the - .
entreaties which included those of the Congress. The present administration
did not see fit to have the.present Commissioner, Mr.- Sidney DIamond
testify on beha1f of the office he heads!

Accordingly, know1ng the s1tuat10n Df whtch ynu are nuw fu]]y
aware, I was privileged, on request, to draft. certain letters for. the
approval and execution of Senator Hiram L.: Fong of Hawaii. Those letters
were addressed to Commissioner Dann, and together with responses received,. :
are also in the addendum to this Ietter

Br1ef1y put “the Comm1ss1ener found h1mse]f unhuzz1ed"

Interest1ng1y enuugh, in both h1s responses, Mr Dann was able to e
comment on. provisions- for reexamination which then were 1ncorporated as
provisions of Chapter 3] of S. 214, Semator Fong's -bill. . :

You will be 1nterested to know, I am sure, that Chapter .31 of i
Senator Fong's bi11 was identically worded in H.R. 14632, introduced .by -
Representative Wiggins of California, and is now .but for m1nor changes Lo
the wording of - the fo11ow1ng b111s :

H:R. 5075 Butlav (VA) 1ntroduced August 2 1979
S 1679.Bayh {IN} introduced August 3, 1979
18%Nﬂsm,3wh1mNmEMlker4,ww and
. H R 5607 Neal Smith (IA) 1ntroduced October 16, 1979

“As you knuw 5. 1860 and H R. 5507 cuntain prov1510n5 in add1t1on
to the’ reexam1nat1on “provisions. ) " i S

It can _be seen.that had Commissioner Dann been permitted to give
his informdtion to the Congress early in 1974 when requested by :
Senator McClellan, Mr. Brenner, and by others including myself, the-
processing of the then pending Tegislation might have been accomplished
entirely differently with much saving of time and effort and, importantly,
advancing so. many years ago now, the c]1mate for 1nventlon and 1nnevat1on.

My statement presented to the Cemmlttee on the Jud1c1ary, pres1ded
over by Senator Bayh on November 30, 1979, in fuil.support of his S. -
1679, .15 a matter of record. The statement need not be here-repeated
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My statement was approved by Mr. Brenner on behalf of his association --
and so:presented on November: 30. A biographicai sketch was 1nc1uded on
page 26 and 27 of my Novemher 30 statanent. L
Simply to emphas1ze the cogency of the requests that the Comm1ss1oner
of Patents be permitted to take an active role in the then pending:
legislation,. I.-refar to-the letter of Septenber 14,1976, addressed to”
Chairman Peter W. Rodino, Jr. of the House Committee on the Judiciary by
the then Secretary of Commerce, Elliot L. Richardson. In that letter,
the then Secretary was, somehow,: finaﬂ,y penmtted to speak in a letter
prepared:by the Patent Office, giving his-views in six pages accompanied
by an exten51ve1y and 1nten51ve1y prepared exce1]ent addendum :

Secretary Rlchardson 3 1etter and addendum made 1t quite c]ear that
the then pending $. 2255, which was similar to S.: 1308, a 'bill introduced
by the administration foIIow1ng upon its introduction earlier of 5.

2504, was simply put not a-good bill. * Further, in the addendum to the”

]etter the: Secretary offered a reexamination procedure whichy in effect,
is very much. like unto that of Si- 1679 and the other b1lls 1dent1ca11y

including-the language of: §. 1679+ ©:

For sake of completeness, I note that the addendum tn Secretary
Richardson's letter-which: appears at page 32 of my November 30; 1979,
statement, has been reproduced in that addendum only to the extent that
it dealt with reexamination. There are 19 more pages. of addendum to the
Secretary's-letter:to Mr.<Rodino‘which have been omitted frDm m,y Statement
simply to save energy.and-printing costs. o

Finally, I'would:-1ike to refef to a document which has now been - )
preserved in the Library of Congress; the Archives of the United States,
and in many:other places throughout our Country It is.or shall I say
was a proposed "Separate Views of Senator Hiram L. Fong“ 94th Congress,”
Tst Session. This document of 256 pages which includes a detailed
"Contents", reflects. the need for improving ‘the status of the PTO and of
the PTO Commlss1oner even as wou1d be accump11shed in S 2079 :

There are c011ected in."the document which now serves as-a research
document, various papers by Government uff1c1aIs, Jjudges, eminent members
of associations, views of associations, and what was probably the f1r5t
1nf1at1unary impact statement ever drafted by the Admininstration.

For . reasons which would ‘simply undu]y lengthen this letter and
bring to the fore many unpleasant memoriés, Senator Fong' s Separate .
Views were, at the last moment as 1t were, supp1anted by a 1ess than ;
two- page m1n0r1ty v1ew R IEE . L

Pages 20—31 of Mr Fong 5 SEparate ‘!1einsr, dea'l' exc]uswe'ly with
reexamination of patents and show how suppression of the Comm1ssaoner,
who was not directed or-even allowed to appear before the Senate, resulted,
in the Senate, in a completely Topsided, wrongly''taken view, emphasized
by others -in the administration who -had the ears of ‘certain Senators and:

their aides uncontrad1cted by the Commissioner of Patents who in effect
was silenced and a "bystander" as far as Congress could see for itself!
*
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. disclosure, .patent- 1ncent1ve 1nvent1ve systan w111 be stud1ed for the1r :
wgpresent value. i 3 :

f be a]so 1nc1uded therein.
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I fe1t 1t my duty to write this letter for the record and fur cmes
posterity to show how at a_time when our Country needs, and his needed

now for a long time a much improvéd climate for invention and 1nnovat1on,f"
.. efforts on the pait of .those who are: the experts have been 51detracked e

and for & 10ng t1me defeated

anefu]ly, S 2079 w111 become ]aw soon.: A]so, hopefu11y, 1679

~will- become law soon. -Although.one Opt1m1st1ca11y says: better 1ate ‘than:
-never,. there is another v1ew. That v1ew S, hnpeful]y 1t‘5 not too 1ate-

I subm1t my personal copy o -the Separate V1ews of Senator H1ram L

',Fung Hopefully, these views which include lettersin the addehdum to -
_this letter, and many other valuable documents needed to truly ‘appreciate’

what has been happening in ‘the-legislative field concerning our voluntary -

So that 1t w111 be preserved in your record, I ask that these V1ew

Far sake of completeness of th1s letter, I nute that 1.am.a D1rector,*‘

"'and Advisor Efzthe Assoc1at1on for the Advancement oF Invent1on and S
. Innovat1nn A I 2l . ; g R

'espectful]y subm1tted
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WASHINGTON, DC., March 12 1974
Mr. KennerH R. Corg, Jr.,. . - ... .-
Assistant to.the President for Domestic Af au‘s, : X
White House Executive. O{{;é Building, ashmgton, DC. U

DeAr Mz.. .CoLE: Thank you kindly for your letter. acknowle g mine- of' Febru—

ar{ 3 concerning the Administration bill introeduced by Senator Scott:
had voiced a concern which still exists albeit progress has been made in a.llev:at-
%esme of the impractical, burdensome provisions: of the bill.
ponsive.to my letter. of January 21 regarding patent policy: and compulsory
licensing - in. Energy Bill,. 8. 1283—dJackson, you advised thai the Administration
position was consonant with mine. Indeed, Dr. Betsy Ancker-Johnson presented the -
Administration position. Nevertheless, Mr. Kauper presented the Department of
Justice views which were disconsonant-with: those -of the: Administration. Acting on
this precedent it: would be only fair to-all of these United States, and to its investing
and inventing community in particular, to have the. Department of Commerce or at
least the Commissioner of Patents present the views of the Patent Office. -

The Patent Commissioner indicated publicly, at-his confirmation hearing whlch I
attended, that he believed some of the provisions of the bill would- reqiire more
conmderatlon I respectfully suggest that he be requested to speak on those provi-
sions. Clearly, the Commissioner of -Patents implements the'legislation and it is
therefore important that he now participate and express his views. After all, the
welfare of our country is_involved. “Experts” shouid be requested to give thelr
views. .The: Patent Office v1ew should be made pubhc even as was the Justlce v1ew
noted above. g <o b o duw

I do not expect you to take your tnne to enter mto detal.led conmderatlons
However, I wish to place before you, and any person to whom you may refer this
letter, examples of impractical provisiohs which require rephrasing if the bill is to
meet its avowed objectives which are to-improve the operation of the Patent Ofﬁce
and therefore to increase the'validity of patents.

Example: Section” 102 would permit invalidity of a patent to be based upon, say, a
handwritten document or a medel prodiced only abroad, as in mid-China. Yet, such
a publication or model would be. unavailable to the patent Examiner and to the
applicants who are cooperating to promote “the progress of useful arts,” (U.S.
Const., Art. I, Sec. 8) in this country Obviously, Section 102 should not require
invalidity to be found based upon ;pnor art” which has contributed nothing in this
country because it has not been . .. reasonably available to the public in this
country.” Section 102 should be so amended to make it consistent with our Constitu-
tion.

Example: Section 112, relating to the disclosure to be made in an application for
patent, would deny [subsection (a)(1XB)] to the court appraisal of the vahdlty of an
issued patent sought to be upheld using the “secondary considerations” evidence
which the Supreme Court recognized in Graham v. Deere Co, The court said: “Such
secondary considerations as commercial success, long felt but unsolved needs, a
failure of others, etc., might be utilized to give light to the circumstances surround-
ing the origin of the sub_]ect matter sought to be patented As indicia of obviousness
or nonobviousness, these inquiries may have relevancy

Such “secondary considerations” most often come into existence after the patent
has issued and therefore simply can’t be put into the specification.

Example: Section 112(b) would put upon the applicant, his associates, assignees,
and attorney a burden to deliver boxes of mformatlon to the Patent Office because
it calls for everything these persons ‘know” or “contemplate” In any modern
laboratory or development organization, there would be a very time-consuming
search to review what is known simply because later a defendant by discovery can
connect in, with hindsight, some undisclosed information which may scarcely be
relevant but which a judge might well feel should have been disclosed. The judge,
even ag the drafters of 112(b) may not have seen it, may not “see” the complexity of
the operations and records of the modern research or other organizations. Clearly,
the practical and proper approach would be to limit to the knowledge which is

“relevant and considered in the drafting of the speczﬁcatlon and claims by any of
the parties involved in that operation.” The objective of our Patent Incentive
System ig still to obtain disclosure of the invention and should not be burdened
unduly with requirements which tend toward invalidity rather than validity of
patents and which will discourage recourse to it for protection instead of secrecy. In
112{c)(1) the knowledge should be ‘“relevant and related te the newness of the
invention.” As worded, the first sentence can require boxes of information and
everything in textbooks which the inventor and all his associates know to be
delivered to the Patent Office, Clearly, this is not intended. But, it does permit a
Jjudge to hold 1nva]1d1ty for lack of compliance,
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There are other provisions in the bill which can be demonstrated equally soundly
to be wanting review and:change: - -

Thank-you for your. consideration ‘of the contents.of this letter. I have written
because 1 consider it my. personal duty to speak up as a citizen possessed of a great
many years of experience in our great Patent Incentive System in-which I have
devoted considerable time to matters intimately affectmg its operatxon, 1nc1ud1ng
legislation. ; .

o Respectfully, ... .

ASSOCIATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF .
’ * INVENTION AND INNovaTion,
Arlmgton, Vm, March 15 1.9?’4

Re Patent Law Revision.
President RicHarp M. Nixon,-*

The White House, .
Washmgton DC

DEAR Mr. PRESIDENT I am Wntmg you on a sub_]ect ‘of ‘utimost” urgency and'
importance at this time, namely the proposed révision of the United States patent
laws now pending before the Senate Subcommittee on Patents. The mark-up of the
new legislation by the staff of the Subcommittes is now in process. Yet the Subcom-
mittee and interested members of the public, unfortunately, have not had-to date
the benefit of the comments on this very important subject of your newly appointed
Commissioner of Patents, who indicated at his recent confirmation hearing that he
believed some of the provisions of the hill would reqguire more consideration,

You personally have indicated earlier that it is your intention that your Adminis-
tration be an open Administration with each member having the right to express
his views fully and frankly:: As a former Commissioner of Patents and Executive
Director for the Association for the Advancement of Invention & Innovation, 1
believe it is of utmost importance for all concerned to have the benefit forthwith of
the expert and informed public comments of the Commissioner of Patents on the
proposed legislation. Frankly, most members of the public are now aware that the
Administration’s patent. bill, 82504, introduced by Senator Scott was primarily
dictated and drafted by the Anti-Trust Division of the Department of Justice which
is probably the reason why the bill, if enacted, would result. in enormous cost.
increases and other serious dismcentlves for invention and innovation in the coun-
try.

It also now appears “to the mventive, industrial a.nd professmnal commumtles,
that the Commissioner of Patents’ views are being sippressed. If this is the case,
this is indeed unfortunate since in our type of government, freedom of information
should be the rule. In this connection, it seems odd that in legislating revision of the
United Statés patent laws, the person who must, direct.the operations of the United.
States Patent Office has not. been heard from anywhere, not even so far.as the
public knows—and the public should know—by the very Subcommittee of the Con-
gress that-is- now -working on the . Administration’s ‘bill, S-2504. This situation
certainly will-add fuel to.the fire of those advocatmg that the Patent -Office be
established as an independent.-agency. .

Thus, I urge you to take:immediate: steps to arra.nge to have the Commlssmner of
Patents express publicly his -full and frank- views on -which provisions of the-pro-
posed legislation. would promote and which provisions of -the proposed-legislation-
would deter the progress of invention and innovation:in the country, Because time.
is of the‘essence, I'hope’that-the Congress.and the public cin have the benefit-of the
Commissioner’s comments immediately without having his views suppressed:
through any time-<onsuming procedure requiring that his ¢comments be filtered
through the Anti-Trust Division, étec. In view of the: rnany national ‘needs dand
problems requu'mg mventlon solutions ‘at the présent time, we must have the best
possible patent revision bill; namely, a bill'which will truly and effectively “promote
the progress . . . of the useful arts” -as our Constitution so states with respect to' the:
estabilshment and operation of our patent mcentwe system ) . :

‘Respectfully §ubmitted.: - -

. -EDpwaRD J.. BRENNER, o
Executwe Director. .
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srinho 2 ocam ot B ‘US. SENATE;:
COMM]TI‘EE ONTHE ' JUDICIARY,
SUBCOMMITI‘EE ON PATENTS, TRADE-MARKS, AND COPYRIGHTS, :
S . Washmgton .G, March 25 137’4

The PRES[DEN'I‘,A
The White House, -
Washington, D.C:

My Dear MR. PRESIDENT: The Senate Subcommittee on Patents; Trademarks and
Copyrlghts is currently processing 8. 2504, the Administration bill for general
revision of the patent law, We anticipate early action by the Subcommittee to report
thls legls}atlon

ou stated in the message to.the Congress on September 27, 1973, 8. 2504
prov1 ag. for the. first comprehenswe reform and modernization of the American
patent system since 1836. It is imperative that this complex legislation be subjected
to careful analysis by thosé most knowledgeable in the functlonmg of the patent_
system. :
yThe pending legislation would require significant changes in the procedures of the’
Patent Office. We therefore believe that the enactment of a sound new patentcode
would be appreciably facilitated if you would authorize the Commissioner of Patents
to directly make known to the Subcommittee his comments on S. 2504 and proposed
modifications. Our request is consistent with the authorization recently given to the
Department’ of Justice to testify indepéndently of the Admmlstratmn 5 pomtmn on.
the patent provisions of several energy bills. - -

- In view of our desire to -obtain-early passage b the Senate of S 2504 “we: hope'
that this request will:be acted on as'soon as possub C3 i

Wxth ‘highest personal regards we are e

Respectfully yours, 8

. JomrL MCCLELLAN, B s
P Chazman."

HUGH Sco'rr o

Rankmg Mmonty Member

S US SENATE, -
COMMI'ITEE ON THE JUDICIARY T
Washmgton., DC Aprzl 28 1.9?’5 v
Hon C MARSHALL DANN i
Commiissioner, Patent and Trademark Offwe, o
Arlington, Va."- -~ )

DeEar CommissioNER Dann: Kindly refer to my comments, in the Cong‘ressmual'
Record of January 17, 1975, pages S387-8413. .

The referenced pages, whlch also mclude my b1ll 5 214 expla.ln my reasons for
introducing my patent bill.-

In the light of the comments,’ ‘withi which 1 am sure you are familiar, I ask your
opinion on the following peints. Kindly bearin mind, the substance and requests ‘'of
my letters of March 3 and March 11, 1975 ‘addressed to the Secretary of‘Commerce,
then Frederick “B. Dent, copies of which -are attachedfor your ready reference.:

"1t would help me personally in: working with-my aide andy to hopefully end-the:
years of frustration, since the President’s Comrmssmn on the: Patent System ren-‘
dered its report in 1966, to have your personal views.on'my:bill. ~ = .- &

 Your comments: on the fo]lowmg points.-will-bear mﬂuentlally on. my comndet—
ations.because of your intimate knowledge:and experience in-and. with:.our volun
tary disclosure .patent incentive inventive system, especially in: view: of your more:
recent experience-of well over a:year as Commissioner of Patents: - . R
9 1(11‘?) ‘Generally, can. the Patent Ofﬁce operat1on -be effectwely conducbed under my,
(2) Spec1ﬁca11y concermng the exammatlon operatmn prowded for in my b111
“{a} Will the examination of applications for patent be effective? . - -

. (b} Will reexamination of patents be effective? . :

(c). Will. the presumption of validity of patents, as issued, be. enhanced in wew of )
lél;g knowledge on_the part of applicants of possible. reexammatlon under, Chapter;

(3) Will the ultimate vahdlty of patents be sufﬁ(uently 'unproved by my blll

(a) Generally?.

) On'a cost-effectweness basgis?

(c) On' the” basis ‘of burden on the Patent Office relanve to the results accom-
pllshed under 8. 2147
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(4) What are-the: costs of those prov:swns of my blll wh:ch ‘are new. to, T1tle 35
Uus : ) .

(a) Respectmg add1t10nal manpower hours needed'?

(b) Dollar costs of operation of the Patent Office? ..

With respect to my comments above mentioned, and’ partxcular geto the “Over-
view’’ on-page 389 in column- two, do you, Mr. Commissioner, beieve that the
prin¢ipal problems known to and addressed by the President’s Commission on the
Patent System (1266} can be solved by the C%mmlssmners regulations under -the
provisions of my bill, .in.the drafting of which 1 sought to avoid undue statutory
rigidity? Kindly refer on page 391 in the third column to “Commissioner’s Freedom
to Regulate Appropriately.” :

(5) What effct:on or change of the incentive to continued use of the Patent System
by t}ie inventive - commumty will result 1f the new prmqsmns of my bill are enacted
into law: . P . .

(a) In general‘?

(b) With respect to.protection by trade secret.alternative?.

=+ (e) With respect to.the requlrement for mamtenance fees:

" (1) As in my bill?-... - -

-(2) On_an annual basis of mu:umal amounts payable to raise some of the patent
office operation expenses?

(6) I will also appreciate greatly your views on whether my bill in your opmmn is
in the direction of attammg t.he objectlves of the Pres1dent's Commlssmn i

. (a) In general?

-(b):Specifically:

(1) Shortening the perlod of pendancy of an apphcatlon for patent‘?

: (2) Accelerating public disclosures of technological advances? .

" (8) Reducing or at least keeping at a minimum the expense of obtammg a pabent"

(4) Reducing the amount and or expense.of litigating a patent?

(5) Keeping or rendering U.S. patent practice compatible with those of other
countries consistent with the objectives of our voluntary disclosure system?-

. (6) Preparing the patent system and in particular the Patent 0 ce operatlon to
cope with increasingly exploﬁg technology?

-(7) Whether these objectives can be reached by- mcorporatmg into Title 35 one or
more portions or sections of my bill? If so0, please identify such portions or sections.

Finally, because 1 believe that you are the most qualified person in the Adminis-’
tration to speak on patent legislation, your personal opinion-is solicited in view of
your intimate knowledge of Patent. Office operation. You; of course, can view my- bill
in the light of your many years. of experience at the. bar whxch mcludes your
experience in the procedures and costs of obtaining patents...

I am also toda askmg the General Council of the Commerce Department Mzr.
Karl Bakke, for 1\Z{_arsozlal op]mon of my bill. Heremth enclosed kmdly ﬁnd a
copy of my letter to Bakke. . ..

As you know, selection of a bill for markup is unmment Iam currently awaltmg
answers to my above-mentioned letters and. fo similar letters addressed to-bar
assomatlon Accordmgly, your early convenient reply will be helpful and g'reatly
a) rEC1a

g thank you now for your early, convenlent reply to the questlons l.n th.ls letter
With warm regards and aloha, _ ]
Sincerely yours, il

R I-ImAM L. FONG.

' U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE,
PATENT OFFICE,
: Washington, D.C., May 18, 1975,
Hon. H[RAM L. FONG, T
U.S. Senate, Washington, DC '

Dear Senartor Fone: Your letter of April 28,1975 asks my opmlon w1th respect'f
to a number of specific inquiries about your patent revigion bill S. 214 I w111
attempt to respond to the questions as asked.

1. IS, 214 were to become law, there would be no dlfﬁcu.lty in ad_]ustmg the
Frocedures of the Patent and Trademark Office to operate effectlvely under that
aw.

2. Tt should be’ p0551b1e to carry out an effective exammatmn under the prowsmns
of the bill and to conduct an effective reexamination when prior | art-was submitted
by members of the public. I believe prior art submitted in connection with reex-
amination would receive the same consuleratmn as art. 1n1tlally dlscovered durmg-
the original examination.. i 3 ‘ ; EE
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I would ‘notéxpect much- change -in-the presumption of validity of patents; as
issued, under the bill, since at that point there would have been no opportunity for
pubhc participation in the examingtion process. ‘The  presuniption should -be ‘en-
hanced when a patent is litigated, however, sincé by that time‘all the: prior art
would have been considered and overcome before the Patent and Trademark Office.

3. As compared with present law, the ultimate validity of patents which survive
examination -and reexamination should be considerably improved, in view of thé
chance for all interested persons to: brmg forth the: best ‘art they kriow of at'any
time during the life of the patent. This improvement in validity would be obtained
?)tﬂ' modest cost and- without ' significant added burden: to: the Patent and- Trademark

ice,

4. Tt'is estimated ‘that' operations of the Patent and Trademark Ofﬁce under your
bill would require from 100 o-150 additional positions; an increase of 3 to 5 percent;
g‘}ﬁ: increased cost, based on fiscal year 1974 costs, would be 2.4 to 34 mllllon

ollars.

To the extent that procedural matters are not-dealt with:'in your: bl.lI and are Ieft
for handling by Commissioner’s regulation, it-should be:possible to accomphsh th1s
80 as to achieve the principal objectives of the President’s Commission. < -

- 6:'T would' not -expect: your bill:to have any adverse effect on patent- mcentwes
There might be a positive effect, since the validity of patents should bie enhanced
Enactment of the bill should not affect the protection of trade secrets.

I would not expect maintenance fees'in the amounts set forth in ‘your bill to have
any substantial effect on the incentives of the patent system. The impsct of these
fees would ordinarily fall only on those patentees who had found it poss:ble to
commercialize their inventions, -

Establishment of anriual mamtenance fees, even on a mlmma] basm, wou.ld seem
to me inore burdensome both to the patentee and to the Patent and Trademark
Office. More record keeping would be involved.and the fees would be payable at a
time when the patentee might: have little idea- whether he would ever make any
money from his invention. -

6: Your bill does appear to me to be in: the dlrectmn of attammg the ob ectives of
the President’s Commission. Provision for the 20-year term should-be helpful in
shortemng patent pendency, though otherwise the bill would not seem to have

ificant effect on pendency as compared with present law. To the extent that the
b1 encourages the filing of patent apphcatlons, it helps to accelerate pubhc dlsclo-
sure of technological advances: . =

The bill would not add much to the cost of ebta.mmg a patent whlle the provi-
gions of Chapter -31-would be expected to reduce substantially both the amount:and
the costs of patent litigation. Under  your bill cur patent system should remain
compatible with the -gystems of: other countnes, and should be able to: cope w1th
modern technology developments.

I believe that present Title 85 could be unproved by mcorporatmg portions of your
bill, as for example, provisions for reexamination on the basis of prior art submitted
by members of the public, for patentahility briefs from applicants, a.nd for requlrmg
apf)hcants to make full disclosure to the Office of pertinent facts.-

hope this will be helpful to you and would like to thank you for the actwe’,
interest you have showr in working toward an’ unpmved patent system i
With best regards, -
Sincerely,

C. MARSHALL DANN,
. Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks.

U.S. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS,
Waslhingtort,_ DO, May 8 J975::2 7

Hon. C. MarstaLL Dann
Commissioner, Patent a,nd Tredemark Off“ ce, o
Arlington, Va. | . e SER

DEAR COMMISB]ONER DANN In my Aprll 28 letter to you I referred to my com-
ments in the Congressional Record of January 15, pages 5 387-413. I also referred to
the substance and requests of my letters of March 3 and March 11 addressed to the
then Secre of Commerce, Frederlck B Dent of' Wh1ch copzes were furmshed for
your-ready reference. -

At the time' of these lettere, nho blll ‘had been chesen for markup Now 8. 23 has
been chosen for markup. Therefore in considering your now expected reply. I would'
be miost- appreciativé if it would also be directed to the attached questions in:my

_addendum which are directed to the substance and procedures of S.- 28: Such’
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information will aid me greatly in deciding what.amendments I may offer to 8. 23. I
will still also rely upon your opinion with respect to the questions of my letter of
April 28, Accordingly I ask you to kindly combine your answers to the questions in
my addendum with those forthcoming from my letter of April 28. . S
As you know, great care was exercised in the preparation of my bill, 8. 214, which
took into account positions and recommendations received from interested parties,
including importantly the patent bar. : - o
Any amendments I may offer will be prepared in the 1i§ht of provisions of my bill
. and comments you may make on both my bill 8. 214-and S, 23. o
1 am advised that amendments to be considered in markup must be submitted to
the Chief Counsel of the Subcommittee not later than May 20, so you can see that
time is of essence. . o . T ] o . L
Your early convenient ccoperation in responditig to my letters will be very much °
appreciated. B o e Lo e
1 have also recently noted with keen interest, Secretary Morton's response to the -
Senate Commerce Committee's questions. (P.T.C.J., May 1, 1975, pp. A-4 and A-5)
With warm regards and aloha, i ) ) ) .
Sincerely yours, S ’

. Hmam L. Fong."’

" U.8. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE,, - . ..
L " .. ... PateNr OFFICE. D
o . ..Washington, D.C., Jurie g, 1975.
Hon. Hiram L. Fone, e e
US. Senate, . .. -
Washington, D.C... ..~ ... . . T T N TUT I S U P
Dear SEnaTor Fong: This letter is in reponse to your letter of May 9, 1975, -which -
notes that S. 23 has been chosen as the basis for-the mark-up of a patent revision'
bill. Your earlier letter of April 28 asked my opinion on various. points. relating: to
your bill 8. 214, and your now ask.that I expand the answer toinclude S: 23 as well.
My response to your letter of April 28 was already completed and forwarded to -
the reviewing officials in the Department of Commerce and the Office of Manage-
ment and Budget when your May 9 letter was received. I believe you have now
received that response. Accordingly, in the present letter I'will try simply to answer
the questions asked in the addéndum to your May 9 letter.
Taking-up your specific questions: - - i S
(1) If S. 23 were to become law, there should be no trouble in accommodating the
frocedures of the Patent and Trademark Office for effective operation under that
aw, with one possible exception. According to our analysis, if deferred examination
is put info effect without some-provision for regulating the Office workload, there’
- could be a drastic reduction in the number of applications available for examination -
during the first few years after the law became effective. This might make it .
necessary for-us to reduce our professional exa.mi.ning stafl by-as much as two-’
thirds, and within a few more years to attempt to build up again to approxiriately .
threefourths of the present level. The Administration does not consider deferred
examination necessary or desirable, but if it should be included, I would:urge
strongly that there be some provision to give the Office a degreee of control over the
_ amount of its workload. o T o B
(2) The effectiveness of the Patent and Trademark Office operation, in the sense
of being able to conduct a more thorough examination, should be improved by the
provisions of either 8. 28 or 8. 214 over present law, since in each ecase there jg
opportunity for the public to bring forward prior art or other information bearing
on;atgqtability.. . o R PN OIS L N N S
(3a)y ‘As bétween S. 23 and 8. 214; it'is difficult. to.say which will produce more ,
effective examination of applications for patent. S, 214 affords sémewhat greater
flexibility in Office procedures. oo O imiae. s Eeeinii et ocad
(b) The inter partes procedures available under 5. 238 will in-some cases produce ™
information not otherwise available 'and to that extent will provide morg. effective
re-examination."On the other hand, undér 8. 214 the opportunity to oppose at any
time during the life of the patent and conseguently the likelihood that cppesitions ..
will be brought at a time when the opposer. is seriously concerned with the patent
will mean that usually a more thorough search will have béen made by the opposer.
On balance, I would expect more effective reé-examination under 5. 214, L
(¢) I would not expect much difference in the time consumed foi the. éxamination
of applications under S. 23,"S. 214, or preseinit law. Application peéndency would, of
course, blt: 'Iérolonged for those applications under 8. 23 where deferred examination
was invoked. ) P S S
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(d) Because of the inter partes nature of the proceedmgs, re—exammatlon under 8.
28 would be more time consuming than under S, 214,

(e) In his May 6, 1975 response to your ietters of March 3 and March 11, 1975
Acting Secretary Tabor estimated that the additional cost of operation of the "Office
under the opposition procedures of 8. 23 would be from 2.7 to 8.0 million dollars.
The additional ¢osts of operation due to the OPPOSItIOIl provrsmns in S 214 were
estimated to be 0.5 to 1.5 million.

(4{a) The ultimate validity of patents under S. 23 should be improved over that
obtained under present law, largely because of the opportunity for re-examination.
Under 8. 214 the requirement that all prior art be submitted to the Patent and
Trademark Office before béing used in court should mean that any patents surviv-..
ing re-examination will enjoy a considerably enhanced presumption of validity.

(b) Our analysis indicates that operation under S. 23 will be more expensive than
either 8. 214 or present law. Again referring to Acting Secretary Tabor's letter. of
May 6, it was estimated that the total additional costs of operation for the-Office .
under S. 23 would be 18.1 to 18.4 million dollars compared with a total ‘additional
cost under S, 214 of 2.4 to 3.4 million,

(c) The ultimate validity of patents should be improved by the prowsmns for re-
examination and the insistence on completeness of disclosure of any facts bearing
on the right to patentability. Both S. 23 and 5. 214 contain such provisions.

(5) Although some of the ob_]ectwes of the pending bills could presumably be
accomplished by regulations, ‘this is' not true in all cases. For example, without
change in the law, it is not possible to require re-examination for all applications for
all patents. As I believe you know, the Office is currently experimenting with a
voluntary protest procedure. Of 2000 applicants offered the chance to have their -
applications published for protest, cone-third elected to do so. During the-three- -
month period following publication, 9 percent of the published applications’attract- -
ed protests. The Office is currently studying the references submitted and does not
yet: have any.:figures on how many may ultimately be rejected on this: basis.

(6) Acting Secretary Tabor’s letter of May 6 analyzed those areas of S. 23 and 8.
214 which aré néw to present law and appear to hdve the greatest cost implications..
These costs are reproduced in the table below, expressed in- terms of fiscal year 1974
costs except where otherw1se mdlcated .

COST IMPLICATIONS OF S 23 AND S 214

(MECIeIIan) s 214 (Fog)

Secl|uns3(d) e S 5o

Section 115, . OO A O S RS X
SECHION AL e : oA
CDIOSIIONS o ecerrroion e B, = Y
Miscellangous provisions g et - RSP 1. B
Defbrred XAMINANION... ..o ot inpreicem Ciernsns i .
IO i T T A T304 0 24084
Mean' (fiscal yéar- 19?4) i e s et 158 29 -

 Extmated (fisal year 1975hasrs) S ;.‘_' 18l 33

Operatlons of the Patent and Trademark Oﬂice under S 214 Would be expected to
require from 100 to 150 additicnal positions.” Operetlon under 8. 23 would require:
500 to 860 additional positions except for reductions in examining requirements
which would presumably result from deferred examination. -Depending on._the ag--
sumptions ised, net additional needs under S. 23 with defetred exammatmn mlght .-
be about 100-400 positions.. .-

%)) (a) and (b) If S. 23 becomes law, 1 be]leve that it will have both posztlve and
negative effects on the incentive to continued use of the patent systém. To the
extent that it produces a greater presumption of validity, filing of applications will
be encouraged ‘On the other hand, the increased costs and the danger of uninten-
ticnally running afoul of some of the procedural requirements will induce some to
rely on sécrecy- mstead of patent protectmn Less of thls negatwe effect would be °
expected. under S, 214, -

(c) Whenever patent procedures become Tore expenswe, r1sky or burdensome,
there is incentive to.maintain inventions 45 trade secrets. This incentive would be
somewhat greater’ inder S, 23 than under 8,214, but I would Lope and expect that__
most would still choose to use the patent system under either bill. - -
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{d) Maintenance fees.in the amounts contemplated by 8. 23 and 8. 214 should not
have very much effect on the incentives to file, although obviously the effect will be
greater as the fees become higher. As indicated in my earlier letter, annual mainte-
nance fees would seem to me more burdénsome to the patentee and to the Patent

-and Trademark Office than larger ‘amounts payable at the times provided in the
pending bills. -

(8Xa) In my Judgment both S. 23 and 8914 will accomplish some of the obJectwes
of the President’s Commission and will fail to accomplish others.

(b)(1) Neither bill would be expected to shorten the period of application pend-
ency, since the Office expects to reach eighteen-month average pendency in another
year. Pendency of any applications deferred under S. 23 would be lengthened.

(b)2) There should be little change in the time of public disclosure of technologi-
cal advances under either bill as compared with present law. Under S. 23 the
inventions of those choosing deferred examination would be published shortly after
eighteen months, but this will be about the same as the average under the present
law. To the extent that any potential patent applicants are dissuaded from filing
because of added costs or other burdens, there mlght be a net decrease in pubhc
disclosures of new technology.

(bX3) Both bills would add to the expense of obtam].ng a patent The increase
would be greater for S. 23 than for S. 214

(bX4) Both bills should reduce the amount of litigation and the expense of litigat-
ing a patent, largely because of the provisions favoring arbitration of patent dis-
putes. In addition, it would be expected. that.the amount. and-costs. of: patent
litigation under S. 214 would be substantially reduced by the requirement that all
prior art must first be considered.in the Patent and Trademark Office. This would
weed out a number of patents which would otherwise be litigated and would gwe a
greater presumption of validity for the others. . - .-

(b)(5) Procedures under the two bills are generaliy consmtent w1th forelgn prac-
tice, although any increase in disclosure requirements will tend to make U.s.
practice diverge from those of all other countries.

{b)(6) The procedures of both bills shoulcl be flexible enough to cope ‘with the
developments of modern techuology.

(b)(T) As mentioned in my response to your Afprl.l 28’ lnqu.lry, 1 beheve present law
could be improved by incorporating portions of your bill such as the provisions for
re-examination on the basis of prior. art submitted by members of the public,
patentability briefs and requirements that applicant make full disclosure to the
Office of known pertinent facts. The objectives of the President’s Commission might
be msorggfully realized if the provisions of Chapter 31 of 8. 214 were mcorporated
into

Finally, I should mention’ ‘that none of i my comments should be taken as in any
way altering the Administration’s posutlon on patent law revision.

With kindest personal regards _ o ) )

Smcerely, . - v e
- C MARSHALL DANN, -
Commzssmner of Patents and Memarks
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luuia of Jﬂpresgnuatlvna
Waghingtoh, D:Cw 20515

. Proposals to reviss our patant laws ‘have bepn con*lnu—
wusly nenJing in Congress for tén’ysarsy  "S. 12235, panned By
tha Senate’on ‘FPebruary 26, 1975, and referred to the House, - -
in- thé ldtedt offort to noderniza the- 1aw to accommodate tne"'
aceslerating prograss of sclence’ ‘and, technology, the changing ~
naturs: - of applied: reaaarcn,'and tho vaa*'proliFerntion of "¢
technological inrormation. nltnough At is ‘evidént that the
House will not pave time thig sessxon “toiconsider tﬁa many
compléic “issues contained 1n-8.7225%, I believe ‘Our com
will ke halpfal to future consigeration cf patent law rewlqion
proposals. “In oLLerlqg'tHnse corments, I woukd lixe to
.nphaalva thut.hhey repreae.h 39 vicwz oh ubn D

”he ﬁ"part\enu of Dmmerca is cencer: ad that many of . .
the srovisions of 3. 22535 Will be etceqsivelv erpensiva and . |
undulv burdensome, both to the patent aﬂplicant and. to the.
tatent and ;radeﬂarﬂ Gffice, The bill est blishes .so

procedures which are not nesded, and fai s to astab
that ars needed, Finally, many of the provisiens in y..ﬁg‘/
include unnecsssary detall, better left to agency rules.
Inel S anJ a9nenueu Hereto ars our suggestions for
improving '§. 225507

ackcrﬁund

Patant law i3 of vital concern to this Dpartment and
to the :aktion 23 & whole asince patent law can exert a strong
influangs on-the dovalopment and v3e of new technology.
WWhils copsensus exists thak some ravision of tho patent law
12 tinely and approvbriate, subhstantial opposition to 5. 2235
nas been expraessed by concaerned citizensz and by members of
the patent bar.

v
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Wa are conscions that in a numbar of respects 8, 2253 ]
is similar to 3. 1308} the bill introdiucsd by the Aum;nis—
tration. The Dopartrment of Commarce, ‘however, did nok
concur with every provisioa of s. 1308, ‘while, from our _
perspactivae, 8. 2235 makes soma substantial lmprovﬂmanta in
. 1209, ve feal that additiopal modifications ake necessaty
to achiave eEfsctive, acdeptabla and viabla patant 1a; revislon.

Anong tha Lmoroveaments in tna Sonate-passed bill over

S. 1303 are the Followlng: ' disclosura requlremarits hzave '
beaen modified to eliminatsm an implication that confidential
propriatary information must be dlsclosed; public involvement
is provided after the grant of a patent rather than before,
thus a*iJinatiqg double 5uh11cat;on: raview of deciaiona’ of
.the Court of Custems and Patent Apveals would remain in tha .
Suprama Court rather than be switched to the court of Bnpaals
for the District of Columbiay procedural pitfalls which
could have rosulted in Jbsarving iﬁventions' being denied
protedbion havs bedn’ eliminated; and humerous d;arting
redundancies and anbiguifies Hava been eliminated. Aotwith~ﬂ
standing thess improvementa,” from the gtandpoint 6f tha
Department of Cormerce,: the Sénate—passed. leglslation contains
a nuwbar of features which would make more expenslve and
nora burdensoma the obtalning of a pateat and would lead to
less certalaty of protection by that patunt. Thus, wa Lsar .
that the Senate-passad bill would raduce rather than’ incraase
incentives to uze the patent pystem. It would ther refora
“cﬂuce the incentives for voluntary investment in, and

igselosura of ‘tha results from, xrasearch and’ daVﬂlounent
activity., The raduced incentive to use and thus discloso
via the patent syztem would lead to an increasing rellance
upon a trade secret aEpprioadh £o°bDrotact naw tachriology,
resulting in needless duplicatien of work and the lo3s of |
additional tachnological advances which might have been
stimmlated by disclosure. Tt is our belief, however, that'
8. 2255, if suitably amended,’ can qaxva asg the basls fox
sound and desx*able rero*ﬂ.

Costy

Uy Adﬂlnint*atiou nstimated ;ts rill would lncxaaﬂa 0
the dstlmated current 31500 average cost ‘Lo the asplicant to
obtain a patent by 73 £o 1003, and many bellaved thiz too
conservative. The cost incrsase to tha Coyernment was
catimated to he nL1rly 20 million Gallars. The estimataed
costs to apolicanta undar 5. 2255, whila lower than the
Adninlstrabion bilY;are s5till much too high. lthougn wa -
cannot -quantify the impact on the public of thnsn ‘cost

33
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incredqas, we az= confidpnt tna* algni‘icnntlj fcwax patent

applications will ba fil?d.f‘“hﬂ resultant loas of public

diaclosure of. tachnological information, tha.1l0ss of incen—

tives to invent. bz to invast. in researxch, development,. and ... ‘
cormarcialization of new, proﬂucts and procassen ls hound ko - -
have: an adyarsa s__ect cn our teg .ologic11 progreas and -

Vaconomic gréwkh. . )

Durﬂaﬁ"me'?roceddrés-”'ﬁééxahihatidﬂ R

. \ﬁ imnorhant concept oE batent 1aw xaforn. is that at.
soma polit before a patent can ba enforced thera should be
cnnortunlty for members of the public to, come forward with
reasong why the patent should net be enforceanla. .. Infoxr— » ..
tunately, séctions 135 and 1354 of §. 2355 providaeithis, 7
nobartuﬂity iﬁ an u1neceﬂaarily burdenscma angd costlj wa;.

JuLEI section 13;, anv member of tne nublic, who auring
the first year after-grant presénts reasannbla grounds for . ..
rendsring a patent claim invalid, may vrovoks an inter partes
oppositlon proceading.  In this proceeding the patentea is . -
susjeek to full Aiacovary, including interrogatories, extensive
Jiocument proanction and the taking of testinony.. Shereaftex,
for tha balance of the patent term, section 135A provides
for a gsscond liuter partes. rzexamlnation. nroceedlng, this time,
1imited to. prior pakents, publlcations and othex information
in tauglble forn. . Zlther party wmay appeal to the courts khe -
declsion ultimataly reauhed by the offica in eithar tyue ot
opnoqiticn D*ocaading. . s i .

hesa provisions invite harassmcnt of tna pateutee-
iy conid be par lcularlj burdensome to patentees of ilmited
meana-~indspendent inventors. and. amall husinuss CONCHrnis,
There are Several aapscts of §. 2235 deaigned spaclfically -
+o agsizt inventors of limitad m2ans: | upper limits on £iling,
examinatlon, and issvance feea and an, opportunlty .to. defer.
maintenance fees. Yowevar, the potential costs asscciated
with the ovposition and reexamination procedures undex
sections 135 and 135a of S, 2255 not only could begin to
secunulatka lnmedlately after grant, but could fax exceed the
token goncesslons. granted. such irdividuals w;th respnat to.
-overnnent gses, .. . . . : :

A Himplar and less nurdﬂnsoma “IOCQJHIS, but ‘onwe esaan—ﬂf

putentabllitv, is avamlaala. Jnuer 113 procadura, gl forth
in detail in ‘tha nttabnmpnt to bhiz, Jlerter, prior patents and

24
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‘e

.publxcations could be subritted for consldexration by tna'

Tatent and Trademark Office at any time during tha life of

ithe patent,. and patents and publications could not be-used

o prove invalidity in an infringement -or declaratory Judg-

ment action unlesa first . submitted for Office considaxation.
Helther discovery nox appeals by tha opposer would ba permitted.
Tha court would thus have the benafit of tha views of the -
Office experts on all cited. referencas, but would be no mora
bound by thosa viewa thaa it is today.

qus nrocadure ‘would efﬂ»c+ively bring forth the beat
art, buk would be less expensive and-less burdensome than '
the provislous for public participation in 3. 2253. It wuulﬁ
reduce' and simplify patent litigation.. .In our opipion it ... 70
should be substituted for t&e procﬂdures contaiﬂﬂa in 5. 2255.

Dafers ed E :amination ﬁ

Tha Dbpartment of. Cowmerce agrPes with the Aum;nlstration
that the procedure;referred to aa "deferred examination”- is
not nesded or deairabls at this time. - Undex the system whigh-
S.. 2255 would satablish, the examinatlon of-a patent application
by the O£flce would normally be deferrsd until requested by
the applicant. If no requast for examination-is made within
five years from tine eaxliest date to which tha application
ig entitled, tha appllcatlon is regarded as abandonad. . Since
a reguest -for sxamination would not be made in every applica~
tlon, 1t is argued that with fewexr:applications to consider
the examiner could apend more time on ach apnlicat*on. shis
argumant, however, ignorea the adminlsirative Fealities by:
which a decreasa in workload is normally accompanied by a -
corresoonding decreass in anpronriatlons and starfing.‘

Pur*hermore, tﬁe publicatlon of . unexamined and unscreened
aﬁpllcatlons required undasr the deferred examination system
of §. 2255 would unjustifliably swell the volume of technical
literature, would force potential compotitors to make in effect
thair own examination, and, as indicated by the ﬂ3314tant
nttorney General: for the Antitrust Divlsion (Kearinga on’

1321 Before. the Subcommiitee on Patents, Trademharks: and
Cop;rights of ths Senate Committea on the JIndiciary, 93xd
Congress,. }gt. Seuslon 299 (1973)),:cou1d have a chilling
eEfect on competition. _For Lhese reasons, cectlons 191-1324 .
and thosa ohher parts- oE.5.. 2255 whlch Drovida for &bferred
e”amination gshonld be deletcd.

G



Jo;nt Invcntlo

Tha COleEthlGS of modnrn scianca nnd teCAnology, counled
with the specialization.of today's' ‘enginesrs ‘and scientists."‘y
have resulted in the extensive nse of orgdnized research * -
teama Tunded by governmant, induatry and the wilversitiess
Cocperative affort of this sort should be encouraged and ot "
penalized by wnnescessary technical: requirewants with respect °
to patents for inventions made jointly by -two of mora inventors.
We urge amendmont of section 116 to permit £iling by several .
inventors:where they have Jointly contriouted to aL least
one claim in the: auplicatlon. B

numlnistxatxve P;Qvisioﬂa iy m;. SR LT :'-'$uﬂ{ fi PR

Sﬂchlon 1 of 5. 225: would substantiallj modify current
law concerning the establishment of tle Patent.and 2 ademark
Office and its relaklon to the Department of Commerce. In
order: 40, clarify tie relation of the Offlce to' tha Dapax tment,
it is sugyested thakt ‘section 1 be modified to indicate’ that ~
the DEfice and: lts functlons: ghalllbe continued in thé Depakt-"
ment of Commerce under the Saciretary of Commerce:’ Purtherﬂore,
since dacisions concerning initiation of judigial ‘proceedings
and rulemaklng:involve broad pollcy considerations whlch ‘are
acproprlute for deparitmental review, the Cffice should not be
ln&enendont of: tﬁe Jﬂpartment ln these mauters. :

uioa 3 of S.'7235 wnuld elevate t“e Commissloner of ¥
Patents to an Rssiatant Secretary:of Commerce., Mot only is
this undasirable because:it’ ssts. a precsdent for the’ prolifnra-
tion of. aAssistant Secretaries, but the Patent and ;ra&emarr
O0ffice, which ia comoosed.nf scientista’and engineers’, ‘should °
be assoclated with other science and tachnulogy opexating
units- under: tha jurisdictlion: of -an. nsslstan Secretary for
Sclenca and lecﬁnology. . .

Draf tin Anoxoacﬁ

rinallj, tﬁe bill sﬁould ba ananded to min1m17a unnaces—;
saxy procedural rigidity and to’ avold: procedural’ traps. The -
drafting of 5. 2255, carrled over. from marliar bills, ‘Gvidencds’
a strong: tendency tor Téwrite uniecessarily each ‘section of e
preseﬂt daw, often.-introducing u1intaﬁuad cHang*s in Aubstance
or including procedural:dstails which nr fnore ppronriate__‘f,
for implementing raguliationa. i En SR




Sactiohs 112 ah&‘132lare'nmong those: séctions containing:”
provisions which would pignificantly limit the Flexibility oE
the Patent!and Trademark Dfflcerto! modify” its Procadites ‘ass
cxperience élctatas. In other sections, sowma of whxch_havs
hean the subject of eiktensive:litigation,:-thé' langiage seans -
to have been changed for no partlcular reason. For instance, .
35 Uu8.Ce 5112:.{1852) of exlsting law fequires &' disclosure -
of an invention sufflclent o enable any “person skillszd in
the art™ to make and wsaili. The same hectlon in 8. 2255 °
has been modifled to zequlra thak the dlsleosure be such as
to enable any - ¥verson having ordinagz skill in-the art™ to
Cwaka and use the inventlony 'uotwithstﬁhding the faci that
tha: proger interpratation’ of tha phrass “person skillad In’
the art® has -been- addressad in‘more than 109 cases.{35 D.S5.C.h.
5112 n.50), this change-and tha" aignificance to-ba attrlbutad
to it are. nok aven mentloned in tha’ report’ accompanyling 5. 2233,
A number of suggestibns - to improve £he drafting of Bl 2755, ag
well a3 language to implement "khe points Drﬂviously mentionad,
‘arg included in the attacheu agpehdices.

.ITn chr-viaw, thea' changas proposed for'g: 22557 in the N
attached appendicas would make that bill an accnptable e
revision of our patent law: a zevision which improvas +the'”
strength and raliabillty of the patent system, whila enhancing
~ tha incnn*ivas to invent, lnveat in, and dlscloss naw tach-,

nology. 1I& is our hope that thasa” quqqestlwns will’ raceive
{ua consideratlon when patent law revislon.is considered in
the 95th Congress. C

With warm regard

Sincerely,

Elliot Eitnidhardaon -

Encloqurea )

Prepared by BLGrossman/lcf/g—B 76
Patent & Trademark Office (OLIA)
Cleaxance: ‘Kirk —“PTO-{OLIAY* -

Dann - PTQ L. .

iiwsn “Ancker-Johhison’ - SET = -
cc: 'Gecretary,_ - Conr. Dann,
R/878cii & Techi:i{2) - 7 V'D/Comr: Parke

A/GC Sci. & Tech. . &/C Patent Eaamxnln

. G.C. Loegis. s CHRG Trademarks
G.C. Chron/Read h/C Administration
ilr. Sprague Solicitor

Exec. Sec. OLIA, CP6~1108 33
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I, OPPOSITION AND- REE{AMINATION
I3

Tne provxs;ons deallng wlth 099051t10n5 dur;ng the flrst

twel e months from 1ssuance (sectlon 135, page 40 11nes 20-

through 39 and page 41 llnes 1 through 39) as well .as the
prov151ons deallng w1th reexamlnatlon for the balance of the.
term (sectlon l35A, page'42 llnes 1 through 39 and page 43, o

11nes 1 through 38) should be ueleted and the- follow1ng pro~

VL51ons deallng w1th pre-lltlgatlon reexamlnatlon substltuted
L

The proposed substltutlon for, sectlons 135 and 135A sets

"forth p:ocedures for a. reexamlnatlon, the suggested addltlons:.

to’ sectlon 232 set for h a. requlrement that prlor art ‘be.

~

con51dered by the Pahent and Trademark Offlce before lt may

be relled upon 1n lltlgatlon.t.

- geexamina;;bﬁ

(a)(l) At any time within the perlod of enforceablllty
of a patent, any person may request reexamxnatxon of such

patent pursuant to this sectlon.
(2} Such person.shallz, ..

(A) file a written request for such reexamination;' '

{B}) notify the Commxss;oner ln'wrltlng of any patents LT

or accessible prlnted or other tanglble forn of publ;—

catlons that nay have a bearlng on the valxdlty of any

clain of the_pa“, t at 1ssue, and

K
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i. .
{C):;submit.an explanation of ;the relation of such patents
and publications to the patentability of the claim or . .
claims 1nvolved The written reguest shall bhecome a

part of the off1c1al flle of the patent. Tﬁéeidé&titﬁ

-2of the person flllng such .equest w1ll be eAcluded from

such-file upon his reguest to remain anonymous.

Y

L(b)(l) Unless the requestlng person 15 the patentee,

the Conm15510ner shall promptly prov;de the owner of tne E

patent, as 1nd1cated from the records of the Offlce at tHe

”the request, ‘a. copy of such reexamxna—

time of the flllng ‘of

tion request together?ﬂlth the patents-and publlcatl ns %

clted pursuant to subsectlon (a)(2).

T

(2} Witnin_Bo_gaye_follgwingithejfiliug:of_a4;equestf

for reexamination, the Commissioner shall make a determina-,.

tion as to whether a substantial new question of.patentabilitymﬁ
affecting any ¢laimn of the patent at -issue iz raised by the

consxderatlon of the patents and publlcatlons c1ted pursuant

The mﬂ1551oner oh hlS own 1n1t1at1ve

to subsectlon (a)(z).ix

may. make sucH a determlnatlon at any tlme.'d' B m“'“";

(3.8 =::e°Q:d:-,o£ itie, Commissioner!'s @ef—s’f_miﬂati.qn shall .
become a part of the official: file of the patent, and a copy,

~of it sent promptly to the owner of the patent.

29
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{47 ‘a ‘negative determination’ by the Commissioner'shall
be final éﬂﬁ”ﬁangbpealdﬁié:

-y

(5) If the cOmm1551oner flnds that a substantlal new

gquestion ofipapeptabll;tx is ralsed, he shall order a reexam-_

ination of the patent.

s

(6) The patent ow1er shall be glven a reasonanle perlod,

not 1ess thdn two months, after the flllng of the reexamlna-

tion order w1th1n whxch he may flle a statament on the 1ssues

for con51derat10n 1n the reexamlnatlon. The patent owner N

shall be prOVLded an opportunlty 1n any reexamlnatlon pro~

ceeding to present new or anended clalns 1n order to dxstln—

gulsh the claim or claims from patents or publlcatlons 01ted

pursuaﬁt”ib Bubsection (a) (2} of £his section.  No sich
amendment ‘shall matérially enlaxge® the scope  of the claim:

or ¢laims 6f the patent or”add new matter.

(7) ;he owner of a patent 1nvolved 1n a reexamlnatlon

proceed;ng under thls sectlon may appeal from a flnal dec;—

-

sion adverse to the patentablllty of any cla;n, or new or

amended claim, of the patent. Such appeal shall be in

o

accordance with ‘section 134, sections 141° through 145, ox '
othér pertinent “sections’ of this' title, ==
Section 282, page 67, line 14, after "patentability”, insert

~-= , provided, however, that no patent or‘printed publication

4o



_ Section 252, page 67, following line 41, add the foliowing:

accessxble prlnted ox ot er tanglble form of publlcatxons s

255
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may be relied upon-as evidence .of;non-patentability unless ...

it was cited'-by or to-the.Qffice.during.prosecution.of:the. ..., .

patent at.issue or.was considered by.the: Offlce An BQCOrdance: .-

with section 135 -of -this title =—.:

Sectlon 232, page 67 llne 22, "(4)" should be deleted and

— {3) -nlsubstltuted therefore.mul

-~ (D}..The court—shall,stayeall—procegdings—inﬁthefaction:

until at least 20;days-after.the.final determination in regaxd: . :.:

to any reguest:for.afy.reexamination which was made.in.accor- -

~

dance with section 135 of;this.title:by any'party against . - ..
. whom a pleading gresentéﬁaqq;qim;fo: iﬁfringémeqt;orgfonﬂ,

adju@iggtion.ofjthe validity. of a.patent, provided that.such: ::

request was made within six months .of ‘the bringing:of-the.

action and before any responsive pleadings are made.

{(E} The.court, .on motion and upon such terms..as. are.just;. m!

may at any time stay the proceedings in a civil action in . ::o°

which the validity of a patent is in issue for & per;od suffl—'.'

“to enable the mov1ng party to c1te to the Offlce newly

\"dlscovered addltlonal pr;or axt 1n the nature of patents or ’

and to secure f;nal determlnatlon of

st for reexamlnatlon
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of the paténk’in the Yight of such additional ‘art, provided -
the court-finds-that such additional prior: drt; in fack, -
cénstitutésLnéwly;discéveréa'eyidence*which by-due diligence -
coﬁld not have been discovered in tire to be ¢ited to and
con51dered by the Offlce wlthln the perlod of a stay of such
proceedlngs that was or could have been secured accordlng to

subparagraph (D) of this paragraph.

(F)?fhe=p$££y:;f ;értieﬁ th#e-cbﬁp}a%nt éomﬁgagépg ; -
civil action’ presents a-claim for—fnfringementror'faf adjﬁdii
‘catlon of the 1nva11d1ty of a paterit-‘shall- have’ the right, "
by notice. served” upon the other:party or partxes and - filed

in the action~at any: t;me within ‘thie-pericd qf the stay -

ordered by’ the court’ pursuant to'subparagriphs- (C} or (D)
of this paragraph, ‘to dismiss such complaints without prejudide’ ™
and without costs to any partiés); —-

LY

Page 68, paragraph "(3}",Vlines é through %, should be
deleted‘and'paragraphﬂ"(a}“r:linele."féﬁhmbéredfto read”
- (3} L, R

PLcase -ho’rc 4NF€ are l‘? ore. ﬂg‘a “of addendm
oottached o 56crt1’an{ &chardmm letee of _fepfnnh:r 4, 152,

v Chihf‘mo.ﬁ Peeru fodnno \Jf'- /70?‘5 fC"Jfﬂi o' r‘eawuaa.frqt

by PR, Jhese pages howt been omitted 1o saue eneryy’
and foc soke of brevity,

;,z,

_‘ﬂ‘\
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{New ]Ersey)

Homer J. ‘Bridger *

IMew York)

Dr, Pou! Lipsits
{Pennsylvanial

Alfred 'W. Barber

INaw York)
Robert H. Jacod

1Wiscansin}

. .providing for an Independent Patent. and Trademark
‘Office.

to tastify, or assist in’.an .advisory. capacity at -any

NEW YORK, N Y.
February 5, 1980

Senator Birch Bayh
363 Russell Senate Office: Bldg. Lo
Washington, D.C. 20510 P

P, s S
Dear Senator::

The executive Committee of our asscciation, :as :Ln the
past, overwhelmingly favors the separation of the U.S.

. Patent. and Trademark Office £rom the Department of -

. Commerce, "in the ‘interest of.a. bettet: Patent and Trade-
“makk system.
" ance with the administration's poliey o
'the innovative process in America.

"We' believe that this change is in accord-
stimulating

Accerdingly, we strongly support 52079
To this énd, for your comsideration, we offer

future hearlngs or . mformal meetings of your committee

Very truly yours.L;:'

7 4_/}’
Tl
A T G
22 Main St, . :
Montvald, NJ 07645

(201) 337 5312

KRR

cc: . Members of the Senate Committeds on
Affalrs
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Jd 3\ /—\MERICAI\I EAR ASSOCIATION

SECRETARY
Wm Mocgr 0

811 O\Iw svael
t. Louis, MO 83107

11555ASTEOTH ST., CHIGAGO lLLINOIS 60637 TELEPHONE (312) 947-4018

‘February 22, 1980.

Honorable Birch. 'Bayh -
United States Sehate
washingten, B, C. 20510

RE: U.S. Patent and Trademark o
Office’ %7

‘Dear- Senator Bayht -

At the meeting of the Houge of Delegates of the
Amerjcan Bar Associatioh held February 4-5, 1980 the
- attached resolution was adopted upon’ recommendation of the
‘Section of Patent,;” Trademark and Copyrlght Law ‘The action
taken thus becomes” the official pol:cy of the Assoc:ation_'.
in th15 matter. .

: Th1s resolution is transmltted for your 1nformat10n
and whatever action you may deem appropriate. Please. do
not hesitate to let us know if yoéu need any further
information; have any questxons or if we can be of any

a551stance. PP
S:ncerely yours,
e n F. Wm. McCalpln - _% 1
FWM/LAD/dfg ~*©° :
Attachment R
__4772C/477DC "

ce:  Morton Davxd Goldberg, Esquxre
Chairman, Section ¢of Pateént, Trademark and
Copyright Law
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. RESOLVED, That the American Bar Association favors
énaetment (of §. 2079(96th Congress) or similar leglslatlo
.which would recognize that strong patent and. trademark
systems are vital to the economy of the United States, and
‘would favor removal of ‘the United States Patent and '
Trademark Office from the Department of Commerce and would
make it a separate “and independent agency. E
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% .7 U5 7. Ametican Chemical Society
OFFICECFTHE ~~ < W% 0 T L s SIXTEENTH STAEET, NW, & ’
PRESIDENT S T Y WASHINGTON, .G, 20035

7 Phong (202) B72-4600
James D, Dianni ek A P
Prasident-Eloat, 1979 .
Prasidant, 1960 - April 14, 1980

The Honorable Birch Bayh
Chairman

Sybcommittee on Constitution
Committee on the Judiciary
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Bayh:

. The American Chemical Society supports the creation of an independent PTO
as embodied in $.2079, the "Independent Patent and Trademark Office Act." The
Society believes that passage of this bill would contribute to the emergence
of the Patent and Trademark Office (PT0} as a prestigious, well-respected,
efficient operation that would routinely issue patents of high quality in a
timely fashion. ) :

The work of the Patent and Trademark Qffice has an essential and con-
structive effect on the scientific, legal, and business communities, the
consuming public, and the overall economy of the United States. It plays a
vital role in the stimulation of imnovation in our country, a role which is
sorely needed. The desire for an effective and efficient patent system has
been recognized at the highest levels of the federal government as evidenced
by President Carter's October 31, 1979, statement to Congress on his
Industrial Innovation Initiatives.

In spite of the important role the PTO plays in our society, it has for
many years been unable te obtain adequate funding to perform its duties as
effectively as it should be able to do. Serious concern has been raised in
the scientific, legal, and business communities that the examination of patent
applications has been indequate because of lack of thoroughness, and that
patents with cTaims of questionable validity have been issued too frequently.
It is not uncommon that unnecessarily long periods of time elapse hetween the
filing of an application and the issuing of a patent. This has been caused by
an insufficient number of examiners to manage the flood of applicatiens, and
by too few clerical staff members to handle the voTuminous paperwork necessary
to meet the administrative requirements of the Office. Also, there is not
enotgh trained personnel to maintain a reference Tibrary of prior art, includ-
ing issued patents, and scientific and technological Titerature adequate for
the needs of the PTQ examiners and the public,
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These severe .problefis’ can be ascribed, at least in part, to PTO's inabil-
ity to make its budgetary nieeds known d1rect1y to the Office of Management and
Budget, and to the Congress.  This inability arises in large measure because
the PTO is attached administratively té the Department of Commerce rather than
being established as an independent federal agency, Since the PTO budget is
but a small part of that of the Départmént of Commerce, the monetary needs of
the Office can easily be submerged or neglected in the annual budgeta

. process. .

There is nn1y ong reason why the PTO was not created as an 1ndepe v
quasi-judicial, administrative agency like the ICC or the FCC. This reason is
that the PTO came into existence a half century before the first independent
agency was created in 18980, As a result, the P U, unfortunately, has always
been a-step-child of a cabinet department ever since.the. patent-examining
function was started in 1836. The P¥0 has.bounced from the State.Départment,
to the Intericr Department to the Commerce ‘Departmént, never. f1nd1ng'a suit-
able home because its mission is not an.executiye function. Rather, “is a
quasi-judicial body that ought to perform 1ts dut1es’1ndependent1y of .the ebbs
and flows of executive agency activities.

The ACS also supports a six-year term f&F-the Comiissionar ¢ 0, as
provided in 5.2079. This will produce greater stability and.continuity. in
that positien, and will undoubted1y eliminate the returring prob1em of vacan-
.cies resulting from: changes -in Administrations.. .These.gaps.in continuity are
‘highly, undésirable, since they can ‘and do” create uncevtainties at the career
staff level. In spite of these difficulties, the present career emp]oyees
have cons1stent1y done the best poss1h1e Job under the, c1rcumstances

The -ACS, appreciates the opportunity to present these views which have
been approved by ts Board of’ D1rectors,”and hopes ‘that! 1eg1slat1on such as
i11 be. enacted in thxs Congres . . o

Stncerely yours; ;

James D. D'Ilanni

tee

[~
on Const1tut1on
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THE ASEOC'.RT]ON OF THE EAR:‘_ .
B o, THE cITY DF NEW YORK .
" 42 WEST Aatw STREET,

" .. NEW, YORK 10038

COMMITTEE ON PATENTS,

JOSEFPH M. FlTZ‘P‘AT.ﬂ[C.K
CHAIRMAN
277 PARK AVENUE March 7, 1980
NEW.YORK, 50017 . [P N A . .
788- 2a6o

‘Senator Berh Bayh :

¢ Subcomiittes on the Constltutlon

" Room' 102B - '
Russell Senate Offlce Bulldlng
'Washlngton, . C. 20510 a3

}VAttention: Mr. Joe.Allen_ﬁj,”,,

__Dear Senator Bay

] Thé Committee on Patents ‘6f the Association of the
.. Bar of the Clty of New York wishes to go 'on record as’ bexng
“inanimously in favor of 5.2079, the Bill Whlch proposes to’
make the Patent and Trademark Offlce an ‘independent agency.’

. To thls, I would like to add my personal v1ew.
Based on 35 vears in the’ profe551on (as_Patent Examiner,.
Trial Attorney, Antitrust Division, Department “of Justice;
and private practice), the only hope for the continuance
of a viable U, §. patent gystem, equal to the competitive
.Systems. i forelgn countrlea, is to estabkligh 1ts independence
‘ag proposed in%8.207 % i

P



Peoria, lllinoia 61628

December 17, 1979

Senator Birch Rayh

363 Russell Senate
Office Building

Washington, DG 20510

Dear Senator Bayh:

RE. 5.2079

. I am encouraged by your perceptiveness 1n introducing legialation to
- establish an 1ndependent Patent and Trademark offine- It is a needed
"reformation. | ’

Robert E. Milp
‘Senior Patent Attorney

Tel,: (309). :675~4073" ;.
ed-; vt e T e
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CENTRAL NEW' YBRK PATENT LAW ASSOCIATION -

"MEMBER NATTONAL COUNCIL OF PLEASE ADDRESS REPLY TO:
PATENT LAW ASSOCTIATIONS J. Dennis Moore, Esq..
S8taff Patent Attorney
The Singer Cowpany '
Link Division

Binghamton, New York 13902
March 4, 1980

Senator Birch Bavh
U.5. Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

Attn: Mr. Joseph P. Allen
Dear Senator Bayh:

The Central New York Patent Law Asscciation, a professional
association of some 40 patent attorneys in the upstate New York area,
has been watching with keen interest the progress of your, bill 5.2079,
which would establish the PTO as a separate agency apart from the
Commerce Department. In-this connection we understand that
Arthur R, Whale, Chairman of the Natiomal Council of Patent Law
Assoclationg, is scheduled: to testlfy before a subcommittee of the
Senate Judiciary Commlttee on behalf of 5.2079,

With regard to this téstimony,'the Central New York Patent Law
Association is pleased to inform you that its members unanimously
support passage of 5.2079. TFor years we have watched with dismay
as the Patent and Trademark Office has languished as a missplaced
stepchild of the Commerce Department, instead of flourishing as it
should as a pivotal institution for the nurturing of American
innovation. We applaud and encourage you in your efforts to have
your billl passed and are pleased to inform you that Chairman Whale
who will speak in support of the passage of S. 2079, so speaks with
the warmest support of this Association.

Yours very truly,

§ Ry A

J Dennis Moore’
Secretary/Treasurer
of the C.N.Y.P,L.A.

JIM:emt

A
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March 28, 1980

The Honorable Blrch Bayh
Chairman . - .
Subcommittee on, the Gonstitutlon_g"
Committee on the . Jud1c1ary
United States Senate .. et e
Washington, D. .C... 20510 i

Dear Mf zcﬁéffﬁin

5. 2079, a b111 to 1mprove the admlnlstratlon “of “the patent andﬂ
trademark laws by establlshlng the Patent and Tradediark O0ffice
as an independent agency, was ‘referred to the Senate Committees
on the Judiciary and on Governmental Affairs. Your Committee
and the Committe€ on Governmental Affairs Fecently held joint
hearings o this measure. .On behalf of the Chemical Manufac- -
turers Association, I would like to,. submlt our views concernlng
this legislation, with the request that they be inéludéd in the
record of the above mentloned heari‘g e -

The Chemical Mﬂnufacturers ‘Adgociatfon (CMA),"fofmérlﬁ'the Maﬁﬁ-"”
factyring Chemists Association, . is a nonprofit trade assoclation . . -
having 192 United States company ‘members representing more tham

90 percent ‘of the ‘production capac1ty of ba31c lndustrlal chemlcals

t
Office) and the quality of patents grantéd and fradetiarks regiss
tered by the Office are of great concern to CMA membérs in planning
their research, developmen ,.. praduction and marketing -programs.. .
i : ; ,flle ‘the most appllcatlons for” patents

8 or,an ndepen nt \ .
recognizéd by many former Commissioners of ‘that Offlce and has
received the support of the Patent Bar, as evidenced by recent
resolutions of the American Bar-Association‘s Patent, Trademark
and Copyright Section (Resolution NR-3, Approved August 11, 1979)
and the American Patent Law Association. Several former Commis-
sioners have commented upon the difficulties of administering the
Office through several layers of Commerce .Department bureaucracy.

The reasons for an independent Office now stand out more sharply
than ever before. ~Failures of the O0ffice to ¢btain sufficient
funding in its subsidiary role within the Department of Commerce

Formerly Manufacturing Chemists Assoclation-~Serving the Chemlical Industry Since 1872,
1825 Connecticut Avenue, NW = - Washingion, .DC 20008 « Telephone 202/328-4200 » Talex 89817 (CMA WSH)
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have caused unacceptable delays-in:issuing patents and registered
trademarks and have endangeredithe guality:of what has been issued.
The Office gains no substantial beénefit: from its administrative
connection with other science and technology functions of the
Department of Commerce, but instead, has frequently found the
Department of Coinmerce tpabe'3n~administrative\ba;rie;~between
the Office and the organizations with which it must interact:
Congress, the Courts and the 0ffice of Management and Budget,

4
The Office performs functions which are quasi-judicial in nature
and, therefore, bear little logical relationship to most other
functions performed within the Department of Commexce. Recently, .
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission was establighed as an- *
independent agency because its quasi-judicial or adjudicatory ;
functions were best not performed by officials charged with- ‘advo -
cating and encouraging industries that were being regulated: e
Other agencies with gquasi-judicial functions such as the FIC,
NLRB, and ICC have long enjoyed that status: ' In much the same*
sense, the Patent and Trademark Office has a responsibility for
administering laws that determine which inventions should be-
entitled to the rights of a patent and which trademarks should be
accorded the benefits of registration. Other federal agencies,
as well as the Department of Comwmerce, have ‘gone into the busi-
ness, wisely or not, of funding research under terms in which
the Government takes title to such inventions. Accordinmgly, -
such other agencies in effect appear before the Patent and Trade-’
mark Office as an applicant for patent, or, at’'least, ‘ag the |~
assignee of" the ‘applicant with control of the prosecutlon of the:
application. " "Similarly, agencies appear with increasing frequency'
as the applicant for trademark régistration or” as thé 0pposer o
the reglstratlon of trademarks by others .

The Office, ‘as a qua51~Jud1c1al body, interacts with the courts 'in
two settings: -first, in appeals to thé GCourt G6f Customs and Patent
Appeals under 35 U.S.C. 141, or in eivil actions brought under ' °
25 U.S.C. 85 145, 146 and 15 U.5.¢. § 1071(b); and second; when™
igsued patents or registered trademarks of the Office are tested

in subsequent pr =d i ch as. c1vil actlons for patent or =
trademark 1nfr' . . :

Courts have often commented adversely upo ‘the quallty of the work
done by the Office. The fact fhat “thes
justified or not, suggest that the O0ffice’~is-i11:Z equipped presently
to respond to these ¢ritricisms. Subservience of the Office to the.

Depar ent of Commerce
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inability to respond.:! Position papers of the Office are screened
through the Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology. Fur-
thermore, actions by the Office of a substantial nature, particu-
larly if they involve an additibnal expenditure of” funds mus
inevitably pass through administrative and budgetary proceedlngs
In such proceedings, the Department of Commerce poses a barrier
between the Office and both the 0ffice of Management and Budget
and Congress o

The CommlsSLOner of Patents and Trademarks. like the members of
FCC, FIC, FERC, ICC, NLRE and other similar agencies, should
have a flxed term not tied to that of the incumbent President.
The six-year term selected by §. 2079 is similar to the terms-
for FCC Commissioners (seven years), NLRB Members (five years),
FIC Commissioners {seven years), FERC Commissioners (four vears)
and ICC Commissioners (seven years). For any effective planning
and policy development, the Office needs that kind of continmuity
of management. : By ‘contrast, in the. past ten years there have
been Five Commissiomers of the Patent and Trademark Offlce and
none has gerved longer than three years.

For the reasons set ‘Forth . above, CMA.strdnglf‘supports'thehestab—
lishment of the Patent and Trademark Office as .an. independent
agency and the adeption of a fixed term of six years for the
Commissioner ag provided for in 8. 2079 “and recommends enactment
of this leglslatlon S R

President
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THE CHICAGO BAR AssocmoN | omems
mSou(h LaSaIIeSueel . : .

RICHARD WIII.MM AUSTIN
Chicago, 1llinois, 60603 - - Fl“&’g;cm“eﬂl' -
Phone: 78273483 - N

£ Al BURDIT
orid Vice Presidem -
MEVIN M. FORDE

January 21, 1980 B b FRATIN

E . e e N . Treasurer
S - BHR

RO T WALL T -

The' Honorable Birch: Bayh
The.:United: States Senate

Room: 363 . . - L

Russell Senate Offrce A
Bu1ldlng

Washlngt D C.

S 2079, "Independent Patent and Trademark dffice ACth

Dear Senatcr Bayh.

A copy of our communicatipns to members of the Senate
Judlc1ary and Governmental ‘Affairs Committees: zid to-Mc -Joe Alleni
regardlng support for S 079 dre enclosed. " "': e

: . We are pleased to add thlS support for thls 1mportant
blll and will be prepared to testify in support of the b111

If we can be of additional 3531stance, pleaseradvlse. o

Cordially,

wrence S5/ Wick
hairman, /Committee on
Patents/ Trademarks and
Copyrights cf the
Chicago Bar Asscciation

Correspondence Address:

9
leydig, Voit, Osann, Mayer & Hoit, Lid.
ccl{w/encs) : .One IBM Plaza - Suite 4600
Hon. John banforth Chicago, IL 60611
Hon Gaylord Nelson Phone: (312) 822-9666

Richard W. Austin, Esq.
George M. Burditt, Esq.
Kevin M. Ferde, Esqg.
John F. McBride, Esqg.

BOARD OF MANAGERS N. A, {]im} GIAMBALYC ® HON, MARVIN E ASPEN v ROBERT P, CUMMING # AWDREW R GELMAN » SOPHIA H.HALL + LOUIS W, LEVIT # LOUIS £, ROSEN ® ALLEN D. SCHWARTZ
IGSEPH LSTONE & |AMES ). AHERN » ROY £ HOFER » JON [ IGANTI ¢ PAUL C. KISBALL, JR. ® SORVAL R. MORRIS & THOMAS H. MORSCH = EILEEN STRANG + BURTAN §, TERRY

ICHN FL MCBRIDE, Excovilre Divector & THOMAS €. FAVALE, Compirolier # TERRENTE M. MURPHY, Aslstant Execusive Dirertor # SHIRLEY L. DUTTON, Excurive Secrenay ® STEPHEN CZIKE, Exccutlve Libwarlan
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COMMITTEE ON PATENTS, TRADEMARKS & COPYRIGHTS
OF THE CHICAGO BAR ASSOCIATION

RESOLUTION 79-4 o e T
RESOLVED, that ‘législation td remové the ¥:5. Pitent and

Trademark 0ffice from jurisdiction of the Department of Commerce

and establishing it &s an independent ‘federal agency 15 approved

in principle. Approved, OCtober 9, 1979
Ratlfled Jantary 8, 1980

RESOLUTION 79=11 - = .wwiiis “oomiono s 0 i oo e T g

RESOLVED, that 5.2079 {%26th Congress), the "Independent Fatent
and Tradeémark Office Act,” which would remeove the Patent and Trade-
mark Office from the jurisdiction of the U.S. Department of Commerce

-and establish it as an independent federal agency, and provxde a six-

vear term for the U. 5. Loemmissioner of Patents .and Trademarks, who
shall have the power: to make non- preSLdentlal appolntments to the
office, is approved-" Approved January B, 1980

BACKGROUND STATEMENT

The U.8." Patent & Trademark OFfide is in'a terrlble Sltuatlon,
due in part to‘a f1nanc1a1 crlsls. T It is reported that in recent
months, patent dpplication procéssing has ‘dropped-by ‘more than 50%
and it now takes an average of one xear for -the Offlce to review
pending trademark appllcatlons."

In large_part, the problem 15 organlzatlonal- (l) PTb is larger

-than many existing independent U.S. ageng¢ies but has no dlxect

influence on its own affairs; (2) PTO_ has no dlrect géntact with the
Cifice of Management and Budget, .and Commerce Department hudget
officials apparently are unsympathet;c to the patent system; (3} The
Commissioner deces not have adequate control over staff, & g., authori-
ty to hire and fire. . - . L

The proposal’to create an lndependent PTO prev1ously has bheen
endorsed by this Ceommittee, The Patent Law ‘Asscdciation-~of Chicago,
The U.S. Trademark:Association, Thée American Patent Law Association,
the American Bar Association's Patent Section, former U.S. Commis~
sioner of Pateénts'& Trademarks Donald Banner,-aﬁd others.:.:

On December 5, 1979, §5.2079 ("Independent Patent ‘and "Trademark
C¢ffice Act") was lntroduced by Senators Bayh, Nelson and Danforth,
and assigned to the Committees on the Judiciary (Kennedy, Ch:) ana
Governmental Affairs (Ribicoff, Ch.; Percy, Member). Hearings
reportedly will be scheduled prior to February 1. (Bill attached)

The bill will not create a mew bureaucracy, but will enable the
PTO to function more efficiently, by removing it from DOC jurisdic-
tion and creating an independent ag@ncy. The Commissioner would be
appointed by the President for a six-year term and have the authority
to appoint other PTO officers and empioyees.

The bill will allow the Commissioner to deal directly with Con-
gress and the OMB and to exercise that authority over staff which is
necessary to get PTO vperating again.

The Committee believes that 5.2079 should b= enacted.
Respectfully submitted,

r J :
Dated a?“é?y ?' 1980 Commltteeﬁfﬁ Patents, Trademarks & Copy-
rlg&ts of the Chicago Bar Associatjon

Varihin s S 3{/{(

s_éb7g ". Lawrence 5. Wz;k, Chairman
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United States of America in Congress assembled,
:SE€.: 10L. Title .35:-0f -the United States Cede 1s. hereby amended

- §EC.. 10Z, Sectlon l is repealed and tha follnw1ng 15 f

in lleu thereof
"MSECTION ‘1 Establistinent

“Mhe patent” and Trademarl'Office, referred to in this chapter

as the 'Office', shall be an independent agency, where records,.-

'“oooks, draw1ngs, speciflcatlons, ‘ind-'other papers and ‘things per=.
" taining to patents and to trddemark registrations shdll. be kept :
and preserved except‘as othérwisd ‘provided by law.”
SEC. ' 103,-'Seccion 3(a) is afignded by ‘Striking cut the 1ast
sentence and Inge¥ting ‘in 1ieu therenk che! ‘following: = - i
:"The Commissioner:shall be the Chief Cfficer of “the. folce
and shall be & person of substantial experience in patent and
trademark - matters, The Commissicner shall’bé/appointed for a
s £ixed: term of -six yecars and.shall be removable from office by .
..the President with: the-consent of the. Senate,_only for good
* .cause.. - The CcmmlsSLOner Shall aupolnt all other. ﬂfflcers and em—
- ployees. of thez0ffice.' . .
SEC. 104{a). b@ctlon 3(0) 15 repealed . -
. .{b). In Section 3(c) the word "Se:retary of Commerce are
struck out ‘and the word chmlssmoner inserted 1n lisu’ therecf
nd Sectlon 3{c) 1;’1cdeelgnated as Sectlon 3(p)s T :
) () Tn, Sedtion &, the words "under ‘the  direction of the
Secretary cf Commerce and :ubject to the apprnval of" the g
"Secretqry of Commerce are struck out: wherever “found;
(d). "It Sectibn 7; Strike out "Secretary of Commerce and' S
insert in lieu thercof "Commissioner', o
(e)...Tw Section~ 31, strlke out subJect ta:the. approval of
-thé Sederatary: of :Commerce’s - :
(£)..TIn Section 181,: tho: hlrd para”raph in the. laet sen- )
irence 'strike out' 'appedl’ tovthe. Secretary of: Commerce” and insert .
in lieu thereof "a. right: to appeal:from-the order under rulagr
pmMndetMCmm . .
- (g) In Section 188,  sirike out "SL{retary of Commercé" and
licu thereof "Commls%laner of Patents “and Trademarks"
201. Secridn 1511(6) of Tltle 15 United States Cod

,:repealed.:

Fe
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May 23, 1380

The Honorable Birch Bavh
United States Senate
Washington, D. C. 20515

; Dear Senator Bayh:

I am wrltlng on behalf of the Canlnnatl Patent Law

P _ Association in support of Senate.Bill 2079 relating to the

Kestahllshlng of the United States Patent Office as an inde-
pendent agency. N

Tt is’ the general feellng of the members of the associa—

tion that an independent Patent Office would have much more
infiuence and would be better able to adopt policies and pro-
cedures that would be more conduc;ve to the strengthenlng of

! 'the pa.tent system.

There has of late been an 1ncreased recognltlon of the
need for this nation to place more- empha51s on the’development

‘of ‘technology. -/The patent system :is an lntegral part of tech- .
nology -development,: and thus :a strong system .is needed to sup— e

port this objective., Accordlngly, we hope that you will = .
cantinue to.lend your supporb to thlS bill and press for lts
passage.

The assoc1atLon has also consldered Senate Blll 1679 ‘re-

latlng to re-examination and strongly supports its 'passage.  ‘"

Sincerely,
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COMMERCIAL SOFTWARE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

5300 LEESBURG PIKE ~ 7 _
FALLS CHURCH, VIRGINIA 22043 Tel:

April 2Ind, 1980

Dr. Jordan Baruch L -

Assistant Secretary of Commerce for
Science and Technology

Department of Commerce

Washington, D.C. 20230

Dear Dr. Baruch,

At the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (PTO), staff and members
of the public have benefited: from retrieval. facilities -available at a
network of 1nteract1ve terminals. Otherf “facilities available: only at
terminals used by PTO staff’ prov1de for file mainfenancé; ‘the proce551ng
of mailed orders for current cross-index listings, and preparatlon of
camera ready copy for new and updated sections of the 0ff1c1al Manual
of Cla531f1cat10n._ o

Commer ial Software Systems Corporation (CS5C) developed the software
for the mlnlcomputer that services these terminals. The human engineering
and rellablllty of. the software has been such, that the system almost runs
itself, obviating the expense of the' full-time, managers ‘and’ éperators
requlred at most conventional computer installations..:And-yet this
human engineering has permltted PTO: staff ‘and untrai ed members of the
public to perform well over a miliion separate ¥atridvals’ durlng the
last 2% years. (S8C° s involvement in the operation of the system has
been llmitedﬂto supervlslng the bimonthly update of the 4%—milllon—record
data base. '

We suspect that‘thélcpstueffectiyeness-of our work compares very
favorably with that-of other coqt'actofs or of the PTO in-house data
processing department. The BTO m égers have been most anxious to use
CS5C's sexrvices to develop and enhance .facilities for the system. However,
they must rely on the Office of Procurement and ADP Management' at -the
Department of Commerce for the negotiation and execution of contracts for
our services. Department of Commerce offiecials in turn represent the PTO
in dealings with GSA.

Right now, the PTO probably regrets having relied so much on a small
business such as CSSC because, quite frankly, we are not inclined nor can
we afford to tolerate the expense, the delays, and the uncertainties
involved in dealing with the three tiers of bureaucrats. CSSC has had a
contract with the PTO for only 4 of the last 9 months and we do not expect
a further contract. | The specialized nature of the software we have
developed may well preclude another contractor from taking over our job,
and so the PTO might have tc freeze the current system while developing
a new system from the ground up, possibly with the added expense of new
hardware.
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The "procurement specialists" in the Office of Management and ADP
Procurgment blame this:impasse. on CSSC,uthe~PTO;.GS¢,}and the pressure
of work ... on anyone but themselves. .The fact is that these "specialists
kriow 11ttle and care less about the needs of the Patent Office. Their
slow -and” usually inappropriate responses to the PT0's needs have been

- the leECt cause of the costly delays which have effectively destroyed

all ‘prospects of a profitable business relationship between (SSC and
the PT0. Cur costs and diminished expectations impel wus to offer ocur

services at rates-that these same experts now adjudge to be too high.

In the past, these officials have accused CS8C of being unreasonable
and uncooperative in mnot providing them with necessary information. In

"fact, it is they who have a surrealist view of the marketplace. WMr.

David Beveridge claims that because CSSC has ne full-time. salesmen, we,
have mo sales expense; and that because he .thought.a partlcular form, -
of services contract appropriate, CSSC would have no-need for wo:klng
capltal.

I do not need an audit of my books or a lecture on how to rum a
business from such people. By their behavior, Mr. Beveridge and these
other civil servants have insured” that CSSC w111 figver” agaln be available
to the: Patent Uffice.; : : . : :

Thls letter 1s° merely for your 1nformat10n No_reply;or response -
is requested .. : iy i e o

iYoursltrui&,.J

‘Pefer A, Knott &
iiPresident
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THE DAYTON PATENT LAW ASSOCIATlcN
' onvron QH;°=¢Q_"‘

S January ©29%:°1980

Senator.-Birch Bayh C :
363 Russell Senate Offlce Bulldlng
Wwashington, DVC.' " "20510"

Dear Senator Bayh-

Bayh Sen te B111 S 2079

The subject blll would make the r>atent and Trademark Offlce A
separate agency removing it from the Department of Commerce.
This bill was-discussed by! our:legislative: commrittee who:-veted
unarnimously to recommend its adoption by our association... At ..
their meeting on January 11, the Dayton Patent Law Association
discussed this bill and voted on it. BAll votes were in favor
cf the Bayh bill and there Were:no dlssentlng votes.

One member of our as ; ho is a Government patent
attorney, even though- he voted in; favor of the bill, suggested
that the bill might have-a problem in allowing the Commissioner
of Patents to appoint "all::other officers and employees of
office", Section 103 of the bill. Such a provision might down-
grade the job grade levels of the Assistant Commissioners and
Examiners-in-Chief by preventing them from being appointed to
the super grades. Under the present law these Asgistant
Commissioners and the Examiners-in-Chief are appointed by the
President by and with the advice and consent of the Senate.

It is believed that the Bayh bill would improve innovation. in
this ceuntry, and it is well known that the decline of inno-
vation has been and continues to be a serious concern for the
country.

Very truly yours,
dfldgyu441zzalibéx4/

L. Bruce Stevens

Chairman,

Legislative Committee
LBS/mkd : )

cct: George J. Muckenthaler, Esqg,
Secretary
Patent Division
NCR Corporation
Dayton, Ohio 45479

=
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.Attention: Joseph P. Allen

- s

EASTERN NEW YORK PATENT LAW ASSOEIATION

“"March 5, 1980

Senator Birch Bayh

United States Senate
washington, D.C. 20510

~

Dear Senator Bayh:

On behalf of the Eastern New York Patent Law Associa=
tion which comprises a group of about 35 patent practitioners in
the Albany-Schenectady-Troy, New York area, I wish - to-let you-
know that the large majority of our members support your recently
introduced ‘bill $.2079 which wollld make the Patent and Trademark:
Office’ dn independent agerncy-and which would ‘require the:Commis-
sioner to'be’'a person:of substantial experience:’in -patent and
trademark matters, who would:be appointed for-a fixed six-year
term.

o ; We, of‘ccﬁféé share your concern regarding the future"
of the U S, Patent system. Accordingly,. we applaud the intro-

duction of $.2079 as an. attempt toé improve administration of theil*

patent and trademark laws and we urge your continued vigorous
efforts in securing its passage._ . .

“Sincerely yours,

@W{

p’ .. Paul E, Dupont °
President

PED:kf

Sterling-Winthrop Research Institute
Rensselaer, New York 12144
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January: 8, 1980 ...

Mr. Robert F. Hess
. 2045 E. Wardlow
 Highland, Michigan #8031

7

Senator Birch Bayh

Judiciary Committee

Russell Senate Office Building
Room 363 .
Washington, D. €. 20510

Dear Senato

Re:

I w1sh to make known to you my support for Senate Bill. 2079 1ntroduced by
Senators.-Bayh; . Danforth;  and:Nelson and : proposing that the Patent “ard,
Trademark: Offlee ‘be ‘established:as a. ‘separate agency;. rather than be_
continued as an offite within ithe U:. 8. Department of. Commerce

1 have heen a patent attorney for fourteen years and prior to that worked
as an Exdminer within’ the ‘Patent and ‘Trademark Offiee ~'‘Based on this
experience, I feel oonfldent in vouching for the uracy of Senators’
analysia of the present problems ‘faced by the U. *Patent and Trademark ‘-
Office, ‘and I feel the proposal’ Yor- resolyin _th se problems ascerta1ne
the subject Bill is a good one and deserving of your full support.

.Yours very truly,

RFE/mes
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ORCHARD Q.1515

HUGHES RIRCRAFT. nuMpnnY"'""”

POST OFFICE BOI ﬂb’iB
L% ANGELEF. CALIFORNIA 0009

12 March 1980

The Honorable Birch Bayh

United States Senate '
363 Russell Senate 0ffice Bldg.-
Washington, D. ¢. 20510..

Sir:

T have. reviewed §- 20795 “the Independent Patent and

Trademark Officae Aot, and T strongly ‘suppdrt its padsage. 17

am a patent attorhey for a large company, and prev10usly was
patent counsel for a small company. - ; .

The Patent and Trademark Office is deslgned to perform
unigque services in administering patents and tradémarks. These-
are- important: to all bu51ness,_but more 1mportantly s0 to small
busrness : B . Do : T G

Both patent and trademark functlons of the OFflce have

“deterlorated gver ' the-years from lack of funding and lack of

understandlng By those who- apporthn the ‘budgets.  'In recent
years this has become a0 scute as to be-a national scandal.
Indepen&ence ‘of 'the Patent and Trademark Officeé is a constructive
and’ necessary step in getting a proper handle on the problem

and, in time, sclving it.

R hope you w111 re- read the testlmony of the American |
Patent Law Association on. thls blll and with such support
secure! 1ts passage. B . :

Very truly;youre,'

7 CHARLES 5. HAUGHEY
Patent Counsel L

¢c: Senator Alan Cranston ;
:8enator. 8. -I.. Hayakawa . .
Senator Charles: McC. Mathlas, JrL
Fudiciary Committee: Members.: :
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e et e 100 Park Avenue, Suile 2209, New York, New Yotk 10017 - (2‘!2),6&:4’!?2’6\

Industrial
v/ Research’
institute, Inc.

The Honorable Birch Bayh

BUARD UF DIRECTORS \979 20
PRESIDEN Room 363 o

JASE’I'ER“‘BE?HE:E{“EEYS[:)M” . Russell Senate Office Building!: 7" 2

AWEATAN CYANAMID COMPANY . waﬂhington, DC ot w
*"JOLES BLAKE 1002

e REATe AEE cew Dear Senator Bayh: —

COLBATE PALUCLVE COMPANY

The Industrial Research- Institute is. comprised of 250 U.S5. member
companies who. represent mbout 85 percent.of. all industrielly- funded
U.s,. research and development. In’ 1979, IRI published a posmon i

WCE PRESIGENT
HARRY W. CDDVEHHSM:
EXECTIVE WiCE PRESDENT
TENHESSEE EASTHAN COMPANK

P “statenient on the U.E. patent system; . In" ‘our’ statement, we en-
"‘E’ﬁ‘i“’c"‘émmmmw eouraged improvement in funding, training, and administrative’ -
WEI PRES. CORA PLAN. A O

St cocay | Support of .the exarmmng corps of the Patent and Trademark

JERRY A, COGAN, JA.' [IB!!IJ
BRASIDENT
WILLWEN RESEARTH GORE, |

2 »¥our introduction: of the ‘Iridependentul’atentf and Trademark-:office.
S — Act, 5.2079, demonstrates your serious concern for the need.for.::

L e improved support of the PTO and greater participation of the Patent

) = Commissioner. in: :poliey” considerations... While the IRI has not for-
WARD | HAAS a2 C ot mally. addressed the issue of whether the PTO. 5hou1d be made an inde-
Sidamimobsne. .. . . - pendent. agency .. the objectives .of 8.2079. are consistent with those

. .- stated by the IRI, I would like.to eall your attenhon however, to

e e, s nuev two concerns that I have with the proposal and’ suggest an alterna-
PIERATAL “”’““'“""“““ﬂ“ " tive for your, cons:derat n in the event that A compromlse becornes
DONALD D. KING (13601 ) appropnnte. ‘

TPLSIDENT, PHiLIPS LABS O
NERITA AVERCAN PHILIPS GORS

My first concern is the question of good orgamzatmnal practlce.

DONALD G, MANLY 113807 © It simply is not feasible {o respond ‘to’the- problem, of inadequate
GG 4O 0 managément attention: and: participation for every government unit:”
by resrrenging the lines of reporting directly:to-the President. -
et A While I agree that better support of the PTO than traditionally has
B been accorded -by the-Department of Commerce iz required, it would
GEORFREY PLAGE o) appear that there is sufficient complementarity of the PTO mission

"”ﬂ“ﬁfﬁ’l’ji@éﬁx‘mm, with that of. the Department to warrant its placement in the Commerce
e _organi ation, ™ )
JUDITH A, SCHWAN(\QE\]

Shampwcienme s . Beéondly, 1 "am't':once,rﬂed that establishment of the PTO as an inde-

. pendent apgericy would resalt in reassignment of responsibility for
e ek o s ent sppropriations in the House and Senate. The present subeommittees
CONTINERTHR G Pastpay have demonstrated appropriate sensitivity to PTO needs, but this -

SAMEL W, TINSLEY (19221 momentum could be lost in a reorgamzatmn
MRECTOR OF CORP TECHN.

S f

UNIGH CATESDE CORFGRATION ] B Fe
As gn alternstive to extracting the:PTO from Commerce would

. FRED WALEON (1998 suggest these two ideas.: First,” the visibility: and partieipation

Pt AHD o o of the PTO in policy matters.could. be:raised by elevating.the

- £~

~
ExtinE nrTon

HEHONGTHTE, 190
TE 2309
v vy Wi ORN, 100
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In eonclusmn let me say that we are very apprematwe of the atfent

279;

Commissioner to the level of Assistant:Secretary reporting directly to the
Secretary. The Commissioner would-represent the PTO directly in matters
of resource allocation and patent Vpoh(:Y'ln OME and Congressional heamngs

Becondly, I would _rec_qmm.end that a procedure be instituted for annual or
biannual reauthorizatiori“of the PTO. ‘ The hearings: associated with this

process would provide the opportunity for the Commissioner and interested
private sector witneases to address patent and trademark issues on a routine
basis. [T

you are giving to matters of patent policy and organization and. I believe .
our objectives are quite consistent. While I think a compromise along.the

lines 1 have suggested may be appropriate in regard to 52079, passage of_‘ o

the bill in 1ts present- form definitely would be preferablé to’ the status.
quo. .

Sinee_,rely ,

Arthur M. Buéche, Chairman’ -
Federal Science & Technoclogy Committee

AMB /bmo

ce: Frank Press: -
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PATENT DEFARTMENT

WALT THOMAS. ZIELINSK!

Gz agoleads
212 4%0 5927"‘
2.‘4911-5923-
212 460-s7ha

JAY 5, &I
WILLIAM ALAGUELE .

ROYAL € BRIGHTY *

" March:5, 1980:" i.

*Admitted to Pannaylvania Bar Only

Honorable Birch Bayh

United States Senate W .

363 Russell Senate “0ff e;Bu1]&1ng
DG

Dear Senator Bayh:

This 45 to let you know that this éompany and the members of its Patent
Department support giving. the U.5. Patent and Trademark Office.the: degree:
of independence contemplated in 5.2079.

it is our conviction that the USPTO cannot in these times adequately
discharge the duties imposed on it by the U.S. Constitution and the
existing statutes without direct access to Congress and to the O0ffice
of Management and Budget and a thus improved oppertunity for gaining
the financial support it requires. And if the USPTO does not have
adequate financial support, the U.S. patent system cannot assure
inventors of the kind of incentive that is required to advance this
country's technology as swifily as world conditions demand.

Yours very sincerely,

Walt Thomas Zielinski

pv



Janbary 15,0080 o - s L el o d s e

The Honorabln erch Rayn L -
363 Russell Sanate Office au1151ng
Washlngton. D. C. 20510

[

Dear Qenator.

.Th“ EnclOsnﬂ Rf o]ution was unanlmously onsqﬁd by the mnmbnrs of tHn
Board of Directors of Inventors Workshop International, We want you to
knoa how gratefu] we are that someons of your stature has the® b
understandimg. to relate this country's growing national deficit with
the unhealthy climate in which 1n51vldual inventors have had to work
for the pagt. . %ertal decedes.

. We enlorse your 1011313t10n to crsate = Patent and Tradewerk OJffica
that is independent of the Department of Cownerca, We have long bean
haating the drumg for updating the efficacy 2nd efficiznny of the
Pztent Office and bringing it into the computer age and will do
evarything we can to holp you achieve their independence. Pleasz let
us have your guidance,

A major -¢oncern to-us 13 Conjress' ongoing funding. of-governmental
agencies WHOSE CONTINUING EXISTENCES DRPEHDS OW THEIR (07 FINDING :
SOLULIONS TO PROBLEMS THEY WAVE DESY COTISSIONED TD SOLVE. A gaie an
point is the mandate of the Presidont to one of his agenciss to Find
alternate energy systcms.

Thz money spant an support of the inlividuzl inventor haz been on
wsulting ratio of the tokal. ‘“ony toxpayaes' Jdollars have gons inko
their h:gh—powprni public relationz projram to digseninate word
rejarding theig quest for altsrnate systeas. They peovids toden
suppart to the indzpenient inventora. { tha billions that have bewn
budjetad, they have only spent sbout 53,000,000 on wndividual -
inventors!

W2 would sugaest the foraation of o sommttesz of carefolly selectad,
highly qualified inventors to augament the evaluations of the agencien
who could salve thamzzlves out of 3 job. This would creake a bhoiance
with thosa WID3E IDBS ARE. NIT AT ITMEE AS ALTERNATE EHERIY IOLUTIYIG
ARE POUMD. Wa have knowlsdge of waiable solutions that are boing
passively suppressed. [oosen up the woney that will match funds with
"thz business comwunity 1f you want to have results,
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Tt would be nice iF an zjency’s continued existsnce warce devendednt:on
resultstl . "

We have besn threatensl with extinction by one of the members of tHe
power structure because we ware inca2utious enough to publigh -nane
information orovided by one of their aﬂolayee;, wn;ch was cour

the imaje they wanted to projcct ST

. We have decilded that to continus to b2 3;1eﬂt, to aUOLG a S
“confrontation is to be untrue to our buSlC phxlosophxns anﬁ b»lxefs.
Your help 1= fﬂrqpntlv saught. s

Thanb you ror yoar rm::ort and, qgaxn, pleaae b° assurcd that wa-
wholeheartedly: back . your: efforus. 'Je w1sﬁ you contxnulng success in: -
the service of our.countrhy, o d :

A most happy and successful Mew Yonr to you and yours.

Cordlally,

Helvin L.t Pulleg:

P, 3. He would aoﬁrecl1t= your onte'Ln; QuE Rﬁﬁolut

ion a9 testinony on o
the aay of the hoarln; on your T T mT T




"‘he followmg Resolution has besn passed by . the Board of, fy
jirectors -of Inventors “Workshop Internat:onal on. bphaEF of al F

g

its nn'ﬂbnrs -

YRESOLVED, that Senator Tirch ‘P,ay‘a's efforts on brahalf of

Fia .
the invantor end sazll bu?.1n:>3- thrOU‘_)h ‘the creation of an
dependent Department. of P'\tent: and’ Trademarks with all
o . ssary facrlities. mnurtenant to 1ts Auties, be expressod by
B _ leg‘ 'latmn 9nnctrr3 by the f‘cngr‘— 53 of fh@ Um*rv] atat~=q.
31}71’»’;‘;3 .

“alyin L. Pulleyp

Thnirmen of the

s,




Itek Corporation

10 Maguire Road .
Lexington. Massachuseits 02173
Telephone: §17-274-2000

/Juéfué Y /‘7/

w70 December 27y 1979 -
Sanator B1rch Bayh
Room 363
Russell Senate 0ff1ce B1dg
U.s, Senate -
Wash1ngton, pC’ 20510

Subject: S§.2079 Independent Patent and Trademark Office Act
Deayr Senator Bayh,

I want to congratulate you for introducing the above
legislation, I have read the bjll and your remarks made in
introducing it, I agree with your remarks 100% and am very
much in favor of this legislation.

. The U.S5. Patent and Trademark Office could he a very
useful force in encouraging inhovation in small business
and individual inventors. Unfortunately, through no fault
of its own, it is not permitted to do so at present because
of various budget restraints and a lack of an opportunity to
present its case directly to Congress.

While the Department of Commerce undoubtedly could do
more to support the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, based
on their record of the past, I don't think that this is very’
Tikely. I think if Congress, after hearing the USPTQ, could
appropriate the budget Congress feels is adequate, 'the U.S.
Pag$qt and Trademarg Dffice could then do a good job for the
public. .

My comments are based on more than 256 years in the patent,
trademarks, and technology transfer business and as past presi-
dent of the Licensing Executives Society (USA/Canadag.

If 1 can do anything to help you in supporting this legis-
Tation, please let me know.

Best regards, <

2y

gamer 0. B]a1r
ice Président

Patents & Licensing
HOB :mm . R

i
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Itek Corporanon ;

10 Moguire Read
Lexdngton; Massuchmaﬂs&ﬁa
Telephane: &17- 274-2000

April 25,1980 .

The HoﬁdfabiéﬂBiréh:Baﬁhx
U, 8, Senate
Washington, DC 20510

Dear Senator\Bayh

Subject U S Patent and Trademark Offlce
L as an IndependentuAgency

o Tiame wrlting to. tell you of my support ior‘your
legislation which would remove the U.S. Patent and Trademark. .
Office (PTO) from the Department of Commerce and make it an
independent:ageficy. .~ (8.2079 - .Bayh Senate Committee.on the

_Judlclary and on: Governmental Affalrs )L -

Problems of the U S Patent and Trademark Offlce

As you know;.the PTO:has had problems for years

within the Department of Commerce in being able to do its job-

properly, to discuss budget and other matters directly with
the appropriate committees of Congress, to be heard in
formulating Governmen : b \, ;
matters and to initiate and’ improve its activities to en-
courage innovation in the.United-.States, a problem about
whlchdboth the Admlnlstratlon and Congress are quite con-
cerne sodeann i

HES

Because of its low level of influence in the Admin-

istration, ‘in general and:incthe Department -of Commerce, in.
particular, the PTC is a bystander, not a leader, or even a
participant, in many policy decisions directly relating to
patents and trademarks., I am informed that the PTO Commis-
sioner has had no voice in the formulation of the recent
Administration proposal concerning the ownership and use of
patents arising out of government contracts and Congress has
not had the benefit of his views on the matter. If he were
invited to testify on this matter, I am sure that he, being
a loyal member of the Administration, would testify in support
of the Administration position as he is in no position to
provide an independent, knowledgeable opinion for the bene-
fit of Congress on this or other matters related to trade-
marks, patents or innovation.
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“Dlities of the U.8. Patent and Trademark Office ;

The PTC has no need of supervision by the Department
of Commerce, and obviously the Secretary of Commerce should,.
not attempt to influence the PTO in carrying out its.statutor
duties as specified by Congress in Titles 15 and 35 of 'the
U.8., Code.  Many of these duties are gquasi-judicial and/or
rule-making in nature, as is the case with many other inde-
pendent agencies,

Opinions of Former Commissioners '

It is interesting to note that gall the recent PTO
Commissioners are unanimous in their support of fthis legis- .
lation {Commissioners Banner, Dann, Schuyler, Gottschalk,

Brenner and Ladd). They have no axe to grind but are g1V1ng
their very expert opinions to Congress as good citizens.: :

Conclusion

In my opinion, based on over twenty-five years.of:
experience in ‘trademarks, patents, technology transfer and
innovation, our country can have an ‘efficient trademark. and
patent system which can be much more useful to our country
and its citizens, only if the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office is 'midé an independent agency and I congratulate you .
for 1ntroducing 1t e . ,.dhf

" I"have also wrltten letters of support for your
legislation to members of the U.3. ‘Senate Committees on the. . . ...
Judiciary and on Governmental Affalrs and the House Judic1ary
Committee. . : L i SR

. Very truly yours

o ITEK CORPORATION

=7H0ﬁér.0 :Biair' s o
Vige-President:: oo 2T
Patents and Licen31ng

' HOB/dme
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BACKGROUND - ‘ ptt e e

Itek Corporation — Diverse manufacturer on Fortune second 500 ¢orporac=
tions list. Thus, not a giant, but not small ‘& .~
business elther

o Major Product Lines:
Non-Government: 75%

Graphic Imaging Systeme

Phototypesetters, Offset Prlnting Platemaker
R Small Printing Presses Graphic Ar i
and Film Processors. ..

Vision .
Eyeglasses, Including Lenses, Erames: and, Cases.
Governme 25% .
5 Defense Electronlcs

i LY s

Alrborne Electronlc Warfare (EW) Equipment EW
Simulation and Testlng Equipment e

"Sophist d Large'Optlcal and Electro-Optlc.
Reconnalssance Surveil anc_,'Earth Resource
and Space Equlpment SR

U.58. Manufacturing Locations:.
sMassachusett “Florida.: :
s Caldfornia -New -Hampshire
New . York . : ~Pennsylvania-... -

Homer . O.. Blair

= Education: BS dn Chemlstry, BS (Phy51ce), J D. (Law)~¢all from
Unlver51ty of Washlngton Seattle, Washington

Exﬁérieﬂce7350ver ‘twenity-five years in-five ¢orporations in patents,

TR fradenarks, T ¢opyrights-and technology -transfery
Professional Act1v1t1es

Member —three U S Government delegations to Unlted
Nations - Geneva,
~7.8. Government delegation in 1971 US/USSR Exchange
on-Patent. Management and Patent Licensing.
US Domestic Policy Rev1ew on Innovation, Patent
Subcommittee.
-Licensing Executlves Soclety, “Past President.
-US Trademark Association, Board of Directors and
Chairman, International Advisory Group.
~American Bar Association
Patent, Trademark and Copyright Law Section Chaif-
man, Spec1a1 Committee on Technology Transfer.
= Internatlonal Law Section, Chairman, Restrictive
' Business Practices in Transfer of Technology
Task Force, International Antitrust Committee.
Antitrust Law Section.
.—American Patent Law Association and other Bar Assns.

- . © Author and Spesker - Numerous articles and speeches
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Bmear-t corporation

International Headquartera
3100 West Blg Doaver Road
il o Troy, Michigan 48084

A. Raobart Stevenzon -
" Vige Prosidant -
Covernment 3 Pllblfc
Relatlong

The Hoporable Edward M.Kennedy, Chairman .
Judiciary. < ‘omma.ttee oy
Dirksen Senate Office Building, Room 2241
Washington, DG 20510

Dear sénétorKenhedga; Ceaniogn Phet el L

By this letter, ¥ mart Corporation wishes to express 1ts suppcrt for the enactment
of §. 2079, 96th Congress or similar legislation ‘which would retbgnize that
strong patent’and trademark systéms are-vital to theseconomy of the United States
and that we favor the removal of the United-States Patént'and Trademark Office
from the Department of Commerce. It is.our desire.and we wish to make known
to you qur support for this bill or similar legislation whmh ‘would make the )
Uhited States Patent and Trademark Office & independent agency

of the United States Governmért.

As a major United States merchandisar relying upon the 18& of.many varied™ ..

trademarks, both our own and of our suppliers.and retailing. products:carrying

patents and/or patentable ideas, werconsider it'necessary forthe:promotion of

free commerce in the United States to have a'strong and independent Patent and

Tradasmark Office. To date, the state of affairs in the Patent and Trademark

Office in Washington is woefully lacking in the necessary support functions as =" i
- well as the speedy and economwal approval of trademark and patent applications .

+We belleve that the estahlishment of- the Patent and ‘I‘rademark Oifice as an
J.ndependent agency. w111 90 a iong way toward reruedying these problems.

Very truly yours,’

7~ A, ROBERT STEVENSON

7
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@ ALIAYLL I Ty L 2T
P.0. BOX SO6B - MARTINSVILLE, VIRGINIA 24112
AREA COCE [703) B28-1711

Fébruary 22, 1980

The Honorable Birch Bayh
Committee on the Judic:.ary
United States Senate
Washington, D. C. 20510

Dear Senator Bayh:

Subject: The Independent Patent and Tradem_.rk

ARTI N PROCESSI NG INC.

various bille which would be disad¥antsgeous’
reading the proposed bill, I was relieved to know that

.- emedy. :the filasco.in the:tow; established JPatent and Tr:

patents dre theé vital Force of Martin’ ‘Processing; TInch
:ibelieve: that ‘this new-bill: :Ls ‘a’ great ‘step: forward ‘and|
- support 5.2079.

"X W creative dyeing

J'.é‘feg;raing"'
.the  pat

edit,

beritee, After’:
this b111 would

,ah':i-' :hese' i
Lidefinitély
urgé you:to it

sdemark Office, .. .-
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MILES LABORATORIES
ELKHART, INDIANA 48514

ROGER NORMAN GOE soc Mareh 19, 1980 TELERRONE: 21B-262-7937 .
AGSOCTIATE PATENT COUNSEL . N CABLE ADDRESS: MILESLABS
. TeLex: 258-450

The Honorable Birch Bayh
1. 8, Senate Room RSOB 363
Washington, DC 20510

Re: 52079 {Bayh) Patent and Trademark Off e:
as an Independent Agency -

Dear Senator Bayh:
This letter is being written to express. ¢onddrn about a slowly but steadily de-
clining U. S, Patent and, Trademark Office and to indicate my Support of the
above identi led Bll‘l th.ch ynu J.ntroduc ;

B

Certa.m ﬂundamental chaJlenges to our wayof hfe-are repeated dally = reducing
inflation, hghtemng or eliminating recession and 1mprov_mg the balance of pay-

ments deficit... While there.is general. agreement that ,vagorous, innovative
climate in the U, 8. would agsistin all-of these: areas; serious problems
jeopardize our country's patent and trademark system, The real'dollar funding
for the Patent and Trademark Office, for example, has been steadily declining
over the past three years.. The fo_ mer Commissioner of Patents and Trade-
marks, Donald W. Banngf, *has. noted. that many U, 8. Patent Examiners must
send out correspondence In longhand,, There are not even sufficient funds pro-
vided so that the United States of. Amerlca can provide a copy of official records
of patent proceedings for its permanent file, In the trademark area, the sit-
uation is approaching disaster proportions., The present Commisgioner of
Patents and Trademarks, Sidney Diamond, has noted that the nwriber of
Trademark Examiners which the Patent and Trademark Office has for 1980 ig
the same as that in the mid-1970's while extrapolation shows there will be 65%
more trademark apphcatmns filed, -

We are failing not only to make the Patent and Trademark Office a model office
we are failing to provide necessary maintenance. One of the root problems,

28 you know, is the lack of adequate funding for the U, S, Patent and Trade-
mark Office. As a practical matter, pot only the fotal amount of the budget,

85
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“For these reasons I completely: suppor your! 13111 to mzake the Pa.te

201

but alsc the prmrlty ot igtribution is determmed without Patent a.nd Trade-
mark Offlce partlcxpat&on. :

Trademark: Offlce ‘a separate agency, ]

ependent of the Departme Y
Commerce, . '

RogerN “Coe ™ ¢
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oo, TATIOTAL SECURTY TOOUSTRIAL BESOEIATION.. | */cim o
. J.5. Herbert
.. DNationat. Headquarters - =, . < |u. M,,,”",n:;“mM
T R R
Suite 901 Exscuzive' Committea
Washington, 0.C. 20005 W.H. Rotinson, dr.
cwites oy foeo, . Telephone: (202) 393-3620 Prosident

" The Honorable

13 March 1980

Birch Bayh .
United States Sepate -

Room 363, Russell:Senate.Offjce Buildzng
Washingten, D. C, 2051 D

Dear Senator Bayh:

Thank you for your letter dated March 5, 1980 inviting the views of the National
Secur1ty Industrial Association (NSIA) on S. 2079 which you introduced on December
1979, We were, of course, very much aware of this bill, entitied the "Independent
Patent and Trademark Office Act". We are also keenly aware of the need for such
1egis!atfan and after a thorcugh analysis of S, 2079, NSIA supports its enactment
in the form in which it was introduced. Further, we have listened to and read care-
fully alt previous testimony and statements of 11v1ng former PT0 Commissioners whe
to a person urge passage of 5. 207%. .

NSIA is a non-profit association of approximately two hurdred-eighty American
industrial and research companies of varicus types and sizes, from large to small,
representing all segments of an industry which provides products and services to

the United States Government. The Association's essential purpose is to foster an
effective working relationship and good two-way communication between the &Government
and industry in the interest of national security.

As you point out in your opening statement for the Januvary 24, 1980 hearing, the
problem quite simply is that the PT0 is never able to directly make its needs known,
‘but must communicate with the Congress and the 0ffice of Management & Budget through
the Department of Commerce which has displayed a Tack of sensitivity to PTO needs.
Accordingty, PTO effectiveness is not what it could be and its services to the public
have degraded. A change is clearly in order.

NSIA member companies believe that an effective patent system, including a well yun
PT0, will contribute to the advancement of innovation and this in turn will contri-
bute in a positive way to the strength of our naticnal security and well-being.

We find comfort in your assurance that 5. 2079 will neither create a new burgau-
cracy nor increase the cost of the PTO by more than 0.2% - indeed an amount well
spent in achieving a much more efficient PTO cperation than we have today.

We hope that knowing of this broad base of support from a major secter of industry
which participates in government contracts will be useful to you and assist Congress

r




293

in its deliberations on this important legislation. Please let me know if -
there is“anything further that-NSIA can do.te be helpful to you of your . =~ -
staff.ox.the Judiciary and the Government Affairs Committees in consideration -
of this legisVation, -, ¢« e RV el

i

.77 Wallace H. Robinson, Jr.
President -

WHR/Bvh
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ZMD VICK FREAIDENT

Senator Birch Bayh

United States Senate

Committee on the Judiciary
Subcommittee on the Constitution
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Bayh:

-

The purpose of this letter is to communicate to you
the strong support of the New Jersey Patent Law Association
for your bill S.2079.

The New Jersey Patent Law Asscciation is composed of
approximately 400 professionals who live or work in the New
Jersey area and who are involved in patent, trademark and other
industrial preoperty matters. Our membership includes both per-
sons in corporate practice and private practitioners. They
represent a large number of corporate clierts in all of the
various fields of techneleogy. As you are probably aware, New
Jersey is one of the leading centers for corporate research in
many technical fields.

The Legislation Committee of our Association, under
the direction ©of Mr. Albert P. Halluin, has conducted an in-depth
analysis of 5§.2079, and has reported its recommendations to the
Board of Managers. The Board then carried out a discussion of
the bill within the Board and, subsequently, with the general
membership at cur businegs meeting on February 21.

On the basis of this study, our Association overwhelm-
ingly supports establishment of the Patent and Trademark Office
as an independent agency. Accordingly, the Asscciation recom—
mends adoption of §.2079.

During the deliberations of our Legislaticn Committeel
consideration was given to a clarifying amendment to section 3a
of the bill. We believe that this amendment has merit, and we
therefore submit it ‘to you for your consideration.

=



el

295:

PROPOSED SECTION 3a REVISION

.. .'The Commissioner shall be the Chief Officer
stantial experience in patent and trademark
matters. The Cormmissioner shall be appointed- -
for a fixed term of six years and shall be
removable from office by the President with
the consent of the Senate, only for good cause.
The Deputy Commiggioner - and: the Assistant
Commissicners shall be appeinted by the Pres;dent,
upon the nomination of the Commissioner in ]
accordance with law, and by and with the advice
and consent of the Senate’ and- -shall serve for

..a fixed term of six years and shall be removable

" from office by 'the President with the consent of

" the Senate, only for good cause. The Commissioner :: ' -
shall appoint all other offices and employees of

.the Office,” . . ;

T We would “be pleased to be oann ‘further- ass;stance ln“
this mattex whlch you deem approprlate . - -

We also w1sh to exp:esa to you ‘the thanks of our Asao—;;
ciation for your continued interest::ins patent matters and your
efforts toward' mPIOVLng the patent system.

Hiiluln,=
egialatlon Committee

i

Presldent

/1p

ce:  Arthur R. Whale, Esg.
Raymond M. Speer, Esqg.
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THE NEW YORK PATENT LAW.ASSOCIATION, INC.

. : NEwW YORK, N. Y,

PAVILLIAM F. EBERLE £ T r e et LI
30 ROCKEFELLER #LAZA, M Yo wnln February 19,1980
18T VICK-FREGIGENT .
JEROME G, LEE
843 FARK AVEHUE, H.Y. 10023

24D VICEPRERIDENT
PAUL M. ENLOW
198 BROADWAY. H.Y, 10007

3np VIGE.PAESIDENT
ALBERT ROBIN .
100 PARK AVERUR.: N.Y. !DOH:.. Lo
FACAOURKA
ARTHUR 8. TENBER ) )
% ROGKEFELLER PLATA, N.Y, | 0020 . .
LA Dear Senator Bayh.
BEGRETARY ;.
PAUL H. HELLER - -
58 MAIDER LANK. N.Y, 100
SI0.2058

The New York Patent Law A sociation in

R S T 1ts regular meetlng of the Board of. Diréctors on
EDGAR W. ADAMS, JR. 7 Janvary 21.;1980_passed‘the following -resalution:
WILLIAM F, CUDINE, JR. - oo LTy B A A I LA I S | R . #

BTANLEY H, LIZBERBTEIN G aege B =
KENNETH E£. MADSEN RESCLVED, that the Kew York ‘Patent

JOHN A. REILLY 3 5 3 :
L:zc. RGBINBON, JR. . . La‘? As,’soc%atlon Stro_ng_ly, urges _the gnaCtT
LAWRENCEF. 8CINTD ~ -~ = : siment of- 802079, 96tk Congress,vor ~any
JOHN P, STNNOTT similaxi‘proposalizthat~will.establish .. "
EOWARD 1. YALANCE ) the Patent and Trademark Office as an

anp TR S . -independent:agency and remove:it friom

OFFICERA

snthe:Department ‘of Commerce;:as. we
believe; that;such.a ¢hange:would::
enable said Office more effective y
..:E0 carry. out.the constitutional man-
date "to promote the progress of
N scxence and useful arts",

Pleas add this expression of support
. for yo Blll t, he many others I am sure you
‘have received.” Wé intend to write to Sénators

‘Javits and Moynihan asking them to support this
~measure.

Very truly yours,

" ///’ %7%“

William F. Eberle
President
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 OREGON PATENT LAW ASSOCIATION - -

Ma¥éh 18,1980

363 Rugfsell ‘Senate" Offlce Bulldlng:
Washlngton, D C 20510 o

CAg Pr351dent of the Oregon Patent-Law Assoc1 tion; I’
have been requested by the Asseciation to write to you’ expresslngf
its support of ‘8.2079.° Our Association, which is madle up’ prin-"-
cipally of patent ‘attorneys and patént adents engaged: in both-
ccrporate and- prlvate practlce,'strongly supports the creation ofr
an’ indepéndent Patent afid Trademark Office oLy alternatlvely, : ’
any other restitcturihy plan’which' would“give the Patent and
Trademark Offlce a.'direct line" of ‘Communication w1th Congress and
the Offlce of Management to make its’ needs known. ;

T "We understand that ‘on January 24, durlng hearlngs held
301nt1y by “the- Senate Governmental Affairs and Judiciary commattees,
S.2079 was ‘opposed’ by the-Commercée Department in part because :
the bill Would ‘isolate the Patent and Trademark Office £from other L
officials responsible for policy on industrial development and v
technological innovation. Even if this‘allegation were correct,’
which we doubt, it would in our opinion be a small price tec pay to
correct’' the pregent 'situation’ wherein those in- Congress ahd the
Office of Management who'are responsible “for satisfying the
needs of the patent and trademark’ system have apparently become
isolated’ from knowledge of those needs.

“We' believe that’ the real” needs of the patent and trade- .
mark system can best be identified as the heeds of the users’ of the
system, i,€. those 1nd1v1duals, corporaticns anhd other entities :
who are responsible for inndvation’ ih this country and’ for whose
motivation the systems (particularly the patent system) were ori-
ginally established. These parties must have access to an effec-
tive patent and trademark system in order to justify the great
effort and expense required of them for technological 1nnovatlon
and industrial development. .

The needs of the users of the patent and trademark sys-
tems are, as far as we can determine f£rom perscnal experience,
known only to the Patent and Trademark Office. We, as represen-
tatives of our clients (the users) are in daily contact with
officials of the Patent and Trademark Office, On numerpus occa-
sions the Commissiohers of Patents and Trademarks and the various
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A351stant Commissioners have- ~expended. the“effort-and. time to.

visit personally with our Association and others like it through—
out the country to evaluate our needs and consider our suggestions.
As a result of this clese contact with the usexr community, the
Patent and Trademark Office had, in previous years, heen parti-
cularly responsive to two of the most important of these needs,
i,e. the need for more rapid action in.response to patent and
trademark applications, and the need for better examlnatlon to
improve the quality and validity of issued patents.

While noticeable progress was made in previous years.
with respect to these needs, a substantial revexsal of the pre-
vious positive trend has recently been noticed by our Assoc1at10n._’
The simplest clerical matters, such as issuance of filing receipts,
notices of allowance and publication of trademarks,. and: notices.
of patent allowances, have now become delayed for unreasonably
long periods:of time. .When 1nqu1r1es .are; made to. the Patent and
Trademark Offlce regardlng the status of cases, the fllES cannot.
be found. . When_action requiring, only rsory rev1ew by ‘the
Solicitor! s Offlce is regquested,.delay
have,. been. experlenced because the part
citor's staff. respcn51ble for the matte:

to fundlng 1:I.m:n.tatz.cms._.= Examlnatlon of trademarkﬁreglstratlon

applications is now severely delayed. The frustrations to 1ndus-
trial. developers .and. innovators. caused. by. such situations. inevi-

tably gives. them a bad Aimpre on of, the. patent and trademark ..
system as_ a. whole, making. them wonder whether it is really worth—‘
while, for them to. attempt, to use the‘system at all .and offerlng :

'developmental and 1nnov

Y The current deterlor ed cond tlon of the patent search o
files, in particular, greatly ‘reduces ‘the likelihood that the

best prior art applicable to .an. 1nventlon will be found. by. eltﬁeﬁ_ o

the patént appllcant or by the patent examlner, leading to the.
inadvertent issuance of invalid patents which mlght have been

made valid by proper. claim -drafting if the best pripr art were

known durlng Pprosecution of the patent appllcatlon._ When his.

patent. is. later found. to be. 1nva11d because. of. new prior art, . i
the innovator. can suffer a'complete lack of ‘faith in.the patent e
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system either -discouraging him rom further 1nnovatlon or at

'rleast discouraging him from using the. patent ‘system further. &n

innovator who has suffered such discouragement with respect to
the U.S. patent system will also not use foreign patent systems.
Accordlngly inventions made in this country will .go’ unpatented
overseas, permitting foreign manufacturers to compete freeiy :
with' 1nventlons developed at great expense in the U rather

from-the United States. These adverse results of our deterloratlng‘”
patent system are not mere speculation; they are attltudes which - .
have béen expressed to us by.discouraged users of the system, whom -
we represent,

The Patent and Trademark Office is well aware of the
problems faced by users of the patent ahd trademark systems, and
has demonstrated a willingness in the past to attempt to 'solve
these problems. However adequaté funding of ‘the Patent ‘and Trade-
mark Office is a prerequisite to the solutlons. “We questlon;
whether the Commerce Department, and in particular the Deputy
Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology, has any .interest
in or understanding of the foregoing problems and thelir adverse
effects upon technological:innovators-and industrial developers
in this country. BAlthough the:officials’' of the Patent and Trade- n
mark Qffice have continually demonstratéd an interest in conducting
a dialogue with our: Associdtion’ and those like it throughout the
country respecting the needs of the users of the patent and trade-

-mark systems; we’ have Seen no’ ev1dence of ‘similar’ interest from

any other officials of the Commerce Department. Instead we’
have been forced to witness rédent severe detefioration in the
patent and trademark systems due to 1nadequate funding. -.The
phllosophy behlnd 5. 2079, in our oplnlon, is 1onq overdugé. ...

ery truly yours,

"Jacob E. V hauer, Jrr
;Presxden -
Y200 Wilcox Bu;ldlng
..506 8. W.,Slxth Avenue .
“Portland’ Oregon 97204 '

cCc:

P.S. - Thi

y X o béen-sent to Senators Ribicoff, Jackson,
Percy, Javits

Kennedy, Dol *and Thurmond.
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The HOnorable Chamrmen and
Members of the Governmental
Affairs. and JudLCLary Commlttees
The Uniited States Senate
Washlngton, D.C,_HZDs;O

:*Gentlemen"

S 414 - Unlver51ty and Small Busxness

Patent Procedures: Act;::

S 2079 - The Patent. & . Trademark Off;ce .

.ag-.an Independent Agency.

FORMERLY
WOLFE, HUBBARD,

L., RO d 2anKH, 17D

c4aLy ADORESS:

wOLFEHUB-caD
TELEX NO.

© ak-3may 1.

Fa

| ROCKFORD OFFICE .- G
14 KGRTH CHURCH BTREET |
NOCAZORD, ILLINGIS i

wiuss e

I .am wr;t;ng to you as PreSLdent of the Patent Law

asspciation of Chicago. to. express this Assoc1at10n '8
endorsement for Senate Bllls 414 and 2079

strong

The Patent Leglslatlon Committee of the ASSDClatlon ‘has
met and considered each of -thése bills in depth’ and recommended’
to the Board of Managers of the Assoc1at10n that it endorse

these bills.

At tﬁe meeting of the Board: of. ﬁanagers of the Association
on February 11, the enclosed reports of the Patent Legislation

‘Committee of.our Association were considered and the
discussed at length. The: Board unanimously accepted
mittee reports and . has endorsed each of these bills,

We hope ‘that’ you w1ll agree that this important
merits your support. =

Very truly yo

CPL/4s
Enclosures

bills wexe.
the com-

legislation

w5
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st o PATENT TEGISLATION  COMMITTEE. . ©

) Report on Bayh Bill 5. 414
- " UNIVERSITY AND SMALL+-BUSINESS -PATENT PROCEDURES: ACT."
#% as amended by the:Senate Committee onthe Judiciary,
’ﬂRepdrt-Nc.?Bsedao, Calendar No. 515, Dec..12; 3979:;

A

RECOMMENDATION ) . A

The Commlttee recommends approval and passage by both the: Senate
and the House of the amended version of the Bayh bill,:s. 414,
University-and Small-Business ‘Patent Procedures Act, as amended: by
the Senate. Committee .on: the Judiciary.-in- Report: No.' 96-480,: Calendarw
No. 515, Dec.:12,':1979, :This 'bill- estdblishesia uniform federal: .
patent procedure for inventions developed under: federally: funded
research and development contracts, carried oot by small buslnesses,
universities and’other ‘nonprofit organizations.: . .In ‘géneral,. such
amall business ‘firms and: nonprofit organizations would be allowed-to
- retain- title to such inventions, so ‘as to afford the necessary -incent-
ives for licensing and manufacturing the -inventions.:: In: this way, .the
consuming public would@ be able to enjoy the benefits of such inventions.
The public interest would be given further protection :by numerous safe-
guards; ‘including provisions which would reserve-to the: Governmenta
royalty=-free nonexclusive license under -any ‘such invention,.:and would
provide for the compulsory licensing .of ‘third parties, under except- :
ional circumstances of clear need. ‘'fhe bill also contains provisions
for & .return’to'the Government ‘of its-investment, .as toanyinvention
which-might produce ‘royalties-or profits in excess of minimum :levels.:

- REASONS :: I

Pursuant to recommendations.of this Committee, the Patent Law
Agsociation of Chlcago previously took action on the original version
of this blll, 414 as set forth ln a letter dated July 2, 1979,

Birch Bayh. ‘A copy of such lette: is being submltted ‘Herewith, Suqh
previous action of the Afsociation generally ‘approved and endorsed
the original bill, with four gualifications and recommerdationsi: The
3rd and 4th recommendations have been taken care of in the amended
version of the: bill. 'rWhlle the ¥st and 2nd recommendations were not
adopted by the Sérate ‘Judiciaty Committee, the Patent Legislation
Committee believes thdt the amended bill deserves the ungualified
‘support of the Association.,-:ic.

The Patent Legizlation Committee gave detailed con51deratlon to
the amendments made by the Senate Judiciary Committee’in' 8.7 4l4zuas
analyzed in an extensive report by a subcommittee headed by Mr. Jack
R. Halvorsen. Some of these amendments were also present in Title II
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of the Nelson bill 5. 1860, Small Business:Innovation Act of 1979,
which was alsoc analyzed by’ the Subcommlttee.

The Patent Legislation Committee concluded that the amendments
made in 5. 414 by the Senate Judiciary Committee were of a character
which could be supported, and that many improvements in the bill were
made by such amendments.

The report:.of Mr. Halvorsen s subcommlttee is being submitted s

herewith, along with a copy of the-amended version: of 8. 414, as

contained@ in the first 14 pages of the Senate:Report No. 96-480.

This copy is marked with the notes by Mr. Johkn S. 0'Brien, showing

the amendments in the bill. A full printed copy of the Senate Report

is also being submitted herew1th i
A few of the more 51qn1f1cant amendments w111 be mentloned

specifically.' : : : RIS

Sectlon 202(c)(7)(b) has been amen&ed to llberallze the
restrlctlons upon the granting of exclusive. licenses: by nonproflt
organizations, Under the amended version, these restrlctlons now
apply only to persons other than small bus;ness fers.'

Sectlon 202(f) has been added:. to prov1de that no fundlng
agreement with a small business firm or nonprofit organization shall
‘contain a provision allowing a federal agency to require the licens-
ing to third parties of background inventions, other .than. subject .
inventions made under the funding agreement, unless .such provision
has been approved personally by the head of the agency and a written..
justificaticn has been szgned personally by the head of the agency.
Part -{2) of this provision gpells out the situation in thch such
llcenSLng to 3rd partles could be requlred._- :

Sectlon 204 relating to Return of Government. Investment has .
been ‘extensively revised. It is believed that the revised provisions
are more workable and less burdensome than the corresponding criginal
provisions. For comparison purposes, a copy of the original version
of S. 414 is also being submitted herewith.

ACTION REQUESTED _

The Committee requests that thlS Report be approved, and that
the substance of this Report be transmitted to Senator Bayh, the )
other. Senators from. Illln01s, Indlana and Wisconsin, and the members
of. the House cf Representatlves from Illln01s.”_

: Frank Palmatle:
‘Chairman :

Encl.

February 1, 1980
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PATENT: LEGISLATION: COMMITTER

RECOMMENDA ION

The Committee unanlmously recommends the passage of the' Bayh ™
‘bill S. 2079 winich would establish the Patent and Trademark Office
as -an independent agency, while removing it from the jurisdiction
cf the Department of Commerce. The bill provides a six year term
for the Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks, who would have the
power to appoint all other ocfficials and employees of the Patent
and Trademark’ Offlce

The Patent and Trademark Office has long suffered from neglect
by the Department of Commerce, with the result that the efficiency
and effectiveness of the Patent and Trademark 0ffice have recently
declined to dangerously low levels. Vacancies in both the examining
staff and the clerigal workforce have not been £illed, so that less
and less people have been attempting to cope with an ever increasing
workload in the examination and process1ng of patent and trademark
applications. Conseguently, the delays in the examination of patents
and trademarks have lengthened from months into years. Clerical back-
logs have delayedé the progessing and issuance of patents and trade-
marks by many months. The PTO is far behind in the replacement of
missing copies of patenis and trademarks in its search files, so that
the reliability of the search files is in serious jeopardy.

This bill would not create any new bureaucracy, but would give
the Commissicner of Patents and Trademarks the independence and
authority to organize and supervise the PTO in a proper manner, to
achieve high efficiency and effectiveness. In budgetary matters,
the PTO would have direct access to the Offlce of Management and
Budget and the Congress.

Subcommittee hearings were held in the Senate on this bill on
January 24, 1980. At such hearings, the bill was supported by the
testimony of six former Commissioners of Patents and Trademarks,
Messrs. Ladd, Brenner, Schuyler, Gottschalk, Dann and Banner.

Mr. Gottschalk was able to report that the bill is supported by the
other two surviving former Commissioners, Mr. Coe and Mr. Watson,
and that the principle of an independent Patent Qffice was supported
by former Commissioners Ooms, Marzall and Kingsland, who are now
deceased.
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The establishment of the:Patent and Trademark Office as an
independent agency has beén supported in principlé by the Patent
Law Asgociation of Chicago and many other associations, including
the American Patent Law Association, the U.S5. Trademark Association,
and the Patent Section of the American Bar Association.

ACTION REQUESTED

The Committee regquests' that this Report be approved and that
the substance of the report be ‘transmitted to Semator ‘Bayh, his co-
sponsors Senators Nelson and Danforth, the Senators from Illincis,
Wisconsin and Indiana, Serator Kennedy, the Chairman of the Senate
Judiciary Committee, and the ‘Illinois-‘members of the House of o8
Representative;.

R

.. Frank Palmatier
'Chiirman

February 1, 1980 °

&
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THE PATENT LAW ASSOCIATION OF PITTSBURGH

BOARD OF MANAUDERS

WaLrEn J, DLENKD, UR,
WiLtiaM M. LosspeM | ..
JOHN R, PERAN -
AkNELD B, BiLYERMAN, BEGY,~TREAR. . . BHARLED R, AEHE
RITA M. MCLAUDMLIN, Exet. BEEY. - . i L . Aun_l‘.lfrl_nl

P D.GDX 1346 v : et
AaH, A 5220

i #19-777-usas

i+ OFFIBERS

February 14, 1980

Arthur R. Whale, Chairman '
National Council of Patent
Law Agsociations
Eli Lilly and Company . LT
Indianapolis, Indiana 46206 .':0 "

Re: 5.2079 (Bayh)

.Dear Cha rman Whale,_”'

“Please be adva:ed that at the regular meetlng of the

__Patent Law Assoczatzon of Plttsburgh held on February 13 1980,_¥

embershlp vote' unanlmous y ‘in favor"of Bayh Blll S. 2079 to

'establlsh the Patent and Trademark Offlce as’ an 1ndependent agency
"”apart from ‘the" Commerce Department.

Iy truly yours,j_;_ e

F”ederlck ‘B, Zlesenhe'u

' Sgnater John'Heinz .
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. PEARNE, GORDON, SESSIONS, McCOY & (RANGER-
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

t200 LEADER BUILDING

JOHN F PEARNE

9 2 - TELEPHONE
CHARLES B.GOROON

CLEVELAND, OHIO 44014 (218} 578-1700

WM, CRIGKTAN SESSIONS™ Y i 77 CABLEADDREES Y
WILLIAM €. MECEY, JR. - e L RIEHEYe
LOUIS v, GRANGER ; i

FREG J SAMERBYKE ~ 7 . TELEX/B80-172 .~
WILLIAM A, GAIL 5. 1 Coraes

RICHARD H.CICKINEGHN, JR. March 10, 1980 s BATENT AND™
THAOMAE pP. SCHILLER YT LTRADEMARK LAW
CARL A, RANKIN . s g —
JOGSERH J.COASO - Hal F.MGNENNY °

HOWARD G SHIMOLA BT pa Vg eSS IONS
STEPHEN A HILL GF GouNIEL
JEFFREY J. SOPKO

Senator Edward M. Kennedy, Chairman
Judiciary Committee

United States Senate

Washington, D.C. 20510

RE: 5,2079, - .

Dear Senator Kennedy:

Your support is earnestly requested Eor 5.2079 to make.the United
States Patent and Trademark Office a separate agehay, 1ndependent of
the Department of Commerce., The most urgent of non-partisan c¢onsid-
erations support the” purpose ‘of "this bill.

Technologlcal innovation in the Unlted States has been decllnlng at
an- alarming, rate as. President Carter, many members of, the. Congresa,
and other national leaders have recognlzed Reversing that trend is
vital to the physical and econcmic security of the United States.
“stimulating technologlcal innovation in this country is especially
essential under the presently crlt;cal‘world and national conditions
for maintaining an adequate national defense capability, for devel-
oping alternative sources. of. energy, and for helping U. 5. industry
to regain its once domlnant posxtlon in world markets,
. e
Everyone must recognize tb o
othier business and industria
entbu51ast1ca11y to'economlc.
..patent system. is . to_ prov1de ‘th
* to businesses that émploy thei.

_chnologlcal innovatlon, 1ike any
activity, responds most quickly and
ncentives., The basic purpose of our
“kind of incentive to inventors and

The United States patent system has been, and still can be our
greatest national incentive to technological innovation. Presidents
Roosevelt, Kenhhedy, and Johnson, as well as President Carter, have
all given special recognition to the important role the patent sys-—
tem must play in maintaining (or restoring) our _.country’s historical
leadership in technological progress. - Unfortunately, the Un1ted
States Patent and Trademark Office today is, woefully unable to per—
form as it must for the patent system to succeed in its basic pur=
pose.



of the, Department oﬁ Commerce many years ago,:. it bas not been per—
mitted to demonstrate its own physical, personnel, and budgetary
needs to the Congress or .to account directly to the Congress for 1ts
performance, The resuwli is that the Patent and Trademark QOffice has -
been prevented from keeping pace with the rapid advances of tech-
nolegy. Today, it is a "Model; T".wversien.(or worse).of what it must:
be to meet the needs of technologlcal 1nnovators.

It should come as a shock to both the Congress and the -public to
learn the true facts in.this ri . Patent ‘applicants ‘tedéive
official communications” wrltten“l'nghand [sometimes i1Tegibly) by~
professional patent examiners; those with }}legible handwriting are

-gncouraged to'type their own communicationg:but, even if able.to

type,-often cannot find an available,.idle’ typewriter, Search’
facilities, ‘both for patent "examiners and for the pub11c, are’'the
cornerstong of | the system, but are antiguated, and it is not possl—

- ble to ma1nta1n ‘their essentlal Lntegrlty. The wonder is that our L4

patent system has been able to functioh”as well-as it has, and. much
credit for that must go to the administrators and professlonal staff
of the Patent- and Trademark Office 1tse1f.-»

5.2079 will, for the flrst trme, enable the dedicate professxo"”ls
directly responsible for the operation of the Patent ‘and’ Tradémark
Office to demonstrate to the Congress what is required to enable -
them to properly perform their duty to-issue a high percentage of .
valid patents and to refuse patents for inventions that. fail to.meet.
the statutory requireménts ‘for 'patentability. ~It" will enable “the
actual administrators of .the Patent and Trademark Office to communi-
cate directly to the Congress on such matters., This has been impos-—
sible while that Qffice has been dependent upon disinterested offi-
cials of the Department of Commerce.

History has sufficiently demonstrated that a bill such as 5.2079
offers the only hope for obtajining a Patent and Trademark Office
that can properly perform its functions, and the need for this has
never been so pressing-as it is today. This legislation will not
create a new bureau. Instead, it will enable an existing one to
function effectively.
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Please support Senators Bayh, Nelson, Danforth, and Eagleton, the .
co- spcnsors of 85,2079, in securing ¢arly passage of that bill and in
seeing to 1t that the objectzves of the - b;ll are promptly imple— )
mented : R

Respectfully.

PEARNE, GORDON, SESSIONS, MCCOY & GRANGER N

weraced, Wi/ 0. %/M;;ﬁ
%%%ﬁw o

_, .7 /g/ QV,,L\MQV \Lj\/im/e,
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S5 FIFTEENTH STREET, N. W.
.+ .. WASHINGTON, D, C. 20005
¢ ., -. AREA I:GDE EQE &1

LeEwis-A. Euam

FRESIDENT

-1 -

February 20, 1980

Senator Birch Bayh ™,
U, 5. Senate
363 R30B

Washington, D. C. - 20510

Re: 8. 2079 — Creztion of an Independent Patent
and Trademark Office

Dear Senator Bayh:

The Pharmaceutlcal Manufacturers Assoclation is a nonprofit trade
assoclation comprised of 143 companies engaged in the research, develop-—
ment and manufacture and marketing of prescription drugs, medical devices
and diagnostic products.

Patents and trademarks creste impertant industrial propsrty rights
Tor our menber firms, FPMA member companles spend enormous amounts in
new drug research {over $1.04 billion in 1978) and rely upon the Incentives
provided by our patent system to Justify such expenditures. Trademarks are
equally Important. HNew pharmaceutical products are developed, manufactured
and marketed with care and integrity, creating a reputation for quality and
performance. These elements cobviously come to be identified by the mark
1dentifying the manufacturerts product. The unigue care and "know-how! which
is bullt dnto the product are symbolized In the trademark name, which acqulires
a speclal value of its own. The consumer recognizes this mark as a guarantee
of product reliability.

We swpport your efforts to strengthen the patent and trademark systems
through the ereatlon of an independent Patent and Trademark Office. It is
ocbvious to those who deal with the Patent and Trademark Office that there are
staffing and cther deficiencies which must be overcome. This s:.tuatim has
created an Impediment rather than an ald to innovation.

Dealys of up to one year In processing of trademark applications are
commen,  The patent records are in a state of confusion with patents missing
from virtually every subelast in the patent files.

. We récognize that the Patent and Trademark Office is underbudgeted.
However, simply increasing the budget will not solve the inherent problems

Representing manufacturers of prescription pharmaceuticals,
medical devices and diagnostic products
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of the system. In.our view the establishment of the: office ag -an Independent

agency . will allow the Ccngr-ess to address problems directly. Currently, these

problems. alften. begome subordinate to other issues and programs the Commerce
Department views as more irrportant;

The innovatlon decline in this country must be reversed, In- our: v:l.ew,
S. 2079 repredents one initiative toward that goal. Accordingly,
we express our support for this legislation.

S 1y, |

s A,
President
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ALSERT Bl KIMBALLOR: 7t o e d T Tyeipe e T s gn e oL
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LESTER L. MEWITT COKE WILSON
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- RICHARD L SCHWARTZ S A oLt : H 5 o T
- CHARLES M, COX TELEFHONE

WILLIAM E. LANGE AREA CODE 743
ROBERT:E.-SANDSIELD v T - — . 8500009, .-
HAROLD .. DELHAMMER e e e
FAUL £, HAIEGER

February 12, 1980

Senator Birch Bayh
APTENTION:: "Mi:: Joseph PirAllen
U.S5. Senate e
‘Washington, ;D.C..o 20510 .-

Re: 5.207%

Dear Senator Bayh.

As I have stated to you on prev1ous occas;ons, ‘we in
~rthe Intellectual Property Section .of -the .State Bar .of, Texa
“have adopted the position supportlng ‘thé "Above législation.

......We appreciate Mr. Joe Allen appearing before the National

TV colingll ot Patent’ Law Essociations® meetlng “last i Saturddy,

February 9th, and discussing the pending matters of legis-
‘lation, including $.2079, with us. It is always enlightening.. ;
+to have someone close to leglslatlon comment upon it.

1

In response Foa” onversatl “whlch I had w1th Mr. AIlen

at the meeting, enclosed is a copy of the Resolution adopted

“by ‘the Inteliéctudl Property ‘Setticn of tHe ‘Staté Bar of ‘Texas:
supporting the above~identified Independent Patent and Trademark
-0f £ice. Bill. - We:would :appreciate having this ‘Reselution-appear.
in the record on the procesedings with respect to the legislation.

We " Who pEacﬁ before the DPatent and Trademark Offide b~
a regular basis are deeply indebted to you and hereby express
our gratitude for yoir efforts ‘in- patent’ related: legislatiomn.

Singerelyy s

- JRK:nn
Enclosure
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....RESOLUTION. -

'ﬁQEEEAs the patent SYStem hae.serﬁed this"natio_:;lwej.il.l__j
in the past through the processing of patent epplicatiogs'
and ﬁekiﬁg the disclosures of inventions available to‘theﬁi'
public; and | o

WHEEREAS the pace of techological advance has substantialiy
increased to effectively impair: the achlevement of the
chijectives of the patent system and ‘the' operat:.on of the
Patent and Trademark Office in particular; and’ "’

WHEREAS an lndependant Patent and Trademark Offlce,

answerable anly to the Congress of the Unlted States, can

better achleve the Ob32ct1ve5 qitthe‘petent_system enﬁ_;erve

the- Unlted States,E i}-f”'@-e';ﬁ‘“:h-”

.-NOW THEREFORE BE. IT RESCLVED that the State Be: of

Texas hereby supports Ln prlncmple the concept of the Patent
and Trademark Oiflce as’ en 1ndependant agency answerable

only o the Congress of the United States and,

mo;e spe01;ically,

a2s set foeth in Senate Blll S 2079 and
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Secretary of the State

_esentatlves and Senators from

Bar of Texas, lnf rm the R :

the State of Texas to the Unlted Sattes Congress of thls

resolution.



PHOFESSIONALS coRPoRanoN

. F o e, Cr
HERMARR ROE PRAVEL TENTH Fidor ;
AMES B, GAMBRELL 3 T 0 i R 75 WESTATOEP SOUTH ATENT-AND TRADEMARK CAUSES
ALEERT B, KIMBALL. JR.

JOHN MOPKING DADSE, T HOUSTON, TEXAS 77O27

LESTER L. HEWITT COKE WILSON

JOHN R KiRK, JR. . o CouNSEL
RICHARD |, 5CHWARTZ Y e S

CHARLES M, COK ) o TELERPHONE
WiLLiAM £, LANGE March 6, 19B0O ARCa CODE 713

ROBERT E. SANDFIELD

eso-o9os

HAROLE J, DELHOMMER
PALL E. KRIEGER

Senatcor Burch Bayh

ATTENTION: Mr. Joseph P. Allen
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20510

RE: §.2079, Independent Patent and Trademark Officeé Bill’

Dear’ Senator Bayh- 1?' ‘7_5? ”," e

LT have’ prevrously corresponded with YU concernlng the
position of the Patént and’ Trademaxlk Copyright Section” of
the State Bar of Texas favoring the'above-identified leigis=
lation., .It is npw my distinct pleasure to inform you that
on March 4 1980, the Houston Patént’ Law. Association; composed
of ‘more’ than 200 members in thé Houston and Texas Gulf Coast
area, adopted a pofition ‘favéring' the separatlon of thé Patent
and ‘Tradémark Office from the Departmerit of Commerce and the
establishment of 1t as an 1ndependent agency.

The vote of the membershlp assembled at the meetlng was
Lunanimous- since :all who attended, recognize | the. problems which
“had falien on- thé Patent 0ffice in the last few years.and. the
deterloratlng quality. of the. performance ‘of the Office’ desprte
the efforts of the very fine people. who struggled £o perform
-the mission of the:Patent and Tradémark Office on behalf :of
the inventors and general ‘publie. of the United 'States. 'Your
support of the Patent and Trademark Office is greatly appre-
ciated. . Though.the general public of this country may. not
appreciate the -impact.of your ‘efforts, -they -are forever in.
your debt for your work on this matter. '

s oieerr e Youxs very truly,

/j//,f

chn R. Kirk, Jr.

JRKir/las

cc: A. R. Whale
. A. Rose
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KRI SPY FRIED
CHICKEN INC.
FLAVORED TO THE BONE'® L
Fét;ruar_; 27, 1980
Senator Birch Bayh
Judiciary Committee

Russell Senate Office Building
Washington, D,C. 20510

iy

Dear :Senator. Bayh: ...

This is to seek your support for Senate Bill 2079 which was intro- .
duced by Seratars Bayh, Nelson and Danforth. This office directly
effects. the operations, of my company due. to the enormous amount of. time
and- money that we havespent going. through governrgntal red tape in order
to.get. a trademark on our. corporate; name, - i

T perSOna11y feel that as an 1ndependent agency the Patent &
Trademark Office wouid rin w1th greater eff1c1ency Ron's Krispy Fried
Chicken, Inc. is a'smatl but growing bus1ness however the trademark
on our cnrporate name s as 1mpurtant tous in our grnwth as is the trade-
mark to larger covporations.” Without an effective trademark and a quick
way to settle any claims for viotations of dur’ trademark, ‘ther it is
_h1gh1y u 1ke1y that e could grow effect1vely )

© 7 Mr, Edward: Lahey, dr. Vice President and Genera1 ‘Counsel for PepsiCo,
‘Inc. sumikd the probiem very well, "Suffice to ‘say that it is the well-'*
founded belief of many Anerican bus1nessmen that the-Patent: & Trademark
Office's effectiveness and product1v1ty js diminishing each day that it -
continues within the Department of Commerce ‘and- that- we have 11tt1e reason
to b 11eve the future hoids any hope for change "

- For these Teasons we who1ehearted1y support S 2079 and urge you and
your colleagies ‘to- support - 1t as- we11 “Thank:you for your time and’con-
sideration. EE T LT S P e ;

it Very truly yours,
&Mwég/

> Steve Woodall
Executive Vice President

SW:db

IOIOI FONDREN ROAD » SUITE300 * HOUSTON,TEXAS77096 = 713 /981-9990

10 e dnt e e R
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SAGINAW VALLEY PATENT LAW .ASSOCIATI_ON' -

POST OFFICE BOX 102 s
MIDLAND, MICHIGAN 48640 1

S E

February 7{“1980

Senator Birch Bayh
363 Russell Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Bayvh:

The Saginaw Valley Patent Law Associatiorn wishes
to. express..our support for 5.2079 to establish the Patent
and- Trademark Offlce as’an 1ndependent agency. )

© We: apprec1ate that the decllne in’ 1nnovat10n 1n the
United States has been brought about by many- factors, :and
that there is no one bill which will-cure all the ills.
However;  we flrmly believe that’ the’ patent system ‘provides
a reward which éncourages investment in research and an
incentive which.cannot be provided by-any -other. system.
The patent -system. is .ill. Part of the 'reason for the-ill-
ness is the inadequate funding. We believe that part of
the redson for such inadequate fundlng is that the Patent
and Trademark Office has. substantially no:direct partici-
pation in budget: planning-with ‘the: Offlce of Management
and Budget for the Congress.

We believe that if the Patent and Trademark Office
were made a separate’agency, it could obtain sufficient
funding te again makeé. it a strong force in providing good
patents as one.-incéntive for innovation.

-, Slnc rely,

BMK/dd
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THE SIGNAL COMPANIES

January 2,

Senator Zian Cranston

10960 Wilshire Blvd., A
Rm. 410 o
Los Angeles, CA 90024

Re: S. 2079 Independent Patent and Trademark :Office Act

Dear Senatur._

I strongly urge. that you suppurt tha " above bill’ which 'was 1ntro'
duced by Senatcr.-Bayh ;on::December. 5, .197%. -I havyeé worked-in the
patent and trademark fieids for over 20 years and fing the con—
. .Gitions in the Patent and Trademark Office to be deplorahle -.as
‘“described by former Comm:.ss:.onEr Donald W. Barner in his recent
-speech to.the American Bar Assdciation. Mr. Banner summed up™ =&
the situationias follows: ! 'In my‘'view; we are faced with.a- slowly
but’ steadlly declining Patent and Trademark Office. .Not.only are:
we faJ.l:Lng to make the’ PTO a modél cff:.ce, we ‘are falllng fo pxo—
vide the neCEssary maintenancé.  If we do not promptly reverse -
this direction’of movement, it shall soon Bé’ infected Wwith’
Vadm:.n:.stzatz.ve dry-rot. ccndztxon, render;.ng it mor:Lbunt .

I thJ.nk that 1t is :|.mportant to not that Senator Bayh
‘will not' be creatlng any-new burezberatic entity; but will merely o
remove the Patent:and Trademark Office’ from the!Commerxce Depdrt- i
-ment- where it suffers ‘from _-:i_.nat,ten‘;iOnr;and-a _fai-lure_:to 'appxeci'ate--
its comple® probklems. s T i et

Please let me know _if ycu w:Lll support S. 20’3‘9.

PWC/ch ponald W. Canady

co:  Genekob RBAIGR,
Frank Sapde:_—s

THE SIGNAL COMPANIES, ING., 9665 Wilshire Boulevard, Reverly Hills, Calilornia 90212 (213) 278-7400 &
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STATE BAR OF TEXAS

DFFICERS

wilam J. Scherback, Chairman
P.O. Box
Daﬂas ?5?22‘

Nea L Conley. Charman-Elect
1100 Espetsor Bidp.
Housian 77002 fhe
william 0. Harns, i Vice-Chairman
2900 Oe Main Place

Daiias 75250 . o

Charles Hanas, Secretary
500 NEC 8idg.
San Anionio 78205

Louis 7. Purkay, Tregsurar

1550 Amasican Bark Torer ., .
Austin 78757 PR TG

COUNCIL

AH. {Bud) £vans’
Houston

ot A fark, Jr.
Housior -

AOARD ADVISOR

Lestor Hawntl
Housston

Waéhihgtnn;nb.c;f320510

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LAW SECTION. .- i+ o1, - oo

February 25, 1980 iy omie

-, Senator. Birch Bayh
Attns  Mr. Joseph™P. Allen

U. S. Senate

s sen. §2079

cod

Dear Senator Bayh-

The Intellectual Property Law Sect1on of the State
Bar-of Texas:has taken -the position that the captioned . .
legislation is beneficial not only to the patent system,

..but to the public at 1arge. That position is ev1denced

by the enclosed resolution.- 'We.are now in the process’
of requesting the State Bar of Texas Board of Directors
to adopt this resolution as an action:of ;the State. Bar.

to express our support for this very 1mportant legislatlon.

¥y copy’ of this 1etter to Senator “Fowir and’ Senator Bentsen
I am requesating on behalf of at least our section their

" cooperation in obtaining -passapge of the.legislations

. Very -truly yours,

WIS /laib &
Enclosure

‘denitor Lloyd Bentsan o
240 Russell Senate Offlce Bldg.
Washington;:D:C. 20510 = E L e T e g

Senator .John G, Tower . . .
142 Russell Sémate OFEfice Bldg., ~ =~ =~ o i7¢
Washington, D.C. 510




in the past through the proééss%gg“bf.patent applications
-andfmaking the disclosures of“iinventions:available to the
publlc, and! R R .

- WHEREAS the pace of techologlcal advance has substantlally ' b

increased to effectlvely lmpalr the achx'vemen :of the

objectives of the patent systemsand:the.openatlpn of the"J
‘Patent and Trademark Office’ in particular; and

WHEREAS an 1ndependant Patent and Trademark Offlce,

nlted States,

can.

,;hK‘United étateé
LR T P AL i v

B I‘ RESOLVED that the tate Bar of

_e;the:concept of the Patent
and Trademark Office as’an lndependant agency answerable

only to the Congress. of th Unlted States and, more speCLflcally,

as set forth in Senate Blll—S 2079' and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that.the Secretary of the State

Bar of Texas infofﬁifhévﬁé§fé en afivés“ahd Senators from

the State of Texas to the Ufited. Sattés Congress of this

resolution.




- REHAND O HEBERLIN, PRESOEHT

Dear Senator Bayh:

819;

TOLEDO PATENT LAW ASSOCIATION
MEMBER: NATIONAL GOUNCIL ©F PATENT LAW ASSOCIATIONS
B T ... TOLEDO, OHIG .

0. e e
wuum . CLEMENS, VICE PRE&IDENT

208 R Laci s
ToAEDG, Ch 43

February 1%, 1980

Senator Birch Bayh EEEE R SR
U.5. Senate
Washington, D. C. 20510

ATTN: Joseph P. Allen

The Toledo Patent Law Associaticn fully supports the 1eglslat10n youf
recently introduced (S.207%) to establish the Patent and Trademark Office
as a separate agency apart from the Commercé Department. Our association
feels this legislation will be wvery beneficial for the Patent and Trade-
mark Office and will help to resolve the financial. dlfflcultles currently;
facing the Patent and Trademark Office, '

If the Toledd Patent Law Association may’ a551st you:in any.way:in
obtaining the passaqe of §.2079, please do not h351tate to contact me.

. Yours very truly,.: I I

Richarad: Heberllng
President
Toledo Patent Law Association

RH/CRS/mes

cc:  Senator Glenn
Senator Metzénbaum' .7 o
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The Toro Company

One Corporate Genter

7401 Metro Boulevard
Minrieapolis, Minnesota 556435
612/887-8900

Mary A. Elllott

vice President
Public Affairs

January 28, 1980

The Honorable Birch Bayh
United States Senate

363 ‘Russeld 0ffice: Building
Wash1ng on,. “‘0510

Dear Senatbr Bayh

Attached “isar copy of-ar~telex .sent in. support . _
of your bill, 2079, "establishing-an=indepen= - iz
dent Patent and Trademark 0ffice (PT0), to.the
Governmental Affains and-Judiciary Committee
chairmenfand ta" the*senators representing states

in which The Toro ¢ mpany has a facility.

Your efforts to make the PTO office more eff1c1ent
and effective are greatly appreciated. i L

Please let us know if we can be of further
assistance.

Sincerely,

Mary E117o0tt
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T HUSERATE Ug Senators Ribicoff
.| RUSENATE usH enators K;n;ggy
I S PR . i e . Durenbexger .
: Tﬂ?ﬁ INT tﬂ“ﬁ e e e Culver. .
LF‘RH’ pLen Glenn.-

Metzenbaum.

'.‘ RTTENT 10~n SENATOR RERAAR RIRICOFF/ 337

THE TORD COMPANY URCES YOUR SUPPORT OF S. 2079, THE INBEPthEENT
PRTENT R TRRIERARE ACT. AT THT JUINT GOVERMHENTAL AFFAIRG.-
JUDICIARY CONMITTEE HEARING OF JRNURRY 24, ME BECIEVE THAT T0
ESTR2LISYH THE PRTENT BND TREDENARK (FFICE (PTHY RY A SEPRRATE .
REEHCY RPART FREN THE CUﬂPEQCr NEFARTNERT COULT HAGIﬂIZtv'ir Aot
ELIHINETE, THE BACKLOE AHD LUNG DELAYS CORPANIES ARE CURRENTLY
ERPERIENCING IN THE PROCESS?PG ﬁr THE:R PHTENT HND TRFJ:HHQ{
REGUEST e :

* PRESENTLY UNJER THE LONRERLE BEPHQTRENT, THE PTO' 1§ Lﬂd PRI G%;t?-'

CIT IS UNDERFUNDED, UNDERSTRFFED. AND- THEREFORE URKBLE TO RESPON

Bﬁ B TIMELY-BASIS T PRTENT ANR TRSDENRRK REQUESTS. - {aH EiGHTf

RONTH HAITING PERIOD IS NOT URUSURL FOR § REPLY-ON TRAZEHARK
REGUESTSY)  RDBITIONALLY, USDEX THI§ SYSTEN, THE PRTENT LIBRARY:

E IS NOT PROPERLY STRFFED AXD RAINTAINEDa FOR EXANPLE, LAST HOVERSER
" & TORO“PATENT HCENT AND. THO ENGINEERS, SHILE CONDUCTING A PATENT

| BERRCH AT -THE FHTENT. OFF1GEs. FOUND FOUR SHELVES OF PRTENTS HLSS[HG.'

LITHIS. GPARTICULRRLY. RLARKING TO US BECRUSE ONE OF :THOSE. KISSING '

| PATENTS COULD LATER SURFACE-RND BE PRODUCER IN COURY 10 GHHLLENPE '

" ‘—T'E VRLTBITV-0F-AN ISSdtB PH:tHT ' S e

e e
LR, UHDERS?&HBIHG THRT 822079 ﬁUULB EKE THF PTO R

‘ 1HﬁEPENBE1T RAGENCY HITHAUT CREATING R-NEW 'BURESUCRASY, IT Hﬂﬁ

{ ALLOW THE PRESENT PTO STAFF TU FUNCTION WORE EFFECTIVELY AND.

3 EFFICIENT'? THEREGY ENCOURAGING INROVATION AND PRBBUETEJIt?.-

“THE TORD CORPANY THANKS VDU FOR YOUR CONSIDERBTION AND.KOULT -

| KPPRECIRTE VOUR SUPPORT OF Su 2079, PLERSE LET:US KNBU IF 4E CAN
f BE OF FURTHER ASSISTANCE, ST T
s;HCERva,. '
| DERNON ety
VICE PRESIDENT, SECRETRRY
1 AND GEMERAL COUNSEL

THE TORD SONPRNY
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MILTON S. WINTERS
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LAW QFFICES
IRCNS AND SEARS
A RROFESSIONAL CORPORATICN
1785 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N.w.
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20036

TELEPHDNE} Uf

~ [202) 466-5200
R . - TELEX: 440222

January. 4, 1980 .

-y

The Honorablé Blrch Bayh

United States’ Senate .
Russell Senate Office Bu,ldlng
Suite 363"
Washlngton, D C 20510

Re: S 2079; IﬁdependenE"Patéht”and Trademark Of%fee:__ 

Dear Senator Bayh

The Unlted States Trademark Assocratlon supports this
bill and appreciates your: sponsorship of it -Gibson;
the pre81dent ‘has asked me. to.convey this:to you :The -,
Association is w1111ng to. do whatever it .can to aid the
Congress in the con51deratlon ard e ntual passage .of thls
important . 1eglslation L s s

JTR/mdh -

cc: Louis:- M. Gibson*
Trademark Manager
Morisanto.: Company :i . i1
800 N. Llndbergh,Boulevard
St. Louis, Missouri 63166

ER

e
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{ WASHENGTON ‘STATE PATENT LAW A,ssocmﬂon - e

LU zANy SEATTLESFIRST NATIONAL BANK BUILDING . ©
T SEA‘ITLE WASHI'NGTON 98154 .

March 7 1980 SEL
2= 1103~7000 1643'

The Honorable Senator Blrch Ba h
. United“States:'sénaté:- ; T
: Washington, DC 20510

Attention:: Mr.,Joseph P. Allen

Dear Senator Bayh-

I am wrltlng to you on’ behalf of the Washington State Patent Law
Asscciation regard@ing Senate Bill 207% which would establish the
Patent and Trademark Office as a separate agency of the United
States Government., The Washington StaterPatent Law:Assccilation is:
comprised of approximately 75 patent attorneys.and. agents. who
practice before the Patent and "rademark Office. The members of our
association represent business and individual interests throughout
the state of Washington and in portions of our neighboring states.
As patent and trademark practitioners who must deal with the Patent
and Trademark Office on a regular basis, we have been somewhat
dismayed over the years by what appears to us to be a deterioration
of the Office in its ability to serve the public and discharge its
duties and responsibilities under the United States Constitution.

We believe that the United States Patent and Trademark laws play a
vital role in the well being of the United States economy and
encourage both individuals and business organizations to continue to
seek solutions to the increasing number of problems that we face as
a nation. A healthy Patent and Trademark Office would appear to us
to be in the best interests of the United States and its citizens.

Although we are not in a position to determine the causation of any
apparent decline in the ability of the Patent and Trademark Office
to discharge its duties and responsibilities, we are led to believe
by various sources including the testimony of those who are or were
in such a position that at least a portion of the blame can be laid
on the difficulty that the leadership of the Patent and Trademark
Office has faced in the past with respect to obtaining appropriate
support from Congress for its operation. Being subordinate to an
agency which from time to time may have interests not necessarily in
harmony with those of the Patent and Trademark Office could
certainly have contributed to the Patent and Trademark Office's
present condition.
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In view of the above; at' ouk: régular meeting on:March 6, 1980, the
Washington State Patent Law- Association voted unanimously to support
your Senate Bill 2079 relating to: the establishment of the Patent
and Trademark Office as a separate agency. We believe that passage
of this bill would be a positive step towards improvement of the
operation of the Office and the enhancement of our valuable free

entérprise ‘systém.
We sincerely hope that the bill will ultimately be enacted intc law.

Respectfully,

WASHINGTON STATE_ ATENT LAW S
ASBOCTIATION « ;zv o it Tl

. [T Peter:Mohn ... i .
i fPresident:..; . .

cc: fSénator“Warren G:;MagnusonA
Senator: Henry: M.:Jackson. . ...
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Law OFFICES OF

WHANN. WHANN & CLEVENGER

Patent, Trodemark & Copyright Causes o

- FINANCIAL SQUARE, SUITE 1142 B T E

L T E00 B STREET

L ’ SAN DIEGS, "CALIFORNIA 82101

WELTON B WHANN-- pon -
JAMES E..OLEVENGER..JR. (714)-238.0822

January. 7..1379;

Hen. Birch Bayh
United States Senator
Judiciary Committee
Russell Senate Office Building, Room 363
Washlngton, D.C.

RE: Independent Patent and Trademark Offlce Act.r g 2079

Dear Senator Bayh:

AsS specialists in trademark matters, we ufge’you to give
favorable consideration to the Independent Patent and Trademark
Office Act, S. “2079.0 T We® are ot experiencivig, much to- dur-regret,
& time’ lapse of “up to oné ‘year between the filing' of a trademark:
application and the first office action in response to iti :We 2
sinverely believe the Independent Patent and Trademark Office Act
will. permit the Patént "and Trademark Offlce to functlon ‘flore.
efflc;ently than 1s now B ble.'* : .

ResPectfuiiy,
et B

R B Welton B Whann




OF COUNSEL
WERKXER W. KLEEHAN
CABLE: WIQGT -
SARLINGTOR: VA -

HERBERT COHEN

JOSEPH BCAFETTA, JR.
MICHAEL T~ OREENBAUM o\ o S X NG 7510 956 0872
January: 3; 1980 WIOED = AGTH : >

i~

Honorhble Edward M. Fenne.s

Chairman, Judiciary Committee
Dirksen Senate QOffice Building
Washington, D.C. ca

Re: $.. 2079, - "Independent Patent.and Trademark
Office Aet" -

Dear Senator Kennedy=

you support the pas age o\
follow1ng reasons: ~

own affairs since the Department of Commerce ‘is supposed £
for it; i

2. There.is no direct contact between the Patent and Trade-
mark Office 'and- the:0ffice:of: Management and Budget because the
bureaucracy in the Department of Commerce represents an uninformed
chstacle between: the Commissioner of the PTQO and the Director of
the OMB: and

3. The bill would permit the Commissioner of the PTO to' he
heard on. legislative and budgetary matters directly affecting the
responsibilities assigned to the PTO;

4, There is an URGENT need to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office in order to
foster innovation and to promote the progress of science and in-
dustry, as stated in our Constitution, Article I, Section 8.
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Once again, your help is respectfully requested.

.

Very truly yours,

WIGMAN & CCHEN

Herbert Cohen

Js/eao )
cc:  All members of Judiciary Committr—.zr.a.‘\,"""—~
Commigsioner, U.S. Patent and Trademark Office;
Dorothy Fey, Executive Director, U.S. Trademark Association

O
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